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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the state
industrial commission and the agencies under the management of the industrial
commission; to provide a continuing appropriation; to provide a contingent appropriation; to
authorize transfers; to provide legislative intent; to create and enact a new section to
chapter 6-09 and a new section to chapter 54-17.8 of the North Dakota Century Code,
relating to a new short line railroad loan program and the North Dakota outdoor heritage
fund; to amend and reenact sections 54-17-40, 54-17-41, and 57-38-01.32 of the North
Dakota Century Code and section 22 of chapter 579 of the 2011 Session Laws, relating to
the housing incentive fund credits and the use of the flex PACE program; and to provide an
expiration date.

Minutes: See attachment A

Chairman Thoreson: Opened the hearing on HB1014.

Karlene Fine, Executive Director and Secretary, ND Industrial Commission: See
testimony attachment A.

Lynn Helms, Director, Department of Mineral Resources: See testimony attachment A.
Chairman Thoreson: How many wells have we added over the last 5 years?

Lynn Helms: Over the last 5 years we have added 9,000 wells.

Lynn Helms continued with his testimony.

Representative Kempenich: Are those annual leases that you have at the bottom; that
Bismarck is just under $400,000.00 and Dickinson $60,000.00?

Lynn Helms: That's a two year number.
Lynn Helms continued with his testimony.

Chairman Thoreson: That option is ongoing?
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Lynn Helms: That option is written into the lease. We have a 20 year lease and that
option stays there for the 20 years.

Chairman Thoreson: What year are you on the lease right now?
Lynn Helms: Both of those were renegotiated 2 years ago; so we have 18 years left.
Representative Kempenich: What are your square foot costs?

Lynn Helms: Eighteen dollars/sq. ft. in Bismarck, $15.00/sq. ft. in Williston, $9.50/sq. ft. in
Dickinson and $8.50/sq. ft. in Minot.

Lynn Helms continued with his testimony.

Vice Chairman Brandenburg: \Who are the people who appealed that action?

Lynn Helms: It's the land owners over where the CO2 plume is going to be placed. lllinois
does not have a statute like HCR3822 in place; which compensates the surface owners for
the use of their pour space.

Chairman Thoreson: If Ms. McCarthy gives North Dakota her approval, is there a chance
that someone will come in and appeal or try and sue us in the same way; or will that not
happen if she gives her blessing so to speak?

Lynn Helms: There's always that possibility. We do have one company called C12 that
has 2 projects designed and ready to go in place in North Dakota; one is in Dickinson and
one is in Halliday. The reasons behind the lawsuits in lllinois don't exist in North Dakota;
because you did put in statute who owns the pour space and how they out to be
compensated. We go through a rigorous system of public hearings and notices. | would
say the probability is pretty small.

Lynn Helms continued with his testimony.

Representative Kempenich: They're drilling new injection wells now instead of using old
oil wells right?

Lynn Helms: That's correct. The inventory of old oil wells that had deep enough surface
casing is gone. We're dealing with brand new locations and newly drilled wells.

Representative Kempenich: How long does an injection well last?
Lynn Helms: The life of an injection well is 40 years.
Representative Skarphol: How long do you think we'll be using water to frack?

Lynn Helms: For the next decade or two.
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Lynn Helms continued with his testimony.

Representative Kempenich: [s it mostly cementing the job?

Lynn Helms: That's correct. Ninety percent of the time in that 4% category; one of the
Bakken shale's caves in because they've been drilling in too long. They don't frack the well
until it's properly cemented.

Lynn Helms continued with his testimony.

Representative Kempenich: How often do you test?

Lynn Helms: We're there once a year to watch that test.

Lynn Helms continued with his testimony.

Chairman Thoreson: \What does that mean?

Lynn Helms: In terms of gas storage, chalk is about as good as it gets. It has 30% to 40%
porosity. The problem is it has almost no permeability; so it's a lot like the middle Bakken.
This likely is a very large, maybe 4 or 5 county and extending into South Dakota,
unconventional play.

Vice Chairman Brandenburg: We may not have oil but we have natural gas.

Lynn Helms: Absolutely.

Representative Skarphol: How shallow is it?

Lynn Helms: About 1,800 feet. This is going to be like the northern regions of
Pennsylvania and West Virginia.

Lynn Helms continued with his testimony.

Chairman Thoreson: A lot of the core library are students that are working there also?
Lynn Helms: That's correct. Dominantly they are master's and PHD students; so their
schedule is more flexible. Maybe 1/3 are undergraduates; but, they are geology/geological
engineering and petroleum engineering students.

Lynn Helms continued with his testimony.

Representative Kempenich: What do you have in mind with that?

Lynn Helms: What we have in mind for these people are the construction phase. We're
finding that pipelines aren't being buried deep enough; they should be 4 feet deep or more

and where they cross section lines, they should be 6 feet deep. That's not happening. Our
guys are going to focus on that construction phase.
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Representative Kempenich: That is a key element in this whole thing.

Lynn Helms: We're looking for a specialized individual. They've been authorized since
July and we have 1 on staff. They're filling another engineering technician spot; and we're
interviewing for the other 2 right now. We'd like someone who has 3 to 5 years of pipeline
construction crew experience.

Lynn Helms continued with his testimony.

Representative Skarphol: The 200 wells you referred to that you need to reclaim per
year. I'm assuming that you mean that you have to monitor the reclamation by other
companies. As an agency, are you reclaiming any of the old abandoned wells utilizing the
petroleum fund?

Lynn Helms: You're right. There's 200 that are reclaimed every year; of that 180 are paid
for and reclaimed by the operator and we just monitor that reclamation. Right now we have
18 that belong to us; they're orphaned wells that we're doing the reclamation process on.
The current structure of the abandoned wells sight restoration fund limits our activities to
wells drilled after August 1, 1983. There is a bill that is going to set up for that fund $3
million a biennium to be spent on the legacy bad reclamation wells and issues that you're
talking about. It will be set up in the same manner that the abandoned mine lands program
is set up; where we build a list, prioritize it and we spend $1.5 million a year to fix those old
legacy problems.

Representative Skarphol: The back log that you have on those wells drilled after 1981;
you say you're working on 18 now, what's the backlog that remains out there?

Lynn Helms: If you bring in the legacy?
Representative Skarphol: Leaving out the legacy.

Lynn Helms: We'll go from 18 to 19. We've been very aggressive in terms of making sure
that post 1983 stuff is taken care of. There's a backlog of just 1 in that area. If you go back
to pre1983, that's probably going to quadruple that number or maybe 5x that in terms of
locations that we need to go back and revisit.

Representative Skarphol: There are numerous situations that we've been very
unfortunate in the past and there's some pretty significant damage out there. For example,
slews that had salt water run into them; is that the type of thing you're considering in the
backlog?

Lynn Helms: Yes. There are a couple issues that would be vying for top priority for that
$3 million per biennium; because they represent an ongoing increasing area being
contaminated by that old contamination. There are a handful of flowing seismic shot holes
that date back to the 1970's that are mixing ground water and also flowing out on the
surface and causing erosion and contamination.
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Representative Skarphol: There are some of these that go back into the 1950's. Have
you done any work on any of those? If so, have you done soil profiles to see how far that
contamination has penetrated into the soil?

Lynn Helms: If you go back to page 7 you'll see that there's an updated publication. The
geologic survey has surveyed several of those to look at the depth and aerial extent of
those contaminations. Those are the worst ones. We think we have an idea. That same
bill includes a $2.5 million pilot project to take on the worst of those and see if we can fix
them. It's HB1032 and its amendments.

Representative Kempenich: It's well sites because you bring in the reserve pits.

Lynn Helms: This particular legislation would allow pipeline spills and associated
contamination issues to be put on the priority list.

Lynn Helms continued with his testimony.

Chairman Thoreson: You have the authority to be able to access that money should you
need to file suit at some point?

Lynn Helms: Correct. It's an endangered species lawsuit by the Center for Biological
Diversity and they sue US Fish and Wildlife over threatened or endangered species. We
need to put a qualified legal counsel person at that table within 24 hours so that North
Dakota's interests are protected in that sue and settle thing.

Representative Skarphol: Is there anything new happening in the "sue and settle"
situation?

Lynn Helms: What I've been hearing is it's going to be taken up again with the new
Congress. They tried with this last Congress and the bill sat in Senator Reed's desk
drawer. The problem was that it came out of the farm credit agency lawsuits and takeover
of farmers in the 1990's. They intend to stop the practice of suing the EPA or US Fish and
Wildlife, coming up with a settlement agreement and getting your attorney fees paid.

Vice Chairman Brandenburg: Agriculture is dealing with the same thing that oil and gas
is dealing with. We need to be at the table whether it's agriculture or oil and gas.

Lynn Helms continued with his testimony.
Chairman Thoreson: What type of demolition has to be done?

Lynn Helms: That long grey area on the east which is existing offices and labs and the
pumping unit has to be moved. Also the west wall has to be taken out.

Chairman Thoreson: So you would be building over the existing parking lot?

Lynn Helms: Correct.
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Chairman Thoreson: What happens to parking for this facility? How many parking
spaces are going to be taken out of commission and need to be replaced?

Lynn Helms: Seventy-four parking spaces would disappear from the lot just to the west of
the existing core library; and a small amount of parking to the south. The university is
anticipating at some point of building another parking structure; which would replace those
74. Part of this includes buying those 74 parking spaces.

Chairman Thoreson: | would like to see what it is you would be buying and what it is they
would be requesting at some future date. Would that come through this budget or does it
go through the higher education budget?

Lynn Helms: We will get you a detailed line item breakdown of this project. The sky
bridge could or couldn't be put in there; it creates a great access for the students to get
from Leonard Hall and the Collaborative Energy Center over to this classroom.

Lynn Helms continued with his testimony.

Chairman Thoreson: Any potash updates?

Lynn Helms: We just published a publication following the potash expiration well in Burke
county. The company walked away from that because it contained a significant percentage
of carnelite magnesium chloride; that wasn't a preferred product for them. Russia mines
huge amounts of potash with magnesium chloride as their bi-product.

Lynn Helms continued with his testimony.

Representative Kempenich: What does it cost per well over a lifetime?

Lynn Helms: I'd be happy to figure it out and provide that number.

Chairman Thoreson: Recessed the hearing.
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the state
industrial commission and the agencies under the management of the industrial
commission; to provide a continuing appropriation; to provide a contingent appropriation; to
authorize transfers; to provide legislative intent; to create and enact a new section to
chapter 6-09 and a new section to chapter 54-17.8 of the North Dakota Century Code,
relating to a new short line railroad loan program and the North Dakota outdoor heritage
fund; to amend and reenact sections 54-17-40, 54-17-41, and 57-38-01.32 of the North
Dakota Century Code and section 22 of chapter 579 of the 2011 Session Laws, relating to
the housing incentive fund credits and the use of the flex PACE program; and to provide an
expiration date.

Minutes: See attachments A, B and C

Chairman Thoreson: Reopened the hearing on HB1014.

Ron Ness, ND Petroleum Council: We wanted to stand in support of the department.
These are highly skilled, highly technical people across the country. We also support the
additions to the core library in Grand Forks.

Eric Hardmeyer, President, Bank of North Dakota: See testimony attachment A.

Representative Skarphol: Did you say that you have 137 loans or 137 people have taken
advantage of it?

Eric Hardmeyer: Three thousand people have taken advantage of this.
Representative Skarphol: Wasn't 1377

Eric Hardmeyer: $137 million.

Representative Skarphol: You said $143 million as well.

Eric Hardmeyer: It's actually been paid down since we originated that.
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Representative Kempenich: What's the length of the loan?

Eric Hardmeyer: It varies based on the amount of loan that you have. If it gets over
$10,000.00 to $15,000.00, we'll take the term and extend it from a regular term of 10 years
and it will go up to as long as 25 years.

Representative Kempenich: That's fixed interest then?

Eric Hardmeyer: They can have a fixed or variable rate. Eighty-four percent of the
individuals using this program are taking the variable rate. Today the variable rate is 1.73%
and you can reduce that by another % of a point by doing ACH or automatic payments; so
you can get your interest rate down to 1.48% today. We cap the amount of adjustment per
year to 1%. The fixed rate is 4.84%.

Representative Kempenich: | know those federal loans are 6%. You've dropped it $7
million; so people must be accelerating the principle down.

Eric Hardmeyer: We think we've scratched the surface. The total of residents available
maybe as many as 50,000 people; and we've done about 3,000.

Representative Hogan: [I'm interested in how you're marketing these programs to
students. We've heard in financial aid meetings with students that they often don't
reference the Bank of North Dakota options. Are you part of that routine package?

Eric Hardmeyer: Financial aid offices are restricted in particularly talking about our
program. They can't specifically use us as a preferential program; and that's federally
driven.

Representative Hogan: Do you know if you're automatically included in those lists of
options? I've heard from students that you're not automatically included.

Eric Hardmeyer: | believe we are and we're trying to work with higher education that we
could be listed as a preferential lender.

Chairman Thoreson: You said 50,000 in the state possibly. Is this a product only
available to people within North Dakota or could a student from out of state try to
consolidate loans through this?

Eric Hardmeyer: This is a program available only to North Dakotans.

Chairman Thoreson: Do you have any loans that others from out of state or students from
out of state attending universities or colleges in North Dakota would use through the bank?

Eric Hardmeyer: The DEAL1 Program is only available to North Dakota residents. The
DEAL Program, which is not the consolidation; but is just a student loan program, is
available regionally. We do this program in not only North Dakota but Minnesota, Montana
and South Dakota as well. Any student who goes from outside of North Dakota can use
this program when attending a North Dakota school.
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Chairman Thoreson: But they have to be going to school in North Dakota or could they
be from those other states?

Eric Hardmeyer: They can be from other states using this program.

Chairman Thoreson: In other states.

Eric Hardmeyer: Yes.

Representative Kempenich: Can the schools initiate this program?

Eric Hardmeyer: Yes.

Chairman Thoreson: Do you have a document that shows who qualifies for what?
Eric Hardmeyer: We can get that for you.

Representative Skarphol: Do you have enough history with the DEAL Program to know
what kind of a delinquency rate you're looking at?

Eric Hardmeyer: | do.

Chairman Thoreson: That's something that you can provide.

Eric Hardmeyer continued with his testimony.

Vice Chairman Brandenburg: Do you see more operational costs for the DEAL Program?

Eric Hardmeyer: We had to spend about $150,000.00 to get our systems updated so we
could handle this rollout. We don't see a need right now.

Eric Hardmeyer continued with his testimony.

Representative Kempenich: Have you thought what that building would cost today if we
had to do that over again? Do you track what that cost would be if we were going to build it
again?

Eric Hardmeyer: We look at construction costs all the time. In 2008 the new building cost
about $13 million and construction costs were about $143 per sq. ft.; today construction
costs would be about $220 to $250 per sq. ft.

Eric Hardmeyer continued with his testimony.

Vice Chairman Brandenburg: So there's another $50 million coming for the medical
school?

Eric Hardmeyer: As we understand it, HB1286 will specifically address medical facility
construction.
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Representative Skarphol: You referenced HB1137 on the first page of your testimony.
What type of infrastructure are we talking about there?

Eric Hardmeyer: Actually HB1137 is $100 million for the total. What | have referenced
here is how much of that will actually spend in the first 6 months. The $100 million in
HB1137 designed for city infrastructure; water, sewer, roads, gutters, etc.

Representative Skarphol: [s it available for cities statewide?

Eric Hardmeyer: Yes itis.

Representative Skarphol: For any and every type of infrastructure?

Eric Hardmeyer: Yes it is. As | understand the bill, it's based on the growth of the
community. The dollar amount is based on the size of the growth of the city.

Eric Hardmeyer continued with his testimony.
Vice Chairman Brandenburg: Is the $7.4 million committed or is that available?

Eric Hardmeyer: That's available. So we have about $5 million left for the rest of the
biennium.

Representative Kempenich: So you work with LSS?

Eric Hardmeyer: We don't have a specific definition for what "affordable" is; ours is driven
by the community. The community decides what's affordable in their community.

Representative Kempenich: Those are variable lengths of terms?
Eric Hardmeyer: The interest rate?

Representative Kempenich: The interest rate and the term. How far out is the payback
time?

Eric Hardmeyer: You'd see a term of 15 to 20 years and interest rates depend on what
the borrower and the bank negotiate.

Eric Hardmeyer continued with his testimony.

Dan Zink, Red River Valley and Western Railroad Company: We are one of three
primary short line railroads in North Dakota. We have about 15 locomotives and 100
employees; and about 60 or 70 customers, mostly in central and southeast North Dakota.
The Red River and Western, as well as the other short lines, serve almost complete the
rural areas of North Dakota. We have either purchased or leased track from the larger
railroad companies who couldn't or wouldn't profitably serve these branch lines. We have
been able to improve most of the branch lines that we operate over. We're seeing 2 or 2/3
of our system have been brought back to a serviceable condition; the remaining part is
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either marginal in terms of its profitability or no chance for making these lines profitable.
We've used the loan program that is available to short lines for the entire history of our
company. Replacement of the rail itself is critical in serving these rural communities and
the short lines are incapable of bearing that investment. The proposal to add $10 million in
loan funds to the Bank of North Dakota is welcome.

Vice Chairman Brandenburg: You were instrumental in providing a lot of information to
the Upper Great Plains study.

Connie Ova, CEO, Jamestown/Stutsman Development Corporation and Vice
President, Economic Development Association of North Dakota: See testimony
attachment B.

Eric Hardmeyer continued with his testimony.

John Philips, Lutheran Service Housing: Testified in support of HB1014 for the portion
concerning the Bank of North Dakota.

Vance Taylor, President and General Manager, ND Mill and Elevator: See testimony
attachment A.

Representative Kempenich: Does that go out in bulk?

Vance Taylor: It can go out in bulk but it primarily shipped in bags to smaller pasta makers
that deal with high end pasta.

Vance Taylor continued with his testimony.

Representative Kempenich: Where is most of the market at?

Vance Taylor: It is mostly to the east coast and the Ohio river valley.

Vance Taylor continued with his testimony.

Representative Kempenich: Is this in addition to an existing mill or is it something new?
Vance Taylor: It is in addition to our cleaning house building and also a new milling
building that will be big enough to hold the 11,500 100 wt. unit. It will also provide space in
the future for an additional 11,500 100 wt. unit.

Representative Kempenich: So you're going 22,0007

Vance Taylor: At some point in the future.

Vance Taylor continued with his testimony.

Vice Chairman Brandenburg: Could you give that figure again for how much more you're
going to be able to ship?
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Vance Taylor: It's11,500 100 weights per day; it will add an additional 30% to our total
capacity. It will give us the ability to go from about 12 million 100 wt. per year up to about
16 million 100 wt. per year; that's a conservative figure for the first 2 years.

Vance Taylor continued with his testimony.

Representative Kempenich: Do employ any hedging?

Vance Taylor: We've had a policy to try and stay fully hedged. After 2008-2009 we
rerouted our hedging policy to make it more strict and well defined. We try to stay
completely hedged on our flour sales and our wheat purchasing.

Vice Chairman Brandenburg: Are you just basically buying and selling during those days
when it's volatile?

Vance Taylor: We change our hedging position the instant our grain purchases are made
or the instant our sales are made; so, several times per day we're taking positions in the
market to offset what we're doing in the grain purchasing or flour sales.

Vice Chairman Brandenburg: If at 3:00 someone wants to make a transaction, are you
waiting until 9:30 the next morning and dealing with it when the market is open so there's
not a risk position or do you deal with an overnight trader?

Vance Taylor: Sometimes we use the overnight markets and at other times we'll ask the
customer to wait until the next morning to see what the markets do.

Vance Taylor continued with his testimony
Representative Kempenich: Has quality been an issue this year?

Vance Taylor: We've had to deal with some quality issues this year. We've been able to
find the wheat we need.

Vance Taylor continued with his testimony.
Representative Kempenich: How long does your contract run?

Vance Taylor: We just finished negotiations this summer on a new contract. It was a 5
year contract.

Vance Taylor continued with his testimony.
Representative Kempenich: How many railcars do you have?

Vance Taylor: We have over 500 railcars now; and with the new mill we'll be adding 190
more railcars to handle that additional flour.

Representative Kempenich: So you at 700 cars then?
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Vance Taylor: Yes.
Vance Taylor continued with his testimony.

Representative Skarphol: Can you tell us what your unutilized overtime dollars amount
to?

Vance Taylor: | can get that to you.

Jolene Kline, Executive Director, ND Housing Finance Agency: See testimony
attachment A.

Representative Kempenich: Where are these homeless people coming from?

Jolene Kline: Homelessness has many different faces. It may be veterans who are not
able to find adequate employment, somebody coming into the state with the hopes of
gainful employment who is under experienced, it maybe somebody who was adequately
housed prior to the energy impact on the rents, etc.

Representative Hogan: I'm interested in the voucher programs. Has North Dakota ever
looked at developing a North Dakota voucher program for low income individuals?

Jolene Kline: Yes. There is interest from the housing authorities in developing a voucher
program. One of the things that was contemplated was using a portion of the housing
incentive fund to help with the rental subsidy program. With the shortage, $50 million isn't
adequate to support both a bricks and mortar program as well as a rental assistance
program. In my estimation it would take significantly more HIF funding to be able to use
that for rental assistance.

Jolene Kline continued with her testimony.

Representative Kempenich: What is an average house price in North Dakota?

Jolene Kline: The average market price depends by community. There's very limited
inventory for our buyers.

Kim Zeeb, Fraser Ltd of Fargo: See testimony attachment C.
Chairman Thoreson: What age group are we talking about?
Kim Zeeb: Eighteen to 26 and our mean age is age 20.

Representative Hogan: Because there are such long waiting lists for section 8; and your
kids are so young they can't apply, are you going to have an ongoing funding challenge?

Kim Zeeb: Yes. We're taking it one step at a time. This part of the organization receives
no help from the state. It is an ongoing issue and we're just looking at it day to day. We
want to get phase 3 completed so we can house 21 people plus the 4 families.
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Representative Hogan: They also don't get any funding voucher or any subsidy.
Kim Zeeb: Absolutely.

Chairman Thoreson: Recessed the hearing.
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the state
industrial commission and the agencies under the management of the industrial
commission; to provide a continuing appropriation; to provide a contingent appropriation; to
authorize transfers; to provide legislative intent; to create and enact a new section to
chapter 6-09 and a new section to chapter 54-17.8 of the North Dakota Century Code,
relating to a new short line railroad loan program and the North Dakota outdoor heritage
fund; to amend and reenact sections 54-17-40, 54-17-41, and 57-38-01.32 of the North
Dakota Century Code and section 22 of chapter 579 of the 2011 Session Laws, relating to
the housing incentive fund credits and the use of the flex PACE program; and to provide an
expiration date.

Minutes: See attachments D through J

Chairman Brandenburg: Reopened the hearing on HB1014.

David Klein, Executive Director, Stutsman County Housing Authority: See testimony
attachment D.

Representative Boehning: What percentage breakdown do you have of vouchers going
to the younger residents?

David Klein: | don't have any percentage breakdowns for that; because, HUD doesn't give
that back to us in any type of report. Each housing authority can also decide who it's going
to help first. In Stutsman county we see under 10% of younger families.

Representative Boehning: What's the threshold to get help under this program?

David Klein: They are HUD guidelines for income; and they're set annually by HUD. Each
county has their set amount. Rent and utilities have to be underneath the cap that's set by
HUD as the fair market rent.

Representative Boehning: Can you explain the $2.00 a pack increase on cigarettes?
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David Klein: | work with a local community health partnership in Stutsman county. The
Tobacco Coalition wants to raise that tax; because our tax is one of the lowest in the United
States. Surrounding states are averaging $2.00 and we're at $.44 per pack. That coalition
wanted to see that raised up but they had no use for the funding of it; because they receive
some funding from the federal government for their advertisements and it raises about $35
million per year. | haven't had the chance to ask if anybody could get that into any bill to
look at for long term funding.

Lynn Fundingsland, Executive Director, Fargo Housing and Redevelopment
Authority: See testimony attachment E.

Representative Kempenich: Do you have any statistics on the retirees? Do you have
any statistics for what they have going into retirement?

Lynn Fundingsland: | have access to them. | can get those for you.
Lynn Fundingsland continued with his testimony.

Representative Hogan: Does that $100 million include any voucher program or is that a
direct loan program for building?

Lynn Fundingsland: My understanding is that of the $100 million, $10 million was
allocated towards vouchers.

Representative Glassheim: The 11,400 affordable housing units. How did you get that
on a statewide basis? Is there a certain dollar amount that that would amount to?

Lynn Fundingsland: This is census data and how they arrived at that is that we know the
household income and we know what rents are across the state. They matched up the
demographic data to the number of units available and concluded that we're short that
many.

Representative Glassheim: So it's calculated differently for each city?

Lynn Fundingsland: Yes sir.

Representative Glassheim: That's 30% of income for housing.

Lynn Fundingsland: So anybody paying more than 30% of their household income is
unaffordable.

Representative Skarphol: With regard to the 11,400 units, do you have the statistics that
you could provide us that would tell us how that compares on a per capita basis with other
states? |s that available to you in some fashion?

Lynn Fundingsland: Yes.
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Representative Skarphol: Could you provide the committee with that so we could see
how we compare with Montana, South Dakota and Minnesota on a per capita basis?

Lynn Fundingsland: I'd be pleased to do that.
Dan Madler, Chief Executive Officer, Beyond Shelter Inc: See testimony attachment F.

Terry Hanson, Executive Director, Grand Forks Housing Authority: See testimony that
was submitted by email; attachment G.

Tom Alexander, Executive Director, Minot Housing Authority: See testimony
attachment H.

Jessica Thomasson, CEO, Lutheran Social Services of ND: See testimony attachment
l.

Representative Kempenich: How many partners do you usually wind up having in these
projects?

Jessica Thomasson: [t depends on the project. The smallest number of partners we've
had is 4 and sometimes up to 10 or 12. We'll work with local economic developers, we
always work with the local bank, the state through the Housing Finance Agency or the
department of commerce, and local churches.

Chairman Brandenburg: Are we losing some homes and they're being replaced by more
expensive? Is that part of the problem?

Jessica Thomasson: Yes.

Jaclyn Hall, Executive Director, Ruth Meier's House: See testimony attachment J.
Mark Johnstone: Testified to the need for affordable housing in ND.

Chairman Thoreson: You're working here at the capitol?

Mark Johnstone: | work in the parking lot.

Jaclyn Hall continued with her testimony.

Representative Boehning: When you collecting the rents, how much of that are you
putting aside for capital investments in the future for the maintenance of the building?

Jaclyn Hall: Through our housing incentive fund we have a 15 year covenant. With that
we are told how much money can be set aside for improvements. Knowing the clients we
serve, it's usually more than that. We also capitalize some of that with other different
things; so we may use CVBG or home funds to do some major renovations. Usually $300
to $500 per unit is what we use for maintenance. We also have a full-time maintenance
individual on staff.
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Representative Boehning: You don't have a large fund of $20,000 to $30,000 to replace
windows, etc.? You don't have that type of money set aside? Is it an ongoing expense?

Jaclyn Hall: It's an ongoing expense. As a nonprofit we don't have a huge fund for capital
improvements.

Representative Skarphol: Can you share with the committee what's been transpiring in
Williams county and give us some idea of numbers with regard to that? According to
information provided by the state the average income in Tioga is $82,000.00. How does
that play into what these entities are able to charge?

Jolene Kline: Federal funding has to follow HUD guidelines to the letter. We have more
flexibility with the housing incentive fund; but there are still some limitations. Our century
code states that we as an agency have to benefit households of low to moderate income;
that moderate income we've pushed up to 140% of area median income. We use the HUD
published county income with the 140%. We have such a backlog of units that are needed
for the very low income; that pushing that above 140%; which is probably in the $65,000 to
$70,000 for a single individual in Williams County.

Representative Skarphol: The concern is the distribution of units within the facility that
was in Tioga; the extremely low vs the high category.

Jolene Kline: We're talking about Jessica's 26 unit project in Tioga. That was a federal
loan from housing tax credit funded projects. That project is mandated at the 60% area
median level. That flexibility to go to 140% is not there; but the maximum is 60%. If she
rents to a household greater than 60% of area median income, as the compliance agency
for that program, we must notify the IRS that she is not eligible for the credits on that unit.

Representative Skarphol: Three out of the 26 were eligible for the very low. That
seemed incredibly low to me.

Jolene Kline: Now we're back to that issue where you have to have enough rent stream to
support that project. The more units you put down; the more pressed your annual
operating is going to be, the more need for state funding to supplement the federal dollars.
The lower we're trying to drive those rents, the more state money has to come in on the
front end to reduce the debt.

Representative Skarphol: How does the state money help you accomplish that? How
does the state money help you make 6 or 10 of those units available? Is it the upfront
money that the entity would get in grant dollars in order to be able to reduce the cash flow
needed?

Jolene Kline: Yes. It's going to be twofold. If you want to achieve those extremely low
rents, you're probably not going to be able to support any debt on that project. You may
also need to look at property tax relief on that project. There's another bill out there that's
looking at what the property taxes should be for affordable housing. We have replacement
reserve requirements; generally in that $300 per unit per year.
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Representative Skarphol: If the city of Tioga said there would be no property tax on this
building, it's conceivable they could lower the rent.

Jolene Kline: Yes.

Chairman Brandenburg: Recessed the hearing.
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the state
industrial commission and the agencies under the management of the industrial
commission; to provide a continuing appropriation; to provide a contingent appropriation; to
authorize transfers; to provide legislative intent; to create and enact a new section to
chapter 6-09 and a new section to chapter 54-17.8 of the North Dakota Century Code,
relating to a new short line railroad loan program and the North Dakota outdoor heritage
fund; to amend and reenact sections 54-17-40, 54-17-41, and 57-38-01.32 of the North
Dakota Century Code and section 22 of chapter 579 of the 2011 Session Laws, relating to
the housing incentive fund credits and the use of the flex PACE program; and to provide an
expiration date.

Minutes: See attachments A and K through N

Chairman Brandenburg: Reopened the hearing on HB1014.

DeAnn Ament, Executive Director, Public Finance Authority: See testimony
attachment A.

Representative Hogan: What's the average interest rate you charge on most of these
loans? How is that established?

DeAnn Ament: The capital financing program is a market rate program. When we issue
bonds, whatever the interest rate is that we pay on the bonds is passed along to the
borrower. The state revolving fund program is a fixed rate program because there's
environmental protection agency capitalization grants that the state of North Dakota
receives, we have to provide that at a below market interest rate. Currently, that rate is 2%
interest plus .5% administration fee.

Al Anderson, Chairman, Renewable Energy Council: See testimony attachments K and
L.

Al Anderson, Chairman, Empower Commission: Testified in support of the Housing
Incentive fund part of HB1014.
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Jason Bohrer, Chairman, Lignite Research Council: See testimony attachments M and
N.

Representative Kempenich: On top of this $10 million there's $22 million in there; so
you're looking at $32 million in total?

Jason Bohrer: The additional appropriation would only be $10 million.
Representative Kempenich: The total for the research council would be what?
Jason Bohrer: The total appropriation would be $18 million.

Representative Glassheim: Is that in order to have cleaner coal?

Jason Bohrer: That's not the only purpose. We do feel pressure from EPA regulations.
Regardless of where those regulations end up, we're going to have cope with the reality
that we're going to continue to operate in this carbon constrained world. We've done
research on carbon capture in the past. It is a path forward for the future.

Representative Skarphol: What are you going to do with the carbon when you capture it?

Jason Bohrer: We don't have a use identified for the carbon dioxide aside from enhanced
oil recovery. There's continued research to find other potential uses for the carbon dioxide.

Wade Moser, Chairman, Outdoor Heritage Fund: See testimony attachment A.

Representative Kempenich: How did you come up with the way you funded those
projects?

Wade Moser: The project is an application process; they have to put a dollar amount to it
as to what it would cost them for that project. We find out what they're putting forward
themselves and then they describe the project.

Representative Kempenich: Are you doing what they do on the impact fund or are you
reimbursing as they bring things forward? How do you reimburse them? Is this used as
"upfront" money with those projects?

Wade Moser: It is reimbursement only. They have to submit their expenses and a report
to Karlene at the Industrial Commission office. Once they submit their expenses and it's in
line with their contract that they signed with the Industrial Commission; then they are
reimbursed for them. There might be an occasion where a few dollars are given up front.

Representative Boehning: Looking at the total cost and the amount of funding; there's
some that are 100% and they're all over the board. Are you going to set up a certain
amount of 25% or 50% match on these?

Wade Moser: We would like to have at least 25% of the project funded by the applicant.
We have talked to the Industrial Commission about setting a firm dollar amount or
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percentage; and they didn't approve that. We have the flexibility to be all over the board
based on the project and the need. | don't think at this point we're looking at changing that
unless the legislature directs us to. | know there is a bill that is going to be introduced to
talk about the policy about how we do these.

Representative Skarphol: [f you have uncommitted dollars left after your next grant
round, do they carry forward?

Wade Moser: Yes they carry forward.
Brent Brannan, Director, Oil and Gas Research Program: See attachment A.

Representative Kempenich: How are you working with the Lignite Research Council?
Did you put money into their projects or try enhance your projects with what they're doing?

Brent Brannan: The two programs are separate. The appropriations are distinctly
different.

Karlene Fine: See testimony attachment A for the Pipeline Authority and Transmission
Authority.

Chairman Thoreson: Closed the hearing on HB1014.
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the state
industrial commission and the agencies under the management of the industrial
commission; to provide a continuing appropriation; to provide a contingent appropriation; to
authorize transfers; to provide legislative intent; to create and enact a new section to
chapter 6-09 and a new section to chapter 54-17.8 of the North Dakota Century Code,
relating to a new short line railroad loan program and the North Dakota outdoor heritage
fund; to amend and reenact sections 54-17-40, 54-17-41, and 57-38-01.32 of the North
Dakota Century Code and section 22 of chapter 579 of the 2011 Session Laws, relating to
the housing incentive fund credits and the use of the flex PACE program; and to provide an
expiration date.

Minutes: See attachments A and B.

Vice Chairman Brandenburg: Opened the discussion on HB1014.

Joe Dunn, Tribal Councilman, Standing Rock Indian Reservation: What we're trying to
accomplish is the opportunity for tribal members to build their homes. We have 50 acres
that we can develop. We've identified some lenders; but we'd like to provide some security
for our lenders.

Vice Chairman Brandenburg: Maybe you could explain the barriers of building on the
trust land.

Joe Dunn: It seems that lenders are reluctant to provide opportunities on trust land
because of the possession issue. We think that's been resolved. We know there have
been a number of projects that have been done on trust land. We have one lender that has
been doing this successfully.

Representative Skarphol: What kind of participation are you anticipating that you will
receive from HUD with regard to this? Do they have any current programs that you can
utilize and if so, can you share with us what they're able to do? What are your expectations
of the Bank of North Dakota or the state of North Dakota?
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Joe Dunn: We're not sure what HUD can contribute. We know they have the 184 program
and we're not sure how that would impact the project. We're anticipating building 30 to 40
houses over the course of 5 years. We would like to have security for lenders to say we
have the financial backing to come into our community and provide home loans to
individuals who qualify.

Representative Skarphol: Can you tell me what the HUD 184 program is?

Joe Dunn: I'm not familiar with all the specifics of the 184 program. | believe it offers
some backing and lending as well.

Representative Skarphol: Maybe we have someone in the audience that can give us
some more information.

Joe Dunn: | have made contact with the housing finance agency and we will be meeting
next Tuesday; then we'll have a better understanding of what they'd be able to provide.

Eric Hardmeyer, President, Bank of North Dakota: As you may recall the Bank of North
Dakota was given authority to originate mortgages in places where those services are not
readily available. So on the surface, it sounds like it's a potential for the Bank of North
Dakota to join in the meeting next Tuesday to visit with North Housing Finance Agency and
the tribe to understand what their needs are. Then we can see where the Bank of North
Dakota can play a role.

Vice Chairman Brandenburg: Maybe you could figure out some sort of plan to make
something work.

Steve Sitting Bear, External Affairs Director, Standing Rock Indian Reservation:
There's a need for housing and on the Standing Rock Reservation we have over 350
families on the waiting list. We have over 1,000 employees that are in the Long Soldier
District that have to commute back and forth from Bismarck/Mandan. In order to address
this problem, we can't go back to the subsidized solution. We have to start developing a
private economy and that's the idea behind this.

Vice Chairman Brandenburg: The part that you're dealing with is that you have members
living on Standing Rock and when they try to get financing for a home they can't get it.
They have good jobs and good income; but to try to get financing on the reservation is
tough.

Steve Sitting Bear. We do know that we have a population that can sustain themselves;
that work every day and can build their own homes. If we work together, we can make
things better on the reservation.

Representative Skarphol: As tribes, do you have any resources that exist of a
cooperative nature between the tribes that would help you as an individual? To try to
educate yourselves with regard to what needs to happen for this to be accomplished? |
know that there are organizations that exist between the tribes. Is there any such entity
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with regard to housing that's trying to work together to accomplish this on a more regional
scale or even a national scale?

Steve Sitting Bear: I'm not currently aware of any private market that exists. Each tribe is
its own sovereign entity. On Standing Rock we're trying to give ownership back to our
members so they can become self-determined. Other strategies are to find more
subsidized housing and we don't think that's a solution. We have no control over what's
going on with other reservations.

Representative Glassheim: |[s the problem that lenders are afraid that they have no
standing on the reservation to recover their loan? That the laws are different or the court
system is different and that's why they're reluctant to make loans on the reservation?

Steve Sitting Bear: That is one of the concerns. There have been some issues in the
past with these projects. A big problem was that the tribe didn't have the codes and the
laws in place to adequately enforce. We are the first tribe in North Dakota to establish or
form commercial code that's going to sync with both North Dakota and South Dakota's
uniform commercial codes. We have a business code that's in draft that should be
completed in the next few months and a natural resource zoning. We understand we can
have all the codes and laws in place; but unless they're enforceable in tribal court that it's
pointless to do that.

Representative Skarphol: | think it would be good to have Jolene comment about what
she does know and what the prospects may be.

Jolene Kline, Executive Director, ND Housing Finance Agency: | have visited with our
home ownership director on the 184 program. | wanted to find out what we've done on
Indian land with the 184 program. | believe we've done 37 loans totaling $3.2 million. Right
now the activity under the 184 program is non-existent; that's because Wells Fargo used to
be the financial institution that originated the 184 loans in the state. The individual that
worked at Wells Fargo have left and there isn't enough volume today for a local lender to
bring staff up to speed to become an approved 184 lender. If the bank can become the
originator, we can purchase a loan; as a housing finance agency we can't originate single
family loans.

Representative Skarphol: Has there been any conversation with Wells Fargo about the
issues with regard to this? What are the obstacles that were difficult to overcome? Could
you have those conversations prior to this meeting?

Jolene Kline: My understanding was that the biggest obstacle was the enforceability;
that's why the 184 program is really the only viable program out there. That's the
reluctance of lenders to do business on Indian land.

Representative Skarphol: What may need to happen is for the legislature to have
legislative council research that enforceability with the new ordinances that they've created
in their laws.
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Jolene Kline: That could work and whether what they accomplished on that reservation
can be replicated on other reservations to make it become truly a statewide Indian solution;
as opposed to just one reservation.

Representative Skarphol: As a lender, can we give you the authority to do a pilot project
with this reservation if their laws have been updated to the point where they are more
acceptable? Can we give you the authority to have a pilot project on one reservation in the
state without having to do them all?

Jolene Kline: Are you looking as a backstop for any potential losses if those loans aren't
enforceable?

Representative Skarphol: I'm thinking that you could not have a discriminatory policy with
regard to who's eligible. If we create a special program for the Standing Rock Reservation,
because of your Involvement with the federal government going to be required to provide
the same opportunity on other reservations who have not updated their laws and codes to
the extent that Standing Rock has?

Jolene Kline: I'm not prepared to answer that today. | believe we are authorized to do
pilot programs in just certain parts of the state. There is some precedence that we're
working on with another legislature that we're working on a pilot program on a different
housing situation. As long as it is a pilot, | believe we can specify a certain region of the
state.

Representative Skarphol: | would suggest you contact legislative council and have
someone there at the meeting so they become more familiar with the issues.

Vice Chairman Brandenburg: | think that would be good.

Jolene Kline: | would ask to have that meeting be moved to Bismarck; because we're
involving a lot more Bismarck people now.

Vice Chairman Brandenburg: | think that if that meeting is scheduled in Fort Yates, |
think that's where you should go. There are dozens more people down there that aren't
going to come here and | think if you make that connection down there and have that
conversation.

Joe Dunn: That would be fine. What we have on the agenda right now is a presentation
from a prospective developer who would put his own money into building these homes and
then offer them for resale.

Representative Boehning: I'm printing a document that lists all the banks that are section
184 approved lenders. See attachment B.

Eric Hardmeyer: The Bank of North Dakota is approved to do VA loans, FHA loans and
USDA loans; so if it's something that we can take a look at in terms of being an eligible 184
lender, we're happy to take a look at it.
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Dan Wogsland, Executive Director, ND Grain Growers Association: See testimony
attachment A.

Representative Glassheim: How is that structured? Is that loan money or grant money?
Vice Chairman Brandenburg: It's set up as a revolving loan.

Eric Hardmeyer: It's a short line revolving loan fund. It's set up as a $10 million fund and
the money comes from the SIF Fund. The idea is to loan money at a low interest rate with
a term of 20-25 years. It's to assist short line rails and track repair or to hook up agricultural
producers and suppliers to rail. There was some discussion of increasing this from $10
million to $30 million. The Bank of North Dakota would administer this program; so it would
be money that would be appropriated to the Bank of North Dakota to administer.

Representative Skarphol: Are there any revolving loan funds that aren't being used
anymore that we should be considering get rid of? Maybe utilize it in a different fashion for
a different purpose?

Eric Hardmeyer: The only one that came to mind was we had a growing surplus in the
beginning farmer revolving loan fund; where it wasn't being utilized. We have done it for
other purposes; including buy down and cattle. We're actively looking at the funds that we
administer. We've gotten rid of several them. | can't think of any fund that we haven't
addressed.

Representative Skarphol: Do we have some that you're anticipating that we're going to
see more utilization of? Are we underfunding anything today that we should consider
putting more dollars into?

Eric Hardmeyer: We looked at the community water program; and there are other
infrastructure funds that are being discussed. There is also HB1137 and HB1443 that both
deal with infrastructure. The funds we are administering are adequately funded.

Representative Hogan: | have in my notes that you said that there would be up to $140
million available for potential loan funds. Did that include the short line rail funds or not?

Eric Hardmeyer: The $140 million that | talked about was money that was coming out of
the Bank of North Dakota's capital to provide either $100 million in infrastructure financing
which is under HB1137 or a transfer to the public finance authority to create an
infrastructure revolving loan fund. The other $40 million is to fund our buy down programs.
The $140 million is, based on bills we've seen, is closer to $240 million; so there's at least 2
other funds being contemplated using the Bank of North Dakota profits.

Representative Hogan: Could we get a spreadsheet of all the potential requests?
Eric Hardmeyer: | think we have that.

Vice Chairman Brandenburg: The $10 million for the short line railroads is coming out of
the SIF fund.
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Representative Glassheim: The $140 million doesn't injure your ratios or reserves?
Eric Hardmeyer: It's a dollar amount that we're comfortable with.

Representative Glassheim: You would be uncomfortable with much more than $140
million.

Eric Hardmeyer: We would be.

Representative Vigesaa: Can any North Dakota resident consolidate their student loans
into DEAL1?

Eric Hardmeyer: You're correct.

Representative Vigesaa: According to the chart you have $137 million for that? You
would anticipate that to grow rapidly wouldn't you?

Eric Hardmeyer: \We would continue to see continued growth in this program.

Representative Hogan: There's a number of workforce targeted bills for various
professionals is DEAL1 going to cover those so that those bills aren't needed?

Eric Hardmeyer: This program is meant for those that are in repayment. HB1049 is
meant for addiction counselors. That would be as they're going to school and paying for
their classes; they wouldn't use DEAL1. They would use the DEAL Program.

Representative Hogan: You talked about the authority of the bank to originate mortgages
if loans aren't available. Have you ever used that authority?

Eric Hardmeyer: Yes. This is our 4" quarter report. In 2014 the Bank of North Dakota
originated 37 loans for roughly $6 million. We did recognize and ask for authority to
originate mortgages at the request of the banking associations because there were areas in
rural North Dakota where the banks stated there was too much regulation.

Representative Hogan: Have you done any tribal loans at all on any of the tribal lands?

Eric Hardmeyer: We have not. We have done a series of commercial loans; so we have
been active on many of the reservations.

Representative Skarphol: Representative Boehning printed this list for Section 184
approved lenders. See attachment 2.

Jolene Kline: There was a comment made during testimony last week about the
origination fee. We are not a general fund agency; we're a special fund agency which
means we pay all our own bills. The original language in the HIF fund allowed us to charge
up to a 10% administrative fee and pull it out of the fund. This meant that we had 90% of
the fund to allocate to projects. We didn't feel that was doing justice to the number of units
that needed to be created. In 2013 we asked for legislative change to pass that
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administrative fee on to the borrower or the applicant which is the model used for all the
federal programs that we administer; where there's a fee that's paid by the developer for it.

Representative Skarphol: The Housing Incentive Fund sells itself does it not?

Jolene Kline: The Housing Incentive Fund sells itself to the developers. We are still
marketing on a significant level.

Representative Skarphol: Do you have trouble raising the money?

Jolene Kline: We were successful in 2013. That didn't happen without marketing. In
2014 we had no credits to award. In 2015 if the program is reauthorized by and with the
$30 million in tact; we will have go out there and remind everyone that the program is once
again allowable to accept contributions.

Representative Skarphol: So 2013 was the first time this program was available?
Jolene Kline: No. 2011 was the $4 million credit.

Representative Skarphol: How long did it take for the $4 million to get filled? In 2013
how long did it take to get done?

Jolene Kline: In 2013 the bill was signed into law in early May and we generated the $20
million in credits by the end of 2013. Now the proposal is to increase that to $30 million.
The change in the financial institution tax made it very successful. Out of that $20 million
more than $11 million came from financial institutions.

Representative Skarphol: The program became effective in May and by the end of the
year you filled it. So why do you need to market it?

Vice Chairman Brandenburg: You shared here it was $20 million and the credits are
going to $30 million; is that correct?

Jolene Kline: That's correct.

Representative Hogan: The requests from the housing agencies were up to $100 million.
Wasn't that the request from the various housing agencies?

Jolene Klein: That's correct. Senator Mathern has a bill that is SB2220 that's being heard
tomorrow morning that requests an increase of the Housing Incentive Fund to $100 million;
$30 million of that would be retained as an income tax credit and $70 million would be a
general fund appropriation.

Representative Hogan: If we can raise increased income tax credits from this; should we
not raise it to however much money we happen to raise?

Jolene Klein: Instead of capping it at a $50 million program with a $30 million piece; have
there be some upper threshold.
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Representative Hogan: Have we looked at that?

Vice Chairman Brandenburg: | think there's discussion out there and we'll have to have
more discussion. Right now we have $20 million in the governor's budget of general fund
and $30 million of tax credits.

Jolene Klein: Correct. The $20 million is in the governor's jumpstart bill. Our fees aren't
hidden; it's clearly in the allocation plan and we allow those fees to become a part of the
total project cost of which we put in 30% of the total cost. So in essence, we are covering
30% of those fees.

Vice Chairman Brandenburg: Closed the discussion.
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the state
industrial commission and the agencies under the management of the industrial
commission; to provide a continuing appropriation; to provide a contingent appropriation; to
authorize transfers; to provide legislative intent; to create and enact a new section to
chapter 6-09 and a new section to chapter 54-17.8 of the North Dakota Century Code,
relating to a new short line railroad loan program and the North Dakota outdoor heritage
fund; to amend and reenact sections 54-17-40, 54-17-41, and 57-38-01.32 of the North
Dakota Century Code and section 22 of chapter 579 of the 2011 Session Laws, relating to
the housing incentive fund credits and the use of the flex PACE program; and to provide an
expiration date.

Minutes: See attachment A.

Chairman Thoreson: Reopened the discussion on HB1014
Lynn Helms, Director, Department of Mineral Resources: See testimony attachment A.

Ed Murphy, State Geologist, Department of Mineral Resources: See testimony
attachment A.

Representative Kempenich: What is the weight of this core? You don't keep cores out of
every well do you?

Ed Murphy: The core box weighs about 30 Ib. on average. By law, companies are
required to furnish the core library with a representative portion of that core. In many cases
that means 2/3 of the core. They are required by law to collect cuttings in the vertical
section and there are different rules for where they're drilling that well. Typically it's 50 ft. in
the vertical and 100 ft. in the horizontal.

Representative Kempenich: What Lynn is predicting off of 30,000 to 40,000 wells, you
addition isn't going to be enough.

Ed Murphy: | think the next slide will answer a lot of that for you.
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Ed Murphy continued with his testimony.
Vice Chairman Brandenburg: What is the minimum or maximum?

Ed Murphy: When they're coring the Bakken or Three Forks, they'll drill the vertical hole
and core that. Then they'll do the horizontal core.

Vice Chairman Brandenburg: | was wondering how many samples. You said some have

3 and some have 13; and | was wondering kind of what was the average core samples that
come out of a well.

Ed Murphy: They can core at whatever level they want to.

Vice Chairman Brandenburg: So they're sending in the core sample where they're
finding good rock or area where you get oil out of.

Ed Murphy: It's an area that they're interested in.
Representative Kempenich: To core you have to use a different bit.

Representative Skarphol: | suspect if every well was cored, you'd need a lot more room
than you have. Is that a correct assumption?

Ed Murphy: Yes.

Representative Skarphol: How frequently do you require coring or is that strictly up to the
company? Give us a little background on the frequency of coring and who makes that
decision.

Ed Murphy: | don't know of any situation where the state has required someone to core.
It's up to the operator to core and then if they do, by law they have to provide us with a
representative core.

Lynn Helms: | believe they're on well 24,000 and headed for 90,000.
Representative Skarphol: How many different wells have representative core samples?
Ed Murphy: 4,619.

Representative Skarphol: How many of those have been brought into the lab since
Bakken horizontal well drilling?

Lynn Helms: | think since 2008 the number of core has doubled or more than doubled
since the advent of Bakken. On average 1 out of 7 or 10 wells cut a core. With the advent
of multi-well pads, we've started to grant a lot of log and core and sample waivers; because
you don't 28 sets of logs and samples when the wells are 50 ft. apart.
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Representative Skarphol: So you require samples and not cores?
Lynn Helms: Correct.

Representative Skarphol: Samples on every well?

Lynn Helms: Correct.

Representative Skarphol: Why do they need a waiver if you don't require anything other
than samples?

Lynn Helms: They requesting sample waivers. Samples take up a significant volume of
space. We want every foot of core that's taken; but it's unnecessary to have so many
samples.

Representative Skarphol: If a company decides to core a well, how much additional time
does that well typically take?

Lynn Helms: The drilling rate of coring is going to be 1/10 of the speed of the drilling rate
used in a conventional bit. It will take them 3 or 4 additional days in the neighborhood of
$50,000.00/day of just rig costs. So the company is acquiring $250,000.00 in cost just to
acquire the core' and in addition are the lab analysis.

Vice Chairman Brandenburg: There's got to be something back for the companies to do
this; so they want to do this but they don't want to do too much.

Lynn Helms: That's very accurate. They need that core to study the mechanical
properties of the rock; that's how they design frack jobs.

Representative Skarphol: The company owns that core and does the research they want
on that core and after they've completed their research, they submit it to the core library. Is
that correct? Once it belongs to the core library, any company that wishes can come in and
ask for samples and do research on that same core if they so desire. |s that also a correct
assumption?

Ed Murphy: Correct. Sometimes the original company comes back in and resamples.

Representative Skarphol: So it becomes an open record that anyone can look at and
receive and get benefit from.

Ed Murphy: That's correct.

Representative Hogan: \Why was there the significant drop on the level of core boxes in
20137

Ed Murphy: It takes sometimes 2 or 3 years for the core to come in and it may have been
backed up in the core labs. In some cases, companies are given permission to keep core a
little longer if they need to for various reasons.
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Representative Kempenich: Is that public record for that? When they take samples of
the core; do they take pieces and go somewhere else?

Ed Murphy: By the time we get the core, it's generally out of tight hold. We lock them up
and no one can look at them, not even ourselves, until they come off of tight hold status.

Representative Kempenich: Do they share that information with you then? After it gets
to you and they come back again, do they share that information or is it shared all the way
through the process?

Ed Murphy: All the way through the process. If they have the core, they're running the
tests in their labs; that information goes to oil and gas division. If the core comes into
geological survey, any testing that's done after that; that information has to come back to
us. In both cases it's made public.

Ed Murphy continued with his testimony.

Representative Skarphol: What percentage of that is studied by academia vs the
industry?

Ed Murphy: Industry does the majority of that; because the students are focused on much
shorter cores. Companies will often look at 8 or 10 cores in a day and a student will look at
1 core.

Representative Skarphol: [s that local students from UND or within the state? Do you
have a lot of attention paid to the core samples outside of the state of North Dakota by
academia?

Ed Murphy: In 2013 we had 139 scientists representing 28 companies, 8 universities and
18 graduate students at UND that are looking at core.

Ed Murphy continued with his testimony.

Representative Skarphol: So academia and the oil companies come there and do their
research rather than pick up the samples and take them somewhere else?

Ed Murphy: That's correct. We will ship core back to companies to the lab; but not to
individual companies once we have them.

Representative Skarphol: Is there degradation of the core samples they study to where
they lose value?

Ed Murphy: We have a set of rules that they have to adhere to. They can't destroy the
face of the core. When they're sampling we have a protocol that they have to follow.

Ed Murphy continued with his testimony.
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Chairman Thoreson: Can you give us a little information about that?

Ed Murphy: It will physically connect the Upson Engineering Department and Leonard
Hall.

Representative Kempenich: Where are you going to move your parking space to?

Ed Murphy: | will address this momentarily.

Ed Murphy continued with his testimony.

Vice Chairman Brandenburg: You're trying to accommodate that issue?

Ed Murphy: That's correct.

Vice Chairman Brandenburg: One of these labs will be for students and 2 for industry?

Ed Murphy: That's a good point and if you go up to the second floor there's a lab
dedicated for students.

Representative Boehning: The cores that you're studying. Do they go back 10 or 20
years or is it all the new stuff they're studying?

Ed Murphy: The vast majority of the companies coming in are focused on the Three
Forks. The students are working on all horizons.

Representative Kempenich: What are they up to in the Bakken or Three Forks/ are they
up to 6% or 7%? There's more in the ground than coming out of the ground.

Ed Murphy: That's correct.
Ed Murphy continued with his testimony.
Representative Kempenich: \Who brought up putting cars on top of the storage?

Ed Murphy: That's something we thought of and the problem was that it would be a very
steep ramp.

Representative Vigesaa: Based on the current rate of travel in regard to storage, when
would the current facility be completely full?

Ed Murphy: 2017. We've been able to push that date back. We're currently getting 90
bins full per year.

Representative Vigesaa: What's the time frame of the construction?
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Ed Murphy: We need an emergency clause so we can do demolition before classes start
in the fall. If we were able to do that, they think the building would be completed by
January 2017.

Representative Boehning: With this new structure how many years of storage will you
have if we build it?

Ed Murphy: It's very difficult for us to project this out. We're forced to use today's rate of
fill. We wanted to get out 50 years; it might get us 40 to 60 years,

Representative Boehning: How far to the right does the parking actually go?

Alice Brekke, Vice President Finance and Operations, University of North Dakota:
The lot that's to the west and just to the south of the existing structure; there's 160 parking
spots. To the left of the building and then that row just below that building is 160 slots in
those two areas. The number of slots that would be taken off line with the expansion is 74.

Representative Boehning: How many more slots aren't on the picture?
Alice Brekke: About 90.

Representative Boehning: We would be able to build a parking ramp on top of that very
easily.

Alice Brekke: We're looking at both our parking and transportation infrastructure with an
eye to should we build hub parking ramps as other existing hits its estimated useful life and
needs to be redone. There are newer EPA regulations that come into effect and as we
redo that impervious surface, we have storm water runoff issues that need to be addressed
and so forth.

Representative Boehning: How much is it going to cost the students?

Alice Brekke: In the normal course of events, parking is a self-supporting enterprise;
supported by user fees. Faculty staff and students do pay a fee which goes into the
parking infrastructure and that's how we maintain. We would request the replacement
parking dollars so we wouldn't have to impact the user rate for this portion of the
replacement.

Representative Hogan: |If this project doesn't get funded, do you have a contingency
plan?

Alice Brekke: For the core library?
Representative Hogan: For the core library

Ed Murphy: We really don't. There's nothing that works. If we try to find something else
to store, then we have to bring that into the building for the scientists to look at.
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Representative Skarphol: | think that nationwide no one has a core library of the caliber
of North Dakota. [s that correct?

Ed Murphy: There are bigger facilities; but nobody has as high a percentage as we have
of representing the core.

Representative Skarphol: If you want to talk about difference in size, Texas has drilled
well over 500,000 wells in that state; we've drilled 25,000. Oklahoma has drilled well over
325,000 wells compared to our 25,000. When it comes to quality of core libraries, | believe
North Dakota is second to none.

Ed Murphy: | agree.

Vice Chairman Brandenburg: Your rocks don't just sit in a box, they're being used by
companies nationwide.

Representative Boehning: Have you looked at a different location for this building?

Ed Murphy: We really didn't because of our historic connection with the department of
geology and the usage by the students and faculty.

Representative Skarphol: We've had quite a list of buildings we've had requests to build.
I'm trying to figure out how to present this in front of others. Can you help us out?

Ed Murphy: I'm sure that the Bank of North Dakota or the mill and elevator make the same
argument. We need to keep this a viable facility. There are a lot of things we're going to be
able to do with this that we can't do now.

Lynn Helms: Our only option would be to find something for the cutting storage. We
would have to look for some warehouse space in or around Grand Forks; and then move
the cuttings out of the core library and replace with core. There's some risk to that because
it's the top 2 shelves and it's a slow and expensive process. It would be a last resort. It
would have the potential to extend.

Vice Chairman Brandenburg: If you go to another site you have to have another forklift,
security, etc.

Lynn Helms: There's a tremendous cost of moving the material that's in this warehouse.
This is a critical education facility for the geologists who are getting their bachelor's and
master's degree.

Representative Skarphol: Push back against buildings is going to be tremendous in this
session. We adopted a policy a few sessions ago where we weren't going to borrow any
money to build buildings. What would it cost if we were to bond a $16 million facility over
long term?

Karlene Fine: | did show you a chart of the outstanding debt for the building authority;
which is the bonding authority all the projects other than the revenue producing ones that



House Appropriations Committee - Government Operations Division
HB1014

January 22, 2015

Page 8

the University system does. Our outstanding debit is approximately $53 million. We have
under the stipulation you have in law of the amount of debt that we can pay; which is a
formula. We have the ability to bond for over $300 million; and we'd still be able to meet
the requirements of the law. The rate is under 2% if we were to do some bonding.

Representative Skarphol: | kind of wanted to know is what the bonding percentage would
be. If this facility is as critical as it appears to be, 2% isn't a very large investment in order
to do something like that. When you say 2%,is that a 10 year bond or 20 bond?

Karlene Fine: We typically do 20 years but we can set it up for shorter. | can run a couple
of different scenarios for 10 and 20 year.

Representative Vigesaa: Can we say it's going to cost so much per $1 million to bond?
Karlene Fine: Yes.

Representative Boehning: What type of structure is this going to be? Is it going to be a
precast? Is there some way we can save some money doing a different type of
construction into this?

Ed Murphy: It would be a precast. It looks like brick but it's a cast.

Representative Boehning: You have the parking ramp for $1.8 million; would that be
something we could take out of there?

Ed Murphy: One of the things we agreed to do was to ask for that money; understanding
that we were taking their parking spots.

Alice Brekke: As we go forward, it won't occur in the 2015-2017 biennium; but in the
following biennium we will need to make sure that that replacement parking gets put in
place. The exact location and capacity that does get put into a ramp at that time is all in
planning right now; so we don't need the cash right now. The concern would be getting to
the next biennium and the question of whether funding would be available or would we be
put into a position where we would need to support this ourselves.

Representative Boehning: Of the total parking spaces on the university; what's the total
percentage utilized?

Alice Brekke: | don't have the numbers here; | can get those for you. Part of the dilemma
becomes location of the parking and then access to where people are trying to get on the
campus. We are looking currently at the parking infrastructure as well as campus
transportation or shuttle service to make sure we're working towards an optimal solution.

Representative Skarphol: We did talk to legislative council about checking on the
changes in the codes that they've made to see whether or not that's something has been
beneficial.
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Representative Boehning: When you talk to the APC; one of my suggestions would be to
take out the parking ramp out of that $1.8 million and then we get down to $14.2 million. |s
there a way that we can pare the building down a little bit more? |s there a way that we
could possibly get those numbers down with a different design or concept?

Ed Murphy: We can certainly look at that. The contingency is built in because you don't
know what the bid is going to come in at. They added the 15% on and | don't know if in the
last 6 months these numbers had changed at all.

Representative Boehning: If we don't need the contingency we won't have to bond for it
either. That's something we can take a look at as well.

Ed Murphy: We'll go back to APC and discuss with them and see where we can trim.

Vice Chairman Brandenburg: Closed the discussion on HB1014.
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the state
industrial commission and the agencies under the management of the industrial
commission; to provide a continuing appropriation; to provide a contingent appropriation; to
authorize transfers; to provide legislative intent; to create and enact a new section to
chapter 6-09 and a new section to chapter 54-17.8 of the North Dakota Century Code,
relating to a new short line railroad loan program and the North Dakota outdoor heritage
fund; to amend and reenact sections 54-17-40, 54-17-41, and 57-38-01.32 of the North
Dakota Century Code and section 22 of chapter 579 of the 2011 Session Laws, relating to
the housing incentive fund credits and the use of the flex PACE program; and to provide an
expiration date.

Minutes: See attachments A through

Chairman Thoreson: Opened the discussion on HB1014.

Karlene Fine, Executive Director, ND Industrial Commission: Discussed the agenda
for the discussion on HB1014.

Jason Bohrer, President and CEO, Lignite Energy Council: See attachments A and B.
Wade Boeshans, President and General Manager, BNI Coal: See attachment C.
Representative Kempenich: What time line is the EPA giving you?

Wade Boeshans: The time line is still unknown. The rules are still in the proposal stage,
they're not yet final. The EPA is targeting a 30% reduction by 2030. Our goal is to have
that technology ready in the mid-2020's.

Representative Kempenich: Do you think they'll change that? It looks like it's something
worth pursuing.

Wade Boeshans: There's a lot of uncertainty around the development of these regulations
through the EPA. There's going to be lawsuits from many groups that are pushing for
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acceleration, groups that are pushing for reasonable development timelines and
implementation timelines. A solution will be needed at some point.

Wade Boeshans continued with his presentation.

Representative Kempenich: You're showing $30 million here. Is this going to be a
multiple state effort?

Wade Boeshans: The current North Dakota Allam Cycle development team and
partnership consists of Dakota Gasification through Basin Electric, ALLETE through BNI
Coal and Minnesota Power, Eight Rivers Capital, and the Lignite Energy Council. The
funding at this point has come from the previous entities not through the Lignite Energy
Council. There's research going on for natural gas and that's the partnership in Texas;
they're developing the gas cycle. We proposing to develop the coal cycle.

Vice Chairman Brandenburg: When you say partnerships, are you watching them, are
you there in the court hearings? It's going to take partnerships to fight these guys off.
What's going on?

Wade Boeshans: We're very active in this EPA debate. We're at the table and we're
engaged.

Vice Chairman Brandenburg: As far as the rule making effect, are they listening to you?
What's your observation?

Wade Boeshans: My view is that North Dakota and the lignite industry have been very
effective. There's no guarantee that we can push these regulations back. | believe at
some point they will move forward.

Representative Glassheim: I'm enthused by the change of emphasis of totally fighting
against clean air and water. The other $20 million in stage 2; will you be coming back to
the state for some more or do you have industry partners who are going to be investing
with the state?

Wade Boeshans: Moving this project through stage 2 will be a joint funding between
industry partners, federal sources and state sources. We're proposing a 1/3 state, 1/3
industry, and 1/3 federal sources of funding.

Representative Glassheim: This will be loan money for stage 3 or would you need $50
million from the state to be a partner in the plant construction?

Wade Boeshans: As we move on to stage 3 you will see the dollars getting much bigger.
We would be looking for additional support from the state in that stage as well. The exact
structure of funding has not yet been determined. Our goal is to get through stage 2, if we
still have a technology that's equally promising; we would put together the appropriate
funding at that time.
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Representative Kempenich: If stage 3 worked in the demonstration part of it, could you
reconstruct existing plants? Would you have to start over on every plant?

Wade Boeshans: If we look at a pilot plant, we would co-locate that pilot within an existing
facility. It could be a facility that could become a commercial facility. This technology could
be both a new site; or it could be co-located with existing sites or replace existing sites.

Representative Boehning: When you get to stage 3, would there be any possibility of rate
increases? Would you be able to fund it that way?

Wade Boeshans: Alternative funding mechanisms are a possibility.

Representative Boehning: What size plant are you looking at; 150 megawatts or 100
megawatts?

Wade Boeshans: Fifty to 100 megawatts is what we're planning.

Vice Chairman Brandenburg: With this new construction, what kind of costs are you
looking at for this?

Wade Boeshans: Our cost estimates indicate that power coming out of that plant would
be about $.04. Compared to a best available conventional coal technology will be closer to
$06 today. Those are preliminary estimates.

Vice Chairman Brandenburg: So if you get around $.05 your pretty good.

Wade Boeshans: Yes.

Representative Kempenich: The amount of coal being used would be dropping also.

Wade Boeshans: That's correct. We're moving from conventional plants at 35% efficiency
and to this facility that would be closer to 50% efficiency.

Representative Kempenich: So that would double a 1,000 year; wouldn't it?

Wade Boeshans: We're using less BTU's to get the same amount of electricity out of the
plant.

Representative Kempenich: Basically it is ground up then. What you have today
wouldn't be what's used in the future.

Wade Boeshans: That's correct. It's a completely different cycle. It wouldn't be retrofitting
existing plants. You would be talking about a new plant running on a new technology that
iS near zero emissions.

Chairman Thoreson: Is there anything you have that shows what we have now to what
this would be?
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Wade Boeshans: We have some graphics that we can provide.

Representative Hogan: |I'm curious about who would own the technology we invest in
this?

Wade Boeshans: Thief Rivers Capital still owns the technology. We're still working on the
rights that we, as the funding partners, would secure. That is part of our next stage as we
move into phase 2. We'll be starting that process within a week.

Representative Hogan: | think that's a critical question if we're doing a major investment
in it.

Vice Chairman Brandenburg: Now | see how you can keep that cost down because
you're using half the coal and get more efficiency out of it.

Wade Boeshans: We can provide you a best estimate of how this technology stacks with
all other available natural gas and coal technologies. You'll see from that that our estimate
will be the lowest commercially available technology at the end of the process.

Chairman Thoreson: That would be interesting to have. Are the lots of other new
technologies being tried? Is this the only one that we're looking at changing from where we
are now to where we're going?

Wade Boeshans: There's a lot of research going on with next generation technologies.
This is the most promising technology I've seen in my career.

Representative Vigesaa: Would this technology and efficiency open the door for
additional new plants in the years to come?

Wade Boeshans: Our hope is that not only does it provide a solution for the regulatory
challenges; but also creates an opportunity for growth in this country.

Mike Jones, Vice President for Research and Developtment Lignite Energy Council
and Technical Advisor, Lignite Research Program: The Lignite Energy Council has
taken the long term position that we will remain a carbon based society. Lignite coal is the
cheapest source of carbon we have today.

Representative Kempenich: Are the Germans ahead of us or at the same point?

Mike Jones: | met with the Germans last year a couple of times. They are struggling with
how they're going to structure things for the future. They're not able to achieve the revenue
for that stream to maintain it. They're looking at a scenario where they pay just to have
capacity available. They are eliminating the nuclear option. They had commissioned 3
new super critical lignite boilers in the last 5 years; each of them about 1,000 megawatts.
That's another partnership we're looking to develop.

Representative Kempenich: This is a global thing and that's why | was wondering where
we were at.
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Representative Skarphol: This process burns pure oxygen; so where do you get the
oxygen and what's the cost? You're talking about using the CO2 for enhanced oil recovery;
there's probably a zero market for that in North Dakota right now. [f there's no market for
your CO2, what does that do to the economics? Did you say this demonstration would be a
50 megawatt facility?

Mike Jones: That's correct.
Chairman Thoreson: We'll start with pure oxygen. Where does that come from?

Mike Jones: At this stage there are a number of options that could be used for the liquid
oxygen. Dakota Gasification is using a cryogenic process to produce oxygen. That's all
figured into the cost for this demonstration. There's a numbering technology which is under
develop and is moving closer to commercialization which could significantly drop that cost.
That technology is 3 to 5 years out before it would be considered commercial. We're
working with the oil industry and Lynn Helms sees the future of North Dakota oil tied to
North Dakota coal.

Representative Skarphol: The potential does exist for liquid CO2 to be used for fracking.
The CO2 emissions on that facility are % of what a natural gas plant would do; it's a 150
megawatt facility at Boundary Dam. By comparison the economics would be of a facility
such as that facility vs this?

Mike Jones: | have looked at that and visited with them a number of times. | think it's a
tremendous opportunity. They would not duplicate that as it stands today. They are seeing
opportunities to change that. | spoke with the director of power and he thinks they could
cut somewhere between 20% and 30% of the cost today.

Representative Skarphol: They're already producing more CO2 than they were
purchasing from the state of North Dakota.

Mike Jones: They're producing a little over 1 million tons. They're delivering about 110
megawatts to the grid right now. We're putting about 2 million tons into the pipeline right
now up there.

Representative Skarphol: In your discussions with them about the facilities they're
looking at upgrading, | would assume the efficiency is going to improve on those. Are you
thinking in terms of a surplus of carbon dioxide for period of time it would affect your
economic?

Mike Jones: | don't know how the need is going to ramp up. | don't feel I'm competent to
give you an honest answer on that. They're saying they see a target for 50 million
tons/year in North Dakota.

Representative Kempenich: Where in the life cycle are we at?
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Wade Boeshans: Most of the existing lignite facilities will be fully depreciated and at the
end of their life by the mid 2030's.

Wade Boeshans continued with his testimony.

Chairman Thoreson: If this works out it will make you money. It's something we'll take
into consideration.

Representative Skarphol: With regard to CO2 and enhanced oil recovery, what
percentage of the carbon dioxide adheres to the rocks in the formation or to the oil so that
it's not available to come back with the gas?

Lynn Helms, Director, ND Department of Mineral Resources: The conventional oil
reservoirs that have been utilizing CO2 typically exhibit about a 25% sequestration rate. Of
the carbon dioxide that's injected into the rock, 25% ends up in pore spaces or on the rock
face and is never seen again.

Representative Skarphol: \What does that translate into as far as the marketability of the
natural gas? How do they resolve that issue? What's the cost effectiveness of that?

Lynn Helms: In west Texas large natural gas plants have been constructed to remove the
carbon dioxide for reinjection and sell the natural gas. Current North Dakota's natural gas
infrastructure has a value of around $6 billion. We would have to see an investment of $6
million in CO2 removal processing in order to remove the 75% and re-inject it.

Representative Skarphol: If the industry moves to using liquid CO2 for purposes of
fracking, would that doubling down not have to take place in advance of that utilization of
CO2 for fracking to insure that the carbon dioxide that injected was properly handled after
the fact?

Lynn Helms: It more than likely would because the CO2 regulations that the current
administration keeps tightening down wouldn't allow that carbon dioxide to be vented to the
atmosphere following a hydraulic fracture. It would have to be collected during the flow
back period and run through that process and separated. We would see a need for major
investments in gas gathering and processing.

Jason Bohrer continued with his testimony see attachment B.

Representative Glassheim: That's the 44-03-04? What is it now and what does it
change?

Jason Bohrer: That 44-03-04 refers to membership of these types of committees. It
would change it only as it applies to lignite research council. It would keep that prohibition
in place for all of the other committees.

Representative Glassheim: You have to be a North Dakotan to sit on these councils?

Jason Bohrer: Yes.
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Chairman Thoreson: Not overall but just in this.
Jason Bohrer: Correct.

Representative Kempenich: Texas is moving ahead with their gas and they're talking
about $140 million. Where do they get they're funding from?

Jason Bohrer: Their funding structure probably looks a lot like ours; it's the same
technology owners who we would be working with. They just formed a group to deal with
the gas side and a group to deal with the coal side.

Representative Kempenich: Some of these projects are pretty advanced. We're going to
use as much off the shelf technology that we can find.

Jason Bohrer: When you look at the magnitude of this technology; what it has the
magnitude to do for this country, | think it's surprising the amount of new and unproven
technology that goes into it.

Karlene Fine, Executive Director, ND Industrial Commission: See attachment D.
Representative Kempenich: What would the penalties be for paying early?

Karlene Fine: When you do a bond issue you usually set it up to have some call
provisions. If | did a 20 year bond issue right now, I'd have a 10 year call; so | could
completely pay it off in 10 years without any penalties. With a 10 year bond issue you
generally don't have calls. You can put some into your financing that may cost you.

Representative Skarphol: Basically what you're telling us is if we want to do a 10 year
$16 million bond; it's going to cost us $2.3 million/10 years.

Karlene Fine: The debt service on that would be yes. The bond size would only be $12
million.

Representative Skarphol: We're going to pay $23 million for that $16 million building?
Karlene Fine: We're going to pay $16 million for that $14 million project.
Representative Skarphol: What's it going to cost us on a biannual basis?

Karlene Fine: $4 million.

Representative Skarphol: $4.6 million.

Karlene Fine: The average bio-net debt service will be $4 million.

Representative Skarphol: For 5 bienniums?

Karlene Fine: It's only four.
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Representative Skarphol: So a 10 year bond only has 4 payments.

Karlene Fine: Because we have 2 years that we're not anything the first biennium. The
total debt service for getting the $14 million would be $16 million.

Representative Skarphol: The cost in the end is going to be about $2.4 million more than
the project if we would pay cash for it.

Karlene Fine: $2.1 million. It would be $16.1 million for total interest and principle on the
bond.

Representative Skarphol: The biannual payment would be $4.6 million.

Karlene Fine: You're right on the $16 million project. If | were structuring a bonding issue
for this | wouldn't fund the parking; because you're funding cash.

Representative Skarphol: You're saying you're funding cash. You're not going to build
the parking?

Karlene Fine: The parking ramp won't be built for 4 years.

Chairman Thoreson: You're paying today for what you're building tomorrow.
Karlene Fine: Right.

Representative Kempenich: It might be cheaper to bond them than to use cash.
Karlene Fine: See attachment E.

Vice Chairman Brandenburg: So you're saying with the triple A rating we've got the lower
interest rate and if that rating changes, the interest rate could be higher.

Karlene Fine: It could. They just reaffirmed this rating.
Vice Chairman Brandenburg: How often do they that rating on that bond?

Karlene Fine: The rate of the bond is set when you sell the bond. They rating on the state
of North Dakota; they will look at that every time we go to market.

Representative Skarphol: Do the public finance authority's bonding affect the amount that
we are capable of bonding or are they a separate entity?

Karlene Fine: No.

Representative Glassheim: What number are we working with?
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Karlene Fine: This chart is showing you that you could have $60 million of debt service.
The amount of bonds you could issue are $360 million. This doesn't limit it at all; this is the
amount of debt service.

Representative Glassheim: So on the core library that would add $4 million?

Karlene Fine: Correct.

Representative Boehning: Can you go over the pension and other posted funded
benefits and how it affects the rating?

Karlene Fine: The rating agencies in the last 8-10 years have focused in on the
outstanding liabilities that political subdivisions had for their pension plans and they carved
out a particular part of their analysis for what political subdivisions, states and cities have
as liability. This is the analysis they get on North Dakota's pension funds and the liability
we have and how that might impact the state. The state's unfunded pension liability is
$3,110/per capita; 5.4% of personal income. We consider this below average.

Representative Boehning: Did they take the state's PERS plan or did they include the
cities that are in the PERS plan as well?

Karlene Fine: They look at everything that's related to PERS.

Representative Boehning: So they're lumping in teachers?

Karlene Fine: There's a role they have for overall state debt.

Representative Boehning: So like the city of Fargo where they're in pension plans; do
they take their amount of liability? |Is Fargo getting charged for that or are we assuming all
the responsibility and political subdivision don't get any?

Karlene Fine: | don't have an answer for that right now.

Representative Boehning: | think a lot of this is due to Dodd-Frank where it's going to be
a liability on their spreadsheets.

Karlene Fine: | don't know if | can answer correctly.

Lynn Helms: Made introductions and gave agenda.

Ed Murphy, State Geologist, ND Department of Mineral Resources: See attachment F.
Chairman Thoreson: Does that dissipate or do you notice it months and years later on?
Ed Murphy: It does dissipate; but for the first few months it's pretty smelly.

Chairman Thoreson: What about fire suppression. Is there something special that has to
be done in that case?
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Ed Murphy: We want to make sure that we're nowhere near the explosive limit.

Representative Hogan: Rather than moving samples are there any sections of core that
aren't routinely used by your scientists or your students?

Ed Murphy: We've had core that has sat for 40 years and all of sudden there's interest in
it. The minute you split the rocks and cuttings apart, you have problems.

Ed Murphy continued with his presentation.

Representative Skarphol: The cores that they looked at. Who delivered those cores to
the lab? I'm assuming they didn't come from one company. Is that correct?

Ed Murphy: That's correct.

Representative Skarphol: If we didn't have the core lab and each of these companies
kept their cores in their own facilities. What happened in Whiting and Prawn Horn Field
probably may not have happened? s that a correct assumption in your mind?

Ed Murphy: That's absolutely correct.

Representative Skarphol: |[f that resource hadn't been available of having those cores
available in a central location is what you're saying in all likelihood would not have
happened?

Ed Murphy: That's correct.

Representative Boehning: When Karlene was giving her presentation in bonding that we
wouldn't want to bond cash for parking spaces. Would you be able to take out the parking
structure; since it wouldn't be built for 4 years? That should be a cost savings of about $1.5
million.

Ed Murphy: We touched on this when vice president Brekke was here. We signed an
agreement with the University of North Dakota saying that we would put this in our budget.
That's not something we can take out or even suggest.

Representative Boehning: Karlene would have to explain that unless we come up with
cash for that part of the project; | would assume.

Ed Murphy: Yes

Representative Boehning: Another question. Are there any hazards in that coal pile?
Has there been anything that's leached into the ground?

Ed Murphy: They will be taking soil samples beneath that to look. | don't know what that
pile has been treated with over the years for dust suppression.
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Representative Boehning: How long has that coal pile been laying there next to the
tracks?

Ed Murphy: It was there in 1977 when | attended the University of North Dakota; so in
excess of 40 years.

Representative Boehning: I'm just looking for more information.
Ed Murphy: We walked that entire area with a civil engineer with the APC.

Lynn Helms: That's part of the reason our architect was so resistant to reducing
contingencies. He thought about that and built that in as a possible surprise.

Representative Boehning: | just want to cover our base and they can expense thing.
Representative Skarphol: Maybe we'd be better off to clean it up sooner rather than later.
| would be more interested to know what happens if you don't need to use the contingency
money. I'd like to know what happens to the money if you don't use the money for the
project. Does it get turned back?

Ed Murphy: We do have a history of turning back money.

Chairman Thoreson: [s any of this land railroad land? Do they have any right of way in
that area?

Ed Murphy: The railroad does and the university and the APC spent quite a bit of time
looking into that. We would not be extending out to that boundary.

Chairman Thoreson: Anytime you're in or near a railroad sometimes their claim extends
far past the land they're using.

Ed Murphy: We pulled back 15 feet from where that outer limit had been.

Representative Boehning: One is the UND parking fee; what's the 2% fee?

Ed Murphy: As Lynn pointed out we went back to the APC and | pointed out there was a
concern of the contingency and that 15%. There were a number of things rolled into that
and one of those things is that the UND facility's architects are going to be doing a lot of
work on this. So, that 2% goes to them. That's not related to parking and then the
construction manager at risk was added in.

Representative Boehning: So the fees are about the same then?

Ed Murphy: That was my understanding that that number didn't really change. He was
pointing out what he used to arrive at that 15%.

Chairman Thoreson: Recessed the discussion.
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the state
industrial commission and the agencies under the management of the industrial
commission; to provide a continuing appropriation; to provide a contingent appropriation; to
authorize transfers; to provide legislative intent; to create and enact a new section to
chapter 6-09 and a new section to chapter 54-17.8 of the North Dakota Century Code,
relating to a new short line railroad loan program and the North Dakota outdoor heritage
fund; to amend and reenact sections 54-17-40, 54-17-41, and 57-38-01.32 of the North
Dakota Century Code and section 22 of chapter 579 of the 2011 Session Laws, relating to
the housing incentive fund credits and the use of the flex PACE program; and to provide an
expiration date.

Minutes:

Chairman Thoreson: Reopened the discussion on HB1014.
Lynn Helms: Referenced original testimony attachment A for this budget.
Chairman Thoreson: Do you have a sheet for a list of options?

Lynn Helms: One of the options we've looked at is when would we anticipate that
occurring. There's better than 50/50 probability that the "big trigger" is going to trigger;
probably by June 1 of this year. It will likely trigger off in May of 2016. If we built a
contingency around that, we'd be looking at postponing these FTE's until May or June
2016.

Chairman Thoreson: So about mid-point through the biennium.
Lynn Helms: That's correct. If that happens, the earliest we'd reach a 20,000 well count
would be in July 2016. If all of that happens, we're unlikely to reach a 20,000 well count at

all during the biennium.

Representative Kempenich: Is it $55.09 minus $2.50 dollars? The numbers are always
changing.
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Lynn Helms: The actual trigger price is calculated based on a producer price index. That
trigger price is $52.59. The average price that has to intersect that trigger price is the
posted price of West Texas Intermediate at Cushing Oklahoma as published in the Wall
Street Journal; that's in statute, minus $2.50. When the trigger was written, the basis price
difference between a North Dakota barrel and a Cushing barrel was $2.50.

Representative Kempenich: [f it was $58.00 average price for Cushing Oklahoma West
Texas Crude it would be $55.50. Wouldn't it?

Lynn Helms: That's correct.
Representative Kempenich: Today it would be $52.59; and once it goes below that?

Lynn Helms: It's defined in statute of what is average price; and that is that West Texas
Cushing Oklahoma published in the Wall Street Journal minus $2.50. If that stays below
$52.59 for 5 consecutive months, then the "big trigger" hits; and if it stays above $52.59 for
5 consecutive months, the "big trigger" goes off.

Representative Kempenich: I[f it triggered off, it would take the better part of a year to
trigger on and off.

Lynn Helms: That's right. You have the 5 months to trigger it on and then the expectation
of the forecasters now is that it triggers on in June and stays in place. The 5 months
expires in May of 2016.

Representative Skarphol: One previous session | was given a link to a website that gave
me the price of oil every day since 1981. s that link available and could you provide it to us
and on a daily basis see what the price of oil was for any given day?

Lynn Helms: Yes. That link is still available and still active. [I'll provide it.

Representative Skarphol: Can you provide us with a sheet and list them in priority order
with the trigger?

Lynn Helms: We'd be happy to provide that. As you touch on that some of these could be
made contingency and so they'd drop down the list.

Representative Skarphol: There are a couple of things you could consider. One could be
the trigger and if it goes off; and the other would be if we reach a certain level of activity or
funding.

Lynn Helms: Exactly. We looked at 3 different mechanisms and we think this trigger price
is the best one; because everyone is tracking it.

Representative Skarphol: If we go to 50 rigs, what does that do to your needs? How do
you anticipate that playing into the trigger mechanism?
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Lynn Helms: When we were at 200 drilling rigs and going to 218, he projected 350. I'm
hoping he's 100 off this direction.

Representative Kempenich: The backlog, is that from permits for drilled wells?

Lynn Helms: That backlog exists everywhere. Our 775 wells waiting on completion is
based on companies getting their paperwork in on time. There are 1,083 industrial
commission orders waiting for my signature. The backlog for drilling permits is just under
700.

Representative Kempenich: That's what we're going to have to look at to justify what
you're asking for.

Vice Chairman Brandenburg: When the trigger goes on it goes for 24 months. What
happens at the end of 24 months?

Lynn Helms: When the trigger goes on, every well completed after that date gets 24
months at zero extraction tax. At the end of the 24 months, its extraction tax rate would
then be 4%; instead of 6.5%. The overall impact that's been calculated by the tax
department is a statewide reduction of the effective oil extraction tax rate from 6.5% to 1%.

Representative Boehning: It's a 10 month process, it goes on, off and back on; do all the
wells go back to the 6.5% rate or is that only if it's been off for 24 months?

Lynn Helms: Once that trigger trips, any well drilled during the trigger period or prior to it
always sees a 4% tax rate for the rest of its life. It's a permanent tax reduction for any well
drilled since 1987 up through the date the trigger turns back off. New wells once the trigger
goes back off, are at 6.5%.

Representative Skarphol: You said previous that if a drill was 4 months prior to the
trigger going on, that they would get 20 months at zero. How do the wells drill in 1988
benefit from this?

Lynn Helms: Those wells are going to see their tax rate go to 4% oil extraction tax rate.
Representative Skarphol: It wouldn't go to a zero extraction tax rate to a 4%. Only those
wells that would have an opportunity to fit into that 24 month scenario would go to zero and
then come back to 4%?

Lynn Helms: That's correct.

Representative Boehning: Where would that put us in comparison to other states if this
trigger goes on?

Lynn Helms: It would put us at par with the state of Texas, %2 of the tax rate of Wyoming,
10% low to Colorado, on par with South Dakota and on par with Montana.
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Representative Boehning: This may help us in the future to have more activity in the oll
field?

Lynn Helms: That was always the idea behind this trigger price; that the state would
exchange extraction tax dollars for income/sales tax dollars because it would maintain or
increase activity. The typical well pays $250,000.00 in sales tax to the state; which is
general fund revenue. There was also an estimate of the number of employees and the
income tax associated with them.

Vice Chairman Brandenburg: It's really just a holiday for those wells that are drilled within
this period.

Lynn Helms: That's the primary thing, the 2 year holiday. There's been an enormous
amount of wells drilled; 9,000 wells since 2006. They're going to see a rate reduction from
6.5% down to 4%.

Representative Vigesaa: When the big trigger is on, wouldn't there be an enormous
increase in drilling activity to take advantage of that lower tax rate going forward?

Lynn Helms: We think that is the effect. Instead of dropping to 90 or 100 drilling rigs, we'd
see 120 to 130 drilling rigs operating. The big impact we're going to see are people sitting
on drilled wells and having not completed them. That 775 is going to grow between now
and trigger time; it will be the fracking of those wells that's the payoff for the trigger price.

Representative Kempenich: It's a commodity and will go up and down. It's going to be a
challenge even with the taxes coming off on it.

Representative Skarphol: The commencement of the 24 months of zero tax, it's initiation
of production?

Lynn Helms: It's on completion date.

Representative Skarphol: If oil goes back to $100.00 or $150.00/barrel there's only a 5%
tax?

Lynn Helms: That's right. It's a long window to trigger it back off; and then only a 4% tax.

Representative Kempenich: We didn't touch much on that small trigger but that goes on
until the end of June.

Lynn Helms: | believe | saw a bill to push that trigger out to June 30, 2019. That would
mean if you passed that one, you'd do the little trigger, big trigger, and then the little trigger
again; but not until we're above $72.50.

Chairman Thoreson: Closed the discussion
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the state
industrial commission and the agencies under the management of the industrial
commission; to provide a continuing appropriation; to provide a contingent appropriation; to
authorize transfers; to provide legislative intent; to create and enact a new section to
chapter 6-09 and a new section to chapter 54-17.8 of the North Dakota Century Code,
relating to a new short line railroad loan program and the North Dakota outdoor heritage
fund; to amend and reenact sections 54-17-40, 54-17-41, and 57-38-01.32 of the North
Dakota Century Code and section 22 of chapter 579 of the 2011 Session Laws, relating to
the housing incentive fund credits and the use of the flex PACE program; and to provide an
expiration date.

Minutes: See Attachment A.

Chairman Thoreson: Opened the discussion on HB1014.

Vance Taylor, President and General Manager, ND Mill and Elevator: See attachment
A.

Representative Kempenich: You're going to hire about half of them next year or are you
going to start hiring them now?

Vance Taylor: The mill is scheduled to be completed late this year or early 2016. To start
that mill of the employees will need to be hired and trained. We only add people when we
have to. Early in 2016 we'll need all 12 of these employees.

Representative Kempenich: [s this new mill more efficient? What is our cost?

Vance Taylor: It averages around $2.00 per 100 weight of flour produced. | think this will
make us more efficient.

Vance Taylor continued with his testimony.

Representative Kempenich: Have you ever done any impacts with the local economy?
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Vance Taylor: Total economic impact is $761 million.

Vance Taylor continued with his testimony.

Representative Kempenich: Where are we at with the cycles in these mills?

Vance Taylor: Each unit goes down for 8 hours per week for scheduled repairs.
Occasionally there are breakdowns but not many; we average less than 1% unscheduled

maintenance.

Representative Kempenich: That's the ongoing or preventive? For the 8 mills do you
have them scheduled for major repairs? What's the life cycle of a mill?

Vance Taylor: Thirty years.
Representative Boehning: Why did we have such a large amount of overtime?

Vance Taylor: We do operate 24 hours a day/7 days a week. Some of the overtime
comes in for weekend work. There's overtime to cover for vacations and breaks.

Representative Boehning: The salaries/others; what is that?

Vance Taylor: It depends on if we meet the goals and what the profits are; we don't know
what that amount is from year to year.

Representative Boehning: Is that profit sharing?

Vance Taylor: We do have a gain share program at the mill and it's based on 4 different
goals that we have to meet. We don't gain share if our profits are below $1 million.

Representative Boehning: You have a budget in there for $15 million of salaries; then
you have a budget of about $12 million for salaries, others and overtime. You must be
really understaffed with that much overtime?

Vance Taylor: We operate 24/7 and on the weekend there's overtime to cover for
vacations.

Representative Boehning: You have 135 employees and if | divide that out it would be
about the average of their salaries?

Vance Taylor: Offhand | don't have an average salary for you.
Representative Kempenich: What is your average turnover?
Vance Taylor: It's stayed pretty consistent. Once an employee works at the mill for a year

or two they usually stay. We have quite low turnover with our older employees. Our
average seniority is above 25 years.
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Representative Boehning: Just doing some simple math with the numbers of FTE's you
have; the average per year is $147,000.00 per employee? That includes the whole line
item with benefits.

Vance Taylor: That sounds a little high. With benefits that's the possible high end of the
range. We can give you a breakdown.

Vance Taylor continued with his testimony.
Representative Kempenich: Do you do any advertising?

Vance Taylor: The bulk comes on the retail end; but we do some advertising nationwide in
trade journals.

Vance Taylor continued with his testimony.

Representative Kempenich: How do you control your rail cars?

Vance Taylor: We lease our railcars and those leases run from 3 to 5 to 7 years long. We
stagger our leases so every few months we have more railcars coming up for lease. If we
need less cars, we can reduce our fleet by not renewing those leases. If we need more, we
can lease more cars.

Vance Taylor continued with his testimony.

Chairman Thoreson: How many square feet is that building going to be?

Vance Taylor: It's right at 75,000 square feet.

Representative Kempenich: What is your storage capacity?

Vance Taylor: Both the cleaning house building and the mill building will be large enough
to hold an additional unit.

Representative Kempenich: What is you're flour storage?

Vance Taylor: Right now we can store a little over 100,000 100 weights; which is around 3
day's worth of production on the flour side. For wheat storage, the total capacity is about 4
million and inventory usually runs about 3 million; which is about 1 %2 month's worth of
wheat.

Representative Boehning: In the requested budget you had $5.2 million and the
recommendation on the budget was $7.6 million. Why is there a $2 million plus difference?

Vance Taylor: I'm not sure. The possible difference could be the health and retirement
members that were added later by OMB.

Chairman Thoreson: Closed the discussion.
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the state
industrial commission and the agencies under the management of the industrial
commission; to provide a continuing appropriation; to provide a contingent appropriation; to
authorize transfers; to provide legislative intent; to create and enact a new section to
chapter 6-09 and a new section to chapter 54-17.8 of the North Dakota Century Code,
relating to a new short line railroad loan program and the North Dakota outdoor heritage
fund; to amend and reenact sections 54-17-40, 54-17-41, and 57-38-01.32 of the North
Dakota Century Code and section 22 of chapter 579 of the 2011 Session Laws, relating to
the housing incentive fund credits and the use of the flex PACE program; and to provide an
expiration date.

Minutes: See attachments A through E

Chairman Thoreson: Opened the discussion on HB1014.

Jolene Kline, Executive Director, ND Housing Finance Agency: See attachment A.
Representative Vigesaa: Do you ever get any complaints about the fees?

Jolene Kline: No.

Vice Chairman Brandenburg: | think that some people didn't understand that those fees
would be charged; that they were thought that was the amount the loan would be and then
when 5% was taken out, it was an impact that they weren't realizing. In the future, maybe
the loan should be another 5% higher so you can deal with the fee issue. Can that be
done?

Jolene Kline: The wording in the century code gives us considerable flexibility on how we
recover that fee. The language in the century code says "the agency may collect a
reasonable administrative fee from the fund, from project developers, applicants or grant
recipients." When we were administering the first HIF fund, the $15 million, we pulled that
fee out of the fund as opposed to charging it to developers. That meant we were able to
fund less units because we were pulling that out of the $15 million fund; we held back
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$789,000.00. Assuming that the program is reauthorized, we will develop another
allocation plan that goes out for public comment.

Vice Chairman Brandenburg: It sounds like that information is already out there.
Jolene Kline: Itis.
Jolene Kline continued with her presentation see attachment B.

Chairman Thoreson: Is there a plan to follow up and have more of an open dialog with
those folks?

Jolene Kline: There's dialog going forward.

Vice Chairman Brandenburg: What do we have to do with any legislation to be able to
facilitate that the tribes are eligible for this funding? Are the laws permissive to allow it?

Jolene Kline: What staff found out when they were down there that it was the uniform
commercial code. That deals mostly with business transactions as opposed to housing
transactions. That will help them on the economic development front; but, it didn't relate to
development of this housing division. Right now there's nothing for the legislature to do.

Vice Chairman Brandenburg: So if they can get things worked out with the bank, the
housing is ready to go?

Jolene Kline: [f Mr. Barnett comes in and originates a 184 loan; we have the ability to buy
that loan.

Vice Chairman Brandenburg: What was the indication of the tribes of you coming down
and talking to them? Anything you would like to share there?

Jennifer Henderson, ND Housing Finance Agency: They were pleased we attended,;
and they thought the information we provided was beneficial to them. We do need to have
more discussions on that. There has been administrative turnover on that reservation; so
reintroducing programs is important.

Vice Chairman Brandenburg: Did you get a general feeling that they were sincere about
what they're trying to do?

Jennifer Henderson: | think one of the things that was mentioned was they had a housing
officer that did some counseling services and provided a $25,000.00 down payment for
their tribal members to have down payment assistance; that has gone away. They are
going to look back into that particular program.

Representative Glassheim: |s the 184 program sufficient for their needs or do they need
sub-lenders to have real estate transaction capability in order to buy the 184 loans?
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Jennifer Henderson: The 184 program is a well-used program in other parts of the United
States. It just needs to be done here as well. There are other options available for
financing. USDA does have a rural development direct loan program for tribal members
and then the VA provides a VA direct loan for Native Americans.

Representative Glassheim: Would the 184 or USDA all work without changes to the real
estate code?

Jennifer Henderson: Correct.
Representative Glassheim: They would work given current situations?
Jennifer Henderson: In today's world they work.

Representative Glassheim: We might not need the Housing Finance Agency to be
involved in order to get this project off the ground?

Jennifer Henderson: Our involvement would be to purchase the loans once they are
originated. We can act as a secondary market for those particular loans.

Representative Glassheim: They would need that? They could do the project without us.
Jennifer Henderson: Yes.

Representative Glassheim: In order to buy on the secondary market, we would need to
have changes to the real estate security codes?

Jennifer Henderson: No changes are needed.
Representative Glassheim: So we could go ahead with that as is?
Jennifer Henderson: Yes.

Vice Chairman Brandenburg: Let us know before we leave if there's something you need
to be addressed before we go home.

Jolene Kline: Yes.

Representative Vigesaa: Would our only involvement in a project like this to be the
purchaser of those loans? Would we be just a participant in the total project?

Jolene Kline: | think that our role is going to need to be more than just a secondary
market to purchase those loans.

Representative Vigesaa: If we're just a participant in the project and there's a default on
the mortgage, who's going to be in first place on that particular mortgage?
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Jolene Kline: The 184 loan would come with a HUD guarantee. We're in first, but there's
a backstop for our agency with the HUD 184 guarantee.

Jolene Kline continued with her presentation.
Chairman Thoreson: Zombie homes.

Jolene Kline: The abandoned homes.
Chairman Thoreson: The end of this biennium?

Jolene Kline: Right. They need an amendment to extend that because the city of Minot
doesn't feel that they can get through all the legal processes to get these homes done.

Chairman Thoreson: The money is there it's just a question of what happens at that date?
Jolene Kline: Right.

Vice Chairman Brandenburg: How long are you looking at?

Jolene Kline: The amendment will request an additional 2 years.

Representative Vigesaa: How far would that go to getting rid of all the "zombie" homes?

Jolene Kline: The application from the city of Minot indicated that would help them to
acquire 6 to 10 homes.

Representative Boehning: With that money that Minot is getting how much of that is
going to be used for administrative?

Jolene Kline: There is no administrative money available under this second go around.
The city of Minot is not allowed to charge an administrative fee. We are to use that money
only on a reimbursement basis to the city.

Lynn Helms, Director, Department of Mineral Resources: See attachment C.
Chairman Thoreson: When you say cases; what does that entail?

Lynn Helms: A case initiates with an application by an oil and gas company or a mineral
owner or the division itself. It ends up being put on a hearing docket and 30 days later it's
heard by an examiner and examiner staff.

Chairman Thoreson: There are a lot of attorneys involved?

Lynn Helms: There are an enormous amount of attorneys involved. There is at least 1 for
the applicant and there can be 2 or more representing people that are in opposition to the

case. We come to a decision and then an industrial commission order has to be written
that lays out all the facts and then makes a decision.
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Chairman Thoreson: When you say it goes to the industrial commission; who has the
authority to sign those within the industrial commission?

Lynn Helms: There are 3 commissioners have to vote and physically sign the document.
Lynn Helms continued with his presentation.

Representative Kempenich: Is that a barrel?

Lynn Helms: That is one barrel on location and any amount off location.

Representative Kempenich: When does the health department get involved in this
process?

Lynn Helms: We have a memorandum of agreement with the health department. They're
responsible for the clean water act. [f the inspector determines there's a threat to shallow
ground water or surface water than the MOA brings the health department into it.

Representative Kempenich: It's about every time?

Lynn Helms: About 25% of the time.

Representative Kempenich: How many reclamation specialists do you have now?
Lynn Helms: | have one.

Representative Glassheim: How many spills?

Lynn Helms: It is 2,129 total; 25% off site.

Representative Glassheim: Of those 500 do you have categories for the spills? Do you
have a printout for us or some way to break them out into major or minor spills?

Lynn Helms: | don't have a printout but | do have staff that analyzes this. The size of the
spill is a significant factor but the most significant is if it is or isn't contained. The second
most significant is what was spilled.

Representative Glassheim: There's been some conversation of punitive fines. On the
whole the emphasis is on getting these remediated and fixed? How successful are you at
doing that?

Lynn Helms: You're correct about the priority of response. The first response is to make
sure the spill is remediated. The second response is to change the company behavior so
they don't have a future violation. The third response is to make sure that the penalty is
punitive enough that the company is made to realize it cost more to cut corners. We've
been extremely successful in land farming and remediating crude oil spills. There's been a
great deal of progress on the salt water side.
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Representative Glassheim: That was the 1 million?
Lynn Helms: Yes. That was the 1 million gallon spill in 2006.
Representative Glassheim: How are we doing with the 3 million gallon spill at Williston?

Lynn Helms: The pipeline system has been repaired but we have not allowed them to put
it back into operation.

Representative Kempenich: How do you do that once it's in the ground?

Lynn Helms: The typical salt water system is built out of fiberglass or plastic pipe. They
are too small and the joints don't allow for internal inspection of things. There are
monitoring systems that can be placed on them. This one had meters and pressure cutoff
switches.

Lynn Helms continued with his presentation.

Chairman Thoreson: Is that being used now someplace; or is it just in the developmental
stage?

Lynn Helms: The infrared technology is in the developmental stage. There is some laser
detection technology that was developed in Alberta and is already in use.

Representative Hogan: You're asking for 2 ATV's and trailers. Do you have adequate
staff to do all the pipeline inspection you need?

Lynn Helms: We're currently authorized to have 3 FTE's and up until this week we had
zero. The anticipation would be that some of these 7 engineering techs would do pipeline
inspection during the summer construction season and then well and facility inspections
during the winter.

Representative Boehning: When you have these salt water spills, how are the land
owners being reimbursed?

Lynn Helms: | don't know the answer to that. That is a private contract; it's part of their
right of way agreement.

Representative Boehning: Have you tried listening devices?

Lynn Helms: That was discussed in House Energy and Natural Resources yesterday.
There was one attempt that we helped orchestrate; but the noise of the oilfield pump
drowned out their ability to detect any leaks.

Chairman Thoreson: What constitutes a special wasteland fill?

Lynn Helms: It is one that takes non-household waste; so it's industrial and oilfield waste.
It's limited in its radioactive level under the current rules.
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Chairman Thoreson: To make sure it stays where it's at.
Lynn Helms: Yes.
Lynn Helms continued with his presentation.

Representative Vigesaa: Am | right in interpreting that when you're over 120 rigs you're
about 7 short?

Lynn Helms: That's correct.

Representative Vigesaa: Are there certain activities that are being held up because
you're short or are you simply behind?

Lynn Helms: To the best of my knowledge our activities have not been held up. Our
inspection goals have been less than 100%. If we continue at 120 rigs or more that
inspection gap will grow.

Lynn Helms continued with his presentation.

Chairman Thoreson: Do you see that activity coming back pretty rapidly?

Lynn Helms: The Bakken is the first or second most profitable play on the North American
continent. When that price comes back, we'll be first or second to get the activity.

Chairman Thoreson: Who's the competition in that case?
Lynn Helms: The Eagle Ford is the competition.

Vice Chairman Brandenburg: Other than the Eagleford and the Bakken what price puts
them where they become profitable?

Lynn Helms: For the Bakken outside the core area it starts to happen in the $60.00 to
$65.00 range. For the Eagleford it's in the mid $50.00 range.

Chairman Thoreson: Is that the West Texas price or is that what North Dakota is being
sold for?

Lynn Helms: | like to talk in local prices.

Chairman Thoreson: The private sector will snap up those people right away; is that the
reason?

Lynn Helms: They will.

Chairman Thoreson: For those positions are they going to have to have some experience
or can you hire people right out of school?
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Lynn Helms: We prefer people with a year or more experience. We have hired some right
out of school; but you invest a great deal of time training them. Our preference is people
with 1 to 3 year's experience and a 2 year technical degree. If someone has a 4 year
degree, we'll take them right out of school.

Chairman Thoreson: |If they have a 4 year degree, have they had any experience out
there? Do they have to do any kind of internship?

Lynn Helms: Almost all of the 4 year degree programs require an internship.

Vice Chairman Brandenburg: Inside the Bakken what price is that?

Lynn Helms: It varies but the highest break-even price for continued drilling is $36.00.
Vice Chairman Brandenburg: So Eagleford and the Bakken are really equal plays.

Lynn Helms: That's right. The Eagleford is more mature because the oil window is more
concentrated. Because of their climate they have drilled it up much more rapidly.

Lynn Helms continued with his presentation.

Chairman Thoreson: They're able to do the job properly?

Lynn Helms: Yes. There's a lot of turnover.

Representative Boehning: How many leave and how many do you hire?

Fred Anderson, Tech Support Staff Officer, Department of Mineral Resources: The
number isn't a large number; about 3 to 4 positions per year.

Ed Murphy, State Geologist, Department of Mineral Resources: See attachments D
and E.

Vice Chairman Brandenburg: If you could explain the difference between the $16 million
and the $12 million expansions?

Ed Murphy: Explained the attachments.

Chairman Thoreson: The first one was what we saw from the beginning?

Ed Murphy: That's correct.

Ed Murphy continued with his presentation.

Chairman Thoreson: On the $12 million plan it says 41,410 sq. ft. total is that number

listed on the original plan for how many square feet that is? How many fewer square feet
are we talking about?




House Appropriations Committee - Government Operations Division
HB1014

January 30, 2015

Page 9

Ed Murphy: What we looked at more so is the shelving space.

Vice Chairman Brandenburg: I'm seeing you're taking as much of the parking lot.

Ed Murphy: That's correct.

Vice Chairman Brandenburg: Maybe then the coal pile will be gone.

Ed Murphy: That's correct.

Representative Glassheim: | like the idea of saving money; but one of them you get a 28
year life and the other you get 65 years for the extra $4 million? Why wouldn't we bond it
for the longer life?

Chairman Thoreson: | think that's a discussion we need to have. This would take just a
few parking spots if you were to go to the revised plan? What would the university stance
be on that; would they still require those spots to be replaced somewhere?

Ed Murphy: The replacement cost is in both of those and it does reduce it.

Chairman Thoreson: Closed the discussion
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fund; to amend and reenact sections 54-17-40, 54-17-41, and 57-38-01.32 of the North
Dakota Century Code and section 22 of chapter 579 of the 2011 Session Laws, relating to
the housing incentive fund credits and the use of the flex PACE program; and to provide an
expiration date.

Minutes: See attachments A through D. |4 aindlcudt 4 |

Chairman Thoreson: Opened the discussion on HB1014.
Karlene Fine, Executive Director, ND Industrial Commission: See attachment A.

Representative Kempenich: If the state was bonding for the local political subdivisions;
how would that work? Could you do something like this? Could the state get a fairly low
interest rate on a bond and turn around and put that money out into these local political
subdivisions with a payment source over 20 years?

Karlene Fine: If you're looking towards the Legacy Fund, we haven't been to the bond
market for that at all. There's the possibility that we could structure something like that; but,
it would go to what the law says how monies can be accessed from the Legacy Fund.

Representative Kempenich: The law says you're not going to access it until 2017. The
intent is that we don't use it.

Karlene Fine: The bond rating agencies would look at how you can access that. If there
isn't a way to do that, other than a vote by the legislature, they would look at that and
decide it may not be rated as high. | think they might look at it the same as our
appropriation bonds.
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Representative Kempenich: We'd have to be somewhere down around 2% to make it
worthwhile.

Karlene Fine: | think a good example was when the legislature authorized the DOT to
GARVEE Bonds when Highway 2 was done.

Representative Glassheim: Are you asking if we could sell $100 million worth of bonds
that we would re-loan out to counties and cities and it would be backed first by the general
fund and by 2/3 vote of the legislature, it would be double backed by the legacy fund?
Then cities and counties would do repayments?

Representative Kempenich: It's kind of what the thought process is.

Representative Glassheim: Representative Boe said we would be in a lot better shape if
we tried to buy down the interest rate.

Representative Kempenich: That's not a bad idea.

Karlene Fine: In the public finance authority, you might want to look at the moral obligation
section because it has some ability to do some of those things with political subdivisions.

Adam Mathiak, Fiscal Analyst, ND Legislative Council: See attachment B.
Chairman Thoreson: WIill this be something that will be updated again before we're done?

Adam Mathiak: Yes, it will be. We will update it cross over and it will be in the final state
budget actions report after session.

Representative Skarphol: Is there a single page or multi page document that council has
prepared that shows the transfers that were proposed in the governor's budget?

Adam Mathiak: | don't think we prepared all of them into one single document. It would
probably show up in various places.

Representative Skarphol: Is it possible to do that?

Adam Mathiak: | think we could probably put that together.

Representative Kempenich: Would the ending fund balance be in your request also?
Representative Skarphol: All transfers however they are done.

Karlene Fine: See attachment C.

Representative Skarphol: Can you give us a little run down on the mill and elevator for
example?

Karlene Fine continued with her presentation.
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Representative Skarphol: That money that you don't spend goes back into the profits?

Karlene Fine: It stays in the operations of the mill. It doesn't get reflected in their profit
statement.

Representative Skarphol: Is it carried forward in that way? Is it called carry forward into
the operating?

Representative Kempenich: They run a line of credit with the bank; they don't use the
operating part of it. Isn't that how it works?

Karlene Fine: The mill and elevator does have a line of credit with the Bank of North
Dakota for its costs and grain purchases. The $52 million when we make the appropriation
is set aside into an account for general operations and when we get to the end of the
biennium if we haven't spent it, it's used for the continued operations of the mill.

Representative Kempenich: How do you treat that with the salaries? They're outside of
what the state does for salary increases aren't they?

Karlene Fine: For the mill and elevator there is a contract in place for some of the
employees. That is negotiated every 5 years. The rest of the employees get the same
compensation as other state employees.

Representative Kempenich: What's the breakdown of the union/nonion?

Karlene Fine: ['ll have to get back to you.

Representative Kempenich: There's a 25% increase in operating and about that in
salary.

Karlene Fine: The proposed FTE's that we have for the mill and elevator will all be for the
operations of the new mill.

Vice Chairman Brandenburg: When's that mill going to be ready to operate?

Karlene Fine: The target for that is the end of 2015.

Karlene Fine: See attachment D.

Vice Chairman Brandenburg: It's giving $25 million/year and $50 million total?

Karlene Fine: Correct.

Representative Kempenich: There have been some things raised about how much is

coming out of the bank. Do you have a breakdown of what's being proposed in different
pieces of legislation and how it's affect the bank?
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Karlene Fine: | do not have the most current update. There were some actions by the
Senate yesterday that were going to impact some of the transfers out of the Bank of North
Dakota.

Representative Skarphol: We have a document where you prioritized your employee
needs. The number 15 is causing concern and I'm wondering if you were given an amount
of money and given the flexibility to pick which ones you wanted out of that amount of
money, if that would be a scenario you could work with.

Karlene Fine: We need these employees. There vital for us to do what the legislature has
charged us to do. | will start with that premise.

Representative Skarphol: | understand that but we are in a different environment than
when this was originally proposed.

Karlene Fine: We're also in the challenge of managing and doing all the work we're
supposed to be doing. Anything we get would be greatly appreciated; but the dollar
amount we need is this.

Representative Skarphol: Is that broken out someplace what those employees would
amount to?

Karlene Fine: Yes.

Representative Kempenich: On page 25 there's a breakdown for January 15.
Karlene Fine: We'll get the information back to you.

Vice Chairman Brandenburg: If | remember right it's not the 15; it's 24 positions.
Karlene Fine: Yes, with the contingency employees.

Representative Skarphol: They listed the ones needed now and the ones that could be
used for a contingency. The 15 are in the top category.

Representative Glassheim: All sources of housing finance money; where do they come
from?

Karlene Fine: $20 million of general fund was in the governor's jumpstart; that has not
been passed by the Senate. So at this point there is not a vehicle for the $20 million. The
vehicle for tax credit is in this bill; and that's $30 million.

Representative Glassheim: That's real money.

Karlene Fine: Yes. Tax payers have to contribute.

Representative Glassheim: That's the full HIF fund?
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Karlene Fine: That's just for the housing incentive program. Within the housing finance
agency they have other funds. They have funds that they accumulate from the bond issues
they do for the first time home owner program as well as the other programs they
administer.

Representative Glassheim: It's self-funded?

Karlene Fine: Yes.

Representative Skarphol: At what tax rate does the tax advantage of having these credits
available for buying these credits from the housing incentive become useless? If our
income tax rate gets low enough why would we mess with it?

Karlene Fine: Jolene might have that information.

Representative Skarphol: With the environment of wanting to take the personal income
tax to zero and corporate income tax to zero, tax credits become useless.

Karlene Fine: When Jolene was speaking it was becoming more and more of a challenge
of informing the public that this is available to them.

Representative Skarphol: There's a prioritized listing of requests not included in the
executive budget. That's not included anywhere?

Karlene Fine: It's not more employees it's the market equity compensation for the current
employees. That's what the $800,000.00 is for. It's also the 2 ATV's for pipeline
inspection. | believe there's some market equity compensation in the OMB budget.

Representative Skarphol: On that list there are 4 FTE's listed. Are they in addition to the
ones we just talked about in the other handout? Are they duplicated in the other handout?

Karlene Fine: We'll find out.
Vice Chairman Brandenburg: Weren't those for pipeline inspections?
Karlene Fine: That's right.

Vice Chairman Brandenburg: Closed the discussion.
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A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the state
industrial commission and the agencies under the management of the industrial
commission; to provide a continuing appropriation; to provide a contingent appropriation; to
authorize transfers; to provide legislative intent; to create and enact a new section to
chapter 6-09 and a new section to chapter 54-17.8 of the North Dakota Century Code,
relating to a new short line railroad loan program and the North Dakota outdoor heritage
fund; to amend and reenact sections 54-17-40, 54-17-41, and 57-38-01.32 of the North
Dakota Century Code and section 22 of chapter 579 of the 2011 Session Laws, relating to
the housing incentive fund credits and the use of the flex PACE program; and to provide an
expiration date.

Minutes: See attachments A through C

Chairman Thoreson: Opened the discussion on HB1014.

Becky Keller, Fiscal Analyst, ND Office of Management and Budget: Explained
attachment A.

Representative Hogan: With the retirement increase, could it be that employee would
have to pay that 1% and the net on the first year would be 2%?

Becky Keller: If you would bring back the retirement, it would drop down to 2%.
Representative Hogan: This is assuming there wouldn't be any additional retirement.
Becky Keller: This is based on the legislative intention to remove the retirement increase.

Representative Hogan: It wouldn't necessarily assume that it would go to the employees
to pay the difference. Is that right?

Becky Keller: The retirement increase that is proposed in the executive recommendation,
includes 1% to be paid by the state and 1% to be paid by the employee. The legislative
intent is to remove that retirement increase that the employees have to pay.
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Representative Hogan: And the employer side?
Becky Keller: Yes.
Jason Bohrer, Lignite Energy Council: See attachment B.

Representative Skarphol: In the current biennium you have administration and litigation
at $400,000.00 and $500,000.00; then you have administration in the next biennium of
$900,000.00. Does that administration number include litigation?

Jason Bohrer: It does not. The reason the administration is lower in the current biennium
is because that administration gets spent out throughout the biennium. It increases over
the 2015-2017 biennium because those administration costs reset and then we begin
spending them down again. The litigation is covered under a separate pool of money.

Representative Skarphol: Is there more money in the account than what is reflected here
that you're going to spend?

Jason Bohrer. The litigation account will receive money from the current year
appropriation and so it will be built back up. In our normal round of appropriations, we
would add money to that appropriation. The current balance reflects how we have spent
down that litigation account over the past 2 years.

Representative Glassheim: These minuses in the bottom column; what are they minuses
from?

Jason Bohrer: Those minuses represent the commitments we have already undertaken
that will gather against the incoming appropriation.

Representative Glassheim: You will spend those minuses; but you'll also spend the $10
million. That will leave you with $50,000.00.

Jason Bohrer: You put it well. If we were to spend all those things we currently have
commitments to that would spend us down to $10 million; then if we used that remaining
$10 million to fund our project, that gets us down to the $50,000.00.

Representative Hogan: Does that ALIM cycle have to have $10 million? Could we look at
that at $8 million or is that a negotiable number?

Jason Bohrer: Yes. I'm confident we could survive with $8 million or $9 million.
Representative Hogan: Are we going to need that full $10 million of the biennium?
Jason Bohrer: | wish | had a really good answer to that question.

Representative Hogan: If we say we'll commit $7 million now and anticipate $3 million in
the next biennium, is that a reasonable plan?
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Jason Bohrer: | think it is.

Representative Boehning: The current balance on the chart is $17.6 million; is the spend
down for the rest of this biennium?

Jason Bohrer: Yes. The outstanding project one is where that particular calculation gets
fuzzier. The outstanding project of $6.2 million is an LB21 project, it's an ongoing project
that is ongoing operation but not expending money.

Representative Boehning: You're going to have a carryover balance of $9.2 million with
all that deducted to carry over to the next biennium?

Jason Bohrer: The $9.2 million carry over would begin this new biennium. We will have a
carry over balance of approximately $9 million.

Representative Boehning: The debits down below are what you're expecting to spend in
the next biennium?

Jason Bohrer: That's not necessarily what we expect to spend, those are our current
commitments.

Representative Boehning: You'll have quite a bit of money in that fund.

Jason Bohrer: Yes. There will be a significant amount of money in there. We can use
that money to fund this type of project.

Representative Boehning: You could probably pull $3 million out of that budget
someplace and commit to the full $10 million.

Jason Bohrer: | think you're right.
Chairman Thoreson: Which project was that?

Jason Bohrer: The $6.2 million dollar project. | think there's a way to do that with an
appropriation that isn't $10 million; but perhaps would be $7 million.

Representative Boehning: We may have to get some language to allow them to transfer
between line items.

Jason Bohrer: That would be extremely useful to have some language.
Lynn Helms, Director, Department of Mineral Resources: See attachment C.
Chairman Thoreson: Is it 2 ATV's and then a trailer for each one?

Lynn Helms: Yes.
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Representative Kempenich: Are you getting tracks on those?

Lynn Helms: We're exploring a track system for one ATV. These are primarily for pipeline
inspections so | don't think tracks would be necessary for that. We are looking in our
current budget at putting tracks on our geophysical ATV.

Vice Chairman Brandenburg: You have 15 FTE's there that you really need, 6 that you're
looking at the trigger price and then 3 of them at well count. That's a total of 24.

Lynn Helms: There were 22 in the executive budget recommendation.
Vice Chairman Brandenburg: And 2 ATV's.

Lynn Helms: Yes.

Representative Kempenich: Which are the harder positions to fill?

Lynn Helms: We've had the hardest time filling pipeline inspector positions and probably
the 2 contingency ET field inspectors.

Representative Kempenich: Do the companies check on these people also?

Lynn Helms: They are trying to handle all the contractors and subcontractors and are
stretched too thin to watch these people also.

Representative Glassheim: On the contingency positions, we appropriate the money but
you just don't hire them unless it's the trigger price or the 20,000 well count?

Lynn Helms: The money is appropriated as a contingency line in the budget and OMB
authorizes the hiring. When that event occurs, we send a letter to OMB and they authorize
us to move forward with filling the FTE's. Prior to that, we went to the emergency
commission with that letter and received emergency commission approval to move ahead.

Representative Glassheim: \What do we lose or what doesn't get done if we don't have
the geology analyst and the treating plant inspection person?

Lynn Helms: Without the geology position, the 2 people we have are focused on well
construction. What doesn't get done are the formation tops. On the treating plant
inspection, what won't get done, is traveling to treatment plants and making sure that they
are not accumulating a huge amount of untreated waste. Our goal is to inspect those
plants quarterly.

Representative Glassheim: Is it simply data or is there some consequence in not having
that?

Lynn Helms: It's primarily data that industry uses.

Representative Skarphol: How many treating plants are we talking about?
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Lynn Helms: | think right now we have 12 treating plants; up to the slow down, we were
permitting one additional treating plant per month.

Representative Skarphol: That's the treating plants that we heard about in full committee.
Lynn Helms: Yes. They bring in, for example, drill cuttings; they make their money by
removing the diesel fuel and oil and selling it; they move the salt water to a salt water
disposal well.

Representative Skarphol: When do you anticipate we'll reach that 20,0007

Lynn Helms: If we had stayed at 190 drilling rigs, we thought we'd get there the last 6
months of the biennium. At the current rig count, we will not get there until a year or so into

the next biennium.

Representative Kempenich: You have this trigger price and I'm thinking this budget was
based on $80.00 ail.

Lynn Helms: That's true. This budget was based on the December forecast numbers and
that was $72.00 to $74.00. The idea of attaching the trigger price to this was that if we
remain below the trigger price, when price increases beyond that trigger and the trigger
goes off, activity will pick up very quickly.

Representative Kempenich: Those are federal regulations?

Lynn Helms: It's a Texas regulation that says after it's passed through that process and
passes the standards that are set by the Texas Department of Environmental Quality, it is
no longer a waste; it a beneficiated product. That goes state by state.

Representative Kempenich: Does HB1390 allow it to go away?

Lynn Helms: The intent of HB1390 is to do what we just described.

Representative Skarphol: | had some of the same concerns. When a pipeline is being
inspected, what steps are they going to look at?

Lynn Helms explained the process of pipeline inspections.

Chairman Thoreson: How do they become a certified pipeline inspector?
Lynn Helms: That's going to be the industrial commission.

Lynn Helms continued with his explanation.

Chairman Thoreson: What about settling?

Lynn Helms: I[f it's properly backfiled and compacted, it's not a problem. You have to
leave it for a few weeks.
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Representative Boehning: When you certify pipeline inspectors, do you give them a
class?

Lynn Helms: We have not done that with the meter proofing and | don't expect that we
would provide that training. We would look at their resume to see what training they had
undergone and how many years of experience they had.

Representative Boehning: You de-certify them so they can't be working for us if they
aren't doing a job properly?

Lynn Helms: They would be watched.

Representative Hogan: We've laid a lot of pipeline in the last 2 or 3 years. How much of
it has been inspected by state inspectors?

Lynn Helms: None of it.

Representative Skarphol: Any pipeline that's laid by an oil company has to be entered
into the one-call system and surveyed so that we know where they're at.

Lynn Helms: That's right. Last session you implemented the GIS mapping requirement
for all the oil, gas and water pipelines. We're almost complete on that.

Representative Boehning: The amount of pipeline inspectors are they bonded; so if
there's a leak, does that go back on their bond?

Lynn Helms: Up to this point, pipelines have not had any bonding. | am not aware of a
pipeline inspector being bonded and insured.

Chairman Thoreson: Recessed the discussion.
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the state
industrial commission and the agencies under the management of the industrial
commission; to provide a continuing appropriation; to provide a contingent appropriation; to
authorize transfers; to provide legislative intent; to create and enact a new section to
chapter 6-09 and a new section to chapter 54-17.8 of the North Dakota Century Code,
relating to a new short line railroad loan program and the North Dakota outdoor heritage
fund; to amend and reenact sections 54-17-40, 54-17-41, and 57-38-01.32 of the North
Dakota Century Code and section 22 of chapter 579 of the 2011 Session Laws, relating to
the housing incentive fund credits and the use of the flex PACE program; and to provide an
expiration date.

Minutes: A achments . D-G

Chairman Thoreson: Reopened the discussion on HB1014.

Lynn Helms, Director, Department of Mineral Resources: Discussed the state of oil
prices in regard to West Texas Oil.

Representative Skarphol: What's going on with the gas gathering? Are they making any
progress during the winter on getting things connected?

Lynn Helms: The connection and pipeline construction is at a standstill. There have been
several large compressor projects that are getting up and running.

Chairman Thoreson: What kind of federal approval?

Lynn Helms: One involves forest service pipeline right of way and the other one involves a
Corp of Engineers pipeline right of way project. Between those two there's about a 90
million cubic foot/day bottleneck. The Corp of Engineers has approved the cultural study to
build the pipeline; the forest service hasn't approved anything yet.

Adam Mathiak, Fiscal Analyst, ND Legislative Council: Explained the worksheets
attachments D through G.
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Representative Skarphol: | would suggest that we move the positions listed in the first
category across. | would suggest we also move the ATV's across. See attachment C.
Representative Kempenich: So you want to move $2,975,701.00 and the $41, 500.00.
Representative Glassheim: s that the first category or the contingency also?
Representative Skarphol: The first category.

Representative Boehning: | would move over the base payroll changes, the salary
increase, the 3% and 3%, and health insurance.

Representative Hogan: Do we need to move over the two negative ones also? We
should move those over.

Adam Mathiak: One thing | should bring to your attention. Last session there was
SB2233 that approved the industrial commission to do the industrial water sales. There
was an issue with the way the bill was written. It was our interpretation as we were
preparing the budget that it needed the position nor the funding that was talked about in
there were authorized. OMB felt the position was authorized; so we're reflecting an
increase of one FTE. The funding goes to the industrial commission but it didn't authorize
the expenditure of the funds. See attachment D.

Becky Keller, Fiscal Analyst, ND Office of Management and Budget: | think from our
perspective we're asking you to allow them to use that $150,000.00 that they get from
WAAS for this.

Representative Skarphol: | would suggest we just move it across since it's already paid
for by other funds. | would like some comments on the $104,000.00 expenditure for aerial
photography, $125,000.00 for core analysis. Attachment D.

Chairman Thoreson: This would be for department 405.

Ed Murphy, State Geologist, Department of Mineral Resources: That would be to
replace the ones that we're missing.

Chairman Thoreson: They are ones we had but have been deleted or misplaced?

Ed Murphy: Most of our photos we got through the NRCS when they discarded them and
some are misplaced over time.

Representative Skarphol: Are they older photographs?

Ed Murphy: These were taken from 1957 through 1962. We prefer those because it's
before you had a lot of infrastructure.

Representative Skarphol: Where do you anticipate that you're going to get them?
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Ed Murphy: They come from Utah and they have special paper that they use and once
they run out of that paper, they're no longer going to print these aerial photographs on
paper,

Representative Skarphol: So they're in a library somewhere; you just need to get them
reproduced. How many photographs?

Ed Murphy: Itis for 8,000 photographs. What's in the archives are the negatives.

Lynn Helms: As we move forward with HB1358; which is anticipating setting up a program
to deal with legacy oil and gas issues that happened in the 1960's and 1970's, these
photographs would be helpful for that.

Vice Chairman Brandenburg: | would say you want to get this information because any
time you get those old maps it's going to help you for old history.

Representative Skarphol: The contract cost related to core analysis. What does that
mean?

Ed Murphy: A portion is for contract drilling and another portion is for analysis. The last
two sessions we've had one-time funding that paid for oil and gas core analysis. This
would be for shallow drilling.

Ed Murphy continued explaining the green sheet.

Representative Skarphol: | would recommend that we move all four of those across.

Vice Chairman Brandenburg: With litigation do you still think we need that there?

Lynn Helms: Our preference would be to remove it from this budget and place it in the
pool that is anticipated by HB1432. Our concern with that bill is that if we move this money
over we need to expand the areas of coverage of that bill to include the safe drinking water

act and clean air act.

Representative Hogan: Do we need to move over the increased operating expenses on
department 405.

Karlene Fine: Yes we need to move that.
Representative Hogan: I'd move that over.

Representative Glassheim: In the 2013-2015 salary adjustments, there's a net gain but
there's also a net loss.

Representative Skarphol: That moves that water position to the general fund and | would
like not to do that.
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Adam Mathiak: If you want the funding to stay with WAAS, you would need to leave it
over. There were some base budget changes to reflect the additional $150,000.00. In
order to be able to show that the $150,000.00 is special funds being added; there's that
netting at the top. You would need to move it across if you wanted to maintain the WAAS
position funding as special funds.

Representative Skarphol: So you want the $7,056.00 moved across.

Adam Mathiak: Yes.

Representative Skarphol: That would ultimately be paid by WAAS?

Adam Mathiak: The $7,056.00 was related to some other minor base level changes. It
should have shown up along with the $44,000.00 at the top.

Representative Skarphol: So it is actually general fund money.

Adam Mathiak: The $7,000.00 is.

Representative Skarphol: So we're moving that across.

Representative Kempenich: (Unintelligible)

Lynn Helms: We have not had our servers moved but the lines that connect our district
offices are under that; also the telephones. These would involve the wall jack for everyone
of these new FTE's.

Representative Kempenich: So that didn't reflect in your move over?

Lynn Helms: No

Representative Kempenich: Is the professional services your department also? It has
about a $2 million increase.

Lynn Helms: | don't have the answer to that.
Karlene Fine: What was the amount?

Representative Kempenich: You had a request of $142,000.00 and you have a
recommended increase of $2.1 million.

Karlene Fine: I'm going to have to check on that.
Lynn Helms: The $250,000.00 for IT contractual; that isn't for the new employees. That's

for contracting with ground water protection council to enhance our database. It's a
movement to a new operating system.
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Representative Hogan: On the back page under subsection 12; do we want to add the
. ALIM cycle allocation of $7 million?

Chairman Thoreson: You would add an additional $7 million.
Representative Hogan: It might be a new section.

Karlene Fine: The $4.5 million; in section 12 of the bill it talks about our non-matching
requirement for the program. It's not related at all.

Chairman Thoreson: So you would need a new section?
Karlene Fine: Right. What you would add would be under a possible one-time item.

Chairman Thoreson: Would any of that be needed prior to the start of the new biennium;
in case we would have to do an emergency clause?

Karlene Fine: No.
Representative Glassheim: Do we want to bond the core library?

Representative Skarphol: | think a lot of us think it needs to be done; but | think we need
some time to consider some options.

. Lynn Helms: It is the change in litigation. We created a line item that added $2 million;
but that disappears with the conversation | was having with Representative Brandenburg.

Chairman Thoreson: Let's go to department 471.

Representative Kempenich: | think on the bank we'd move the base payroll over for the
Bank of North Dakota and the 3% and 3% and health insurance. | would suggest we move
those two positions over.

Chairman Thoreson: So the information security and analyst positions?

Representative Kempenich: Yes. Do you want to comment on the change to operating
expenses”?

Eric Hardmeyer, President, Bank of North Dakota; Changes to the operating expenses
include $2.5 million for information technology costs and $800,000.00 for other fees.

Tim Porter, CFO, Bank of North Dakota: Explained the operating costs.
Representative Skarphol: What do you pay in IT fees if you have $1 million in increases?

' Tim Porter: Our overall expense in the budget is about $4.3 million.
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Representative Skarphol: That increase is due to ITD increased costs or is it other
information technology costs along with ITD changes?

Tim Porter: That specific $1 million is pretty much ITD. The other services are projected
to go up $500,000.00.

Representative Kempenich: The professional development is a $400,000.00 increase. Is
that starting something new?

Tim Porter: That includes the tuition reimbursement that we pay for employees, situational
leadership and other initiatives that we do through our HR.

Representative Kempenich: What's this special line for others?
Tim Porter: That would be for contingency.

Eric Hardmeyer: We're running on a two year budget and things are changing
dramatically in the banking business.

Representative Skarphol: The most surprising detail is the $200,000.00 increase in
postage.

Eric Hardmeyer: That is something we're working very hard on reducing. It has to do with
compliance and disclosure.

Representative Skarphol: Do you have the ability to incentivize people in regard to
getting them to do that?

Eric Hardmeyer: Yes. For ACH we take off .25% your rate if you do it automatically.

Representative Skarphol: | would suggest that we move everything here across with the
exception of the 3% and 3%.

Vice Chairman Brandenburg: You're talking about the bottom changes?

Representative Skarphol: | was talking about the upper portion.

Vice Chairman Brandenburg: | would move the transfer for the PACE of $28 million,
AGPACE of $3 million, biofuels PACE of $2 million, $7 million for beginning farmer loan
revolving fund and the FLEXPACE program. On the short line revolving loan fund of $10
million to take $5 million and put it in the revolving loan program that's now in the DOT.
Eric Hardmeyer: So the change is $5 million going to DOT instead of the bank?

Vice Chairman Brandenburg: Yes.

Eric Hardmeyer: That's fine.
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. Representative Kempenich: So section 14 and 15 of the bill disappear?

Vice Chairman Brandenburg: Adam if you could do some language to go into HB1012
with that $5 million to go into the revolving loan fund.

Representative Kempenich: It's section 6 of the bill and | don't see it.
Becky Keller: It's included in the industrial commission's other sections.
Representative Kempenich: Why don't we

Representative Skarphol: My intent was that the bank would the same 3% and 3% as
anyone else.

Vice Chairman Brandenburg: For housing we can move the 3% and 3%, health
insurance, and base payroll.

Representative Hogan: I'm very interested in moving the housing incentive over. | would
like to increase it based on the testimony we had.

Representative Skarphol: | understand the need but I'm not sure if I'm ready to do that at
this time.

. Representative Kempenich: We have a proposed amendment that was brought forward
yesterday. So this won't be the last time on this issue.

Representative Boehning: | don't know if it was in Representative Skarphol's motion; but
move the negative lines over as well.

Karlene Fine: Section 18 of the bill didn't have any money in it. Section 19 starts to deal
with the housing incentive fund.

Representative Boehning: How much did we give to agencies with the outdoor heritage
fund?

Karlene Fine: In the first grant round we did $1.9 million to game and fish; we had 2 small
projects that went to parks and recreation and we also did another one to game and fish
just recently that was $3 million.

Representative Boehning: | was under the impression that the heritage fund was
supposed to be used for local government agencies and other organizations. | really don't
like this language and | really don't like that we're using outdoor heritage funds for agencies
that we can appropriate money to. | would like an amendment to remove that from the
language.

‘ Chairman Thoreson: That request is noted.
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Vice Chairman Brandenburg: For the mill and elevator, | move the 3% and 3%, base
funding changes and the health insurance.

Representative Skarphol: | think the new mill has been built; has it not?
Karlene Fine: Yes. It will be completed by the end of this year.

Representative Skarphol: So the FTE's being requested are primarily for the operation of
that new mill?

Karlene Fine: The 12 positions are for the new mill.

Representative Skarphol: There are other issues to argue about in this budget; but I'm
not sure that this is one of them.

Vice Chairman Brandenburg: They really wouldn't need these until later this summer. So
we have time to deal with these FTE's.

Representative Skarphol: Are these numbers for 24 months or they adjusted to reflect
the fact that you don't need them for the entire biennium?

Karlene Fine: These numbers were built for the entire biennium. We had hoped to have
the mill up and running by August 1.

Representative Hogan: The salary increases are zero and zero on market equity and
performance. They don't have the salary increase that we have in the other areas.

Karlene Fine: The mill's budget is done a little differently than the other ones; because of
the contracts involved and the way they roll up their dollars. We roll it all into base payroll
changes.

Representative Hogan: The 4% and 3% still apply to some employees?

Karlene Fine: Yes.

Representative Hogan: That will just come in your base.

Karlene Fine: Correct.

Representative Boehning: On page 6 on line 1 | would like to change that from 50% to
90%.

Karlene Fine: That's a number that's difficult to come up with because we don't know what
those earnings are.

Representative Boehning: | suppose we would have to put a number in there; say $12
million?



House Appropriations Committee - Government Operations Division
HB1014

February 12, 2015

Page 9

Karlene Fine: Yes.
. Vice Chairman Brandenburg: On those 12 FTE's there probably isn't a two year cost
associated with them.

Karlene Fine: We may just be talking about a couple of months; but you do get the people
in and start their training.

Representative Boehning: Just looking at the amount of positions; are there any that we
can do with contract employees?

Karlene Fine: Those are some of the tasks those individuals have. You could look at
contracted employees; but we've found that it's probably more costly.

Representative Boehning: With contract work you wouldn't have to pay any overtime.
Karlene Fine: ['ll inquire.

Chairman Thoreson: Closed the discussion.
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the state
industrial commission and the agencies under the management of the industrial
commission; to provide a continuing appropriation; to provide a contingent appropriation; to
authorize transfers; to provide legislative intent; to create and enact a new section to
chapter 6-09 and a new section to chapter 54-17.8 of the North Dakota Century Code,
relating to a new short line railroad loan program and the North Dakota outdoor heritage
fund; to amend and reenact sections 54-17-40, 54-17-41, and 57-38-01.32 of the North
Dakota Century Code and section 22 of chapter 579 of the 2011 Session Laws, relating to
the housing incentive fund credits and the use of the flex PACE program; and to provide an
expiration date.

See attachments A through D - Hond oot |

Minutes:

Chairman Thoreson: Opened the discussion on HB1014.

Karlene Fine, Executive Director, ND Industrial Commission: When we were
discussing the housing finance agency yesterday, Representative Streyle had talked to you
about an amendment to extend some funding for $1.5 million. | don't know if that's
something you want to add on your list?

Chairman Thoreson: We have that amendment somewhere. | haven't spoken with
Representative Streyle since he brought that in.

Vance Taylor, General Manager, ND State Mill and Elevator: See attachment A.
Representative Kempenich: What kind of experience are you looking at on that?
Vance Taylor: Those positions require 5 years of experience minimum to be responsible
for the mill and operate all the equipment, make the necessary grade changes, make sure
that the ingredients get added at the proper time, adjust the milling equipment as needed.

Those employees wouldn't come off the street; they'd move up out of the department.

Representative Kempenich: You're moving other people around in your operation.
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Vance Taylor: We have assistant millers under the millers that operate the other mills. As
those people get experience and receive the training they cover for the millers until they're
ready to handle the mill. That's where these 3 people would come from.

Vance Taylor continued with his presentation.

Chairman Thoreson: Have we had any issues with that?

Vance Taylor: That happens very rarely.

Vance Taylor continued with his presentation.

Representative Boehning: Can we do contract workers to do the cleaning?

Vance Taylor: No. We have some temporary employees that we bring in during the
summer to help us get caught up in areas. When we hire a utility worker we're hoping to

hire someone that can move up through the ranks.

Representative Boehning: You're running 24 hours 7 days a week; do the people work
the same shift or do they rotate?

Vance Taylor: We do it both ways. Our milling department employees prefer to rotate
shifts. In other departments the jobs are given by shift and they stay on that shift
permanently until they move up into another position.

Representative Boehning: Have you ever done any studies or organizational structures?
Is there any way we can get that overtime down by doing a different type of rotating shift?

Vance Taylor: That is an option and we have looked at it extensively. If we did go to a 4
shift operation it would require quite a few more employees. We would have to add 30 to
40 people to make a 4 shift operation work.

Representative Boehning: | asked for some information on average wages and bonuses.
Did you ever get anything compiled on that?

Vance Taylor continued with his presentation.
Representative Boehning: You bring in temporary employees during the summer based
on major cleaning to my understanding. Do you hire them through an agency or are they

state temporary employees?

Vance Taylor: We don't hire them through an agency, they're state temporary employees
at a low rate and they don't receive benefits.

Representative Boehning: Has that become another insurance issue for you?

Vance Taylor: It doesn't.
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Representative Kempenich: How did you work that before because now | see you're
budgeting for health insurance increases? Did you change something?

Vance Taylor: On the health benefits that those were inputted by OMB.

Representative Kempenich: They're delineating out that stuff. Is that part of your
contract?

Vance Taylor: We have a contract that covers the hourly employees and the contract
states that those employees get the same benefits as the rest of the state.

Vance Taylor continued with his presentation.

Vice Chairman Brandenburg: You're going to be loading rail cars on all 3 shifts; but this
extra line that you're putting in place you're trying to put more product out with this extra
line. What's the number you're trying to get to?

Vance Taylor: It's an average of about 12 cars per day and that's done on two shifts.

Vice Chairman Brandenburg: So you're trying to get to 18 cars per day.

Vance Taylor: We're making sales of flour for this same time period in 2016.

Vice Chairman Brandenburg: I'm looking at your profits and you average about $5 million
to $6 million per year. Are you anticipating an increased profit?

Vance Taylor: See attachment B.

Vice Chairman Brandenburg: About what percentage goes out bulk and bagged on box
cars?

Vance Taylor: About 75% goes out in bulk cars and trucks. About 25% goes out bagged
by truck or by railcars.

Vice Chairman Brandenburg: What kind of baggage do you have?

Vance Taylor: We do a fair bit of 100lb bags, most of our volume goes out in 50lb bags
and we do 25lb to Sam's Club. We also do 5, 10 and 25Ib for the retail market.

Representative Boehning: On the other salaries are those mostly bonuses? Can you
break that out for me?

Vance Taylor: The gain sharing plan pays out a percentage of the previous year's W2
wages minus any gain sharing of the previous year.

Representative Boehning: What would you say the highest bonus would be for the year?

Vance Taylor: | think the average is $10,000 and the highest is $20,000.00.
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Vice Chairman Brandenburg: | move the 12 positions.

Representative Hogan: [|'m interested that the non-union are getting a 5% and 5% salary
increase.

Vance Taylor: We did back that out.

Representative Boehning: I'd like to take out the $410,000.00 on market equity
adjustments.

Adam Mathiak: I'd have to double check on that but it's probably part of the base payroll
changes.

Representative Skarphol: Do you have the ability to move money between the positions?
Vance Taylor: We do have the ability to move money around within those lines.

Vance Taylor continued with his presentation. See attachment D.

Representative Boehning: Did we build on every time we added a mill.

Vance Taylor: They're all separate projects and expansions. When we did the renovation
expansion project, the main part of that was to replace part of our milling units.

Representative Boehning: When you're done building this building will it be full or will you
have room for expansion?

Vance Taylor: We're building the cleaning house of that building large enough to hold the
G mill equipment and equipment for another mill of the same size. We're also designing
the mill building to hold the unit we're putting in now plus another unit later on of the same
size.

Representative Boehning: What are your long term plans? Do you have any plans for
expansion 5 or 10 years down the road?

Vance Taylor: These projects have been part of our long term plan. We've been talking
about a new building and milling units for a while. There will be further projects that we're
considering to increase efficiency on the grain handling side. This would fill out our 5 year
plan.

Representative Skarphol: Do you add ingredients to the flour you mill?

Vance Taylor: We do add some ingredients to some of our flour; not to all. We have a
fairly short list of ingredients that we add. | can supply that to you.

Lynn Helms, Director, Department of Mineral Resources: Explained about treating
plants.
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. Chairman Thoreson: That's Representative Kaiser's bill.

Lynn Helms: That's correct. They're intent with that bill is to put that 100% under the
jurisdiction of the health department.

Representative Skarphol: When you have a treatment plant it separates the sludge from
the beneficial part. In your case the sludge has to go from a treatment plant to some other
facility. Correct.

Lynn Helms: Yes.

Representative Skarphol: The waste recycling facility can take that sludge and also do
the process of a treatment plant. |s that correct?

Lynn Helms: That's a pretty fair description. In North Dakota a treating plant can remove
some beneficial things for resale. It would be things that are under the jurisdiction of the
industrial commission. The remaining product has to be disposed of in a special waste
landfill.

Representative Skarphol: There's very little likelihood we'll have duplicated state
inspections.

‘ Lynn Helms: That's correct.

Representative Boehning: Would it be possible to have your inspector that takes care of
these treating plants to also take care of the health department's? Are they two very
different inspections?

Lynn Helms: There's a possibility that we could use that person.

Representative Boehning: With doing one part of the project, would it be possible to do
the warehouse at one time and the other part at a different time?

Lynn Helms: That is possible. Up to this point we had avoided that discussion about
multiple phasing. The warehouse space is the real crunch at this point.

Representative Boehning: | think if we do something in phased way or maybe on a
trigger.

Lynn Helms: We'll have AEPC take a look at that.

Chairman Thoreson: Closed the discussion.
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the state
industrial commission and the agencies under the management of the industrial
commission; to provide a continuing appropriation; to provide a contingent appropriation; to
authorize transfers; to provide legislative intent; to create and enact a new section to
chapter 6-09 and a new section to chapter 54-17.8 of the North Dakota Century Code,
relating to a new short line railroad loan program and the North Dakota outdoor heritage
fund; to amend and reenact sections 54-17-40, 54-17-41, and 57-38-01.32 of the North
Dakota Century Code and section 22 of chapter 579 of the 2011 Session Laws, relating to
the housing incentive fund credits and the use of the flex PACE program; and to provide an
expiration date.

Minutes: See attachments A through D

Chairman Thoreson: Opened the discussion on HB1014. See attachments A through D.

Representative Skarphol: I'm looking at budget 405. Somebody remind me about the $7
million lignite research council grants. | didn't recall that we decided to do that.

Chairman Thoreson: Representative Hogan you had made that motion to include that in
here.

Representative Glassheim: How is the core library being handled?

Chairman Thoreson: As of right now, it's not reflected in here. At the present time, it's not
here.

Representative Vigesaa: | would make a request that maybe the $7 million lignite
research council grant be voted on separately.

Chairman Thoreson: We'll separate that out from the rest of the worksheet.

Representative Hogan: | would like to have a discussion about housing finance.
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Representative Kempenich: Made a motion to accept the amendments on the 475 and
471 portions.

Vice Chairman Brandenburg: Seconded the motion.

Representative Kempenich: Adding any FTE's isn't going to make or break what we're
doing as far as the state goes for the bank.

Voice vote made for budgets 471 and 475. Motion carried.

Representative Skarphol: Made a motion to accept the amendments excluding the $7
million in budget 405.

Representative Boehning: Seconded the motion.

Representative Kempenich: | would like to see a trigger type deal come into place if the
budget improves. Maybe we should put some intent in this.

Vice Chairman Brandenburg: What are you trying to trigger? Are you triggering FTE's or
buildings?

Representative Kempenich: No.

Representative Boehning: Didn't Lynn want us to put some language in their to trigger
his FTE's?

Voice vote made for budget 405. Motion carried.

Chairman Thoreson: Let's move to the line titled lignite research council grants. The
original request was for $10 million and $7 million was proposed.

Representative Vigesaa: I'd be comfortable to reduce that amount to $5 million. They do
have some funds available right now that they could utilize. Made a motion to reduce the
amount to $5 million.

Representative Skarphol: Seconded the motion.

Representative Hogan: I'm totally fine with that. | think we just want to say we're
supportive of the concept.

Representative Skarphol: In addition to the $5 million we need to put legislative intent
language in here that we support the concept of establishing triggers; and that a priority list
be established for the utilization of that trigger mechanism. We should state that the ALIM
cycle should be considered in that priority list and the need for additional employees in the
department of mineral resources; and on top of that list is the core library. | think we need
to make sure that discussion takes place in full committee.
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Chairman Thoreson: So we would put intent language covering those areas for targeted
revenues,; that if certain levels are reached that those would be funded.

Representative Skarphol: It's just to create the discussion.

Representative Glassheim: Are we saying that the ALIM cycle is going to be pushed over
to the same status as the core library; or are we saying we're for appropriating $5 million?

Representative Skarphol: My intent would be to support the $5 million that
Representative Vigesaa moved and then in addition to put language in the bill in the event
that certain things happen that would trigger these priorities.

Representative Glassheim: Can we vote first on the $5 million?

Voice vote taken to reduce the lignite research council grants to $5 million. Motion carried.

Representative Hogan: Can we add $10 million for housing to that contingent list.

Representative Skarphol: | don't have a problem with adding that to that list as | think
they all will be topics of discussion.

Vice Chairman Brandenburg: Don't we want to put that in 473 for the housing?
Voice vote taken for intent language. Motion carried.

Representative Skarphol: Made a motion to move the amendments for 473.
Representative Kempenich: Seconded the motion.

Voice vote taken. Motion carried.

Chairman Thoreson: Sections 14 and 15 of the bill are coming out. Is that correct?
Adam Mathiak: Yes.

Representative Kempenich: For the outdoor heritage fund is there anything we need to
do with the language?

Adam Mathiak: Based on the conversation we had | removed that section in the
amendment; that's section 18. Section 18 was allowing the Office of Management and
Budget to increase the appropriation authority for any agency that received a grant from the
outdoor heritage fund. | believe it was Representative Boehning who had asked that we
not include that and didn't want the funding to go to agencies; but preferred that the funding
go out to other political subdivisions.

Representative Kempenich: | think that HB1409 does allow agencies to get involved in it.
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Adam Mathiak: Currently, some agencies have been receiving funding but the mechanism
for them to receive the funding is for them to go before budget section and emergency
commission; this would have allowed them to get the appropriation authority without going
to budget section or emergency commission.

Representative Vigesaa: | see that we had an amendment from the Lignite Energy
Council with regard to appointment of members.

Chairman Thoreson: | believe it's reflected in 405. The backside of 405 under lignite
research; section 16 amends to allow the governor to appoint. That's correct?

Adam Mathiak: Yes.

Vice Chairman Brandenburg: Made a motion for a "Do Pass as Amended."
Representative Kempenich: Seconded the motion.

Roll call vote: 8 Yeas 0 Nays 0 Absent.

Representative Kempenich carried the bill.

Representative Skarphol: Is there anything in HB1409 that prohibits granting money from
the outdoor heritage fund to a state agency?

Adam Mathiak: | haven't looked at it closely enough to answer at this point. | will check.
Karlene Fine, Executive Director, ND Industrial Commission: No.

Representative Skarphol: Was it a topic of discussion on that bill?

Karlene Fine: Yes.

Chairman Thoreson: Closed the discussion.
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

Provide an appropriation for defraying expenses of State Industrial Commission and the
agencies under the management of the Industrial Commission.

Minutes: Attachment #1

Vice Chairman Keith Kempenich: Made a motion to amend with 15.8122.01003. See
attachment #1.

Representative Skarphol: Seconded.

Vice Chairman Keith Kempenich: Explained the amendments. We started on page 4 but
removed most of page 6 seven and nine then replaced on page 9 with section 15 lignite
research council compensation appointment of members.

Chairman Delzer: What did you do in section 4403047

Representative Skarphol: | believe that allows for people from outside the state to be
appointed to Lignite Energy Council.

Chairman Jeff Delzer: Why do they want to appoint them to that? They could certainly be
there as advisors.

Vice Chairman Keith Kempenich: They have this cycle and the membership of the
Lignite Council.

Chairman Jeff Delzer: But this is the research council.

Vice Chairman Keith Kempenich: We put section 18 in on contingency funding and that
comes down to the oil and gas division.

Chairman Jeff Delzer. What are you doing here? Do you have a list anywhere or are you
just saying we're going to put together a list?
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Vice Chairman Keith Kempenich: There is a list. We were just trying to keep it in the
conversation with this intent language.

Representative Skarphol: The section is intended to be legislative intent which lists the
priorities that should go on a contingent list if one is developed.

Vice Chairman Keith Kempenich: We did the three and three with throughout the
agencies on it. The first section of the bill deals with mineral resources, general fund
dollars, the public finance authority and the industrial commission's administrative offices
which are special funds. We redid the budgets as far as the three and three goes.
Regarding the mill and bank we didn't change a lot other than reduce the compensations
packages. On the mill there was a request for 12 more full time employees.

Chairman Jeff Delzer: You added two people to the bank?

Vice Chairman Keith Kempenich: Yes, that was their request for what they've been
dealing with. We added a credit analysis and an information security position.

Representative Streyle: \What do they need an Information Technology security person
for when Information Technology Department manages most of their network?

Vice Chairman Keith Kempenich: They said they've been seeing more activity in their
systems.

Representative Thoreson: It is because of cyber security threats. They have managed
through ITD but felt it was important to have someone there with the bank to deal with that.
They have four vacant full time employees they are looking to fill; a loan officer, a calling
officer and business development industrial loan specialist, and an accelerated
development program person.

Chairman Jeff Delzer: Doesn't that cause problems not working with current ITDs?

Vice Chairman Keith Kempenich: | know they are working with ITD. They still maintain
their own systems.

Chairman Jeff Delzer: How many people do they have in IT security positions?

Vice Chairman Keith Kempenich: They are over $3.9 million over their base
appropriation but it is reduced down some just from adjusting their salaries and things.

Chairman Jeff Delzer: Did you take section 18 out of the bill?
Adam, Legislative Council: Yes, it was removed.
Vice Chairman Keith Kempenich: Continued to explain amendment and discuss state

mill. A lot of their employees are under contract so we did what we could with the three
and three. We added funding for FTEs and operating expenses.
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Chairman Jeff Delzer: There was a section in the original bill that wanted to limit the
amount of money that the mill would give to the general fund. Did you get rid of that?

Representative Nelson: The 12 additional FTE's that you granted was that at their
request or did they ask for more?

Vice Chairman Keith Kempenich: That was their request. The State Industrial
Commission gave them permission to build another mill and that is under construction.
They figured it would be in operation sometime next fall. This has the 12 FTEs to run that
new mill.

Representative Nelson: They won't be part of the new biennium salary?

Vice Chairman Keith Kempenich: They'll be part of the 2015-17 biennium.

Chairman Jeff Delzer: When will they need to be hired?

Vice Chairman Keith Kempenich: It will be sometime this spring.

Chairman Jeff Delzer: I'm not sure we should be giving the Industrial Commission the
authority to expand the mill without legislative approval.

Representative Silbernagel: On page 3 the possible litigation where we had $1 million
last biennium they requested $3 million and we pulled that out?

Vice Chairman Keith Kempenich: Yes.
Chairman Jeff Delzer: That went to 1432.

Representative Brandenburg: It's already done and the mill is complete so they need the
people to run it and load the cars. They never came to ask us if they should do it. They
can't run the mill without the people and they can't load the cars without the people so that's
where it's at.

Representative Vigesaa: That mill runs 24 hours a day so these are three eight hour
shifts that need to be manned.

Chairman Jeff Delzer: Do they have the rail cars 24 hours a day?

Representative Brandenburg: They loading cars 24 hours a day as well. They load on
two shifts and load 10-12 cars a day but they want to be able to load another five to six
cars. They average somewhere between five to six cars a shift and now they'd be able to
load 18-20 cars a shift.

Vice Chairman Keith Kempenich: With mineral resources we funded 16 positions. The
activity was needed with what's going on in the oil and gas area. This was their priority list.
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Chairman Jeff Delzer: What's a budget specialist?

Vice Chairman Keith Kempenich: They are getting enough people involved in this
operation now and it was suggested they do this from an audit that was completed.

Chairman Jeff Delzer: You took out the 20,000 wells but do you have any contingency
for lesser employees if the number of rigs continues to drop?

Vice Chairman Keith Kempenich: No, we didn't ratchet it down. There are 10 more they
are requesting.

Chairman Jeff Delzer: We didn't take out section 11 of the bill. | think we should talk
about as a committee. We worked real hard setting that up to be a way that made good
sense on the profits. This section says it is up to the Industrial Commission to decide how
much they want to put in to the state.

Vice Chairman Keith Kempenich: We had a proposal of 90% and that was rejected so
we left the decision. It was decided to have a conversation on it.

Representative Skarphol: Section 11 changes from what the present practice is?

Chairman Jeff Delzer: Yes it does. It changes from 50% to whichever is less. It was 50%
before without any limitations.

Vice Chairman Keith Kempenich: This year they had around $18 million but probably
would have been closer to $9 million.

Representative Skarphol: Why is that new language and change is not underscored to
where we would recognize it?

Adam, Legislative Council: This section was in last biennium so was brought over as a
change that the Industrial Commission had.

Chairman Jeff Delzer: The last time the 50% was the 6.817. If they have the 18 and took
it out it should be 50% of profits should go to the general fund.

Representative Skarphol: There was no reason for us to question whether or not that
was existing law since it's not underlined. The new mill will increase their capacity by 30%
and the number of employees increasing is less than 10% so with that you're going to get a
30% increase. | think in any business if you can increase capacity by 30% you have to
anticipate you're going to have some costs associated with it. This was to add a third shift
to do what needs to be done.

Representative Monson: The change to 50% or a maximum of we should be expecting a
lot more profit from the mill | would hope. | wonder if we should put a cap on what they get
to keep and go the other way instead of saying 50 percent.
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Chairman Jeff Delzer: | would have no problems saying 75% of the profits come to the
general fund.

Representative Thoreson: This language mirrors what was in the current biennium's bill.

Chairman Jeff Delzer: | understand that. The issue is that two years ago the 50% was a
$6.817 and that’s why it didn't get changed.

Representative Dosch: How was the new addition paid for?

Chairman Jeff Delzer: That's why they want the limiting language in there because that's
how they're paying for it.

Representative Dosch: What was that dollar amount for the expansion?

Representative Skarphol: They have a line of credit they operate with. They went
forward with the new mill as stated so it was paid for by either by profits or credit line. They
ended up making a profit so what they've done is paid for; it hasn't been loaned on. That's
how they operate.

Representative Glassheim: We have to remember this is a very well run business. Most
businesses have a certain amount to their shareholders and retain a certain amount of
earnings for things that break down, maintenance, repairs, expansion, etc. | would hate to
disrupt what they are doing. They are selling the most amount of flour in the United States.
| don't think it's wise for the stockholders to take 75% of the profits now; maybe 50% or
whatever.

Chairman Jeff Delzer. One of the problems is when you have this language sitting there
and if they get up to $25 million profits we'll only get $6 million back which is 15 or 20
percent. For a state mill the idea is not necessarily to be profitable and grow the idea was
to help the farmers and make sure there was a market for the wheat when it was put
together.

Representative Vigesaa: | have a graph with the projected profits for 2015 they are
projecting about $13.5 million, for 2016 its $14 million, and for 2017 its $15.5 million.

Representative Skarphol: They also transfer money to other funds that we've demanded
of those profits as well as give us 50% of the profits. In the bill it says transfers to other
state agriculture related programs. There are other places the money goes besides to the
state.

Representative Nelson: In our area we had a lot of issues with wheat growing areas and |
can assure you the state mill offered the best protein premiums and accepted the damaged
grain at a greater level than any other facility around us. They do provide the best market
for wheat growers in my area by far.

Representative Skarphol: We gave the Department of Mineral Resources 16 individuals
out of the 26 they requested and that's why the language is in there if there is a
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contingency list created. Mr. Helms indicated to us that he doesn't anticipate a need for
any more field people because he doesn't anticipate the number of wells increasing enough
over the next two years that he will need them. We felt we gave him the minimum number
of people to meet the needs that were being demanded of him.

Vice Chairman Keith Kempenich: A lot of our oil and gas is in the court of public opinion.
There is also one-time funding for aerial photography, a core analysis, seismic profile, etc.

Representative Nelson: In going back to the state mill, | think for many biennium we
budgeted for $5 million transfer.

Chairman Jeff Delzer: Part of the reason we went to the 50% was because for a number
of years we budgeted for five and they came in with a loss.

Representative Nelson: | think 50% is a fair request but | don't think it should go higher
than that.

Representative Pollert: What is their return on investment?

Chairman Jeff Delzer. We have real issues with the bonuses too. Adam, check and see if
there has ever been a performance audit on the state?

Voice vote on the amendment: Motion carries

Representative Monson: With a new mill they shouldn't need to carryover as much
money; they have a nice profit projected. | think we should take the $6.8 million cap out of
there and | would say we could go to 75% for this biennium. You could put a cap in there
of leaving them $10 million. Made a motion to further amend to 75 percent and remove
language of the $6.8 to cap.

Representative Boehning: Seconded.

Representative Nelson: If they have needs to retain those profits the only way they can
retain the number they want is to take it out of the hide. I'm not going to support this.

Voice vote: Too close to call

Roll Call Vote: 12YES 11 NO 0 ABSENT
Motion carried

Representative Kempenich: Made a motion for a do pass as amended
Representative Thoreson: Seconded

Representative Vigesaa: There was a $16 million library expansion included in the bill.
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Chairman Delzer: That's in your priority list.

Roll Call Vote: 177YES 6 NO 0 ABSENT
Motion carried

Representative Kempenich will carry this bill.
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1014

Page 1, remove lines 21 through 24

Page 2, replace lines 1 through 6 with:

"Salaries and wages $17,873,876
Accrued leave payments 347,696
Operating expenses 4,775,576
Grants 19,500,000
Grants - bond payments 19.809.969
Total all funds $62,307,117
Less estimated income 40,973,792
Total general fund $21,333,325
Full-time equivalent positions 98.75
Page 2, replace lines 11 through 14 with:

"Bank of North Dakota operations $51,523,916
Accrued leave payments 881,231
Capital assets 745,000
Total special funds $53,150,147
Page 2, replace lines 20 through 25 with:

"Salaries and wages $29,141,750
Accrued leave payments 575,807
Operating expenses 21,796,000
Contingencies 400,000
Agriculture promotion 210,000
Total from mill and elevator fund $52,123,557
Page 2, remove line 31

Page 3, replace lines 1 through 5 with:

"Salaries and wages $7,434,877
Accrued leave payments 147,806
Operating expenses 3,791,758
Grants 29,533,050
Housing finance agency contingencies 100,000
Total special funds $41,007,491
Page 3, replace lines 11 through 13 with:

"Grand total general fund $21,333,325
Grand total special funds 187,254,987

Grand total all funds $208,588,312

Page 3, replace line 20 with:

"Possible litigation

Page No. 1

$4,345,078
(347,696)
1,552,846
(14,500,000)
(4.769.140)
($13,718,912)
(23,974,385)
$10,255,473
16.00

$7,156,915
(881,231)
0
$6,275,684

$6,837,821
(575,807)
5,531,000
100,000

0
$11,893,014

$343,660
(147,806)
(47,483)
(3,602,270)
0
($3,453,899)

$10,255,473
(9.259.586)
$995,887

1,000,000

$22,218,954
0

6,328,422
5,000,000
15.040.829
$48,588,205
16.999.407
$31,588,798
114.75"

$58,680,831
0

745,000
$59,425,831"

$35,979,571
0

27,327,000
500,000
210,000
$64,016,571"

$7,778,5637

0

3,744,275
25,930,780
100.000
$37,553,592"

$31,588,798
177.995.401
$209,584,199"

Oll
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Page 3, replace line 24 with:

"Lignite research council grants 0 5,000,000
All-terrain vehicles 0 41,500"

Page 4, replace lines 1 through 3 with:

"Total all funds $68,060,800 $5,620,643
Total special fund 51,500,000 0
Total general fund $16,560,800 $5,620,643"

Page 6, remove lines 22 through 31
Page 7, remove lines 1 through 24
Page 9, replace lines 19 through 25 with:

"SECTION 15. AMENDMENT. Section 54-17.5-02 of the North Dakota Century
Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

54-17.5-02. Lignite research council - Compensation - Appointment of
members.

The industrial commission shall consult with the lignite research council
established by executive order in matters of policy affecting the administration of the
lignite research fund. Section 44-03-04 does not apply to members of the council
appointed by the governor."

Page 11, after line 9, insert:

"SECTION 18. LEGISLATIVE INTENT - CONTINGENT FUNDING PRIORITY
LIST. It is the intent of the sixty-fourth legislative assembly that a list of funding
priorities be developed for contingent funding if the actual general fund revenues
exceed the legislative forecast during the 2015-17 biennium. The priorities may include
a core library project, additional full-time equivalent positions for the industrial
commission, transfers to the housing incentive fund, and grants for the lignite research
council."

Renumber accordingly
STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT:

House Bill No. 1014 - Summary of House Action

Base House House
Budget Changes Version
Industrial Commission
Total all funds $62,307,117 ($13,718,912) $48,588,205
Less estimated income 40,973,792 (23,974,385) 16,999,407
General fund $21,333,325 $10,255,473 $31,588,798
Bank of North Dakota
Total all funds $53,150,147 $6,275,684 $59,425,831
Less estimated income 53,150,147 6,275,684 59,425,831
General fund $0 $0 $0
Housing Finance Agency
Total all funds $41,007,491 ($3,453,899) $37,553,592
Less estimated income 41,007,491 (3,453,899) 37,553,592
General fund $0 $0 $0
Mill and Elevator
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Total all funds $52,123,557 $11,893,014 $64,016,571

Less estimated income 52,123,557 11,893,014 64,016,571

General fund $0 $0 $0
Bill total

Total all funds $208,588,312 $995,887 $209,584,199

Less estimated income 187,254,987 (9,259,586) 177,995,401

General fund $21,333,325 $10,255,473 $31,588,798

House Bill No. 1014 - Industrial Commission - House Action

Base House House
Budget Changes Version
Salaries and wages $17,873,876 $4,345,078 $22,218,954
Operating expenses 4,775,576 1,552,846 6,328,422
Grants 19,500,000 (14,500,000) 5,000,000
Grants - bond payments 19,809,969 (4,769,140) 15,040,829
Accrued leave payments 347,696 (347,696)
Total all funds $62,307,117 ($13,718,912) $48,588,205
Less estimated income 40,973,792 (23,974,385) 16,999,407
General fund $21,333,325 $10,255,473 $31,588,798
FTE 98.75 16.00 114.75

Department No. 405 - Industrial Commission - Detail of House Changes

Adds Funding Adds Funding Decreases
Adds Funding for Salary and for Other Adds Funding Funding for Adds Funding
for Base Payroll Benefit 2013-15 Salary for FTE Bond for Operating
Changes' Increases’ Adjustments® positions* Payments® Expenses®
Salaries and wages $533,625 $1,301,128 $7,056 $2,498,269 $5,000
Operating expenses 627,432 304,771
Grants
Grants - bond payments (4,769,140)
Accrued leave payments (347,696)
Total all funds $185,929 $1,301,128 $7,056 $3,125,701 ($4,769,140) $309,771
Less estimated income 141,853 76,256 (150,000) 150,000 (4,769,140) 76,646
General fund $44,076 $1,224,872 $157,056 $2,975,701 $0 $233,125
FTE 0.00 0.00 0.00 16.00 0.00 0.00
Adjusts
Funding for Adds One-Time Total House
Lignite Grants’ Funding® Changes
Salaries and wages $4,345,078
Operating expenses 620,643 1,552,846
Grants (14,500,000) (14,500,000)
Grants - bond payments (4,769,140)
Accrued leave payments (347,696)
Total all funds ($14,500,000) $620,643 ($13,718,912)
Less estimated income (19,500,000) 0 (23,974,385)
General fund $5,000,000 $620,643 $10,255,473
FTE 0.00 0.00 16.00

" Funding is added for cost-to-continue 2013-15 biennium salaries and benefit increases and for other
base payroll changes.

2 The following funding is added for 2015-17 biennium performance salary adjustments of 2 to 4 percent
per year and increases in monthly health insurance premiums:

General Fund
$765,984

Other Funds Total
$47,233 $813,217

Salary increase - Performance
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Health insurance increase 458,888 29,023 487,911

Total $1,224,872 $76,256 $1,301,128
3 Funding is added for other 2013-15 salary adjustments.

* The following funding and FTE positions are added:

FTE
Positions General Fund Other Funds Total
Engineering technicians 7.00 $1,513,195 $0 $1,513,195
Pipeline engineering technician 1.00 162,018 0 162,018
Safety officer 1.00 187,717 0 187,717
Human resources specialist 1.00 139,380 0 139,380
Budget specialist 1.00 174,519 0 174,519
Reclamation specialist 1.00 230,911 0 230,911
Surface geologist 1.00 244,192 0 244,192
Survey engineering technicians 2.00 323,769 0 323,769
Industrial water sales position 1.00 0 150,000 150,000
Total 16.00 $2,975,701 $150,000 $3,125,701

® Decreases funding for bond payments by $4,769,140, from $19,809,969 to $15,040,829.
5 Adds funding for increase operating costs primarily related to increased travel expenses.

" Appropriation authority of $19.5 million from special funds for lignite grants is removed. The grants will
be distributed pursuant to a continuing appropriation from the lignite research fund. One-time funding of
$5 million from the general fund is added for lignite research council grants for commercializing the
capture, utilization, and storage of carbon dioxide and for next generation electric generation technology,
including the Allam Cycle.

8 One-time funding is added for the following:
General Fund

Aerial photography $104,143
Core analyses 125,000
Seismic profile digital conversion 100,000
Information technology costs 250,000
ATV's and trailers 41,500
Total $620,643

This amendment removes a section to allow the Office of Management and Budget to increase the
appropriation authority of state agencies that receive grant awards from the North Dakota outdoor
heritage fund.

This amendment removes a section related to contingency funding for FTE positions available when the
total number of oil wells capable of production exceeds 20,000.

This amendment also includes:
» Legislative intent for bond payments;
*  Appropriation authority, subject to emergency commission approval, for bond issuances;
«  Transfer authority of $930,000 for administrative services;
+ Designation of $4.5 million from the lignite research fund for lignite marketing studies, the Lignite
Vision 21 program, or possible lignite-related litigation.
«  Statutory changes relating to Lignite Research Council membership.
* Legislative intent for a contingent funding priority list.

House Bill No. 1014 - Bank of North Dakota - House Action

Base House House
Budget Changes Version
Capital assets $745,000 $745,000
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Bank of North Dakota 51,523,916 7,156,915 58,680,831
operations

Accrued leave payments 881,231 (881,231)

Total all funds $53,150,147 $6,275,684 $59,425,831

Less estimated income 53,150,147 6,275,684 59,425,831

General fund $0 $0 $0

FTE 179.50 2.00 181.50

Department No. 471 - Bank of North Dakota - Detail of House Changes

Adds Funding
Adds Funding  Adds Funding for FTE
Adds Funding  for Salary and  for FTE Credit Information Adds Funding
for Base Payroll Benefit Analyst Security for Operating Total House
Changes' Increases’ Position® Position* Expenses® Changes

Capital assets
Bank of North Dakota 858,035 1,943,112 177,836 209,809 3,968,123 7,156,915

operations
Accrued leave payments (881,231) (881,231)
Total all funds ($23,196) $1,943,112 $177,836 $209,809 $3,968,123 $6,275,684
Less estimated income (23,196) 1,943,112 177,836 209,809 3,968,123 6,275,684
General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
FTE 0.00 0.00 1.00 1.00 0.00 2.00

' Funding is added for cost-to-continue 2013-15 biennium salaries and benefit increases and for other
base payroll changes.

2 The following funding is added for 2015-17 biennium performance salary adjustments of 2 to 4 percent
per year and increases in monthly health insurance premiums:

General Fund Other Funds Total
Salary increase - Performance $0 $1,148,633 $1,148,633
Health insurance increase 0 794,479 794,479
Total $0 $1,943,112 $1,943,112

3 Adds funding of $177,479 from special funds for 1.00 FTE credit analyst position.
4 Adds funding of $209,809 from special funds for 1.00 FTE information security position.

® Adds funding for operating expenses including $2.5 million for information technology costs and
$800,000 for audit fees.

This amendment removes two sections related to a $10 million transfer from the strategic investment and
improvements fund to a new short line railroad revolving loan fund to be administered by the Bank of
North Dakota.

This amendment also includes a section to continue the Flex PACE program for affordable housing until
the end of the 2017-19 biennium and includes four sections to provide transfers from the Bank of North
Dakota profits as follows:

*  $28 million to PACE;

+  $3 million to Ag PACE;

«  $2 million to biofuels PACE; and

*  $7 million to the beginning farmer revolving loan program.
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House Bill No. 1014 - Housing Finance Agency - House Action

Base House House
Budget Changes Version
Salaries and wages $7,434,877 $343,660 $7,778,537
Operating expenses 3,791,758 (47,483) 3,744,275
Grants 29,533,050 (3,602,270) 25,930,780
HFA contingencies 100,000 100,000
Accrued leave payments 147,806 (147,806)
Total all funds $41,007,491 ($3,453,899) $37,553,592
Less estimated income 41,007,491 (3,453,899) 37,553,592
General fund $0 $0 $0
FTE 46.00 0.00 46.00

Department No. 473 - Housing Finance Agency - Detail of House Changes

Decreases
Funding for Decreases
Adjusts Adds Funding Housing and Funding for
Funding for for Salary and Urban Housing Decreases
Base Payroll Benefit Development Development Funding for Total House
Changes' Increases’ Grants® Programs* Operations® Changes
Salaries and wages ($125,696) $469,356 $343,660
Operating expenses 100,000 (147,483) (47,483)
Grants (2,214,445) (1,387,825) (3,602,270)
HFA contingencies
Accrued leave payments (147,806) (147,806)
Total all funds ($273,502) $469,356 ($2,214,445) ($1,287,825) ($147,483) ($3,453,899)
Less estimated income (273,502) 469,356 (2,214,445) (1,287,825) (147,483) (3,453,899)
General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
FTE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

' Funding is adjusted for cost-to-continue 2013-15 biennium salaries and benefit increases and for other

base payroll changes.

2 The following funding is added for 2015-17 biennium performance salary adjustments of 2 to 4 percent
per year and increases in monthly health insurance premiums:

Salary increase - Performance
Health insurance increase

General Fund Other Funds Total
$0 $277,212 $277,212
0 192,144 192,144
$0 $469,356 $469,356

Total

3 Federal funding for housing and urban development grants is reduced by $2,214,445.

4 Funding from special funds for housing development programs is reduced by $1,287,825.

® Funding for operating expenses is reduced by $147,483.

This amendment also includes three sections to continue the housing incentive fund in the 2015-17
biennium and allow up to $30 million of income tax credits for contributions to the fund.

House Bill No. 1014 - Mill and Elevator - House Action

Base House House

Budget Changes Version
Salaries and wages $29,141,750 $6,837,821 $35,979,571
Operating expenses 21,796,000 5,531,000 27,327,000
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Contingencies 400,000 100,000 500,000
Agriculture promotion 210,000 210,000
Accrued leave payments 575,807 (575,807)

Total all funds $52,123,557 $11,893,014 $64,016,571
Less estimated income 52,123,557 11,893,014 64,016,571
General fund $0 $0 $0
FTE 135.00 12.00 147.00

Department No. 475 - Mill and Elevator - Detail of House Changes

Adds Funding
Adds Funding for Health Adds Funding  Adds Funding  Adds Funding
for Base Payroll Insurance for FTE for Operating for Total House
Changes' Increases’ Positions® Expenses* Contingencies® Changes

Salaries and wages $4,559,196 $634,719 $1,643,906 $6,837,821
Operating expenses 5,531,000 5,531,000
Contingencies 100,000 100,000
Agriculture promotion

Accrued leave payments (575,807) (575,807)
Total all funds $3,983,389 $634,719 $1,643,906 $5,531,000 $100,000 $11,893,014
Less estimated income 3,983,389 634,719 1,643,906 5,531,000 100,000 11,893,014
General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
FTE 0.00 0.00 12.00 0.00 0.00 12.00

' Funding is added for cost-to-continue 2013-15 biennium salaries and benefit increases and for other
base payroll changes, including 2015-17 biennium performance salary adjustments of 2 to 4 percent per
year for certain employees.

2 Funding is added for 2015-17 biennium increases in monthly health insurance premiums.

3 The following funding is added for FTE positions:

FTE
Positions General Fund Other Funds Total
Mill operator positions 3.00 $0 $426,278 $426,278
Rail car loader positions 3.00 0 390,138 390,138
Flour packer positions 2.00 0 251,313 251,313
Utility worker positions 2.00 0 249,916 249,916
Electrician position 1.00 0 176,636 176,636
Maintenance worker position 1.00 0 149,625 149,625
Total 12.00 $0 $1,643,906 $1,643,906

4 Funding is added for increased operating costs primarily related to the operation of the new K mill.

5 Increases funding for contingencies by $100,000, from $400,000 to $500,000.

This amendment also includes a section to provide for a transfer of 50 percent of the Mill and Elevator's
annual profits up to $6,817,200 per biennium to the general fund.
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15.8122.01004
Title.02000
Fiscal No. 2

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for

House Appropriations Committee
February 20, 2015

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1014

Page 1, line 3, remove "to provide a contingent appropriation;"

Page 1. line 4, remove "to create and enact a new section to chapter 6-09 and a new section

to"

Page 1, remove line 5

Page 1, line 6, remove "program and the North Dakota outdoor heritage fund;"

Page 1, line 7, after the comma insert "54-17.5-02,"

Page 1, line 8, after "credits" insert ", the lignite research council,"

Page 1, remove lines 21 through 24
Page 2, replace lines 1 through 6 with:

"Salaries and wages
Accrued leave payments
Operating expenses

Grants

Grants - bond payments
Total all funds

Less estimated income

Total general fund

Full-time equivalent positions

Page 2, replace lines 11 through 14 with:

"Bank of North Dakota operations
Accrued leave payments

Capital assets

Total special funds

$17,873,876
347,696
4,775,576
19,500,000
19,809,969
$62,307,117
40,973,792
$21,333,325
98.75

$51,523,916
881,231
745,000
$53,150,147

Page 2, replace lines 20 through 25 with:

"Salaries and wages

Accrued leave payments
Operating expenses
Contingencies

Agriculture promotion

Total from mill and elevator fund

Page 2, remove line 31
Page 3, replace lines 1 through 5 with:

"Salaries and wages
Accrued leave payments
Operating expenses
Grants

$29,141,750
575,807
21,796,000
400,000
210,000
$52,123,557

$7,434,877
147,806
3,791,758
29,533,050

Page No. 1

$4,345,078
(347,696)
1,562,846
(14,500,000)
(4,769,140)

($13,718,912)

(23,974,385)
$10,255,473

16.00

$7,156,915
(881,231)
0

$6,275,684

$6,837,821
(575,807)
5,531,000
100,000

0
$11,893,014

$343,660
(147,806)
(47,483)
(3,602,270)

$22,218,954
0

6,328,422
5,000,000
15,040,829
$48,588,205
16,999,407
$31,588,798
114.75"

$58,680,831
0

745,000
$59,425,831"

$35,979,571
0

27,327,000
500,000
210,000
$64,016,571"

$7,778,537
0
3,744,275
25,930,780
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Housing finance agency contingencies 100,000
Total special funds $41,007,491
Page 3, replace lines 11 through 13 with:

"Grand total general fund $21,333,325
Grand total special funds 187,254,987
Grand total all funds $208,588,312

Page 3, replace line 20 with:

"Possible litigation

Page 3, replace line 24 with:

"Lignite research council grants
All-terrain vehicles

Page 4, replace lines 1 through 3 with:

"Total all funds
Total special fund
Total general fund

Page 6, line 1, replace "50" with "seventy-five"

Page 6, line 2, remove "or the"

0 100,000

($3,453,899) $37,553,5692"
$10,255,473 $31,588,798
(9,259,586) 177,995,401
$995,887 $209,584,199"
1,000,000 0"

0 5,000,000

0 41,500"
$68,060,800 $5,620,643
51,500,000 0
$16,560,800 $5,620,643"

Page 6, line 3, remove "sum of $6,817,200, whichever is less,"

Page 6, remove lines 22 through 31
Page 7, remove lines 1 through 24

Page 9, replace lines 19 through 25 with:

"SECTION 15. AMENDMENT. Section 54-17.5-02 of the North Dakota Century

Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

54-17.5-02. Lignite research council - Compensation - Appointment of

members.

The industrial commission shall consult with the lignite research council
established by executive order in matters of policy affecting the administration of the
lignite research fund. Section 44-03-04 does not apply to members of the council

appointed by the governor."

Page 11, after line 9, insert:

"SECTION 18. LEGISLATIVE INTENT - CONTINGENT FUNDING PRIORITY
LIST. It is the intent of the sixty-fourth legislative assembly that a list of funding
priorities be developed for contingent funding if the actual general fund revenues
exceed the legislative forecast during the 2015-17 biennium. The priorities may include
a core library project, additional full-time equivalent positions for the industrial
commission, transfers to the housing incentive fund, and grants for the lignite research

council."

Renumber accordingly
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STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT:

House Bill No. 1014 - Summary of House Action

Industrial Commission
Total all funds
Less estimated income
General fund

Bank of North Dakota
Total all funds
Less estimated income
General fund

Housing Finance Agency
Total all funds
Less estimated income
General fund

Mill and Elevator
Total all funds
Less estimated income
General fund

Bill total
Total all funds
Less estimated income
General fund

Base House House
Budget Changes Version
$62,307,117 ($13,718,912) $48,588,205

40,973,792 (23,974,385) 16,999,407
$21,333,325 $10,255,473 $31,588,798
$53,150,147 $6,275,684 $59,425,831

53,150,147 6,275,684 59,425,831

$0 $0 $0
$41,007,491 ($3,453,899) $37,553,592

41,007,491 (3,453,899) 37,553,592

$0 $0 $0
$52,123,557 $11,893,014 $64,016,571

52,123,557 11,893,014 64,016,571

$0 $0 $0
$208,588,312 $995,887 $209,584,199
187,254,987 (9,259,586) 177,995,401
$21,333,325 $10,255,473 $31,588,798

House Bill No. 1014 - Industrial Commission - House Action

Salaries and wages
Operating expenses
Grants

Grants - bond payments
Accrued leave payments

Total all funds
Less estimated income

General fund

FTE

Base House House
Budget Changes Version
$17,873,876 $4,345,078 $22,218,954

4,775,576 1,552,846 6,328,422
19,500,000 (14,500,000) 5,000,000
19,809,969 (4,769,140) 15,040,829

347,696 (347,696)
$62,307,117 ($13,718,912) $48,588,205

40,973,792 (23,974,385) 16,999,407

$21,333,325 $10,255,473 $31,588,798
98.75 16.00 114.75

Department No. 405 - Industrial Commission - Detail of House Changes

Salaries and wages
Operating expenses
Grants

Grants - bond payments
Accrued leave payments

Total all funds
Less estimated income

General fund
FTE

Adds Funding Adds Funding Decreases
Adds Funding for Salary and for Other Adds Funding Funding for Adds Funding
for Base Payroll Benefit 2013-15 Salary for FTE Bond for Operating
Changes' Increases’ Adjustments’ positions* Payments® Expenses®
$533,625 $1,301,128 $7,056 $2,498,269 $5,000
627,432 304,771
(4,769,140
(347,696)
$185,929 $1,301,128 $7,056 $3,125,701 ($4,769,140) $309,771
141,853 76,256 (150,000) 150,000 (4,769,140) 76,646
$44,076 $1,224,872 $157,056 $2,975,701 $0 $233,125
0.00 0.00 0.00 16.00 0.00 0.00
Adjusts
Funding for Adds One-Time Total House
Lignite Grants’ Funding® Changes
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Salaries and wages $4,345,078
Operating expenses 620,643 1,552,846
Grants (14,500,000) (14,500,000)
Grants - bond payments (4,769,140)
Accrued leave payments (347,696)
Total all funds ($14,500,000) $620,643 ($13,718,912)
Less estimated income (19,500,000) 0 (23,974,385)
General fund $5,000,000 $620,643 $10,255,473
FTE 0.00 0.00 16.00

" Funding is added for cost-to-continue 2013-15 biennium salaries and benefit increases and for other
base payroll changes.

2 The following funding is added for 2015-17 biennium performance salary adjustments of 2 to 4 percent
per year and increases in monthly health insurance premiums:

General Fund Other Funds Total
Salary increase - Performance $765,984 $47,233 $813,217
Health insurance increase 458,888 29,023 487 911
Total $1,224,872 $76,256 $1,301,128

3 Funding is added for other 2013-15 salary adjustments.

4 The following funding and FTE positions are added:

FTE
Positions General Fund Other Funds Total
Engineering technicians 7.00 $1,513,195 $0 $1,513,195
Pipeline engineering technician 1.00 162,018 0 162,018
Safety officer 1.00 187,717 0 187,717
Human resources specialist 1.00 139,380 0 139,380
Budget specialist 1.00 174,519 0 174,519
Reclamation specialist 1.00 230,911 0 230,911
Surface geologist 1.00 244,192 0 244,192
Survey engineering technicians 2.00 323,769 0 323,769
Industrial water sales position 1.00 0 150,000 150,000
Total 16.00 $2,975,701 $150,000 $3,125,701

5 Decreases funding for bond payments by $4,769,140, from $19,809,969 to $15,040,829.
8 Adds funding for increase operating costs primarily related to increased travel expenses.

" Appropriation authority of $19.5 million from special funds for lignite grants is removed. The grants will
be distributed pursuant to a continuing appropriation from the lignite research fund. One-time funding of
$5 million from the general fund is added for lignite research council grants for commercializing the
capture, utilization, and storage of carbon dioxide and for next generation electric generation technology,
including the Allam Cycle.

8 One-time funding is added for the following:
General Fund

Aerial photography $104,143
Core analyses 125,000
Seismic profile digital conversion 100,000
Information technology costs 250,000
ATVs and trailers 41,500
Total $620,643

This amendment removes a section to allow the Office of Management and Budget to increase the
appropriation authority of state agencies that receive grant awards from the North Dakota outdoor
heritage fund.
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This amendment removes a section related to contingency funding for FTE positions available when the
total number of oil wells capable of production exceeds 20,000.

This amendment also includes:
« Legislative intent for bond payments;
< Appropriation authority, subject to emergency commission approval, for bond issuances;
« Transfer authority of $930,000 for administrative services;
« Designation of $4.5 million from the lignite research fund for lignite marketing studies, the Lignite
Vision 21 program, or possible lignite-related litigation.
«  Statutory changes relating to Lignite Research Council membership.
« Legislative intent for a contingent funding priority list.

House Bill No. 1014 - Bank of North Dakota - House Action

Base House House
Budget Changes Version
Capital assets $745,000 $745,000
Bank of North Dakota 51,523,916 7,156,915 58,680,831
operations
Accrued leave payments 881,231 (881,231)
Total all funds $53,150,147 $6,275,684 $59,425,831
Less estimated income 53,150,147 6,275,684 59,425,831
General fund $0 $0 $0
FTE 179.50 2.00 181.50

Department No. 471 - Bank of North Dakota - Detail of House Changes

Adds Funding
Adds Funding  Adds Funding for FTE
Adds Funding  for Salaryand  for FTE Credit Information Adds Funding
for Base Payroll Benefit Analyst Security for Operating Total House
Changes' Increases’ Position® Position* Expenses® Changes

Capital assets
Bank of North Dakota 858,035 1,943,112 177,836 209,809 3,968,123 7,156,915

operations
Accrued leave payments (881,231) (881,231)
Total all funds ($23,196) $1,943,112 $177,836 $209,809 $3,968,123 $6,275,684
Less estimated income (23,196) 1,943,112 177,836 209,809 3,968,123 6,275,684
General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
FTE 0.00 0.00 1.00 1.00 0.00 2.00

" Funding is added for cost-to-continue 2013-15 biennium salaries and benefit increases and for other
base payroll changes.

2 The following funding is added for 2015-17 biennium performance salary adjustments of 2 to 4 percent
per year and increases in monthly health insurance premiums:

General Fund Other Funds Total
Salary increase - Performance $0 $1,148,633 $1,148,633
Health insurance increase 0 794,479 794,479
Total $0 $1,943,112 $1,943,112

3 Adds funding of $177,479 from special funds for 1.00 FTE credit analyst position.
4 Adds funding of $209,809 from special funds for 1.00 FTE information security position.

% Adds funding for operating expenses including $2.5 million for information technology costs and
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$800,000 for audit fees.

This amendment removes two sections related to a $10 million transfer from the strategic investment and
improvements fund to a new short line railroad revolving loan fund to be administered by the Bank of
North Dakota.

This amendment also includes a section to continue the Flex PACE program for affordable housing until
the end of the 2017-19 biennium and includes four sections to provide transfers from the Bank of North
Dakota profits as follows:

*  $28 million to PACE;

*  $3 million to Ag PACE;
«  $2 million to biofuels PACE; and
«  $7 million to the beginning farmer revolving loan program.

Base House House
Budget Changes Version
Salaries and wages $7,434,877 $343,660 $7,778,537
Operating expenses 3,791,758 (47,483) 3,744,275
Grants 29,533,050 (3,602,270) 25,930,780
HFA contingencies 100,000 100,000
Accrued leave payments 147,806 (147,806)
Total all funds $41,007,491 ($3,453,899) $37,553,592
Less estimated income 41,007,491 (3,453,899) 37,553,592
General fund $0 $0 $0
FTE 46.00 0.00 46.00

House Bill No. 1014 - Housing Finance Agency - House Action

Department No. 473 - Housing Finance Agency - Detail of House Changes

Decreases
Funding for Decreases
Adjusts Adds Funding  Housing and Funding for
Funding for for Salary and Urban Housing Decreases
Base Payroll Benefit Development Development Funding for Total House
Changes' Increases’ Grants® Programs* Operations® Changes
Salaries and wages ($125,696) $469,356 $343,660
Operating expenses 100,000 (147,483) (47,483)
Grants (2,214,445) (1,387,825) (3,602,270)
HFA contingencies
Accrued leave payments (147,806) (147,806)
Total all funds ($273,502) $469,356 ($2,214,445) ($1,287,825) ($147,483) ($3,453,899)
Less estimated income (273,502) 469,356 (2,214,445) (1,287,825) (147 483) (3,453,899)
General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
FTE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

" Funding is adjusted for cost-to-continue 2013-15 biennium salaries and benefit increases and for other
base payroll changes.

2 The following funding is added for 2015-17 biennium performance salary adjustments of 2 to 4 percent
per year and increases in monthly health insurance premiums:

General Fund Other Funds Total
Salary increase - Performance $0 $277,212 $277,212
Health insurance increase 0 192,144 192,144
Total $0 $469,356 $469,356
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3 Federal funding for housing and urban development grants is reduced by $2,214,445.

4 Funding from special funds for housing development programs is reduced by $1,287,825.

5 Funding for operating expenses is reduced by $147,483.

This amendment also includes three sections to continue the housing incentive fund in the 2015-17
biennium and allow up to $30 million of income tax credits for contributions to the fund.

House Bill No. 1014 - Mill and Elevator - House Action

Base House House
Budget Changes Version
Salaries and wages $29,141,750 $6,837,821 $35,979,571
Operating expenses 21,796,000 5,531,000 27,327,000
Contingencies 400,000 100,000 500,000
Agriculture promotion 210,000 210,000
Accrued leave payments 575,807 (575,807)
Total all funds $52,123,557 $11,893,014 $64,016,571
Less estimated income 52,123,557 11,893,014 64,016,571
General fund $0 $0 $0
FTE 135.00 12.00 147.00

Adds Funding
Adds Funding for Health Adds Funding  Adds Funding  Adds Funding
for Base Payroll Insurance for FTE for Operating for Total House
Changes' Increases’ Positions® Expenses* Contingencies® Changes

Salaries and wages $4,559,196 $634,719 $1,643,906 $6,837,821
Operating expenses 5,531,000 5,531,000
Contingencies 100,000 100,000
Agriculture promotion

Accrued leave payments (575,807) (575,807)
Total all funds $3,983,389 $634,719 $1,643,906 $5,531,000 $100,000 $11,893,014
Less estimated income 3,983,389 634,719 1,643,906 5,531,000 100,000 11,893,014
General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
FTE 0.00 0.00 12.00 0.00 0.00 12.00

Department No. 475 - Mill and Elevator - Detail of House Changes

" Funding is added for cost-to-continue 2013-15 biennium salaries and benefit increases and for other
base payroll changes, including 2015-17 biennium performance salary adjustments of 2 to 4 percent per

year for certain employees.

2 Funding is added for 2015-17 biennium increases in monthly health insurance premiums.

3 The following funding is added for FTE positions:

FTE
Positions General Fund Other Funds Total
Mill operator positions 3.00 $0 $426,278 $426,278
Rail car loader positions 3.00 0 390,138 390,138
Flour packer positions 2.00 0 251,313 251,313
Utility worker positions 2.00 0 249,916 249,916
Electrician position 1.00 0 176,636 176,636
Maintenance worker position 1.00 0 149,625 149,625
Total 12.00 $0 $1,643,906 $1,643,906
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4 Funding is added for increased operating costs primarily related to the operation of the new K mill.

5 Increases funding for contingencies by $100,000, from $400,000 to $500,000.

This amendment also includes a section to provide for a transfer of 75 percent of the Mill and Elevator's
annual profits to the general fund.
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REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE
HB 1014: Appropriations Committee (Rep. Delzer, Chairman) recommends
AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS
(17 YEAS, 6 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1014 was placed on the
Sixth order on the calendar.
Page 1, line 3, remove "to provide a contingent appropriation;"

Page 1. line 4, remove "to create and enact a new section to chapter 6-09 and a new section
to"

Page 1, remove line 5

Page 1, line 6, remove "program and the North Dakota outdoor heritage fund;"
Page 1, line 7, after the comma insert "54-17.5-02,"

Page 1, line 8, after "credits" insert ", the lignite research council,"

Page 1, remove lines 21 through 24

Page 2, replace lines 1 through 6 with:

"Salaries and wages $17,873,876 $4,345,078 $22,218,954
Accrued leave payments 347,696 (347,696) 0
Operating expenses 4,775,576 1,552,846 6,328,422
Grants 19,500,000 (14,500,000) 5,000,000
Grants - bond payments 19,809,969 (4,769,140) 15,040,829
Total all funds $62,307,117 ($13,718,912) $48,588,205
Less estimated income 40,973,792 (23,974,385) 16,999,407
Total general fund $21,333,325 $10,255,473 $31,588,798
Full-time equivalent positions 98.75 16.00 114.75"

Page 2, replace lines 11 through 14 with:

"Bank of North Dakota operations $51,523,916 $7,156,915 $58,680,831
Accrued leave payments 881,231 (881,231) 0
Capital assets 745,000 0 745,000
Total special funds $53,150,147 $6,275,684 $59,425,831"

Page 2, replace lines 20 through 25 with:

"Salaries and wages $29,141,750 $6,837,821 $35,979,571
Accrued leave payments 575,807 (575,807) 0
Operating expenses 21,796,000 5,531,000 27,327,000
Contingencies 400,000 100,000 500,000
Agriculture promotion 210,000 0 210,000
Total from mill and elevator fund $52,123,557 $11,893,014 $64,016,571"

Page 2, remove line 31

Page 3, replace lines 1 through 5 with:

"Salaries and wages $7,434,877 $343,660 $7,778,537
Accrued leave payments 147,806 (147,806) 0
Operating expenses 3,791,758 (47,483) 3,744,275
Grants 29,533,050 (3,602,270) 25,930,780
Housing finance agency contingencies 100,000 0 100,000
Total special funds $41,007,491 ($3,453,899) $37,553,592"

Page 3, replace lines 11 through 13 with:
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"Grand total general fund $21,333,325 $10,255,473 $31,588,798
Grand total special funds 187,254,987 (9,259,586) 177,995,401
Grand total all funds $208,588,312 $995,887  $209,584,199"
Page 3, replace line 20 with:

"Possible litigation 1,000,000 0"
Page 3, replace line 24 with:

"Lignite research council grants 0 5,000,000
All-terrain vehicles 0 41,500"
Page 4, replace lines 1 through 3 with:

"Total all funds $68,060,800 $5,620,643
Total special fund 51,500,000 0
Total general fund $16,560,800 $5,620,643"

Page 6, line 1, replace "50" with "seventy-five"

Page 6, line 2, remove "or the"

Page 6, line 3, remove "sum of $6,817,200, whichever is less,"
Page 6, remove lines 22 through 31

Page 7, remove lines 1 through 24

Page 9, replace lines 19 through 25 with:

"SECTION 15. AMENDMENT. Section 54-17.5-02 of the North Dakota
Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

54-17.5-02. Lignite research council - Compensation - Appointment of

members.

The industrial commission shall consult with the lignite research council

established by executive order in matters of policy affecting the administration of the

lignite research fund. Section 44-03-04 does not apply to members of the council
appointed by the governor."

Page 11, after line 9, insert:

"SECTION 18. LEGISLATIVE INTENT - CONTINGENT FUNDING
PRIORITY LIST. It is the intent of the sixty-fourth legislative assembly that a list of
funding priorities be developed for contingent funding if the actual general fund

revenues exceed the legislative forecast during the 2015-17 biennium. The priorities

may include a core library project, additional full-time equivalent positions for the
industrial commission, transfers to the housing incentive fund, and grants for the
lignite research council."

Renumber accordingly

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT:

House Bill No. 1014 - Summary of House Action
Base ~ House House
Budget Changes Version
Total all funds $62,307,117 ($13,718,912) $48,588,205

Industrial Commission

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 2
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Less estimated income 40,973,792 23,974,385) 16,999,407

General fund $21,333,325 $10,255,473 $31,588,798
Bank of North Dakota

Total all funds $53,150,147 $6,275,684 $59,425,831

Less estimated income 53,150,147 6,275,684 59,425,831

General fund $0 $0 $0
Housing Finance Agency

Total all funds $41,007,491 ($3,453,899) $37,563,592

Less estimated income 41,007,491 (3,453,899) 37,553,692

General fund $0 $0 $0
Mill and Elevator

Total all funds $52,123,557 $11,893,014 $64,016,571

Less estimated income 52,123,557 11,893,014 64,016,571

General fund $0 $0 $0
Bill total

Total all funds $208,588,312 $995,887 $209,584,199

Less estimated income 187,254,987 (9,259,586) 177,995,401

General fund $21,333,325 $10,255,473 $31,588,798

House Bill No. 1014 - Industrial Commission - House Action

Base House House
Budget Changes Version
Salaries and wages $17,873,876 $4,345,078 $22,218,954
Operating expenses 4,775,576 1,552,846 6,328,422
Grants 19,500,000 (14,500,000) 5,000,000
Grants - bond payments 19,809,969 (4,769,140) 15,040,829
Accrued leave payments 347,696 (347,696)
Total all funds $62,307,117 ($13,718,912) $48,588,205
Less estimated income 40,973,792 (23,974,385) 16,999,407
General fund $21,333,325 $10,255,473 $31,588,798
FTE 98.75 16.00 11475

Department No. 405 - Industrial Commission - Detail of House Changes

Adds Funding Adds Funding Decreases
Adds Funding for Salary and for Other Adds Funding Funding for Adds Funding
for Base Payroll Benefit 2013-15 Salary for FTE Bond for Operating
Changes' Increases’ Adjustments® positions* Payments® Expenses®
Salaries and wages $633,625 $1,301,128 $7,056 $2,498,269 $5,000
Operating expenses 627,432 304,771
Grants
Grants - bond payments (4,769,140)
Accrued leave payments (347,696)
Total all funds $185,929 $1,301,128 $7,056 $3,125,701 ($4,769,140) $309,771
Less estimated income 141,853 76,256 (150,000) 150,000 (4,769,140) 76,646
General fund $44,076 $1,224,872 $157,056 $2,975,701 $0 $233,125
FTE 0.00 0.00 0.00 16.00 0.00 0.00
Adjusts -
Funding for Adds One-Time Total House
Lignite Grants’ Funding® Changes
Salaries and wages $4,345,078
Operating expenses 620,643 1,562,846
Grants (14,500,000) (14,500,000)
Grants - bond payments (4,769,140)
Accrued leave payments (347,696)
Total all funds ($14,500,000) $620,643 ($13,718,912)
Less estimated income (19,500,000) 0 (23,974,385)
General fund $5,000,000 $620,643 $10,255,473
FTE 0.00 0.00 16.00

' Funding is added for cost-to-continue 2013-15 biennium salaries and benefit increases and
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for other base payroll changes.

2 The following funding is added for 2015-17 biennium performance salary adjustments of 2
to 4 percent per year and increases in monthly health insurance premiums:

General Fund Other Funds Total
Salary increase - Performance $765,984 $47,233 $813,217
Health insurance increase 458,888 29,023 487,911
Total $1,224,872 $76,256 $1,301,128

3 Funding is added for other 2013-15 salary adjustments.

“ The following funding and FTE positions are added:
FTE

Positions General Fund Other Funds Total
Engineering technicians 7.00 $1,513,195 $0 $1,513,195
Pipeline engineering technician 1.00 162,018 0 162,018
Safety officer 1.00 187,717 0 187,717
Human resources specialist 1.00 139,380 0 139,380
Budget specialist 1.00 174,519 0 174,519
Reclamation specialist 1.00 230,911 0 230,911
Surface geologist 1.00 244,192 0 244,192
Survey engineering technicians 2.00 323,769 0 323,769
Industrial water sales position 1.00 0 150,000 150,000
Total 16.00 $2,975,701 $150,000 $3,125,701

® Decreases funding for bond payments by $4,769,140, from $19,809,969 to $15,040,829.
& Adds funding for increase operating costs primarily related to increased travel expenses.

 Appropriation authority of $19.5 million from special funds for lignite grants is removed.
The grants will be distributed pursuant to a continuing appropriation from the lignite research
fund. One-time funding of $5 million from the general fund is added for lignite research
council grants for commercializing the capture, utilization, and storage of carbon dioxide and
for next generation electric generation technology, including the Allam Cycle.

8 One-time funding is added for the following:
General Fund

Aerial photography $104,143
Core analyses 125,000
Seismic profile digital conversion 100,000
Information technology costs 250,000
ATVs and trailers 41,500
Total $620,643

This amendment removes a section to allow the Office of Management and Budget to
increase the appropriation authority of state agencies that receive grant awards from the
North Dakota outdoor heritage fund.

This amendment removes a section related to contingency funding for FTE positions
available when the total number of oil wells capable of production exceeds 20,000.

This amendment also includes:

« Legislative intent for bond payments;

«  Appropriation authority, subject to emergency commission approval, for bond
issuances;

«  Transfer authority of $930,000 for administrative services;

« Designation of $4.5 million from the lignite research fund for lignite marketing
studies, the Lignite Vision 21 program, or possible lignite-related litigation.

«  Statutory changes relating to Lignite Research Council membership.

* Legislative intent for a contingent funding priority list.
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House Bill No. 1014 - Bank of North Dakota - House Action

Base | House | House
Budget Changes Version
Capital assets $745,000 $745,000
Bank of North Dakota 51,623,916 7,156,915 58,680,831
operations
Accrued leave payments 881,231 (881,231)
Total all funds $53,150,147 $6,275,684 $59,425,831
Less estimated income 53,150,147 6,275,684 59,425,831
General fund $0 $0 $0
FTE 179.50 2.00 181.50

Department No. 471 - Bank of North Dakota - Detail of House Changes

Adds Funding
Adds Funding  Adds Funding for FTE
Adds Funding for Salary and for FTE Credit Information Adds Funding
for Base Payroll Benefit Analyst Security for Operating Total House
Changes' Increases’ Position® Position* Expenses® Changes

Capital assets

Bank of North Dakota operations 858,035 1,943,112 177,836 209,809 3,968,123 7,156,915
Accrued leave payments (881,231) (881,231)
Total all funds ($23,196) $1,943,112 $177,836 $209,809 $3,968,123 $6,275,684
Less estimated income (23,196) 1,943,112 177,836 209,809 3,968,123 6,275,684
General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
FTE 0.00 0.00 1.00 1.00 0.00 2.00

" Funding is added for cost-to-continue 2013-15 biennium salaries and benefit increases and
for other base payroll changes.

2 The following funding is added for 2015-17 biennium performance salary adjustments of 2
to 4 percent per year and increases in monthly health insurance premiums:

General Fund Other Funds Total
Salary increase - Performance $0 $1,148,633 $1,148,633
Health insurance increase 0 794,479 794,479
Total $0 $1,943,112 $1,943,112

3 Adds funding of $177,479 from special funds for 1.00 FTE credit analyst position.
4 Adds funding of $209,809 from special funds for 1.00 FTE information security position.

® Adds funding for operating expenses including $2.5 million for information technology costs
and $800,000 for audit fees.

This amendment removes two sections related to a $10 million transfer from the strategic
investment and improvements fund to a new short line railroad revolving loan fund to be
administered by the Bank of North Dakota.

This amendment also includes a section to continue the Flex PACE program for affordable
housing until the end of the 2017-19 biennium and includes four sections to provide transfers
from the Bank of North Dakota profits as follows:

«  $28 million to PACE;

«  $3 million to Ag PACE;

*  $2 million to biofuels PACE; and

*  $7 million to the beginning farmer revolving loan program.
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House Bill No. 1014 - Housing Finance Agency - House Action

Base  House House
Budget Changes Version
Salaries and wages $7,434,877 $343,660 $7,778,537
Operating expenses 3,791,758 (47,483) 3,744,275
Grants 29,533,050 (3,602,270) 25,930,780
HFA contingencies 100,000 100,000
Accrued leave payments 147,806 (147,806)
Total all funds $41,007,491 ($3,453,899) $37,553,592
Less estimated income 41,007,491 (3,453,899) 37,553,592
General fund $0 $0 $0
FTE 46.00 0.00 46.00

Department No. 473 - Housing Finance Agency - Detail of House Changes

Decreases
Funding for Decreases
Adds Funding Housing and Funding for
Adjusts Funding  for Salary and Urban Housing Decreases
for Base Payroll Benefit Development Development Funding for Total House
Changes' Increases’ Grants® Programs* Operations® Changes
Salaries and wages ($125,696) $469,356 $343,660
Operating expenses 100,000 (147,483) (47,483)
Grants (2,214,445) (1,387,825) (3,602,270)
HFA contingencies
Accrued leave payments (147,806) (147,806)
Total all funds ($273,502) $469,356 ($2,214,445) ($1,287,825) ($147,483) ($3,453,899)
Less estimated income (273,502) 469,356 (2,214,445) (1,287,825) (147,483) (3,453,899)
General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
FTE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

' Funding is adjusted for cost-to-continue 2013-15 biennium salaries and benefit increases
and for other base payroll changes.

2 The following funding is added for 2015-17 biennium performance salary adjustments of 2
to 4 percent per year and increases in monthly health insurance premiums:

General Fund Other Funds Total
Salary increase - Performance $0 $277,212 $277,212
Health insurance increase 0 192,144 192,144
Total $0 $469,356 $469,356

% Federal funding for housing and urban development grants is reduced by $2,214,445.
4 Funding from special funds for housing development programs is reduced by $1,287,825.

° Funding for operating expenses is reduced by $147,483.

This amendment also includes three sections to continue the housing incentive fund in the
2015-17 biennium and allow up to $30 million of income tax credits for contributions to the
fund.

House Bill No. 1014 - Mill and Elevator - House Action

Base House House

Budget Changes Version
Salaries and wages $29,141,750 $6,837,821 $35,979,571
Operating expenses 21,796,000 5,531,000 27,327,000
Contingencies 400,000 100,000 500,000
Agriculture promotion 210,000 210,000
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_ 575,807 G7s80n) |
$52,123,557 |  $11,893,014 $64,016,571
52,123,557 | 11,893,014 64,016,571
$0 $0 $0
135.00 12.00 147.00

Department No. 475 - Mill and Elevator - Detail of House Changes

Adds Funding
Adds Funding for Health Adds Funding Adds Funding Adds Funding
for Base Payroll Insurance for FTE for Operating for Total House
Changes' Increases’ Positions® Expenses* Contingencies® Changes

Salaries and wages $4,559,196 $634,719 $1,643,906 $6,837,821
Operating expenses 5,531,000 5,531,000
Contingencies 100,000 100,000
Agriculture promotion

Accrued leave payments (575,807) (575,807)
Total all funds $3,983,389 $634,719 $1,643,906 $5,531,000 $100,000 $11,893,014
Less estimated income 3,983,389 634,719 1,643,906 5,531,000 100,000 11,893,014
General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
FTE 0.00 0.00 12.00 0.00 0.00 12.00

" Funding is added for cost-to-continue 2013-15 biennium salaries and benefit increases and
for other base payroll changes, including 2015-17 biennium performance salary adjustments
of 2 to 4 percent per year for certain employees.

2 Funding is added for 2015-17 biennium increases in monthly health insurance premiums.

® The following funding is added for FTE positions:
FTE

Positions General Fund Other Funds Total
Mill operator positions 3.00 $0 $426,278 $426,278
Rail car loader positions 3.00 0 390,138 390,138
Flour packer positions 2.00 0 251,313 251,313
Utility worker positions 2.00 0 249,916 249,916
Electrician position 1.00 0 176,636 176,636
Maintenance worker position 1.00 0 149,625 149,625
Total 12.00 $0 $1,643,906 $1,643,906

4 Funding is added for increased operating costs primarily related to the operation of the new
K mill.

® Increases funding for contingencies by $100,000, from $400,000 to $500,000.

This amendment also includes a section to provide for a transfer of 75 percent of the Mill and
Elevator's annual profits to the general fund.
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Explanation or reason for introduction of biIIIresquti&/n:

A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the state
industrial commission.

Minutes: Attachment# A, 1 & 2

Legislative Council - Adam Mathiak
OMB - Becky Keller

Chairman Holmberg called the committee to order on HB 1014. Roll Call was taken. All
committee members were present. Subcommittee: Senator Carlisle, Senator Holmberg,
Senator Heckaman.

Karlene Fine, Executive Director and Secretary, State Industrial Commission:
Testified in favor of HB 1014.

Industrial Commission hearing schedule and Commission members - Attachment A.
Speaking from the Administration tab in the Industrial Commission booklet - Attachment 1.

Karlene had finished saying that $65M was available for debt service. The statute says the
amount of debt service that we can pay for building authority projects is ten percent of one
cent of the sales tax.

(6:06) Senator Robinson: That's the amount available for a payment toward debt service?

Karlene Fine: The range is between $350M-400M of projects that could be funded with
that level of debt service.

Chairman Holmberg: A couple session ago, there was discussion that we were flush with
cash and let's buy off all the outstanding bonds. It would cost us more with various penalty
fees to buy off the bonds than it was to just continue to pay them on their schedules.

Karlene Fine: The state has a AAA rating from Standards & Poor's (S&P) which is the
highest rating we can get. Moody's is one notch down, a AA1. When the building authority
trades, we are always one step down.



Senate Appropriations Committee
HB 1014
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Page 2

(9:27) Senator Mathern: Thank you for the list of outstanding bonds that we have and
where they are used. When you noted the bonding ability of the state being $350M-440M,
is that new authority available or does that include some of these projects that are already
outstanding?

Karlene Fine: This is for new projects under the building authority. When | talk about that
range, that's only for the appropriation debt that's under the building authority. Dept. of
Transportation is a different cap. You could also do funding for some water or flood control
projects. That's outside of that cap that we're talking about. The range of $350M-400M
relates only to the building authority.

(12:18) Chairman Holmberg: A question about section 18 of bill - it looks like something
should be done, somebody should do it, but not us. It says "It is the intent that a list of
funding priorities be developed for contingent funding" - no author identified.

Karlene Fine: The members of the House felt that they weren't ready to leap into at that
time and so they wanted to make sure that it would stay alive for discussion at a
conference committee level. Adam Mathiak did a good job of drafting that paragraph for
them.

14:50 Lynn Helms, Director of Department of Mineral Resources: Speaking from the
Dept. of Mineral Resources Tab in the Industrial Commission booklet - Attachment 2.

(31:09) Chairman Holmberg: Are these the asks on this page the requests over and
above what we got from the House - or are the House changes included in the "ask" on
page 107

Lynn Helms: These are the "asks" from the executive budget request. The House
approved a part of these. | have a page that lays that all out in three very nice tables.

(31:44) Senator O'Connell asked him to explain the red and green coloring on the map.

Lynn Helms: The green towers are the drilling rigs and you can see that drilling has
concentrated itself into the hottest Bakken area, but there is still some activity in the
outlying areas. The red outlines are oil and gas fields - or field boundaries. 100% of
Divide, Williams, and McKenzie now lies under an oil field. There is not a single section of
land that doesn't have an oil field on top of it. You get a sense of the footprint of the
industry in western ND.

Senator O'Connell: What is the spacing on the lots?

Lynn Helms: The typical spacing is 1280 acres - 2 sections. That does not apply up in
Bottineau County where the typical spacing is 320 acres, so it's about a fourth. On the
Bakken, | just signed some orders last week for approving drilling up to 28 wells for 1280 in
McKenzie County. The typical spacing for even the outlying edges of the Bakken is
planned to be 4 wells for 1280 at the very outside edges; they're planning 6 in the Bakken
and 7 in the underlying Three Forks, so 13. It varies as you move across it. In the
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Spearfish up in Bottineau County, the current spacing is 3 wells for 320 with a plan to go 12
wells for 320.

Senator Robinson: On the map, the green towers are active wells right now that are still
producing today?

Lynn Helms: Those are active drilling rigs.

Senator Robinson: | heard there are 800 and some wells that are waiting to be fracked. If
we had an overlay on this map of those 850 wells, would the majority still be where the
drilling rigs are today?

Lynn Helms: Yes, they would. We reached 825 wells that have been drilled and not
fractured. They would lie, almost all of them, within that same cluster where you see the
drilling rigs.

Senator O'Connell: Is it one year that they can sit there before they go bad?

Lynn Helms: The industry is playing the oil price game with these unfracked wells. The
cost to drill a well to total depth and prepare it for fracking is about $4M. The cost to
actually perform the hydraulic fracturing and put the well in production adds about another
$5-6M. For half of the completed well cost, they can hold the leases for a year, and our
statute 38-08-04 1L allows a well to remain in that condition for 12 months. It has to
produce in paying quantities within twelve months. We're considering the day on which
they reach total depth and run the liner in the well to be the day the clock starts ticking.
There are 125 wells in that 825 well inventory who's clock runs out in June. They're going
to have to begin, in June, to chip away at that inventory and eliminate it over time. Now
they can drill new wells and add them to the inventory as time goes on. Twenty percent of
the oil the well will ever produce comes out in that first year so they want to try to hit the
best price that they can, but they do have to maintain cash flow and there is a rule in place
that only allows that well to set there for a year.

Senator Heckaman: |s there a minimum out of those 125 wells that they must pump - or is
there nothing said in statute about that?

Lynn Helms: All 125 have to be on production by June 30. There didn't used to be a
minimum production rate, but there was a court case that said producing and paying
quantities means producing enough oil to pay the operating expenses of the well. There is
a soft minimum and we have to estimate that for each individual well, but it has to produce
enough oil to pay its operating costs and pay the royalty owners. That will be quite a
challenge to manage that inventory and make sure the companies are moving on those
wells and completing them.

(40:00) Senator Mathern: The temporary employees that will come on during high peak
permit demands - what is their skill level and how do we keep them around North Dakota.

Lynn Helms: Our first choice for these temporary employees - At the core library, we used
a large number of temporary employees and we use students there- UND students, so if
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we expand or contract, it doesn't have a big impact on someone's life although it is a very
good recruiting tool to get people interested in petroleum geology and doing petroleum
jobs. Typically, young folks that are studying for a master's degree are the primary target
there because their hours are more flexible. In the permitting group, we have been using
interns who are in the power technology program here at Bismarck State College. They
place a large number of their students that are interested in the petroleum industry or
petroleum technology. We tend to hire mostly students and that's beneficial to their
program. In the support staff group, that's different. These are folks with a high school
education or associates degree. They're answering phones, doing filing, making sure
paperwork gets in the right spots, but most of the temps we hire are student interns.

(46:16) Senator Carlisle: do you have anyone retiring on April 29 - the conversion out of
Blue Cross?

Lynn Helms: | have not heard of any. But this will give me an opportunity to talk about
salary equity. In December, we bring our entire staff together for a couple days of training
and give our service awards. | asked for the 3 year service award people to come up and |
had almost 20 people. Then the 5 year and | had a dozen. Then | had no one at 10 years;
no one at 15 years; no one 20 years; two people came up at 25 years; two people at 30
years and one at 35 years. | have a group of people who are very nervous about that April
29" day - all of those very experienced people and then a ton of young people coming in to
the agency. It will be awesome for the agency overtime, but we need to make sure that we
retain the institutional knowledge of those 25-35 year folks for another 3-5 years. | have
not had anyone act on that at this point.

(562:26) Senator Bowman: Dealing with the pipeline inspections, have they compiled any
information as to what actually is the cause of that. Is the pipeline itself not strong enough?
Is it the pressures that are forcing this product through the lines too high? Have you got
any information that you can start to see a trend for?

Lynn Helms: We have some data, but since it's a brand new program, we don't have a lot.
We collect failure information on all of the spills in ND. | was surprised when | looked at the
2014 data to find that spill containment actually went down in 2014. We had a long record
of contained spills going up and we dropped from 85% to 76%. We're going to re-look at
our diking rules. Something needs to change in how these locations are built and bermed
so that we can contain spills better. In the pipeline area, we haven't been able to find a
consistent pattern. We had one pipeline that was four years old that failed; another that
was 6 months. We aren't sure if it's the materials or the installation or the temperatures of
Bakken wells during flow back are so high that some of these new materials that are
corrosion resistant may not be able to handle the temperatures. One of our suspicions is
that when these well come back, especially if you look where the cloud of drilling rigs are,
the bottom hole temperatures in the Bakken are almost 300 degrees Fahrenheit. Those
frac fluids are coming back at 250-275 degrees. People may be putting stuff through the
pipe that it wasn't designed to handle. The way SB 2374 and HB 1358 are set up, we'll
know what those temperature limits are in advance.

Senator Heckaman: Did you say that you had an inspector inspecting the inspectors?
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Lynn Helms: Yes, when we took a look at what kind of a program was manageable for the
state, there are literally hundreds of pipeline inspectors working in private industry right now
watching contractors put pipelines in for companies. They hire a pipeline installation
contractor and then hire an independent inspector to watch them do their work. Obviously,
something is broken there and not working quite right. Our intention is to go, unannounced,
show up on the jobsite with one of our trained pipeline inspectors and spend a day with that
private contract inspector and make sure that he's doing his job.

Senator Heckaman: Do you license the inspectors that you're inspecting? Do you license
the original inspector that the company hires too?

Lynn Helms: That's what we intend to do. We did that with our meter testers. We have a
list of all the approved licensed meter testers and we intend to do the same thing with the
pipeline inspectors that are working in private industry.

Senator O'Connell: Is there anything to the rumor that the outfit out of Texas has come up
with a way of neutralizing the salt in the salt water spills?

Lynn Helms: Yes, I've heard a couple very promising presentations lately on their ability to
remove salt from salt contaminated soil. One group is using chemistry and the other is
using bacteria. One of the things in HB 1358 is a program through EERC to test those
folks. We need to test what they're suggesting before we turn it loose in the field.

(1:01:24) Senator Krebsbach: I'm noticing that in the center of page 20, there is 2 ATVs
with trailer - onetime funding and from page 19, it was eliminated?

Lynn Helms: Those were incorrectly listed as included in the executive budget request
and that's why they were taken off of page 19 in the center, but you'll see them down there
as item #5 in the prioritized listing of requests not in the executive budget on page 19.
When we talked to the House, we explained that the pipeline folks will not let us on their
right-of-way in our pick-up trucks. We have to have ATVs to drive their pipeline right-of-
ways. The House did put those in.

(1:02:55) Ed C. Murphy, Assistant Director Geological Survey, State Geologist:
Testified in favor of HB 1014. Continuing on with pages 21 -

(1:08:03) Senator Bowman: With all these core samples, do they ever get outdated where
you don't need them anymore? Or do we keep building more buildings and putting more
core samples in there? How much can you take out of a core that eventually you don't that
information anymore? With our technology, some of these real old formations, you know
everything about it. Do you still need to keep the core?

Ed Murphy: With new technologies, that opens up rounds of possibilities for old core, and
we need those cores to do those tests, so as new technologies become available,
formations that we either thought were played out or have been overlooked in the past, that
opens that area up. We've got some cores that have never been looked at in 60 years.
That's unusual. We also have some cores that probably sat for 40 years and all of a
sudden they are being looked at. If you threw all the core out, and then went back and
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tried to replicate that 75 miles of core - 400,000 feet of core that we have in the core library,
that would be billions of dollars to generate. That's very valuable and you don't ever want
to throw that out.

Chairman Holmberg: You mentioned Whiting Petroleum in the data you had here and the
mention was made about Harold Hamm. They have Recart PS - they're a British company
that opened their North American office in the REAC building at UND. They said they
came to ND for two reasons. One was the Bakken Conference which they attended and
two was the core library. They said it was very unusual in the world. You have countries
that you have to pay through the nose to have access to those cores. They're kind of state
secrets, as where here, it's available for the companies to come in and utilize whatever
techniques they have to try to see if this core is good, bad or ugly.

Ed Murphy: There are a series of tests that you do on core that is destructive and it
destroys the core. The more destructive tests that are done, the more you need some of
that other core. Four years or two sessions ago, Representative Brandenburg asked why
we couldn't just take really nice photographs which we are doing, or scanning them. A year
and a half later, he toured the core library and said that now he gets it.

(1:12:44) Senator Carlisle asked how they were going to handle the demolition. What are
you going to destroy and are you going to rebuild the expansion, if it happens, on that site?

Ed Murphy: We're just going to be adding on to the warehouse which means we have to
take out the west wall. That is not that big of a project, but we've got an undersized lab that
is only 900 square feet. We're proposing to expand to three labs and also adding a second
floor. The existing laboratory office space will not support a 2" floor, so we have to
demolish the existing lab and office which is an area of about 2,000 sq. feet and will be
expanding that to about 12,000 square feet.

(1:16:51) Senator O'Connell: What are the federal funds used for?

Lynn Helms: The first item you see there is the underground injection control. North
Dakota has had primacy over that program since 1983. The EPA promised us at the
initiation of the program that they would pay 75% of the cost of the program. The best
they've ever done is 25%. We do like to get that $210,000 from them. It keeps them
engaged. They come once a year and audit our program. The Office of Surface Mining in
the Department of interior provides some small amount of funding to our coal exploration
program and then our surface mapping gets a little bit of money from the US Geological
Survey. The USDS used to fund something called State Map where our surface geologist
would map geo-hazards and the surface geology around growing areas, and we're going to
do that without them. We just basically can't compete and can't get federal dollars in that
area at this point.

That's the four areas where we get federal money.

Chairman Holmberg closed the hearing on HB 1014.
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Industrial Commission hearing continued with the Bank of North Dakota.

Eric Hardmeyer, President, CEO, Bank of North Dakota:

Testified in favor of HB 1014, Attachment #3, and provided overview of the Bank's
operations, financial highlights, anticipated funding, loan portfolio, performance rating, and
student loans 3.1 - 3.4. HB 1014, Section 1, Operations (3.5 - 3.7) (recording 6:46-9:15)
Page 3.7 Capital Assets; proposed amendment (page 3.13 which includes $17M to build
the financial center (9:17- 13:23)

Chairman Holmberg this committee heard the testimony on that appropriation. The
discussion point was the removal of all building projects in the first half of the session. It will
be a hot topic of discussion on the subcommittee level because it's not general fund
money. There were other projects that were put on hold.

Senator Carlisle: For the record, market rates for rent and payment in lieu of taxes, are
two things that come up in sub-committee we did it with worker's comp. building years ago.

Senator Tom Campbell, District 19: Legislative intent was for a one stop shop financial
center. Want to reiterate it is not coming out of the general fund; it is an investment that will
make money to provide lower rents and additional building sites. (13:34- 14:14:28)

Senator Lonnie Laffen, District 43: this will be a sister building to the one we have.
Handed out drawing of the existing site plan as it was built, the proposed site plan, budget
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summary, Testimony - Attachment 4 Right now 50% of our capital space is all rented
(14:40- 17:25)

Senator Carlisle: Bismarck has ordinance - are landscaping costs included in there?

Senator Laffen: Yes.

Eric Hardmeyer: Page 3.8 discusses additional things that impacted bank. | have an
idea about HB 1443, how do we prioritize? We thought we could pull the medical piece out
of this bill. We would need to change other things if this committee wants to go forward with
this concept, creation of MED PACE, using residual money from PACE Program. We
anticipate spending $30M-$33M of the $38M that was authorized for this session. (18:17-
23:37)

Chairman Holmberg: HB 1443 we are not discussing, it is on low speed.

Chairman Holmberg we will have same subcommittee for HB 1443: Senator Carlisle
Chairman Holmberg Senator Heckaman




2015 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES

Appropriations Committee
Harvest Room, State Capitol

HB 1014
Housing Finance Agency
North Dakota State Mill
Public Finance Authority
3/16/2015
Job # 24878

] Subcommittee
[J Conference Committee

Committee Clerk Signature W /L/%ﬂ é H Q |
Explanation or reason for introducti%f billlresol@m: /

A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the state
industrial commission.

Minutes: Attachment #5 - #9

Legislative Council - Adam Mathiak
OMB - Becky Keller

Chairman Holmberg called the committee to order on HB 1014.

Chairman Holmberg questioned Ron Ness on Mineral Resources on new flaring
regulations.

Ron Ness, ND Petroleum Council testified in favor of HB 1014. He said that the industry
has met the targets in the new flaring regulations and they have spent over $13B.

He said the commission recognizes that winter happens, and plants go up and plants go
down and there has to be flexibility. HE said they have gone from 36% to 22% and there
are three easement situations: (1) tribal land, (2) federal lands, (3) private lands. Altogether,
those encompass more than 10% of the total flaring. He said that he thought they had done
well on flaring and the gas capture plan required by the commission was very effective.

Senator Mathern (4:32) made comments about supporting the budget and asked if there is
anything new going on in the industry in terms of the core library and information.

Ron Ness: At the request of the geological survey, we purchased a high resolution
camera and the staff at the geological survey went in and photographed and they are
available on the website. As a geologist anywhere in the world, you can look at that. Some
will want to look at the rock and hold the rock because the rocks all change. The core
library is digital but there is no replacement for seeing the actual rock. The oil and gas
division is misunderstood; they are so far advanced in the terms of technology. In MT, you
can't find well files. When wells come off confidential status in ND, the companies have
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data mining people. In MT, that information is not available. This agency is so far advanced
across the country that they set the trend and you need to allow some flexibility with salary
equity because if you don't have experts regulating industry, you don't get the type of
regulation you want

Jolene Kline, Executive Director, North Dakota Housing Finance Agency (HFA):
(7:45)

Testified in favor of HB 1014.

Testimony in HFA tab in the Industrial Commission booklet - Attachment 5.

10:25 Chairman Holmberg: Who is the legislator with the amendment?
Senator Krebsbach provided the amendment. - Attachment 6
14:30 Senator Carlisle: When you said Fargo, is there a complex in Fargo?

Jolene Kline: The big concern in Fargo is dealing with the Fargo Highrise that houses 249
very vulnerable individuals. With the $50M housing fund, we are not going to be able to
solve that. Their need is $20M because that is as big as the gap is. The cost of renovating
or selling off that building and getting the same number of new units is closer to $40M. We
can help with tax exempt bonds and for percent credits through the federal government, but
the gap is over $20M. If would be difficult with the $50M to solve that issue but we can put
some money into replacing some of those units.

Senator Carlisle: That was my question, Fargo will apply for the credits and the cash; but
you're saying to do it right there's a $20M gap, but that's not in any budget, correct?

Jolene Kline: Correct. There is nothing that would give a $20M allocation to the Fargo
Highrise

Chairman Holmberg: Do we have a history of designating money to specific projects
through your agency?

Jolene Kline: We have not earmarked any funds for any particular project using the HIF
(Housing Incentive Fund). Under our federal loan, we have a set aside that provides
funding for Native American housing, but the HIF program is application driven without any
particular earmarks for any areas other than initially when the Governor had asked that
90% of that fund go out to oil impacted areas.

18:17 Senator Heckaman: In the bill itself on section 13 on page 7, it says "agency may
collect a reasonable administrative fee from the fund, project developers, applicants, or
grant recipients." Can you explain a little about that and tell us what fees you have
collected?

Jolene Kline: This language was changed in the 2013 program. The initial 2011 program
allowed us to collect a reasonable fee from the fund.
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Senator Heckaman: Do you use the same percentage out of those four groups that are
delineated there too?

Jolene Kline: Out of the first fund, we collected 5.26% of the fund, so $789,921 was taken
out of that $15M fund. In the 2013 session, we asked for a change that would allow that
fund to be charged to the applicant, or pull it out of a fund. In conversations with our
stakeholders, they asked that it be a developer fee as opposed to pulling it out of the fund,
and the reason why they wanted it in there is because sometimes they'll couple this
program with federal programs and federal programs work off of total project costs, so an
administrative fee gets rolled into the cost of the project so they can access some
additional dollars to help pay for that. We did a careful analysis of what costs associated
with the program are; in the 2013 program, we decreased that from 5.26% to 5%. Our
administrative costs broken out are slightly over 5% so we are losing some money on this
but we are paying that with other revenue from the agency so the 5% is fully supportable
with what costs are. Those costs are everything from occupancy, rent, travel, telephone,
professional fees, title and recording fees with mortgage. All ongoing expenses of training
property management staff, there is considerable amount of work that goes into this. Once
the project is in service, it shifts from oversight of construction to a monitoring and we
monitor that for a minimum of fifteen years. These are structured as loans, there is zero
percent interest and they are forgivable after 15 years if that project is operated in
accordance with the terms of that loan so we collect nothing.

Senator Heckaman: | am unsure about "applicant." So if | apply for a grant and I'm a big
town in ND and | get a grant to build something and my grant is $15M, that money is taken
off the top of my grant then or is the money taken off before | get my grant?

Jolene Kline: The maximum is $3M and we'd give you 95% of $3M and that is paid in two
different stages. If they aren't able to make that, we'll waive it and pull it out of the draw.

Vance Taylor, President and General Manager of ND Mill and Elevator:
Testified in favor of HB 1014.
Testimony in State Mill tab in the Industrial Commission booklet - Attachment 7

32:19 Senator Carlisle: With Cuba, if congress does things, you work through our trade
office and then is it possible you get the authorization in the next biennium?

Vance Taylor: It is, we have worked to grow our export shipments. Right now, we ship
quite a bit of product to the Caribbean Islands and Cuba could be a fit for us going forward
and | plan to make a trip down there to investigate that situation.

35:31 Senator Carlisle: Do you have employees with criteria to convert by the April 30
retirement?

Vance Taylor: We have been lucky at the Mill to retain virtually the same executive
management team for the fifteen years with only one change, but we're all older so there
will be key changes in the next 5-10 years.
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Senator Heckaman: On your budget requests, one of the line items says that there's a
reduction in office workers salaries, but not in management or the mill itself?

Vance Taylor: We originally had 5% in our office salaries which includes all of our non-unit
employees and that was changed to 3% in House version. The union wages are set by
contract and are at or close to 3%.

45:11 Senator G. Lee: You referenced the competitors that you have, do you still have any
instate competitors?

Vance Taylor: There are about 4 mills that could compete with us: Fairmont, Minot, Dakota
Growers, the Cando durum mill.

Senator Mathern: I'm impressed with steady upgrade of the facility--are there new issues
with employees and overtime? | got call from someone earlier in the session concerned
about being required to work overtime and we've sort of created a lifestyle around overtime.

Vance Taylor explained that there has not been much controversy and explained issues
with union and stated that they prefer 3 shift overtime. He said that a man would rather
have the overtime and the additional income and there are no savings to the mill to go to a
4 shift operation and we will continue to look at that going forward.

Senator Robinson said he noticed that the market is largely in the Ohio Valley, and asked
why they were not doing more in the western states.

Vance Taylor stated that the reason what because of how the freight and transportation
works in the US. He said that flour mills compete for the eastern business because it is
difficult to ship to the west and over the Rockies.

Senator Wanzek: You're adding an 8" mill which would increase milling by 30% and then
you say the project will allow us to service additional demand from current and new
customers. I'm assuming that demand is good?

Vance Taylor: Demand is extremely good, we're already selling flour into 2016.

DeAnn Ament, Executive Director, Public Finance Authority (PFA):
Testified in favor of HB 1014.

Testimony in PFA tab in the Industrial Commission booklet - Attachment 8
2014 Annual Report - Attachment 9.

56:40 Senator Mathern: We have another bill before us regarding the possibility of starting
a state revolving loan fund for political subdivisions. Does your authority allow you to do
that? Is the infrastructure in place to operate a state revolving loan fund?

DeAnn Ament: Our agency worked with the governor's office on a bill similar to 1443 and
the intent pf both bills is to fill a gap. Our capital financing is our market rate program: fixed
terms, fixed rate. Our state revolving fund is a below market rate program, so we were
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looking to take the best of both. The state revolving fund can only be used for water and
sewer projects so we were looking for something to fill in that gap.

Senator Mathern: We funded that somewhere between $400M; you'd have the staff to
manage it?

DeAnn Ament: My understanding is that HB 1443 has approximately $115M in it for
revolving fund at this time. | believe with some assistance from other agencies, our staff
could handle administering another revolving fund.

Karlene Fine, Executive Director and Secretary: This takes care of all the budgets that
were in 1014, we'll talk a little about the $5M for the Lignite Research program but
everything else is a continuing appropriation and we've always promised with our
continuing appropriations to come in and give you an update on those this afternoon.

Senator Krebsbach: It's an amendment for Senator Streyle and was overlooked in House
so that is why I'm bringing it forward at this time for him and it's an extension of the
proceeds from the $1.5M disaster relief money in the last session to carry into the 15-17
biennium and was state that if it was not utilized by then it would return to general fund.

Adam Mathiak: | think there's been some reference to the money going back to the
general fund, but it was appropriated to the state disaster relief fund. So it would return to
that fund so there would be no impact to the general fund so by providing this exemption
you wouldn't effect on the general fund.

Chairman Holmberg closed the hearing on HB 1014.



2015 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES

Appropriations Committee
Harvest Room, State Capitol

HB 1014
Lignite Research Program
Continuing Appropriations
3/16/2015
Job # 24908

] Subcommittee
] Conference Committee

i
Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

Committee Clerk Signature /\()cM Z\EM‘”X ) 4 pa%(f%m‘:?
/)

A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the state
industrial commission.

Minutes: Attachment #10 - #17

Legislative Council - Adam Mathiak
OMB - Becky Keller

Chairman Holmberg called the committee to order on HB 1014.

Karlene Fine, Executive Director and Secretary, Industrial Commission: we are
looking at the lignite research program, Line item on 1% page - base level of $19.5M and
adjustment of $14.5. Previously we had the funding in here but because they are a
continuing appropriation we had taken it out this session. They came to House and asked
for funding and came back into this line item. Section 12 page 6, section 15 that talks about
appointment.

Jason Bohrer, President, Lignite Energy Council: Testified in favor of HB 1014.
Provided program background (2:43 - 5:56) the first change we requested deals with
appointments to the Lignite Research Council. Right now it is constrained to membership of
strictly North Dakotans; we are asking for the ability to have the governor appoint non North
Dakotans. As we have expanded we have a broader mandate and we are executing it by
working with out of state people. This would help them increase their investment in the
state and in the lignite industry. (Attachment #10: 10.5)

The additional appropriation we requested to create the next generation energy future in
ND, we identified this promising technology with the research fund, we are looking for
additional appropriation to help bridge the gap to get it out of the lab and into the field
where we can demonstrate the next phase of success. This has the potential to transform
the energy and coal industry in the state. We are working with out of state technology
partners who own the intellectual property. We are $5M-$10M short and that is what we
are asking you for. We have flexibility in our current RND to bridge the gap, that is why the
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House appropriated an additional $5M. (7:47 - 11:12) Speaking from LRP tab in Industrial
Commission booklet - Attachment 10

Senator Mathern: Would the state of ND own and interest in the result of that research
with the appropriation of $5M or more? (11:16 - 11:26)

Jason Bohrer: Probably not. We've worked trying to get the universal rights but in order
to do that; we'd have to increase our investment by a factor of 10. They have put hundreds
of millions of dollars into this and with that level of commitment are maintaining their
interest in this project. We do hope to get some rights, but it wouldn’t be and ownership
right. The negotiations are still ongoing can give too many details (11:27 - 12:38)

Senator Bowman: We have a lot of lignite; this would be great for us. If you start project
today, how many dollars needed for research and then building a plant. How many years
would this take?

Jason Bohrer: Start to finish - about a 10 year time frame. Compared to new traditional
new generation sources, that is very quick. Part of reason for that optimism: there is not
a lot of brand new technology in this. We would be solving problems associated with
gasification of coal at super critical temperatures. We know how to do this. Power plants we
know how to do. The part that is unproven is the generation cycle itself which is being
tested now in Texas. By the time this gets to ND, most of the questions are going to be
answered and we will just have to prove the gasification side. The cost to get the project
out of the lab into the field is about $30M, beyond that it scales up dramatically and by the
time you are building a commercial plant it is in the $100Ms range. As this technology
proves itself, it will be easier to get that type of capital from the investing community and
our industry partners. (13:27 - 14:53)

Senator Bowman: will all the power plants we currently have need to be rebuilt or just
updated?

Jason Bohrer: This is not a retrofit technology. It would allow the creation of brand new
Greenfield power plants. Outside of this project we continue to identify retrofit technologies
that would exceed any current EPA regulations. That is a different track. This is for new
plants.

Wade Boeshans, President, General Manager, BNl Coal LTD and ALLETE Company,
Headquarters in Duluth, MN: Testified in favor of HB 1014. Testimony - Attachment 11
Read testimony and walked committee members thru the North Dakota Lignite Allam Cycle
Development Pathway, Exhibit 1, attachment 11.3 (17:19- 23:43)

Senator Mathern: | see the great potential, the considerable expense and the
partnerships it requires. How do you keep a partner in the federal government if we are
suing them? Wouldn't all the energy we are using in suing the government propel us further
to this common vision? It takes a lot of energy and resources to be in conflict.

Wade Boeshans: It's true that there is plenty of opposition for coal and challenges coming
from Washington. In order to make a vision a reality, they need a solution same way as we
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do. The country still needs affordable electricity. | feel we'll make a strong partner in
Washington DC. We have in ND significant assets we need to protect and to which North
Dakotans have made commitments to the tune of billions of dollars. This is a solution.
The cost of not protecting them is VERY high.

Senator Bowman: it looks like the combination of this technology, and the utilization of
CO2 for secondary recovery, multiply our opportunities for a long time energy development,
no matter how you look at it. We're waiting for CO2 to come from Wyoming to Bowman
County. With what we're seeing out west, we're seeing all kinds of availability of energy.

Wade Boeshans: Within our company, we are currently working on a solution as you
described. As | talk to Petroleum industry, they need enough CO2 to make tertiary
recovery happen.

Senator Bowman this looks like a second Bakken coming to ND. | was on the Lignite
Council long time ago. It is nice to hear positive things coming out of there.

Jaclyn Hall, Housing Incentive Fund recipient, Ruth Meiers Hospitality House:
Testified in favor of HB 1014. Testimony - Attachment 12 (30: 31- 35:03)

Senator Mathern have you discussed this with the HFA. If we make the change you
recommended, what would they do and say? (35:08

Jaclyn Hall | brought up this 5% origination. In century code it says 5% or the HFA can
make an adjustment as needed. | asked them because the original explanation was this 5%
was used to market the Housing Incentive Fund. As a non-oil producing county, Burleigh,
we worked on our own development in the Capital Campaign, but we sold the Housing
Incentive Fund, because you received more money if you had more backers come in and
single out your agency. We were told that it would be taken under advisement and was
taken from 6, origination to 5. (35:29 - 36:30)

Senator Carlisle to Adam Mathiak, can they change the fee arbitrarily?

Adam Mathiak they are allowed to collect a reasonable fee per century code.
Senator Heckaman: they pay another fee on top of that, monthly or yearly?

Adam Mathiak There is an annual $50/development and $35/ grant restricted unit fee.

Senator Heckaman, to Adam Mathiak, how much that totals for the biennium? It is
significant for low income housing.

Jaclyn Hall we pay $50 per unit/yr. for the duration of our housing incentive fund award,
which is 15 yrs.

Karlene Fine, Industrial Commission: went over the rest of the continuing appropriations.
Introduced testimony by
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Alan Anderson- Commissioner, ND Dept. of Commerce, Chairman Renewable Energy
Council in favor of this bill, attachment #14

Wade Moser, Chairman of the Outdoor Heritage Fund Advisory Board, in favor of this bill,
attachment #13

Outdoor Heritage Fund, when established a maximum amount of $30M was set for the
current biennium based on the January forecast it appears the number will be closer to
$19.8M that will come into the fund for the current biennium. HB 1409 now at the Senate is
looking at increasing the maximum amount into $40M but based on the January forecast it
will be $33M Attachment 13 (39:20-40:13)

Renewable Energy Council - Attachment 14

North Dakota Oil and Gas Research Council - Attachment 15

North Dakota Pipeline Authority - Attachment 16

North Dakota Transmission Authority - Attachment 17

39:40 $$$ coming into the Outdoor Heritage Fund. That

Senator Carlisle asked Wade Moser, Chairman, Outdoor Heritage Advisory Board, if
there some way of making the rules a little easier this time. You were pretty restricted the
last time?

Wade Moser: That's the purpose of HB 1409, also addresses the fund's appropriation. We
tried to put rules in place so we knew what the legislature's intent was on where these
dollars should be granted. And that we know the people applying so we wouldn't have grant
applications from people who didn't qualify.

Chairman Holmberg closed the hearing on HB 1014.
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A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the state
industrial commission.

Minutes: Attachment 1 - 2

Legislative Council - Adam Mathiak
OMB - Becky Deichert

Senator Carlisle called the sub-committee to order on HB1014. Senator Holmberg and
Senator Heckaman were also present

Will hear today from Bank, Housing Incentive Fund, and Mill

Monday - Mineral Resources

Senator Carlisle: now that we have our budget numbers, give us some information on how
the financial center would be paid for.

Eric Hardmeyer, President, Bank of North Dakota: handed out information on the ND
Financial Center (Attachment 1) to illustrate the flow of funds, starting with a condensed
version of the bank's balance sheets of 3/24/15. There were questions on how we will pay
for this. Explained the attachment's last page, 1.3, the financial center financial campus
analysis; we will be getting a return and providing efficiency and effectiveness in state
government. (1:32-7:04)

Senator Heckaman: on first page, capital margins, are those similar to the previous ones?
Eric Hardmeyer: they improved; we climbed out of 6% capital ratio and are now at 8.65%.

Senator Carlisle: this is an option hanging on the corner of the table; we don’t know what
is going to happen. Once things start to move, they'll go fast.

Eric Hardmeyer: We acquired this land in 2011; we don’t need it if we aren’t going to use it
or to improve it. We want to bring state agencies that are engaged in economic activity
together to one campus.
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Senator Heckaman: Moving 72 out of commerce, 40 out of finance and 19 out of financial,
does that move all employees out of there? (Answer was inaudible)

Chairman Holmberg: Karlene, would there be any liability for the location or building
where they are; is there a term lease? What about where commerce is?

Karlene Fine, Executive Director, State Industrial Commission: two year lease.

Justin Dever, Dept. of Commerce: Commerce is located in the Century Center; it
includes WSI, Parks and Rec., Council of the Arts, and Risk Management

Chairman Holmberg: what would happen to that space?
Justin Dever: WSI could take over some of that space.
Senator Carlisle we have their budget too.

Eric Hardmeyer handed out a proposed amendment to Engrossed HB 1014 - Attachment
2. It creates a Medical PACE program. The idea is to finance critical access hospitals
infrastructure needs. There are many needs outside of western ND. It could be $400M to a
billion.

Senator Carlisle: | have amendment to pull critical access and fiber optics out and put the
bill back, would that work?

Eric Hardmeyer: It would work great. We want to address critical access thru Med PACE.
Senator Heckaman: This is for current biennium, what would the next biennium look like?

Eric Hardmeyer We have $40M for 2015-17 biennium for PACE buy down. We will have
between $5M - $8M extra money in this biennium we won't spend. That was $38M tab this
biennium; we had proposed to take that up to $40M for the upcoming biennium. We have
an extra $5M. Explained the PACE buy down. We are not asking for more money just for
the opportunity to spend it in a different way. That would address all of the critical access
hospital construction. ND Housing and ND Hospital Assn. are comfortable with this. (11:48
- 16:15)

Senator Carlisle: House and Senate agreed on salaries, we will hold 3 - 3 and the
medical. We don't see any changes at this point.

Karlene Fine: the Industrial commission asked for guidelines from the legislature
regarding other state programs that would be able to provide the infrastructure needs. Are
you leaving that up to the Industrial Commission? HB 1443

Senator Carlisle: My intent was to take the two entities out of there and make it strictly like
the bill was for the local $100M. If you have suggestions when we meet on 1443 be there.

Karlene Fine: We will put together some suggestions for 1443.
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Senator Carlisle: in the Housing Incentive Fund. How many $Ms in house bill?

Jolene Kline, Housing Finance Agency: HB 1014 has $30M in credits, it did an
amendment to cut out appropriation, passed it out and removed emergency clause. There
is no general fund money now. The governor strongly supports to restore to the $50M level

Senator Carlisle all we have between the two budgets is $30M in credits.

Senator Heckaman: would it be $50M general funds or credits or a combination?
Jolene Kline: combination, he is looking for the $20M appropriation to be added back in.
Senator Carlisle s this will go to conference committee to settle it.

Jolene Kline: It could either be accomplished now with SB 2257 that is now on the senate
side. The Senate could ask for that to be added back in; or HB 1014, before you now, it
could be added to.

Senator Heckaman: On top of page 7, the wording "reasonable administrative fees"
worries me because of where it could take us. I've had Adam look at adding language.

Adam Mathiak: we talked about potentially looking at language that would provide a
limitation that the fees be no more than 5% in total fees per project. Senator Carlisle we
didn't put anything on maintenance fee, the agencies receiving the funds are willing to pay
it maintenance fee for inspections and monitoring.

Senator Heckaman: The administrative fees are reasonable.

Jolene Kline: Capping it at 5% - we can live with that. Today we are at 5% with an annual
compliance monitoring fee. Keep in mind that we are not a general fund agency. Each
program we look at, if it doesn't support itself we have to pull other funds out bond
indentures. We have to maintain a certain capital reserve within those bonds issues. We
need spread between what our bond issues are and what the mortgage interest rates are.
The interest rate we pass on to our homeowners. Our Planning and Housing Development
Division, created in 2005, to primarily serve as an outreach to rural communities making
them aware of available resources. We work with Commerce, USDA, nonprofits, etc...
That division has cost the agency $8M since it was created. If you cap at 5% and inflation
hits, you'd be undercutting some of our programs for those who are disabled etc...

Senator Heckaman that money comes out of this fund? (No) Then how is it applicable?

Jolene Kline: This program is running a deficit, we have to pull funds out of another
program, and we will have to short something else.

Senator Heckaman we only gave the BND 1 2% we don't have consistency between
agencies. | want the $30M to go out to the communities.
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Senator Carlisle we will need an amendment.
Jolene Kline: Is Senator Krebsbach's amendment is still out there, for flood in Minot?
Senator Carlisle: that is Streyle's amendment. It hasn't been acted on. We'll take that up

Jolene Kline: money to finish up in Minot to purchase abandoned homes, demolish them
and clear the lots. It's about $1.49M; they are looking for an extension.

Senator Carlisle: Vance Taylor (on a conference call) the House made a significant
change on your profits. Let me know your ideal scenario.

Vance Taylor, President, General Manager, ND State Mill & Elevator: The executive
recommendation was 5% and the general transfer of 50% of remaining profit up to a max of
(inaudible) $s Considering the large projects we are tackling right now, including addition
of a new mill ($34M) The House changed to 75% of profits with no maximum, nothing left to
cover the cost of our large project. We suggest that the Ag _ transfer remains the same,
want to go back to the 50% profits with a maximum transfer amount of $8M as a
compromise. 50% is OK as long as we have the maximum in there, we need to conserve
funds to put debt down and pay for the projects we have now. (31:19-33:08)

Senator Carlisle: the deal made last time was 50%- you used it to update your shop?

Vance Taylor Yes projects to maintain and to add capacity and grow the business with our
new mill project with is $34M.

Senator Heckaman the mill is doing a good job - | agree with amendment.

Senator Carlisle you're making money and need money to operate. On page 7, market
adjustments, we don’t know what is going to happen at that point.

Vance Taylor We had market adjustments, recruiting and retention bonuses; $410 was
removed by the House. Managers will reach Rule of 85 in this next biennium. We will
need to retain or replace them.

Senator Carlisle: the money percentage and retention was all you had.
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A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the state
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Minutes: Attachment 1 - 3

Legislative Council - Adam Mathiak
OMB - Becky Keller

Senator Carlisle called the committee to order on HB 1014. Senator Holmberg and
Senator Heckaman were also present.

Senator Carlisle: this morning we had 1176 - $10M for hospitals. On this bill, Eric
Hardmeyer was proposing an amendment for MED PACE.

Adam Mathiak: In HB 1358 - $9.6M was appropriated to Human Services for Critical
Access hospitals, to help them cover bad debts. That same criteria and language were
carried over to HB 1176 for bad debt. The language in the amendment relates to interest
rate buy downs for loans for critical access hospital constructions or remodeling projects.
Two different programs, two different purposes.

Chairman Holmberg they can stand alone or separately.

Senator Heckaman: we passed a bill last week that provided for nursing homes and rural
hospitals for capital improvement, | don't remember the amount for funds. An amendment
went in so it could only be used only for capital improvements.

Senator Carlisle we will check that out. First thing we have is your staff roughly for 190-
200 rigs - we have fewer than 100. You say you got a way to keep people busy. The
second part is, if you have any FTEs you are going to work off a rig, triggers that kind of a
plan.

Lynn Helms, Director, Department of Mineral Resources
Senate Appropriations subcommittee HB-1014 Attachment 1 He explained the handout:
first two pages show the staffing request from the current biennium and contrast with going
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into this biennium. In pages 1.4, drilling rigs inspectors, and 1.5, wells inspectors. Walked
committee thru those pages. There is a contingency proposal included and proposed
current employees reassignment. (5:30 -9:52) This adds an FTE for every 10 rigs. They
are currently advertising for field inspectors.

Senator Carlisle: a lot of that you can do in the house, but you need a rig count trigger
amendment.

Lynn Helms: yes. The last page shows what came over from the House, left side of the
page. On the right side shows employees reassigned. It leaves us with two positions
unfilled. The rig count contingency adding an FTE and doing the reassignment for every 10
rigs. Contingent funding priority list, bottom of page 1.6 as rig count comes back we would
hire one person each 10 rigs and transfer people back to their original job. It leaves us 2
people short as we come from the House, the program supervisor for the new pipeline
regulatory program and the administrative assistant.

Chairman Holmberg: In the past did we have some stipulations regarding rig count; did it
have to be 120 rigs for a period of time, how did that work?

Lynn Helms: We've done it both ways. At first we required the rig count to go up and stay
there for a month, we would go the emergency commission, get approval and do hiring. In
the most recent biennium we would assign that task to OMB, the FTEs would be in a pool
at OMB and they'd allow us to advertise for the FTE. | would prefer the later, it worked
extremely well. There may be concerns about rig counts jumping up and down. Based on
what | hear from the industry rig counts are not going back up until we get back up to about
$60/barrel.

Senator Carlisle: You had the positions named and they just kicked in, you didn’t have to
go to the emergency commission. Here's the count and here's the people we need.

Chairman Holmberg it may or may not work on a conference committee.

Lynn Helms, back page explains what we talked about and the amendments that would be
required would be the rig count contingency and, if you so choose, the 2 FTES for the
pipeline regulatory program. | have one additional request, now that the BLM has passed
its final fracturing rule, | anticipate the Industrial Commission will be proceeding with
litigation; the Atty. General asked that rather than turn back the $1M in the current
biennium, that it be rolled over so they could pursue the lawsuit

Senator Carlisle there's another bill with fracking, HB 1432, some adjustments might be
needed, and the hearing will be tomorrow morning.

Ed Murphy, State Geologist, Department of Mineral Resources, power point presentation-
Attachment 2- the Wilson M Laird Core and Sample Library, problem with the increase in
the number of core boxes more space is needed. Mentioned the Core Library studied by
Industry and academia, slides 2.8-2.9. Slides 2.10-24 projected expansion; costs estimate
2.15-2>16; ways to reduce expansion costs 2.17-2.21; full size construction costs 21.22;
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mid-sized project costs 2.23; core library bonding 2.24; bins filled in the library 1991-2013.
The Core Library will be full by 2017. (18:39 - 23:35)
Chairman Holmberg in UND and NDSU, the power plants are being overrun by campus.

Ed Murphy: that is correct; | know they are looking at going to silos for the coal. $7.9M for
general construction costs; $425K for the skywalk; total construction $11.6M, another $2M
for fees, $13.6M total We would come to UNS for replacement costs for the parking spots
we are taking, $25K each. Reviewed actual usage chart with Senator Carlisle, phasing,
and bonding.

Ron Ness, ND Petroleum Council: This core library is a critical piece in the development of
the Bakken. We support this bill.

Chairman Holmberg | think you'd find a lot of people being unhappy if you go offsite to
build. Years ago a parking ramp was built and fees were charged to everyone. They can't
pay for it, but payments went up a million dollars this year. You are presenting to us and
the legislature has to decide.

Ed Murphy: we'll keep coming back.

Items to be discussed in the next meeting: amendments, the core library, rig count
contingency, additional FTEs, the midsized core library, $1M in litigation
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

A Discussion regarding the Industrial Commission. (Other bills discussed on this job are
HB 1005, HB 1015, HB 1003.

Minutes: No testimony submitted

Chairman Holmberg called the committee to order on Tuesday, March 31, 2015. All
committee members were present. Michael Johnson, Legislative Council and Lori
Laschkewitsch, OMB, were also present.

Discussion on HB 1014 begins on Job # 25644 (2.22 - 4.04)

Senator Carlisle: On the Industrial Commission we're meeting Thursday and as you
heard this morning, the Ag bill that had $4M. | invited Senator Wanzek just for a minute to
explain the plan. My understanding is to put $2.5M, the other $2.5M into the Industrial
Commission because of the fracking part of it with the oil and gas division, do | have it right,
Senator Wanzek?

Senator Wanzek: Yes, it's entirely up to the subcommittee or the Industrial Commission as
to whether you want the full $2.5 or some other number. The original $3M that was in there
was taken out because it was assumed to be in 1432 and the amendments remove the
fracking part of it.

Senator Carlisle: | just met briefly with Karlene Fine of the Industrial Commission and at
our meeting Thursday, anything we miss, we want to talk about everything that's related to
the Industrial Commission including potential $2.5M.

Chairman Holmberg: That's the 3:00 meeting on both 1014 and 1443, and hopefully by
the end of that we should be close to asking council to draft appropriate amendments.

The discussion was closed on HB 1014.
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

This is a sub-committee hearing on the budget of the State Industrial Commission.

Minutes: Attachments: #1-5

Legislative Council - Adam Mathiak
OMB - Sheila Peterson

Chairman Carlisle called the sub-committee to order on HB 1014. Senator Holmberg and
Senator Heckaman were also present.
HB1443, 1432, 1358

Karlene Fine, Executive Director, State Industrial Commission passed out information
packet on bills HB 1358, 1432, 1443 and 1014 - Attachment # 1
Proposed Amendments - Attachment # 1A

1358 - Rather than having dollars from HB 1358, she suggested they be amended into HB
1014.
Another amendment was going to be passed out HB 1432

Senator Heckaman: | have a question on HB 1032. There was a correlation on the green
sheets that said there is a request for more funding into the abandoned oil and gas well
plugging. What happened to that?

Lynn Helms, Director, Department of Mineral Resources: HB 1032 passed on the
senate side that bill increases the cap of that fund to $100M. If we don't hit the trigger
before 12/31/15, it also increases the flow into the fund from $5M a year to $7.5M. If we do
hit the big trigger, the annual inflow will remain capped at $5M but the overall fund cap will
still go up to $100M.

Amendment proposed to HB 1358 (see attachment # 2). This amendment addresses the
concern | raised this morning in committee that the operator of a salt water pipeline could
just put the thing into service and file with the commission a number of items 60 days after
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the pipeline had already been up and running and there was no approval by the
commission of any of those items. This amendment says the director of the oil and gas
division has thirty days after the receipt of those items which are the design drawing and
the pressure test and the monitoring plan to review those and then approve them or notify
the operator that we are going to require an increased monitoring plan. If there's some
deficiency in one of those pipelines, we would require a significant increase in monitoring.

Senator Heckaman Do you have any concern on the language on line five where it says
within 60 days of the pipeline being placed into service? Is that part ok with you?

Lynn Helms: We think that's reasonable, | was not apart of the discussions on how the 60
days was arrived at although | know in some other very complex operations like hydraulic
fracturing it takes that long to get all the data together and file it with the commission. I'm
comfortable with that if we have the language approving that if we have this language in
here approving those items and the authority to require increased monitoring if there is a
deficiency.

Senator Heckaman: My only question was | visited with one of the committee members
who heard this policy bill and they said they thought there was confusion by the person who
introduced the amendment on what the real meaning was and how it got written up. So if
you're comfortable with this, that's fine with me.

Lynn Helms: We are comfortable with it if we can get this language amended into the bill.
HB 1432

Chairman Carlisle: We are looking at this money and we want to move $2.5M into this
budget for your litigation fund, is that my understanding of how that's going to work?

Lynn Helms: Yes, the amendments to HB 1432 are disassembling the $4M fund so they
are going to leave $1.5M with that council but at the request of the Attorney General, they
wanted to move $2.5M back under the control of the Industrial commission for the purposes
that the original $3M was put in there under the governor's recommendation. If there
needed to be litigation based on flaring, hydraulic fracking, or on oil conditioning or
jurisdictional issue with the federal government or the tribes, that funding would be under
the control of the Industrial Commission who could direct the Attorney General to take up
those issues. The $3M was originally in the Industrial Commission budget. The House
took it out and put it into the HB 1432 pool. On the Senate side, HB 1432 is being
unwound and $2.5M is coming back.

Senator Heckaman: |I'm looking at Senator Wanzek's hog house amendment 15.0961-
04008 (see Attachment # 3)

Senator Holmberg: The money won't appear in this bill. We're not appropriating it.
Senator Heckaman: On 2™ page - section 2, how would this pertain to oil sector and oil

production and agriculture at the same time? This money is going into the Agriculture
Commissioner's budget, correct?
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Lynn Helms: They could parse it out and it will be in an OMB pool.

Senator Heckaman: This different than what you would use your money for litigation
work? Or could it be similar?

Lynn Helms: This would be there could be overlap.
HB 1443 - amendment 15.0867.02003 (see Attachment # 4)

Eric Hardmeyer: Our proposal is that we would take the critical access piece of this out of
HB 1443 so we would carve out of existing biennium plus $10M out of the next biennium,
enough money to do what is needed in critical access hospital and it relieves HB 1443 of
critical access.

Bonnie Storbakken, ND Commissioner of Labor: The only change on HB 1358 is the
one that Lynne Helms introduced today. That was the only change that I'm aware of.

Chairman Carlisle: give me quick shot of square feet.

Eric Hardmeyer, President, Bank of North Dakota: $17M from our assets on the
property. Around 45,000 square feet and house 3 agencies: DFI, Commerce, and HFI.
This is $269/sq.ft and we are paying for it out of assets. We will earn a rate of return similar
to bond. This is payment in lieu of taxes.

Senator Heckaman: If finance tax credits come to you, can you actually take a fee out of
there?

Jolene Kline, Housing Finance Agency: We have two options under the current century
code: we can either pull the fee out of the fund itself or we can charge and assess it to the
applicant. In the first program with the $15M, we pulled it out of the fund which meant we
put 95% of that fund out in the street. When we went through the public hearing's process,
we were proposing to pull it from the applicant: so we could put the full $35.4M. So if a
developer pays a $100,000 origination fee on a $5M project that becomes a $5.1M project
and they receive 30% of it from the fund. The fund is helping to capitalize, we don't do
both. Now we are going through another public hearing's process, the public hearing is
scheduled for April 13 and it will be up for discussion during that public hearing whether the
audience wants it to be continued to be paid by the applicant or whether they want it pulled
from the fund. It's the same for the entire biennium program.

Chairman Carlisle: We're at $30M in credits?

Jolene Kline: We're at $30M in this bill, the ©-nate passed out $50M in SB 2257. The
House amended it down to $30M in credits.

Chairman Carlisle: So there is $30M in credits floating around?
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Senator Holmberg: We've had numbers of discussions on this issue. At the appropriate
time, I'm going to make motion to add another $10M in cash for preparation for conference
committee because the House doesn't seem to want any cash at this stage.

Jolene Kline: It's not the fifty that we wariled, but forty is better than thirty.

Chairman Carlisle: On the Mill, 3 years ago we settled on the 75% and we want to go
back to 50%.

Senator Heckaman: Is the maximum amount in current law?
Karlene Fine, Executive Director, State Industrial Commission: It is currently $6.3M.

Adam Mathiak, Legislative Council: Statute provides 50% and so session law | 2013 put
a cap on the 50%. So if this section was removed, it would go back to 50% without a cap.
The House removed the limitation and changed it to 50%.

Senator Heckaman: Where does the $8M come from?
Senator Holmberg: That is what the mill proposed for language.
Chairman Carlisle: The Core Library - we have a lot of support.

Senator Holmberg: | would suggest we consider fully funding the library, but instead of
giving UND $100M to sit in bank until thcy get their proposals together that we authorize
them to come for a deficiency appropriation next session and therefore we have saved
$1.8M that goes off the books but gives them the authority to come and ask. We still have
to approve it.

Chairman Carlisle: 195 to 200 rigs, we are reorganizing some rigs correct?

Lynn Helms: The remainder of the $1M in the current biennium litigation fund be carried
over and we want to make that we don't miss that. We were given $1M this biennium and
we're already spending it and we want to carry it over.

Handed out 2015-2017 Staffing Model Fic!d Inspector Increases (see attachment # 5).

He explained the FTE assignments.

Chairman Carlisle: We've done this before.
Senator Holmberg: This past session we utilized a notification OMB.

Lynn Helms: Previous to that, we had to hit the average and go to the emergency
commission and that went through the budget section and we got the position approved.
The last biennium we had to hit the average and then go to the emergency commission and
that went to the budget section and we got the position approved. This last biennium, we
shortened that to just a notification to OMB and that has worked much better for us to get
the hiring process started so we would prefer that.
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Senator Holmberg: Did we ever turn down any requests?

Lynn Helms: Never. The only thing that ever happened was sometimes we adjusted the
dollars associated with the position because it came later in the biennium and there were
unused funds there. Some of them came very late in the biennium we cut the amount for
that position in half. We looked at possible triggers on oil prices and well counts but the
only thing really predictable is that counts. Rig count will go back up, but we don't know
how fast or how soon.

Karlene Fine: In addition to the new language for the general fund transfers, he also
asked that we look at the retention of recruiting $410,000 as a result the executive budget.
It was up to you whether you put that back in.

Chairman Carlisle suggested to put it in for neaotiations in the conference committee.
Senator Heckaman: if it's not general fund, I'm fine with it.

Karlene Fine went over the last section of the bill.

1) Core Library

2) Additional FTE

3) Transfer to HIF

4) Grants to the Lignite Research Council. They had requested $10M, $5M is in the bill
right now.

Chairman Carlisle: We will meet on 1358, 1422, 1443 but as | understand it, we have the
appropriate parts out of those bills into HB 1014

Alexis Baxley, ND Petroleum Council: [ ght now we'd be in oppositions to the
amendments Lynn proposed (HB 1358). The discussions that we had in the policy
committee, those original 60 days were put in so the company would have to do their
pneumatic testing and then only have to submit that paperwork once. That 60 days would
provide the buffer time zone to make adjusi ents. It was also an understanding our
understanding that those initial certificates were not meant to be a permitting process or be
approved that those rules would come from the industrial commission following that study
but this was a way to guarantee that those thin 's were being looked at and done until we
could get rules based on that study in place.

Chairman Carlisle asked if Alexis and Lynn ¢~ /!d work together to figure out if there is a
doable compromise.

Senator Heckaman: When | visited with the mm>mbers of the committee, Senator Laffen's
name came up as a sponsor of the amendm~n

Alexis Baxley: The sponsor of the bill broucht the amendments in but Senator Laffen
helped provide the language on the construc' or "rawings.
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Senator Holmberg: | thought what we were doing is we wanted to make sure Adam
Mathiak had the package on HB 1014 but then we would come back to these other three
ancillary bills next week.

Chairman Carlisle adjourned the subcommittee.




2015 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES

Appropriations Committee
Harvest Room, State Capitol

HB 1014

4/7/2015
Job # 25884

X Subcommittee
[0 Conference Committee

— el
Committee Clerk Signature 474 f 7}_7“,',,%

/

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

This is a sub-committee hearing on the budget of the State Industrial Commission.

Minutes: Attachment 1 - 2.

Legislative Council - Adam Mathiak
OMB - Becky Keller

Senator Carlisle called the sub-committee to order on HB 1014. Senator Holmberg and
Senator Heckaman were also present. He also informed the committee that amendments
for HB 1358 were being drafted and will be discussed tomorrow morning.

Senator Carlisle handed out amendment 15.8122.02004 - Attachment 1 and also
First Engrossment of Engrossed House Bill No. 1014 - Attachment 2.

Adam Mathiak, Legislative Council: (speaking from attachment 2) Some of the changes
will be difficult to see, especially in Section one where we're just changing dollar amounts.

Subdivision one:
The Industrial Commission -

Changes would be the standard health insurance change.

Added 2 FTE positions; one was pipeline regulatory supervisor position and one was an
associated admin position. Those were for the implementation of the pipeline
regulatory program.

Ten contingent FTE positions added. There is language later on in the bill that identifies
the criteria for when the contingencies are met, but the funding for those positions is
included here in section one. It can only be spent and the positions can only be added
if the contingencies are met.

There was $20,500 added in the operating expenses for ongoing expenses of the core
library associated with its expansion.

$2.5M one-time funding was added for the litigation costs related to hydraulic fracturing.
$13.6M for the core library expansion.
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Bank of North Dakota -
e Health insurance changes
e $17M of one-time funding for their finance center.

Mill & Elevator -
¢ In subsection three, the only change was the health insurance changes.

Housing Finance Agency -
e Only change was health insurance as well.

Adam Mathiak: You can see the one-time funding items that were added and adjusted.
The $2.5M for litigation costs, the financial center at $17M and the core library at $13.6M.
So the $13.6M for the core library would exclude any funding for parking. There was some
discussion about the proposed amount which was around $16M and that included almost
$2M for parking spaces, so this 13 is excluding that funding for parking spaces.

(5:45) Senator Holmberg: We want to make sure the minutes reflect that it is our intention
that when the University of North Dakota has their parking plan put together, that they
approach the OMB and the legislature with a deficiency appropriation for the amount that
was in this bill originally and that was $1.8M. That doesn't promise, but it does give them
the opportunity to put their plan together and what they're going to do and then come to us
and make their case in 2017.

Adam Mathiak: At the top of page 6, that's the appropriation that was added. It's a transfer
of $10M from the general fund to the Housing Incentive Fund for the grant funding and that
is also given an emergency clause in the last section.

Section 12 on page 7 was amended to reflect the mill and elevator profits so 50% limited to
$8M.

Section 13 was added in explaining the MED PACE program. That section also has an
emergency clause associated with it.

Page 8 -9 talks about the criteria for the contingent appropriation related to those 10 FTEs
and their related funding. This is just the various thresholds - basically going down the list
every 10 drilling rigs allows for an additional FTE position.

Senator Carlisle: The emergency clause on the financial center, that's so if it all happens,
the sooner they can get, it might be a good time to bid too. They might do pretty well on
their bids, that's the plan on that?

Adam Mathiak: The financial center didn't have an emergency..... the MED PACE
program, the Housing Incentive Fund transfer and then the core library. Those three items
had emergency clauses associated with them.

The bottom of page 9 - there is some language identifying the in lieu of payment taxes for
the financial center. There is also a sentence in there that talks about market rate lease
prices.

Senator Carlisle: And we did that because he has a union contract. Is that how the market
equity is working - because it's not targeted? How are we addressing that?
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Adam Mathiak: | was going thru the marked up version - section 16 of the bill.

Section 17 has language added about the origination fee. The origination fee on the HIF
award is limited to 5%.

The last two pages of the marked up copy of the bill - we took out the section that dealt with
the legislative intent for a priority funding list.

Section 22 and 23 provide exemptions to 2013-15 money. The first one is for the Housing
Finance Agency for flood impacted housing assistance. That was the $1.5M from the
State Disaster Fund that they're allowed to carry over into the 2015-17 biennium.

Section 23 - possible federal agency litigation. There was a million dollars in the 13-15
biennium and this would allow the Industrial Commission to carry that over to use for
additional possible litigation costs in the 15-17 biennium.

The back page of the bill of the marked up copy would have explanations of the two
projects talked about earlier - the core library project and the financial center. The
provisions of those sections are just identifying the funding that's included in section 1. It
asks for a report to the Legislative Management and then to the appropriations committees
of the status of those projects and how much has been spent to date.

The bottom section is the emergency clause.

Senator Holmberg: With the core library and assuming this passes and is signed, the plan
is that they would immediately begin preparations for tearing down the offices right away so
they could work over the summer?

Adam Mathiak: The emergency clause with the core library has some demolition that
needs to be done along with site prep and getting the big equipment into there. When the
students aren't in session, it makes it a little bit easier and you're not fighting over the
parking spaces and traffic.

Senator Heckaman: Where's money for MedPACE at?

Adam Mathiak: The MedPACE program, like the other PACE programs comes from Bank
of North Dakota profits. There is not new money being provided for that. | think the Bank
anticipates some money available in the current transfers from their profits to the PACE
programs that they could utilize. There's not a specific dollar amount associated with it.

Senator Carlisle: Lynn, you're comfortable with the trigger for those employees?

Lynn Helms: If you look at section 15, that implements what we described in the graph of
reassigning petroleum engineers to well and facility inspections right now and then
assigning them back as the rig count exceeds those markers. It's a one month exceed, so
it has to average for the month. We have re-assigned petroleum engineers in all three
districts.

Senator Carlisle: We've done a trigger before on the rigs. If it does a month and 10 rigs,
hopefully you'll be able to hire some people.

Senator Carlisle asked if there was anything relevant on HB 1358. It's a policy bill and we
think we can straighten it out with that amendment.
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Senator Holmberg: They would have the right to say, "No, you changed it so much that
you can carry it." It will be carried, trust us.

Lynn Helms: If you look at amendments, at the bottom of page 6, you can see the
explanation for the 8 FTEs and what is required for that. Many are already coming in
through HB 1014 or through the contingencies. Only two need to be added.

Senator Carlisle: We added in $30M credits in the Housing Incentive Fund and $10M in
cash.

Karlene Fine: The Emergency clause for HIF, we would like to have that emergency
clause, not only for the $10M transfer but also for section 20 of the bill that authorizes the
$30M

Senator Holmberg: Wasn't there a continued dialogue as to whether or not the necessity
of the emergency clause is needed. I've heard from some that it's needed and I've heard
from others that it isn't. What is the position of the Legislative Council?

Adam Mathiak: The Legislative Council wouldn't have a position on it, but | can point out
the facts. As it was initially introduced and the program was laid out, | believe this would
mirror what was in the original executive budget that the credits were the delayed
implementation with the effective date of the act. The appropriation was given an
emergency clause that was originally in SB 2126 which was the Governor's Jumpstart bill.

| don't believe the credits originally had an emergency clause as things were introduced. If
you want, we can add that to our conference committee.

Senator Carlisle: These amendments and the engrossed bill will go to the full committee
and we'll explain them.

Senator Heckaman moved amendment 15.8122.02004.
Senator Holmberg seconded.

Senator Holmberg - yes

Senator Carlisle - yes

Senator Heckaman -yes

The amendment will be presented to the full committee.

Senator Carlisle closed the sub-committee hearing on HB 1014.
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the state
industrial commission.

Minutes: Engrossed House Bill 15.8122.02004.
Amendment # 15.8122.02004

Chairman Holmberg called the committee to order on Wednesday, April 08, 2015 at 4:00
pm. All committee members were present except V.Chairman Bowman and Senator
Wanzek. Alex Cronquist, Legislative Council and Tammy Dolan, OMB, were also present.

Senator Carlisle you are going to have Attachment # 1 - Engrossed bill and attachment #
2 Amendment 15.8122.02004. | move that amendment. 2" by Senator Heckaman.

Chairman Holmberg you received a copy of that plus the Christmas tree copy of that bill.

Senator Carlisle: You know the budget has 4 parts: the Mineral Resources, Mill and
Elevator, Housing Incentive Fund and the bank. First we have all the amendments on the
health care. He explained the amendment concerning Mineral Resources. There is two
additional positions for the duties they've been directed to do. There's a pipeline regulation
bill we're going to deal with tomorrow morning called HB 1358. And the employees that are
in this bill, we need that other bill and that will go back to policy, so we'll want to watch that
bill.

There is a total of 8 FTES with 1358. The House put the funding in for the additional
positions, they are going to use some of these positions in light of the rig count for some of
the responsibilities. Then there is going to be an additional contingency 10 FTE's, if the rig
count exceeds 110 rigs. And what happens if the rig count goes up 10 rigs and sustains for
one month, the mineral resources folks pick up a FTE. This is the mineral resources call.
We talked to the oil people and they think that's a fair observation. (3.48)

Senator Mathern: Are you adding 10 contingency or one?

Senator Carlisle: There'll be up to 10, depending on the rig count. The rig count has to
keep going up. A new FTE per additional 10 rigs. That is on your amendment on page 3.
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Senator O'Connell: On a month that probably isn't a good month to use too much
because it takes 26 to 27 days to drill a well.

Senator Carlisle: We worked that figure out with Mr. Helms. We've done it before several
years ago and it seemed to work. That is where it is at, it's all contingent, they've got to
have the rigs to get the people. Between the House amendments and the proposed in
these minutes there is a total potential 27 FTE's. There's one of the positions is in the
Industrial Commission Administrative Office. Then there is funding for the Core Library up
at Grand Forks. As you know, it's an ongoing process. | think Chairman Holmberg can
speak to it. The place is full and they need 5 inches of concrete when they do an additional
expansion so you can't use other buildings because it's basically too heavy. So the Core
Library, a total of $13.6M. Can you explain that parking? (6.15)

Chairman Holmberg: when the Mineral Resources was working with the University about
the situation they removed in this configuration about 55 parking places, which are pretty
prime parking places. The University had asked and, in the original executive budget there
was $ 1.8M for parking replacement. We recommended taking it out because they wanted
the money to put in the bank because they don't have a plan yet as to what they're going to
do. We made sure the record reflects that next session, if they do have a plan that they've
come together on they have the authority to go to OMB and ask for a deficiency
appropriation to pay for that. | had visited with Alice Brekke at UND because they don't
have a plan yet. They might be looking at a parking ramp, which is extremely expensive
and they have one now that they can't hardly cash flow so we thought wait until they
actually have a plan. (7.43)

Senator O'Connell: | was concerned about the month, it takes 26 to 27days to drill, so
maybe it should be two months before we add the people.

Lynn Helms, Director of Department of Mineral Resources, Industrial Commission:
The fact that it takes about 27 days is how we arrived at the month. We were considering
the fact that 90% of the drilling is now multiple well pads, and so the individual spud to TD
time on an individual well is not nearly as significant as when they bring a rig on, they drill 4
to 6 wells. | am not sure how to exactly respond to the question except that in our mind
exceeding that target for a month tells us that the rig activity is such that we need to add a
petroleum engineer back to that position. Once it is up and running it will stay there for 4 to
6 months drilling. (9.33)

Senator Carlisle: We had $2.5M litigation on the fracking. That went from HB 1432 that
we passed this morning. It had $4M, we took $2.5M out it is going into this budget for
potential litigation. Also in section 23 of the bill they can carry those litigation funds over if
the dollars haven't been used prior to June 30, 2015. Now here is one that going to
generate a lot of interest, the BND, they are looking at $17M on-sight, roughly a $50,000 3
story building. They're going to use the bank as $7B entity right now with a cap rate of
about 5% so they are very solvent. It's a business decision on their part. If they build this
building, the rent has to be market rates and it has to have payment lieu of taxes. The
potential people are Dept of Commerce, Housing Finance and banking financial institutions.
We put that in the bill. It is not general funds. It will be in conference. (11.21) The next
section 13 - MEDPACE. (Medical partnership in assisting community expansion program).
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If you remember 1443 had a critical access component. Then Housing Finance, there's
$30M in credits in this bill now we added $10M general fund. Obviously several of us think
that general fund could go higher but we're trying to get something saleable to work out
between the House and Senate. Section 17.

Senator Heckaman: This just puts a cap on the fees that House and Finance can charge
out of the grants that they are working with, and it's up to 5%.

Senator Carlisle: Section 22, for up in V. Chairman Krebsbach's area, we are allowing
them to carry over some flood impacted housing assistance money from the prior session
because they still have flooded homes.

V. Chairman Krebsbach: The fact is that many of these houses are being torn down or
moved at this time. They were waiting for people to come back and respond or for the final
flood plain project to be evaluated and approved, so that should be completed but we need
the carry over to get it accomplished.

Senator Carlisle: The State Mill and Elevator, the House had changed the transfers from
the state mill. We had an agreement, if you remember last time, roughly 50%, they want to
kick it up to 75%. We want to go back to the 50% because as you know Mr. Taylor runs a
really good shop. If we cut him back too much on these profits then he may have to borrow
money and it doesn't make good business that he can expand. Because of customer
demand they're adding a milling capacity. It's a 30% increase in milling capacity. The Mill
and Elevator is a Union Shop, they give overtime and his equity, they're in agreement.
We added the emergency clause on the Core Library. The Core Library and MEDPACE
has the emergency funding. That's basically the amendments. Do we want to bring up the
emergency clause on the Housing incentive? (16.17)

Chairman Holmberg: The emergency clause can be handled in the conference
committee.

Senator Mathern: One of the things | don't like about these amendments is that whole
legal fund, so how much total legal funds do we have suing the federal government with
these amendments?

Ms. Fine: In the area of litigation when the governor submitted his executive budget he
had $3M in the budget for the Department of Mineral Resources for litigation. That was an
increase from the $1M that we currently have. Then the other bill 1432 was created, that
was the money removed from there and put over into 1432, and now it has come back as a
$2.5M level. So there is $1.5M in 1432, and then in this bill there would be $2.5M that we
feel we need to have for litigation and just isn't suing the federal agencies. One of the
entities we may need to sue, and then there is carryover of any money that may remain in
the current biennium for the $1M. | think we are in the area of a little bit over $4M that's
available for litigation that we may need with federal government, with other entities that we
may need as we do regulation of oil and gas. That is between the two bills.
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Senator Mathern: How much is focused just to litigation against the federal government or
its agencies. Is there any limitation?

Ms. Fine: We can use it all for that or a portion of it so as needed.

Chairman Holmberg: Didn't we used to have a railroad lawsuit fund? Do we still have
that? That's in PSC budget.

Alex Cronquist, Legislative Council: It's been changed to just litigation funding line item.

Chairman Holmberg: All in favor of the amendments say aye. It carried. Can | have a
motion on the bill?

Senator Carlisle moved a do Pass as amended on 1014. 2" by Senator Heckaman.
Chairman Holmberg: Call the roll on Do Pass as Amended on 1014.
A Roll Call vote was taken. Yea: 13; Nay: 0; Absent: 0.

Chairman Holmberg: Both Senator Wanzek and V.Chairman Bowman will vote on this.
(They voted after the hearing, therefore, their vote is not recorded.)

Senator Carlisle will carry the bill. The hearing was closed on HB 1014.
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1014

Page 1, line 3, after the first semicolon insert "to provide a contingent appropriation;"

Page 1, line 3, replace "to provide legislative intent;" with "to create and enact a new section to

chapter 6-09;"

Page 1, line 6, replace the second "and" with "to provide exemptions; to provide legislative
intent; to provide for reports to legislative management;"

Page 1, line 7, after "date" insert '; and to declare an emergency"

Page 1, remove lines 19 through 24
Page 2, replace lines 1 through 3 with:

"Salaries and wages
Accrued leave payments
Operating expenses

Capital assets

Grants

Grants - bond payments
Total all funds

Less estimated income

Total general fund

Full-time equivalent positions

Page 2, replace lines 8 through 11 with:

"Bank of North Dakota operations
Accrued leave payments

Capital assets

Total special funds

Page 2, replace line 17 with:
"Salaries and wages

Page 2, replace line 22 with:
"Total from mill and elevator fund
Page 2, replace line 28 with:
"Salaries and wages

Page 3, replace line 2 with:

“Total special funds

Page 3, replace lines 8 through 10 with:

$17,873,876
347,696
4,775,576

0
19,500,000
19,809,969
$62,307,117
40,973,792
$21,333,325
98.75

$51,5623,916
881,231
745,000
$53,150,147

$29,141,750

$52,123,557

$7,434,877

$41,007,491

Page No. 1

$6,302,505 $24,176,381
(347,696) 0
4,595,154 9,370,730
13,666,822 13,666,822
(14,500,000) 5,000,000
(4,769,140) 15,040,829
$4,947,645 $67,254,762
(23,979,345) 16,994,447
$28,926,990 $50,260,315
28.00 126.75"
$7,018,385 $58,542,301
(881,231) 0
17,000,000 17,745,000
$23,137,154 $76,287,301"
$7,137,148 $36,278,898"
$12,192,341 $64,315,898"
$310,157 $7,745,034"
($3,487,402) $37,520,089"
15.8122.02004

st
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"Grand total general fund $21,333,325 $38,926,990 $60,260,315
Grand total special funds 187,254 987 7,862,748 195,117,735
Grand total all funds $208,588,312 $46,789,738 $255,378,050"

Page 3, replace line 17 with:

"Possible litigation 1,000,000 2,500,000"

Page 3, after line 26, insert:

"Financial center project 0 17,000,000
Core library expansion project 0 18,625,322"

Page 3, remove line 30

Page 4, replace lines 1 and 2 with:

"Total all funds $68,060,800 $38,745,965
Total special fund 51,500,000 17,000,000
Total general fund $16,560,800 $21,745,965"

Page 5, after line 2, insert:

"SECTION 6. APPROPRIATION - TRANSFER - GENERAL FUND TO
HOUSING INCENTIVE FUND. There is appropriated out of any moneys in the general
fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of $10,000,000, which
the office of management and budget shall transfer to the housing incentive fund for
the period beginning with the effective date of this Act and ending June 30, 2017. The
funding provided in this section is considered a one-time funding item."

Page 6, line 1, replace "seventy-five" with "fifty"
Page 6, line 3, after "programs" insert "or the sum of $8,000,000, whichever is less,"
Page 6, after line 5, insert:

"SECTION 13. BANK OF NORTH DAKOTA - MEDICAL PARTNERSHIP IN
ASSISTING COMMUNITY EXPANSION PROGRAM. The Bank of North Dakota shall
develop a medical partnership in assisting community expansion program to assist in
the financing of critical access hospital medical infrastructure projects, for the period
beginning with the effective date of this Act and ending June 30, 2017. The Bank shall
adopt policies and procedures to implement this program. Notwithstanding section
6-09.14-03, the Bank may originate loans under this program or participate with a lead
financial institution. Eligible projects that receive funding for an interest rate buydown
under this program are not subject to the community commitment requirement in
section 6-09.14-03, the maximum interest rate buydown limitation in subsection 4 of
section 6-09.14-04, or the state grantor recipient reporting requirement in section
54-60.1-05."

Page 6, after line 21, insert:

"SECTION 15. CONTINGENT APPROPRIATION - INDUSTRIAL
COMMISSION FUNDING. The amount of $2,225,080 from the general fund and 10
full-time equivalent positions included in subdivision 1 of section 1 of this Act may be
spent only if the monthly average drilling rig count exceeds 110 drilling rigs. The
industrial commission shall notify the office of management and budget and the
legislative council each time one or more full-time equivalent positions are authorized
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to be hired. For purposes of this section, the "monthly average drilling rig count" means
the amount, rounded to the nearest whole drilling rig, calculated by dividing the sum of
the daily drilling rig counts for a calendar month by the number of days in the month. Of
the $2,225,080 and the 10 full-time equivalent positions in this section, the industrial
commission may spend funding and hire full-time equivalent positions, as follows:

1. $222,508, of which $168,105 is from the salaries and wages line item and
$54,403 is from the operating expenses line item, and one full-time
equivalent position if the monthly average drilling rig count exceeds 110
drilling rigs.

2. In addition to the funding and full-time equivalent positions authorized in
subsection 1, $222,508, of which $168,105 is from the salaries and wages
line item and $54,403 is from the operating expenses line item, and one
full-time equivalent position if the monthly average drilling rig count
exceeds 120 drilling rigs.

3. In addition to the funding and full-time equivalent positions authorized in
subsections 1 and 2, $222,508, of which $168,105 is from the salaries and
wages line item and $54,403 is from the operating expenses line item, and
one full-time equivalent position if the monthly average drilling rig count
exceeds 130 drilling rigs.

4. In addition to the funding and full-time equivalent positions authorized in
subsections 1 through 3, $222,508, of which $168,105 is from the salaries
and wages line item and $54,403 is from the operating expenses line item,
and one full-time equivalent position if the monthly average drilling rig
count exceeds 140 drilling rigs.

5. In addition to the funding and full-time equivalent positions authorized in
subsections 1 through 4, $222,508, of which $168,105 is from the salaries
and wages line item and $54,403 is from the operating expenses line item,
and one full-time equivalent position if the monthly average drilling rig
count exceeds 150 drilling rigs.

6. In addition to the funding and full-time equivalent positions authorized in
subsections 1 through 5, $222,508, of which $168,105 is from the salaries
and wages line item and $54,403 is from the operating expenses line item,
and one full-time equivalent position if the monthly average drilling rig
count exceeds 160 drilling rigs.

7. In addition to the funding and full-time equivalent positions authorized in
subsections 1 through 6, $222,508, of which $168,105 is from the salaries
and wages line item and $54,403 is from the operating expenses line item,
and one full-time equivalent position if the monthly average drilling rig
count exceeds 170 drilling rigs.

8. In addition to the funding and full-time equivalent positions authorized in
subsections 1 through 7, $222,508, of which $168,105 is from the salaries
and wages line item and $54,403 is from the operating expenses line item,
and one full-time equivalent position if the monthly average drilling rig
count exceeds 180 drilling rigs.
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9. In addition to the funding and full-time equivalent positions authorized in
subsections 1 through 8, $222,508, of which $168,105 is from the salaries
and wages line item and $54,403 is from the operating expenses line item,
and one full-time equivalent position if the monthly average drilling rig
count exceeds 190 drilling rigs.

10. In addition to the funding and full-time equivalent positions authorized in
subsections 1 through 9, $222,508, of which $168,105 is from the salaries
and wages line item and $54,403 is from the operating expenses line item,
and one full-time equivalent position if the monthly average drilling rig
count exceeds 200 drilling rigs.

SECTION 16. A new section to chapter 6-09 of the North Dakota Century Code
is created and enacted as follows:

North Dakota financial center - Lease rates - Payments in lieu of taxes.

The North Dakota financial center is a building that is owned by the Bank of
North Dakota and is adjacent to the building in which the Bank of North Dakota is
housed. The Bank of North Dakota shall lease the space in the North Dakota financial
center to other state agencies based on market rate lease prices. The Bank of North
Dakota shall make payments in lieu of property taxes in the manner and according to
the conditions and procedures that would apply if the building were privately owned."

Page 7, line 2, after the period insert "The origination fee assessed to grant recipients may not
exceed five percent of the project award."

Page 10, replace lines 8 through 13 with:

"SECTION 22. HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY - FLOOD-IMPACTED
HOUSING ASSISTANCE - EXEMPTION. The amount appropriated for flood-impacted
housing assistance in section 4 of chapter 16 of the 2013 Session Laws is not subject
to section 54-44.1-11 and any unexpended funds are available during the biennium
beginning July 1, 2015, and ending June 30, 2017.

SECTION 23. INDUSTRIAL COMMISSION - POSSIBLE FEDERAL AGENCY
LITIGATION - EXEMPTION. The amount appropriated for possible federal agency
litigation in subdivision 1 of section 1 of chapter 45 of the 2013 Session Laws is not
subject to section 54-44.1-11 and any unexpended funds are available during the
biennium beginning July 1, 2015, and ending June 30, 2017.

SECTION 24. INDUSTRIAL COMMISSION - CORE LIBRARY EXPANSION
PROJECT - EXEMPTION - LEGISLATIVE MANAGEMENT REPORT. The capital
assets line item in subdivision 1 of section 1 of this Act includes $13,625,322 from the
general fund for the purpose of expanding the core library. The funding appropriated for
this purpose is not subject to section 54-44.1-11 and any unexpended funds are
available during the biennium beginning July 1, 2017, and ending June 30, 2019. The
industrial commission shall report to the legislative management and to the
appropriations committees of the sixty-fifth legislative assembly on the use of the
funding provided for the core library project, including the amounts spent to date and
the amounts anticipated to be continued into the 2017-19 biennium, and on the
progress of the project.

SECTION 25. BANK OF NORTH DAKOTA - NORTH DAKOTA FINANCIAL
CENTER - EXEMPTION - LEGISLATIVE MANAGEMENT REPORT. The capital
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assets line item in subdivision 2 of section 1 of this Act includes $17,000,000 from the
assets of the Bank of North Dakota for the purpose of constructing a North Dakota
financial center on a site adjacent to the existing building in which the Bank is located.
The funding appropriated for this purpose is not subject to section 54-44.1-11 and any
unexpended funds are available during the biennium beginning July 1, 2017, and
ending June 30, 2019. The Bank of North Dakota shall report to the legislative
management and to the appropriations committees of the sixty-fifth legislative
assembly on the use of the funding provided for the North Dakota financial center,
including the amounts spent to date and the amounts anticipated to be continued into
the 2017-19 biennium, and on the progress of the project.

SECTION 26. EMERGENCY. The amount of $13,625,322 from the general fund
in the capital assets line item in subdivision 1 of section 1 of this Act for the core library
expansion project and sections 6 and 13 of this Act are declared to be an emergency
measure."

Renumber accordingly
STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT:
House Bill No. 1014 - Summary of Senate Action

Base House Senate Senate
Budget Version Changes Version

Industrial Commission

Total all funds $62,307,117 $48,588,205 $18,666,557 $67,254,762

Less estimated income 40,973,792 16,999,407 (4,960) 16,994,447

General fund $21,333,325 $31,588,798 $18,671,517 $50,260,315
Bank of North Dakota

Total all funds $53,150,147 $59,425,831 $16,861,470 $76,287,301

Less estimated income 53,150,147 59,425,831 16,861,470 76,287,301

General fund $0 $0 $0 $0
Housing Finance Agency

Total all funds $41,007,491 $37,553,592 $9,966,497 $47,520,089

Less estimated income 41,007,491 37,553,592 (33,503) 37,520,089

General fund $0 $0 $10,000,000 $10,000,000
Mill and Elevator

Total all funds $52,123,557 $64,016,571 $299,327 $64,315,898

Less estimated income 52,123,557 64,016,571 299,327 64,315,898

General fund $0 $0 $0 $0
Bill total

Total all funds $208,588,312 $209,584,199 $45,793,851 $255,378,050

Less estimated income 187,254,987 177,995,401 17,122,334 195,117,735

General fund $21,333,325 $31,588,798 $28,671,517 $60,260,315

House Bill No. 1014 - Industrial Commission - Senate Action

Base House Senate Senate
Budget Version Changes Version
Salaries and wages $17,873,876 $22,218,954 $1,957,427 $24,176,381
Operating expenses 4,775,576 6,328,422 3,042,308 9,370,730
Capital assets 13,666,822 13,666,822
Grants 19,500,000 5,000,000 5,000,000
Grants - bond payments 19,809,969 15,040,829 15,040,829
Accrued leave payments 347,696
Total all funds $62,307,117 $48,588,205 $18,666,557 $67,254,762
Less estimated income 40,973,792 16,999,407 (4,960) 16,994,447
General fund $21,333,325 $31,588,798 $18,671,517 $50,260,315
FTE 98.75 11475 12.00 126.75
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Department No. 405 - Industrial Commission - Detail of Senate Changes

Adjusts
Funding for Adds Funding Adds One-Time
Health for Increased Adds One-Time Funding for
Insurance Adds Funding Adds Funding Core Library Funding for Core Library
Premium for FTE for Contingent Operating Possible Expansion
Increases' Positions’ FTE Positions’ Expenses* Litigation® Project’
Salaries and wages ($84,323) $360,700 $1,681,050
Operating expenses 19,278 544,030 20,500 2,500,000
Capital assets 13,625,322
Grants
Grants - bond payments
Accrued leave payments
Total all funds ($84,323) $379,978 $2,225,080 $20,500 $2,500,000 $13,625,322
Less estimated income (4,960) 0 0 0 0 0
General fund ($79,363) $379,978 $2,225,080 $20,500 $2,500,000 $13,625,322
FTE 0.00 2.00 10.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Corrects
Funding for
ATV's and Total Senate
Trailers’ Changes
Salaries and wages $1,957,427
Operating expenses (41,500) 3,042,308
Capital assets 41,500 13,666,822
Grants
Grants - bond payments
Accrued leave payments
Total all funds $0 $18,666,557
Less estimated income 0 (4,960)
General fund $0 $18,671,517
FTE 0.00 12.00

" Funding for employee health insurance premiums is adjusted to reflect the revised premium estimate of
$1,130.22 per month.

2 The following funding from the general fund and FTE positions are added:

FTE Salaries and Operating
Positions Wages Expenses Total General Fund
Pipeline regulatory supervisor position 1.00 $230,700 $9,639 $240,339
Administrative assistant position 1.00 130,000 9,639 139,639
Total 2.00 $360,700 $19,278 $379,978

Reengrossed House Bill No. 1358 provides for a pipeline regulatory program. Of the funding from the
general fund and the FTE positions included in this amendment, the Industrial Commission anticipates
using the following for the implementation of a pipeline regulatory program:

FTE Positions Total General Fund

Engineering technician position (Included in House version) 4,00 $864,683
Reclamation specialist position (Included in House version) 1.00 230,911
Pipeline engineering technician position (Included in House version) 1.00 162,018
Pipeline regulatory supervisor position (Added by Senate above) 1.00 240,339
Administrative assistant (Added by Senate above) 1.00 139,639
Total 8.00 $1,637,590
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3 Funding is added for 10 petroleum engineering contingency FTE positions. One position is added for
every 10 drilling rigs when the monthly average drilling rig count exceeds 110 drilling rigs as identified in
Section 14 of the bill. Each position includes $168,105 for salaries and wages and $54,403 for operating
expenses for total funding of $222,508.

4 This amendment adds funding for increased operating expenses related to the core library expansion
project.

® One-time funding is added for possible litigation costs related to hydraulic fracturing and other
regulatory disputes.

& One-time funding is added for a core library expansion project.

" This amendment changes the funding for ATV's and trailers from the operating expenses line item to
the capital assets line item.

This amendment also:
* Adds a section to identify the criteria for the 10 petroleum engineering contingency FTE
positions;
* Provides an exemption for 2013-15 biennium litigation funding from the general fund; and
« Provides an emergency clause for the core library expansion project funding, requires the
Industrial Commission to report to the Legislative Management on the progress of the project,
and provides carryover authority for the funding into the 2017-19 biennium.

House Bill No. 1014 - Bank of North Dakota - Senate Action

Base House Senate Senate
Budget Version Changes Version
Capital assets $745,000 $745,000 $17,000,000 $17,745,000
Bank of North Dakota 51,523,916 58,680,831 (138,530) 58,542,301
operations
Accrued leave payments 881,231
Total all funds $53,150,147 $59,425,831 $16,861,470 $76,287,301
Less estimated income 53,150,147 59,425,831 16,861,470 76,287,301
General fund $0 $0 $0 $0
FTE 179.50 181.50 0.00 181.50

Adjusts
Funding for
Health Adds One-Time
Insurance Funding For
Premium Financial Total Senate
Increases’ Center Project’ Changes
Capital assets $17,000,000 $17,000,000
Bank of North Dakota (138,530) (138,530)
operations
Accrued leave payments
Total all funds ($138,530) $17,000,000 $16,861,470
Less estimated income (138,530) 17,000,000 16,861,470
General fund $0 $0 $0
FTE 0.00 0.00 0.00
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' Funding for employee health insurance premiums is adjusted to reflect the revised premium estimate of
$1,130.22 per month.

2 One-time funding from the Bank of North Dakota's assets is added for a financial center construction
project.

This amendment also:

* Provides for a medical partnership in assisting community expansion program to provide interest
rate buydowns for medical infrastructure loans for the 2015-17 biennium and provides an
emergency clause for the program.

+ Requires the Bank of North Dakota to make payments in lieu of property taxes on a financial
center building constructed on the Bank's property.

* Provides an exemption for funding for the construction of a financial center and requires the
Industrial Commission to report to the Legislative Management on the progress of the project.

House Bill No. 1014 - Housing Finance Agency - Senate Action

Base House Senate Senate
Budget Version Changes Version
Salaries and wages $7,434,877 $7,778,537 ($33,503) $7,745,034
Operating expenses 3,791,758 3,744,275 3,744,275
Grants 29,533,050 25,930,780 25,930,780
HFA contingencies 100,000 100,000 100,000
Accrued leave payments 147,806
Housing incentive fund 10,000,000 10,000,000
Total all funds $41,007,491 $37,553,592 $9,966,497 $47,520,089
Less estimated income 41,007,491 37,553,592 (33,503) 37,520,089
General fund $0 $0 $10,000,000 $10,000,000
FTE 46.00 46.00 0.00 46.00

Department No. 473 - Housing Finance Agency - Detail of Senate Changes

Adjusts
Funding for
Health General Fund
Insurance Transfer to
Premium Housing Total Senate
Increases' Incentive Fund? Changes
Salaries and wages ($33,503) ($33,503)
Operating expenses
Grants
HFA contingencies
Accrued leave payments
Housing incentive fund 10,000,000 10,000,000
Total all funds ($33,503) $10,000,000 $9,966,497
Less estimated income (33,503) 0 (33,503)
General fund $0 $10,000,000 $10,000,000
FTE 0.00 0.00 0.00

' Funding for employee health insurance premiums is adjusted to reflect the revised premium estimate of
$1,130.22 per month.

2 This amendment adds a section to provide for a transfer of $10 million from the general fund to the
housing incentive fund and provides an emergency clause for the transfer.
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This amendment provides an exemption for 2013-15 biennium flood-impacted housing assistance
funding from the state disaster relief fund.

House Bill No. 1014 - Mill and Elevator - Senate Action

Base House Senate Senate
Budget Version Changes Version
Salaries and wages $29,141,750 $35,979,571 $299,327 $36,278,898
Operating expenses 21,796,000 27,327,000 27,327,000
Contingencies 400,000 500,000 500,000
Agriculture promotion 210,000 210,000 210,000
Accrued leave payments 575,807
Total all funds $52,123,557 $64,016,571 $299,327 $64,315,898
Less estimated income 52,123,557 64,016,571 299,327 64,315,898
General fund $0 $0 $0 $0
FTE 135.00 147.00 0.00 147.00

Adjusts
Funding for
Health
Insurance Adds Funding
Premium for Market Total Senate
Increases' Equity? Changes
Salaries and wages ($110,673) $410,000 $299,327
Operating expenses
Contingencies
Agriculture promotion
Accrued leave payments
Total all funds ($110,673) $410,000 $299,327
Less estimated income (110,673) 410,000 299,327
General fund $0 $0 $0
FTE 0.00 0.00 0.00

Department No. 475 - Mill and Elevator - Detail of Senate Changes

" Funding for employee health insurance premiums is adjusted to reflect the revised premium estimate of
$1,130.22 per month.

2 Funding is added for market equity adjustments.

This amendment also provides for a transfer of 50 percent of Mill and Elevator profits to the general fund
up to $8 million for the 2015-17 biennium. The House version provided for a transfer of 75 percent of the
Mill's profits without any limitation for the 2015-17 biennium.
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Com Standing Committee Report
April 9, 2015 7:50am

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

HB 1014, as engrossed: Appropriations Committee (Sen. Holmberg, Chairman)
recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends

DO PASS (13 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). Engrossed HB 1014

was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar.

Module ID: s_stcomrep_64_008
Carrier: Carlisle
Insert LC: 15.8122.02004 Title: 03000

Page 1, line 3, after the first semicolon insert "to provide a contingent appropriation;"

Page 1, line 3, replace "to provide legislative intent;" with "to create and enact a new section

to chapter 6-09;"

Page 1, line 6, replace the second "and" with "to provide exemptions; to provide legislative
intent; to provide for reports to legislative management;"

Page 1, line 7, after "date" insert "; and to declare an emergency"

Page 1, remove lines 19 through 24

Page 2, replace lines 1 through 3 with:

"Salaries and wages $17,873,876
Accrued leave payments 347,696
Operating expenses 4,775,576
Capital assets 0
Grants 19,500,000
Grants - bond payments 19,809,969
Total all funds $62,307,117
Less estimated income 40,973,792
Total general fund $21,333,325
Full-time equivalent positions 98.75

Page 2, replace lines 8 through 11 with:

"Bank of North Dakota operations $51,523,916
Accrued leave payments 881,231
Capital assets 745,000
Total special funds $53,150,147
Page 2, replace line 17 with:

"Salaries and wages $29,141,750
Page 2, replace line 22 with:

"Total from mill and elevator fund $52,123,557
Page 2, replace line 28 with:

"Salaries and wages $7,434,877
Page 3, replace line 2 with:

"Total special funds $41,007,491

Page 3, replace lines 8 through 10 with:

$21,333,325
187,254,987
$208,588,312

"Grand total general fund
Grand total special funds
Grand total all funds

Page 3, replace line 17 with:

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 1

$6,302,505 $24,176,381
(347,696) 0
4,595,154 9,370,730
13,666,822 13,666,822
(14,500,000) 5,000,000
(4.769.140) 15.040.829
$4,947,645 $67,254,762
(23.979.345) 16.994.447
$28,926,990 $50,260,315
28.00 126.75"
$7,018,385 $58,542,301
(881,231) 0
17,000,000 17,745,000
$23,137,154  $76,287,301"
$7,137,148  $36,278,898"
$12,192,341  $64,315,898"
$310,157 $7,745,034"
($3,487,402)  $37,520,089"
$38,926,990 $60,260,315
7.862.748 195,117,735
$46,789,738  $255,378,050"

s_stcomrep_64_008




Com Standing Committee Report
April 9, 2015 7:50am

"Possible litigation
Page 3, after line 26, insert:

"Financial center project
Core library expansion project

Page 3, remove line 30

Page 4, replace lines 1 and 2 with:
"Total all funds

Total special fund

Total general fund

Page 5, after line 2, insert:

Module ID: s_stcomrep_64_008
Carrier: Carlisle
Insert LC: 15.8122.02004 Title: 03000

1,000,000 2,500,000"

0 17,000,000

0 13,625,322"
$68,060,800 $38,745,965
51,500,000 17,000,000
$16,560,800 $21,745,965"

"SECTION 6. APPROPRIATION - TRANSFER - GENERAL FUND TO
HOUSING INCENTIVE FUND. There is appropriated out of any moneys in the
general fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of
$10,000,000, which the office of management and budget shall transfer to the
housing incentive fund for the period beginning with the effective date of this Act and
ending June 30, 2017. The funding provided in this section is considered a one-time

funding item."

Page 6, line 1, replace "seventy-five" with "fifty"

Page 6, line 3, after "programs" insert "or the sum of $8,000,000, whichever is less,"

Page 6, after line 5, insert:

"SECTION 13. BANK OF NORTH DAKOTA - MEDICAL PARTNERSHIP IN
ASSISTING COMMUNITY EXPANSION PROGRAM. The Bank of North Dakota
shall develop a medical partnership in assisting community expansion program to
assist in the financing of critical access hospital medical infrastructure projects, for
the period beginning with the effective date of this Act and ending June 30, 2017.
The Bank shall adopt policies and procedures to implement this program.
Notwithstanding section 6-09.14-03, the Bank may originate loans under this
program or participate with a lead financial institution. Eligible projects that receive
funding for an interest rate buydown under this program are not subject to the
community commitment requirement in section 6-09.14-03, the maximum interest
rate buydown limitation in subsection 4 of section 6-09.14-04, or the state grantor
recipient reporting requirement in section 54-60.1-05."

Page 6, after line 21, insert:

"SECTION 15. CONTINGENT APPROPRIATION - INDUSTRIAL
COMMISSION FUNDING. The amount of $2,225,080 from the general fund and 10
full-time equivalent positions included in subdivision 1 of section 1 of this Act may be
spent only if the monthly average drilling rig count exceeds 110 drilling rigs. The
industrial commission shall notify the office of management and budget and the
legislative council each time one or more full-time equivalent positions are authorized
to be hired. For purposes of this section, the "monthly average drilling rig count"
means the amount, rounded to the nearest whole drilling rig, calculated by dividing
the sum of the daily drilling rig counts for a calendar month by the number of days in
the month. Of the $2,225,080 and the 10 full-time equivalent positions in this section,
the industrial commission may spend funding and hire full-time equivalent positions,

as follows:

1. $222,508, of which $168,105 is from the salaries and wages line item
and $54,403 is from the operating expenses line item, and one full-time

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE
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Com Standing Committee Report

Module ID: s_stcomrep_64_008

April 9, 2015 7:50am Carrier: Carlisle

10.

Insert LC: 15.8122.02004 Title: 03000

equivalent position if the monthly average drilling rig count exceeds 110
drilling rigs.

In addition to the funding and full-time equivalent positions authorized in
subsection 1, $222,508, of which $168,105 is from the salaries and
wages line item and $54,403 is from the operating expenses line item,
and one full-time equivalent position if the monthly average drilling rig
count exceeds 120 drilling rigs.

In addition to the funding and full-time equivalent positions authorized in
subsections 1 and 2, $222,508, of which $168,105 is from the salaries
and wages line item and $54,403 is from the operating expenses line
item, and one full-time equivalent position if the monthly average drilling
rig count exceeds 130 drilling rigs.

In addition to the funding and full-time equivalent positions authorized in
subsections 1 through 3, $222 508, of which $168,105 is from the
salaries and wages line item and $54,403 is from the operating expenses
line item, and one full-time equivalent position if the monthly average
drilling rig count exceeds 140 drilling rigs.

In addition to the funding and full-time equivalent positions authorized in
subsections 1 through 4, $222,508, of which $168,105 is from the
salaries and wages line item and $54,403 is from the operating expenses
line item, and one full-time equivalent position if the monthly average
drilling rig count exceeds 150 drilling rigs.

In addition to the funding and full-time equivalent positions authorized in
subsections 1 through 5, $222,508, of which $168,105 is from the
salaries and wages line item and $54,403 is from the operating expenses
line item, and one full-time equivalent position if the monthly average
drilling rig count exceeds 160 drilling rigs.

In addition to the funding and full-time equivalent positions authorized in
subsections 1 through 6, $222,508, of which $168,105 is from the
salaries and wages line item and $54,403 is from the operating expenses
line item, and one full-time equivalent position if the monthly average
drilling rig count exceeds 170 drilling rigs.

In addition to the funding and full-time equivalent positions authorized in
subsections 1 through 7, $222,508, of which $168,105 is from the
salaries and wages line item and $54,403 is from the operating expenses
line item, and one full-time equivalent position if the monthly average
drilling rig count exceeds 180 drilling rigs.

In addition to the funding and full-time equivalent positions authorized in
subsections 1 through 8, $222,508, of which $168,105 is from the
salaries and wages line item and $54,403 is from the operating expenses
line item, and one full-time equivalent position if the monthly average
drilling rig count exceeds 190 drilling rigs.

In addition to the funding and full-time equivalent positions authorized in
subsections 1 through 9, $222,508, of which $168,105 is from the
salaries and wages line item and $54,403 is from the operating expenses
line item, and one full-time equivalent position if the monthly average
drilling rig count exceeds 200 drilling rigs.

SECTION 16. A new section to chapter 6-09 of the North Dakota Century
Code is created and enacted as follows:

North Dakota financial center - Lease rates - Payments in lieu of taxes.
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The North Dakota financial center is a building that is owned by the Bank of
North Dakota and is adjacent to the building in which the Bank of North Dakota is
housed. The Bank of North Dakota shall lease the space in the North Dakota
financial center to other state agencies based on market rate lease prices. The Bank
of North Dakota shall make payments in lieu of property taxes in the manner and
according to the conditions and procedures that would apply if the building were
privately owned."

Page 7, line 2, after the period insert "The origination fee assessed to grant recipients may
not exceed five percent of the project award."

Page 10, replace lines 8 through 13 with:

"SECTION 22. HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY - FLOOD-IMPACTED
HOUSING ASSISTANCE - EXEMPTION. The amount appropriated for flood-
impacted housing assistance in section 4 of chapter 16 of the 2013 Session Laws is
not subject to section 54-44.1-11 and any unexpended funds are available during the
biennium beginning July 1, 2015, and ending June 30, 2017.

SECTION 23. INDUSTRIAL COMMISSION - POSSIBLE FEDERAL
AGENCY LITIGATION - EXEMPTION. The amount appropriated for possible federal
agency litigation in subdivision 1 of section 1 of chapter 45 of the 2013 Session Laws
is not subject to section 54-44.1-11 and any unexpended funds are available during
the biennium beginning July 1, 2015, and ending June 30, 2017.

SECTION 24. INDUSTRIAL COMMISSION - CORE LIBRARY EXPANSION
PROJECT - EXEMPTION - LEGISLATIVE MANAGEMENT REPORT. The capital
assets line item in subdivision 1 of section 1 of this Act includes $13,625,322 from
the general fund for the purpose of expanding the core library. The funding
appropriated for this purpose is not subject to section 54-44.1-11 and any
unexpended funds are available during the biennium beginning July 1, 2017, and
ending June 30, 2019. The industrial commission shall report to the legislative
management and to the appropriations committees of the sixty-fifth legislative
assembly on the use of the funding provided for the core library project, including the
amounts spent to date and the amounts anticipated to be continued into the 2017-19
biennium, and on the progress of the project.

SECTION 25. BANK OF NORTH DAKOTA - NORTH DAKOTA FINANCIAL
CENTER - EXEMPTION - LEGISLATIVE MANAGEMENT REPORT. The capital
assets line item in subdivision 2 of section 1 of this Act includes $17,000,000 from
the assets of the Bank of North Dakota for the purpose of constructing a North
Dakota financial center on a site adjacent to the existing building in which the Bank is
located. The funding appropriated for this purpose is not subject to section
54-44.1-11 and any unexpended funds are available during the biennium beginning
July 1, 2017, and ending June 30, 2019. The Bank of North Dakota shall report to the
legislative management and to the appropriations committees of the sixty-fifth
legislative assembly on the use of the funding provided for the North Dakota financial
center, including the amounts spent to date and the amounts anticipated to be
continued into the 2017-19 biennium, and on the progress of the project.

SECTION 26. EMERGENCY. The amount of $13,625,322 from the general
fund in the capital assets line item in subdivision 1 of section 1 of this Act for the core
library expansion project and sections 6 and 13 of this Act are declared to be an
emergency measure."

Renumber accordingly

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT:

House Bill No. 1014 - Summary of Senate Action
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Base House Senate Senate
Budget Version Changes Version
Industrial Commission
Total all funds $62,307,117 $48,588,205 $18,666,557 $67,254,762
Less estimated income 40,973,792 16,999,407 (4,960) 16,994,447
General fund $21,333,325 $31,588,798 $18,671,517 $50,260,315
Bank of North Dakota
Total all funds $53,150,147 $59,425,831 $16,861,470 $76,287,301
Less estimated income 53,150,147 59,425,831 16,861,470 76,287,301
General fund $0 $0 $0 $0
Housing Finance Agency
Total all funds $41,007,491 $37,553,592 $9,966,497 $47,520,089
Less estimated income 41,007,491 37,553,592 (33,503) 37,520,089
General fund $0 $0 $10,000,000 $10,000,000
Mill and Elevator
Total all funds $52,123,557 $64,016,571 $299,327 $64,315,898
Less estimated income 52,123,557 64,016,571 299,327 64,315,898
General fund $0 $0 $0 $0
Bill total
Total all funds $208,588,312 $209,584,199 $45,793,851 $255,378,050
Less estimated income 187,254,987 177,995,401 17,122,334 195,117,735
General fund $21,333,325 $31,588,798 $28,671,517 $60,260,315
House Bill No. 1014 - Industrial Commission - Senate Action
Base House Senate Senate
Budget Version Changes Version
Salaries and wages $17,873,876 $22,218,954 $1,957,427 $24,176,381
Operating expenses 4,775,576 6,328,422 3,042,308 9,370,730
Capital assets 13,666,822 13,666,822
Grants 19,500,000 5,000,000 5,000,000
Grants - bond payments 19,809,969 15,040,829 15,040,829
Accrued leave payments 347,696
Total all funds $62,307,117 $48,588,205 $18,666,557 $67,254,762
Less estimated income 40,973,792 16,999,407 (4,960) 16,994,447
General fund $21,333,325 $31,588,798 $18,671,517 $50,260,315
FTE 98.75 114.75 12.00 126.75

Department No. 405 - Industrial Commission - Detail of Senate Changes

Salaries and wages
Operating expenses
Capital assets

Grants

Grants - bond payments
Accrued leave payments

Total all funds
Less estimated income

General fund

FTE

Salaries and wages
Operating expenses
Capital assets

Grants

Grants - bond payments
Accrued leave payments

Total all funds

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE

Adjusts
Funding for Adds Funding Adds One-Time
Health for Increased Adds One-Time Funding for
Insurance Adds Funding Adds Funding Core Library Funding for Core Library
Premium for FTE for Contingent Operating Possible Expansion
Increases’ Positions’ FTE Positions® Expenses* Litigation® Project®
($84,323) $360,700 $1,681,050
19,278 544,030 20,500 2,500,000
13,625,322
($84,323) $379,978 $2,225,080 $20,500 $2,500,000 $13,625,322
(4,960) 0 0 0 0 0
($79,363) $379,978 $2,225,080 $20,500 $2,500,000 $13,625,322
0.00 2.00 10.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Corrects ]
Funding for
ATV's and Total Senate
Trailers’ Changes
$1,957,427
(41,500) 3,042,308
41,500 13,666,822
$0 $18,666,557

Page 5

s_stcomrep_64_008




Com Standing Committee Report Module ID: s_stcomrep_64_008
April 9, 2015 7:50am Carrier: Carlisle
Insert LC: 15.8122.02004 Title: 03000

= e

Less estimated income B 0  (4,960) |
General fund $0 $18,671,517
FTE 0.00 12.00

' Funding for employee health insurance premiums is adjusted to reflect the revised
premium estimate of $1,130.22 per month.

2 The following funding from the general fund and FTE positions are added:

FTE Positions  Salaries and Wages  Operating Expenses Total General Fund

Pipeline regulatory supervisor position 1.00 $230,700 $9,639 $240,339
Administrative assistant position 1.00 130,000 9,639 139,639
Total 2.00 $360,700 $19,278 $379,978

Reengrossed House Bill No. 1358 provides for a pipeline regulatory program. Of the funding
from the general fund and the FTE positions included in this amendment, the Industrial
Commission anticipates using the following for the implementation of a pipeline regulatory
program:

FTE Positions Total General Fund
Engineering technician position (Included in House version) 4,00 $864,683
Reclamation specialist position (Included in House version) 1.00 230,911
Pipeline engineering technician position (Included in House version) 1.00 162,018
Pipeline regulatory supervisor position (Added by Senate above) 1.00 240,339
Administrative assistant (Added by Senate above) 1.00 139,639
Total 8.00 $1,637,590

® Funding is added for 10 petroleum engineering contingency FTE positions. One position is
added for every 10 drilling rigs when the monthly average drilling rig count exceeds 110
drilling rigs as identified in Section 14 of the bill. Each position includes $168,105 for
salaries and wages and $54,403 for operating expenses for total funding of $222 508.

“ This amendment adds funding for increased operating expenses related to the core library
expansion project.

® One-time funding is added for possible litigation costs related to hydraulic fracturing and
other regulatory disputes.

5 One-time funding is added for a core library expansion project.

7 This amendment changes the funding for ATV's and trailers from the operating expenses
line item to the capital assets line item.

This amendment also:

« Adds a section to identify the criteria for the 10 petroleum engineering contingency
FTE positions;

«  Provides an exemption for 2013-15 biennium litigation funding from the general
fund; and

« Provides an emergency clause for the core library expansion project funding,
requires the Industrial Commission to report to the Legislative Management on the
progress of the project, and provides carryover authority for the funding into the
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House Bill No. 1014 - Bank of North Dakota - Senate Action

Capital assets

Bank of North Dakota
operations

Accrued leave payments

Total all funds
Less estimated income

General fund

FTE

Base House Senate Senate

Budget Version Changes Version
$745,000 $745,000 $17,000,000 $17,745,000
51,523,916 58,680,831 (138,530) 58,542,301

881,231

$53,150,147 $59,425,831 $16,861,470 $76,287,301
53,150,147 59,425,831 16,861,470 76,287,301
$0 $0 $0 $0
179.50 181.50 0.00 181.50

Department No. 471 - Bank of North Dakota - Detail of Senate Changes

Capital assets

Bank of North Dakota
operations

Accrued leave payments

Total all funds
Less estimated income

General fund

FTE

Adjusts
Funding for
Health Adds One-Time
Insurance Funding For
Premium Financial Total Senate
Increases’ Center Project’ Changes
$17,000,000 $17,000,000
(138,530) (138,530)
($138,530) $17,000,000 $16,861,470
(138,530) 17,000,000 16,861,470
$0 $0 $0
0.00 0.00 0.00

" Funding for employee health insurance premiums is adjusted to reflect the revised
premium estimate of $1,130.22 per month.

2 One-time funding from the Bank of North Dakota's assets is added for a financial center

construction project.

This amendment also:

« Provides for a medical partnership in assisting community expansion program to
provide interest rate buydowns for medical infrastructure loans for the 2015-17

biennium and provides an emergency clause for the program.

* Requires the Bank of North Dakota to make payments in lieu of property taxes on a

financial center building constructed on the Bank's property.

* Provides an exemption for funding for the construction of a financial center and
requires the Industrial Commission to report to the Legislative Management on the
progress of the project.

House Bill No. 1014 - Housing Finance Agency - Senate Action

Salaries and wages
Operating expenses
Grants

HFA contingencies
Accrued leave payments
Housing incentive fund

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE

Base House Senate Senate

Budget Version Changes Version
$7,434,877 $7,778,537 ($33,503) $7,745,034
3,791,758 3,744,275 3,744 275
29,533,050 25,930,780 25,930,780
100,000 100,000 100,000

147,806

10,000,000 10,000,000
$41,007,491 $37,553,592 $9,966,497 $47,520,089
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Total all funds
Less estimated income

General fund

FTE
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41,007,491 37,663,592 (33,503) 37,520,089
$0 $0 $10,000,000 $10,000,000
46.00 46.00 0.00 46.00

Department No. 473 - Housing Finance Agency - Detail of Senate Changes

Salaries and wages
Operating expenses
Grants

HFA contingencies
Accrued leave payments
Housing incentive fund

Total all funds
Less estimated income

General fund

FTE

Adjusts
Funding for
Health General Fund
Insurance Transfer to
Premium Housing Total Senate
Increases’ Incentive Fund® Changes
($33,503) ($33,503)
10,000,000 10,000,000
($33,503) $10,000,000 $9,966,497
(33,503) 0 (33,503)
$0 $10,000,000 $10,000,000
0.00 0.00 0.00

' Funding for employee health insurance premiums is adjusted to reflect the revised
premium estimate of $1,130.22 per month.

2 This amendment adds a section to provide for a transfer of $10 million from the general
fund to the housing incentive fund and provides an emergency clause for the transfer.

This amendment provides an exemption for 2013-15 biennium flood-impacted housing
assistance funding from the state disaster relief fund.

House Bill No. 1014 - Mill and Elevator - Senate Action

Salaries and wages
Operating expenses
Contingencies
Agriculture promotion
Accrued leave payments

Total all funds
Less estimated income

General fund

FTE

Department No. 475 - Mill and Elevator - Detail of Senate Changes

Salaries and wages
Operating expenses
Contingencies
Agriculture promotion
Accrued leave payments

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE

Base House Senate Senate
Budget Version Changes Version
$29,141,750 $35,979,571 $299,327 $36,278,898

21,796,000 27,327,000 27,327,000

400,000 500,000 500,000

210,000 210,000 210,000
575,807

$52,123,557 $64,016,571 $299,327 $64,315,898

52,123,557 64,016,571 299,327 64,315,898

$0 $0 $0 $0

135.00 147.00 0.00 147.00

Adjusts
Funding for
Health
Insurance Adds Funding
Premium for Market Total Senate
Increases’ Equity® Changes
($110,673) $410,000 $299,327
($110,673) $410,000 $299,327
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Total all funds i ’ o

Less estimated income (110,673) 410,000 299,327
General fund $0 $0 $0
FTE 0.00 0.00 0.00

' Funding for employee health insurance premiums is adjusted to reflect the revised
premium estimate of $1,130.22 per month.

2 Funding is added for market equity adjustments.

This amendment also provides for a transfer of 50 percent of Mill and Elevator profits to the
general fund up to $8 million for the 2015-17 biennium. The House version provided for a
transfer of 75 percent of the Mill's profits without any limitation for the 2015-17 biennium.
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the state
industrial commission and the agencies under the management of the industrial
commission; to provide a continuing appropriation; to provide a contingent appropriation; to
authorize transfers; to provide legislative intent; to create and enact a new section to
chapter 6-09 and a new section to chapter 54-17.8 of the North Dakota Century Code,
relating to a new short line railroad loan program and the North Dakota outdoor heritage
fund; to amend and reenact sections 54-17-40, 54-17-41, and 57-38-01.32 of the North
Dakota Century Code and section 22 of chapter 579 of the 2011 Session Laws, relating to
the housing incentive fund credits and the use of the flex PACE program; and to provide an
expiration date.

Minutes: Attachment: #A.

Chairman Brandenburg: Opened the conference committee on HB1014.
Senator Carlisle: Explained the changes to HB1014.

Chairman Brandenburg: What the Senate did then, was they added the $17million in for
the financial center project, and also just the health insurance premium. Did you make any
other changes to the Bank of North Dakota or is that it?

Senator Carlisle: We had another bill HB1443. A couple of entities had kind of tagged
onto that bill, and one was critical access. So Mr. Hardmeyer set up a fund; it's called a
MEDPACE Fund, and we took that out of HB1443, and basically put a MEDPACE fund
mechanism in with the Bank. So the critical access folks have an avenue to go to, and
that's where that component came from.

Chairman Brandenburg: So it's like AGPACE?
Senator Carlisle: It's buying the interest rate down.

Chairman Brandenburg: How much did you put into it?
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Eric Hardmeyer, President and CEO, Bank of North Dakota: The intent is to use
existing buy down dollars that are left over from this current biennium, which we anticipate
to be $7 million to $8 million left over out of the $38 million that was appropriated from our
earnings this biennium; coupled with $5 million to $6 million out of next biennium's $40
million appropriation. We're not asking for any new dollars to fund this. We're just going to
carve it out of the existing PACE dollars that came from this biennium's appropriation and
next bienniuim's appropriation.

Chairman Brandenburg: So it's no new dollars; just some carryover dollars and probably
carryover dollars.

Eric Hardmeyer: Yes,
Senator Carlisle: That's where the $15 million came from?

Eric Hardmeyer: Yes. It's going to take care of all the critical access hospitals that were in
HB1443, is the idea. So we pulled that out and funded it this way.

Chairman Brandenburg: So what you're saying is that there is $7 million to $8 milliion
roughly, and will probably be the same next year if you have the same usage. So that's
where you're getting the $15 million.

Eric Hardmeyer: Yes.

Senator Holmberg: Do we typically as a legislature pass on approving investments that
you as a bank make? If you make an investment, do we pass on that? Do we say yes or
no? What I'm getting at, is the building an investment? And because it's being built on state
property, that's why you have to come to us?

Eric Hardmeyer: No, you don't typically approve our investments because we have
$3billion plus of investments in our portfolio; nor any loans or any other activity. The idea
was that when we built the building, this is a capitol outlay that we felt it was prudent to get
legislative authorization to do that.

Senator Holmberg: If we turned it down, you won't go behind our backs?
Eric Hardmeyer: No.

Representative Kempenich: It says, provides an exemption for funding for construction.
Did we have that in on the first go-around? Or where did that come from?

Adam Mathiak, Fiscal Analyst, ND Legislative Council: When the Senate included the
money for the bank to construct the building, it seemed to make sense that the project
could extend beyond just the initial biennium. They haven't really done any design work or
anything like that. So, since the project would probably carry over for multiple bienniums, it
seemed to be prudent to include the exemption initially here so that they wouldn't have to
come back next session and ask for an exemption at that time. It probably makes it a little
bit easier for budgeting and keeping track. Along with that, there was the reporting



House Appropriations Committee - Government Operations Division
HB 1014

4/16/2015

Page 3

requirement that they should report on the status of the project, as well as how much they
anticipate would be carried over.

Representative Kempenich: That's if it runs into multiple bienniums?

Adam Mathiak: Yes.

Senator Holmberg continued with the changes to the bill.

Chairman Brandenburg: I[f there is one building that needs to get built, it is the core
library. I've actually been there and seen the rocks and seen the display and how full they
are.

Senator Carlisle continued with his explanation.

Representative Kempenich: ( See attachment A.)

Senator Carlisle: How do you like the proposed trigger FTE at this point?

Representative Kempenich: We triggered these in 2007. The issue that we're going to
have is we've laddered up from basically 40 or 50 and adding 30, and that's one of the
things. It is something that isn't happening today.

Senator Carlisle: The trigger on the oil rigs will be another issue?

Representative Kempenich: Yes.

Senator Carlisle continued with his explanation.

Chairman Brandenburg: | think we put the $30 million tax credits in there and you guys
added the $10 million in general fund.

Senator Carlisle: Yes.
Senator Carlisle continued with his explanation.

Chairman Brandenburg: | think we were at 7 or 8 for a while, and then we lowered it to 5
when we left. We can talk about it.

Senator Carlisle: The Mineral Resources is fairly complicated because of the other
pipeline bill, that HB1358, and some employees; that was a pipeline issue?

Lynn Helms, Director, ND Mineral Resources: That's correct. There was one FTE,
engineering technician, as a pipeline inspector included in the 7 FTE's that the House sent
over. When we looked at the requirements of implementing HB1358, which has passed
both bodies of the legislature now, it was a total number of 8 FTE's required to implement
that progam.



House Appropriations Committee - Government Operations Division
HB 1014

4/16/2015

Page 4

Chairman Brandenburg: Are you requesting two FTE's or more?

Lynn Helms: The request as it comes from the Senate is two additional FTE's to what the
House sent over, and then the contingencies.

Representative Kempenich: We'd be looking at 18 FTE's above the line and 10 below.
When this was proposed on the House side, they originally had contingency employees
listed and we were above the water and below the water. We took all but two of the above
the water ones, and went with 16.

Lynn Helms: When you passed the 16, 15 were for DMR and one was for the water
system.

Senator Carlisle: Continued with his explanation of the changes.
Chairman Brandenburg: We very much agree with that.
Senator Carlisle: There is so much to sort through. We have the mill yet to talk about.

Chairman Brandenburg: This is a big budget. | know we're going to have more meetings
on this. Then we'll deal with housing and with the Mill.

Chairman Brandenburg: Closed the conference committee.
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the state
industrial commission and the agencies under the management of the industrial
commission; to provide a continuing appropriation; to provide a contingent appropriation; to
authorize transfers; to provide legislative intent; to create and enact a new section to
chapter 6-09 and a new section to chapter 54-17.8 of the North Dakota Century Code,
relating to a new short line railroad loan program and the North Dakota outdoor heritage
fund; to amend and reenact sections 54-17-40, 54-17-41, and 57-38-01.32 of the North
Dakota Century Code and section 22 of chapter 579 of the 2011 Session Laws, relating to
the housing incentive fund credits and the use of the flex PACE program; and to provide an
expiration date.

Minutes: See attachment A.

Chairman Brandenburg: Opened the conference committee on HB1014.
Representative Vigesaa: Filled in for Representative Kempenich.
Senator Carlisle: Continued with his explanation of changes to HB1014.

Chairman Brandenburg: What the House sent over was the $10 million but we had the
tax credits in there. Correct?

Senator Carlisle: Right.
Senator Carlisle continued with his explanation.

Senator Heckaman: They've been at 5% on the origination fees and putting a cap on it we
were reassured that they would stay under that.

Senator Carlisle continued with his explanation of changes.

Chairman Brandenburg: There's a market equity for the mill and elevator of $410,000.00.
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Senator Carlisle: It's for retention and recruitment of employees. They have several
employees that are going to reach the rule of 85.

Chairman Brandenburg: We're going to have to talk about that and with the profits we're
thinking of going back 50/50.

Senator Holmberg: We should consider going back to just current law. | believe that
would gain the general fund of $13 million.

Senator Carlisle: If | understand, we'll go back to current law and remove the cap?
Chairman Brandenburg: Yes.

Senator Carlisle continued with his explanation of changes.

Representative Vigesaa: On the core library, what number were we using?
Senator Carlisle: $13 million.

Chairman Brandenburg: We agree that that building needs to be done.

Senator Carlisle: If we made a concession on the mill; are you looking at any more money
on the ALUM cycle?

Chairman Brandenburg: | haven't had a deep conversation with everyone. | think we
need to discuss the ALUM cycle.

Senator Carlisle continued with his explanation.

Senator Carlisle: If the rig count goes up by 10 rigs for a month, he gets another
employee. Is there a semi-proposal on the rig?

Lynn Helms, Director, ND Department of Mineral Resources: The way it's written now
on the Senate side it would be one additional FTE for each increase in the rig count of 10.
The rig count would have to stay above that number for one full month. It would have to
exceed 110 rigs for a full month and then we would be authorized to add an FTE; beginning
at 110 and running up to 200.

Chairman Brandenburg: | visited with Representative Kempenich and | think he was
thinking a little higher rig count to start this out. We don't have to decide today. Our
thoughts in the House that we do need to do this but maybe not at 110.

Lynn Helms: | had some discussions with folks about this today. If we have to do with
less, we could stretch that to 15. If we stretch it to 15 we could maybe postpone that first
contingency FTE to 140 or 150 rigs and then bring them on every 10 rigs after that. |
wouldn't want to go beyond 150 for bringing that first contingency FTE back in.
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Chairman Brandenburg: We're searching for the right number.

Senator Carlisle: Lynn could work with Adam and get some ideas. There would be a
fiscal savings.

Lynn Helms: If we push it above 150 we would be in a position that we would have to
come in front of the emergency commission in a desperate situation.

Senator Carlisle: Should we take a shot at 140?
Chairman Brandenburg: Representative Kempenich had this all planned in his mind.

Senator Heckaman: When we talked before you said 110 up to 200. Is 200 still ok as a
top number for you?

Lynn Helms: We'd be very surprised under the current efficiencies to see more than 200
rgs.

Representative Vigesaa: Forecasting forward, when would 200 be hit based on your
projections?

Lynn Helms: We don't expect to get to 200 this biennium. Our expectation would be to
get to 170 to 180 by the end of the biennium. Once oil price hits that $65.00 number,
they're going to be anxious to get back to drilling.

Representative Hogan: During your hearing we had a lot of talk about recruitment and
retention of employees as being a major problem. Has that changed in the last two
months?

Lynn Helms: It has significantly. With the downturn in industry there has been a lot more
talent available. Recruitment has become significantly easier; retention is still an issue for
us.

Representative Hogan: If you have positions and are unable to fill them, they're kind of
pointless. You think you'll be able to fill the ones you have available now?

Lynn Helms: We can. If we get past the 150 I'd be really uncomfortable; because by then
the industry demand is back.

Senator Carlisle recapped the changes for the Bank of North Dakota.
Chairman Brandenburg: We're going to have to talk more about the $17 million project.

Senator Carlisle: We feel very strongly about the $10 million in housing. We're not in
support of the amendment Representative Kempenich handed out last night.

Lynn Helms: Explained attachment A.
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Senator Carlisle: Where's the petroleum council on this?
Lynn Helms: Absolutely.
Senator Carlisle: This came out of the energy committee; that's why we have this?

Lynn Helms: This came out of House energy and natural resources because the bill was
hitting snags and needed to get moved. The House concurred and Representative Porter
said we could take care of this with an amendment to the industrial commission budget bill.
I't s a technical correction as to where the monies will be appropriated. The petroleum
council is onboard with it.

Chairman Brandenburg: The way it is now the money goes directly to the industrial
commission. With this amendment it goes to oil and gas division; but the industrial
commission still authorizes approval of the project. Is that what it does?

Lynn Helms: It will actually go to the oil and gas research fund; which is that continuing
appropriation and the industrial commission administers that fund.

Representative Vigesaa: With the ALUM cycle fund, we reduced it on the House side
from $10 million to $5 million. There are some other line items in there; there are research
and project funding that they said they could use some of those funds because those are
other projects that aren't being completed or they're waiting for other things to happen
before they can use those funds. They can possibly use some of those line items to help
with the ALUM cycle funding for the time being.

Senator Carlisle: This would be a match.

Chairman Brandenburg: Closed the conference committee.
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the state
industrial commission and the agencies under the management of the industrial
commission; to provide a continuing appropriation; to provide a contingent appropriation; to
authorize transfers; to provide legislative intent; to create and enact a new section to
chapter 6-09 and a new section to chapter 54-17.8 of the North Dakota Century Code,
relating to a new short line railroad loan program and the North Dakota outdoor heritage
fund; to amend and reenact sections 54-17-40, 54-17-41, and 57-38-01.32 of the North
Dakota Century Code and section 22 of chapter 579 of the 2011 Session Laws, relating to
the housing incentive fund credits and the use of the flex PACE program; and to provide an
expiration date.

See attachment A

Minutes:

Chairman Brandenburg: Opened the conference committee on HB1014.
Representative Vigesaa: Substituted for Representative Kempenich.
Lynn Helms, Director, ND Department of Mineral Resources: See attachment A.

Chairman Brandenburg: When you get over 140 rigs, you're looking for one person and
$111,000.00.

Lynn Helms: When we go up to 150 we add the second one; every ten rigs after 140 we
would add a position and the salary dollars would layer in.

Chairman Brandenburg: You're jumping 15.
Lynn Helms: Yes. | added the position in at 150.

Senator Carlisle: We would be fairly comfortable with 140. If we save $1.4 million it's a
positive thing.

Representative Vigesaa: | think we could agree with that on the 140.
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Chairman Brandenburg: | think that's a good setup.

Senator Carlisle: The Senate feels very strongly about the $10 million general fund. We
want to hold the $10 million.

Eric Hardmeyer, President, Bank of North Dakota: | don't know if you've been tracking
SB2178; that is a bill that provides for school construction of $250 million. There is a buy
down associated with that; where the Bank of North Dakota will provide $250 million in
financing along with the $10.5 million buy down to reduce the rate from 5% down to 1%. In
talking with Senator Schaible, it is their intent to change the rate from 1% to 2%. That
means that the buy down we were going to provide at the request of majority leaders
Carlson and Schaible will be reduced from $10.5 million to $7 million. | talked to Senator
Carlisle and we would be willing to throw that $3 million back into the housing incentive
fund and couple that with another $2 million to provide $5 million of the $10 million that you
were looking for.

Chairman Brandenburg: You're going to free up $3 million with SB2178; going to 2% and
then throw another $2 million out of the bank to get it to $5 million; so you're just looking at
$5 million general fund.

Senator Carlisle: As long as Jolene gets her $10 million. If the bank president is
comfortable with the $3 million; we understand that and $2 million out of the bank profits.

Senator Holmberg: The $10 million that the Senate put in the bill for housing finance
would remain $10 million; but $5 million would be from the general fund and $5 million from
here, and we would turn back $5 million.

Chairman Brandenburg: That's the way I'm understanding it also.

Senator Carlisle: The House would be amenable to holding the $10 million under this new
scenario?

Chairman Brandenburg: We're going to have to talk more about it. We're open to all
opportunities. There's an amendment that Representative Porter had dealing with the
money going into the industrial commission and going to oil and gas research. We're
getting that corrected?

Senator Carlisle: That's a technical amendment.

Chairman Brandenburg: We're in agreement with the language tied to HB1358. We're in
agreement with the origination fees of 5%. We're in agreement with the core library, the
litigation fund, the original language with the mill and elevator. We have to talk about the
$410,000.00.

Senator Carlisle: It's in the operating line.
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Karlene Fine, Executive Director, ND Industrial Commission: It's retention recruitment;
some of the same issues you've seen in other agencies. This would be coming from the
mill's operating monies; but it shows up in the bill as part of the salary line item.

Chairman Brandenburg: What exactly is it?

Karlene Fine: It's the $410,000.00 that Mr. Taylor is requesting in his budget for retention
and recruitment. They're facing the issue of a number of their employees at the rule of 85;
they're key employees, so we were hoping to have some funding available to work with
retaining them or recruit.

Chairman Brandenburg: | understand what you're saying; but, it shows up as equity.

Senator Holmberg: Is there not a parallel here between this money and money that is
going out or has been discussed going out in agency budgets on the targeted equity? The
difference there is now it appears we're going to a pool for all agencies that were listed in
OMB's list with the exception of DOCR which is going to have a line for targeted equity.
The way this agency is constructed is different than the others so they would never have
been in there under targeted.

Senator Carlisle: Are you ok with the emergency clauses? Is the committee with
MEDPACE?

Chairman Brandenburg: | don't have a problem with the emergency clause.

Senator Holmberg: If we were to do the three items we talked about that impacted the
bottom line in this particular budget. The rig count would reduce general fund by $1.4
million over the Senate version. On the housing incentive fund; if we went with the
discussion points regarding $5 million from the bank, that would save a certain amount and
going back to 50% on the mill and elevator and removing the $13 million. Adam, could you
tell us where we're at?

Adam Mathiak, Fiscal Analyst, ND Legislative Council: | would have to double check
on the exact amounts; but it would be an increase to the general fund. It would reduce the
appropriation in these cases so there would be less of a deficit being reflected in budget
status. The mill profits would result in an revenue increase and the other two items
discussed would be a reduction in appropriations; because right now the Senate version of
the bill is being reflected in budget status. By reducing those two appropriations and
increasing the transfer there would be a gain. | don't know if the mill profits would result in
a $13 million increase. When it came over from the House it was at 75%; that results in
$20 million total of profits being added to the general fund; this would be less than that.
Right now in budget status it would be $8 million; so somewhere between the $8 million
and the $20 million, maybe around $14 million total.

Senator Holmberg: What | have is the addition of $6.4 million to the general fund and
there's going to be some additional revenue to the state by this other change.
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Karlene Fine: The estimate for the mill for profits for the next biennium is $29 million; so
half of that if $14.5 million.

Senator Holmberg: Eight million dollars is already reflected.

Karlene Fine: So $6.5 million and then you would have the $5 million that the bank is
offering and then you would have approximately $1.2 million.

Chairman Brandenburg: You have $5 million for housing, $6 million from the mill and
$1.4 million in wage reduction from the rig count from the Senate version. So we're looking
at about $12.5 million.

Representative Vigesaa: The House was at $5 million for the ALUM cycle; is that where
the Senate was also? There had been some thought about trying to increase that.

Senator Carlisle: We're at the $5 million but we're going to meet again.

Chairman Brandenburg: One other amendment that was submitted was Representative
Skarphol's; | don't think we're in favor of it.

Representative Hogan: | strongly support the ALUM cycle, but | think our housing needs
are much greater. | have asked for an amendment to look at possibly triggering additional
housing grants connected to the rig count if we have more money.

Senator Carlisle: What's your ballpark rig count for a trigger?

Representative Hogan: | originally thought about 175; but I'm still open to any
suggestions on that. From the housing issues we heard the need for $100 million; it's a

crisis and the earlier we can start housing, the better off we all are.

Chairman Brandenburg: Closed the conference committee.
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Explanation or reason for introduciion of bill/resolution:

A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the state
industrial commission and the agencies under the management of the industrial
commission; to provide a continuing appropriation; to provide a contingent appropriation; to
authorize transfers; to provide legislative intent; to create and enact a new section to
chapter 6-09 and a new section to chapter 54-17.8 of the North Dakota Century Code,
relating to a new short line railroad loan program and the North Dakota outdoor heritage
fund; to amend and reenact sections 54-17-40, 54-17-41, and 57-38-01.32 of the North
Dakota Century Code and section 22 of chapter 579 of the 2011 Session Laws, relating to
the housing incentive fund credits and the use of the flex PACE program; and to provide an
expiration date.

Minutes: "Click to enter attachment information."

Chairman Brandenburg: Opened the conference committee on HB1014.
Representative Kempenich: Did you agree with the $410,000.00 market equity?
Chairman Brandenburg: \We have to pull that out of there.

Senator Carlisle: It's called retention and recruitment; it technically isn't market equity.

Chairman Brandenburg: The mill and elevator went back to the old language; 50/50.
We're still talking about that $410,000.00; that's still up in the air.

Senator Carlisle: We gave up $1.4 million for the rig count. We gave up $6.5 with the
mill. We gave up $5 million on the housing incentive fund; so that's $12.4 million. You
haven't given up anything. We feel very strongly about the $10 million for the housing
incentive and the bank building and the recruitment and retention.

Chairman Brandenburg: | hear what you're saying and that's something that leadership is
talking about. Buildings are an issue this session and that's something the House is still
talking about.
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Representative Kempenich: You settled the profit end so let's talk some more about the
market equity. On our side | didn’t hear a lot about the equity of it; we heard more about
the building part. We heard about hiring 12 more employees. | thought that was a union
shop for the most part. Why do we have any say in the equity side of it; because isn't it a
contract?

Senator Holmberg: It's not equity. It's retention and recruitment. They have employees
that are approaching the rule of 85. They have a serious problem of recruitment and
retention of those people. It's not classified as market equity and it is not general fund
money. You're right it is a union shop but as | understood this money is more for the other
folks; not the ones who are already on a union contract.

Representative Kempenich: [s that a bigger conversation?

Chairman Brandenburg: He was gone this weekend. We pulled the equity out of
everything.

Representative Kempenich: Why don't we go half on it then? | think there's a profit
sharing program in the mill that affects everyone up and down the line at the mill.

Senator Holmberg: What you're suggesting is that from the House's position is that you're
willing to give up $200,000.00 and we've already given up $12 million on the Senate side.

Senator Carlisle: Why don't take the bill with $12.4 million that you took out of it and take
it to the House side; that leaves the bank in and $10 million between the 5% and 5% for the
housing incentive and see what happens?

Representative Kempenich: | was told this morning that the building is not on the table.

Senator Carlisle: There's not a lot of reason to keep going today.

Chairman Brandenburg: Closed the conference committee.
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the state
industrial commission and the agencies under the management of the industrial
commission; to provide a continuing appropriation; to provide a contingent appropriation; to
authorize transfers; to provide legislative intent; to create and enact a new section to
chapter 6-09 and a new section to chapter 54-17.8 of the North Dakota Century Code,
relating to a new short line railroad loan program and the North Dakota outdoor heritage
fund; to amend and reenact sections 54-17-40, 54-17-41, and 57-38-01.32 of the North
Dakota Century Code and section 22 of chapter 579 of the 2011 Session Laws, relating to
the housing incentive fund credits and the use of the flex PACE program; and to provide an
expiration date.

Minutes: See attachment A

Chairman Brandenburg: Opened the conference committee on HB1014.

Adam Mathiak, Fiscal Analyst, ND Legislative Council: Went through the changes to
HB1014 in the conference committee.

Chairman Brandenburg: That's correct. What's that amount?
Representative Kempenich: It's $13,625,322.00.

Adam Mathiak continued explaining the changes.

Senator Carlisle: Is that Representative Porter's bill?

Adam Mathiak: Yes. It was more of a technical correction related to how the funding
would be transferred from the abandoned well fund.

Adam Mathiak continued explaining the changes.

Senator Carlisle: If that benchmark is reached, then the financial center is agreed to.
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Adam Mathiak continued explaining his changes.

Senator Carlisle: That makes sense if it flies and the two things go in relative to the
financial center; that's the intent of things.

Adam Mathiak continued explaining the changes.

Chairman Brandenburg: That's the first $5 million.

Senator Carlisle: That's working with the bank.

Adam Mathiak continued explaining the changes.

Senator Carlisle: | thought that's the one with the 12,500 population?

Representative Kempenich: The conversation this morning was that this HIF money
started out aimed at rural areas. We're going to cap off the second $5 million at a
population of 12,500. The $30 million would be open to any entity in the state.

Senator Carlisle: My understanding is that the new money, the $5 million, there would be
a 12,500 population cap on it.

Representative Hogan: That's very concerning to me because as we heard from the
housing people in Jamestown and Valley City, we have a desperate shortage in Fargo and
in the west. This is going to have a significant impact and I'm concerned about the
limitation on the first $5 million.

Chairman Brandenburg: The $30 million in tax credits can go where ever they want. The
other money was discussed about having some sort of a cap so it isn't gone in the first
money or two.

Representative Hogan: | can understand wanting a distribution plan but to total exclude
any community over 12,000 from the direct grants side; often times it's a mix and they need
some hard amount of dollars. | think you're excluding a large number of communities with
significant housing problems.

Senator Carlisle: That would be on the first $5 million is at 12,500. What about on the
second?

Representative Kempenich: We're at zero on this and the conversation turned into if we
want to do this at all.

Representative Hogan: The housing is very different today than it was four years ago and
even two years ago.

Senator Holmberg: My impression was that the first $5 million that is there right now, it
would be available to everyone; and the second $5 million would be targeted towards the
12,500 which would allow cities who were left behind to have some funds.
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Adam Mathiak continued explaining the changes.

Representative Hogan: See attachment A.

Senator Holmberg: | like the idea; but | have been in many meetings where this budget
was more contentious then the water commission. My fear is that it's a house of cards
that's built and if we add even one more card to it | think it might be crumple.

Chairman Brandenburg: We're happy and this might make it unhappy.

Representative Hogan: | wanted it on the record because | strongly believed that this is a
major challenge in the state of North Dakota.

Senator Heckaman: | like this amendment but | understand also where we would go if we
put this on. If she would move it, | would second it if she would want a vote.

Representative Hogan: | have a sense of the committee and | won't move it.

Chairman Brandenburg: Closed the conference committee.
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the state
industrial commission and the agencies under the management of the industrial
commission; to provide a continuing appropriation; to provide a contingent appropriation; to
authorize transfers; to provide legislative intent; to create and enact a new section to
chapter 6-09 and a new section to chapter 54-17.8 of the North Dakota Century Code,
relating to a new short line railroad loan program and the North Dakota outdoor heritage
fund; to amend and reenact sections 54-17-40, 54-17-41, and 57-38-01.32 of the North
Dakota Century Code and section 22 of chapter 579 of the 2011 Session Laws, relating to
the housing incentive fund credits and the use of the flex PACE program; and to provide an
expiration date.

Minutes:

"Click to enter attachment information."

Chairman Brandenburg: Opened the conference committee on HB1014.

Senator Bowman: Substituted for Senator Holmberg.

Senator Carlisle: Made a motion to move amendment 15.8122.02007.

Senator Bowman: Seconded the motion.

Senator Carlisle: Everyone has looked it over and we're satisfied.

Roll Call Vote: 6 Yeas 0 Nays 0 Absent

Chairman Brandenburg: Closed the conference meeting.
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1014

That the Senate recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1507-1514 of the House
Journal and pages 1294-1302 of the Senate Journal and that Engrossed House Bill No. 1014

be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 3, after the first semicolon insert "to provide a contingent appropriation;"

Page 1, line 3, replace "to provide legislative intent;" with "to create and enact a new section to
chapter 6-09, of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to a North Dakota financial

center;"

Page 1, line 5, replace "and" with a comma

Page 1, line 5, after "Laws" insert ", and section 9 of House Bill No. 1358, as approved by the

sixty-fourth legislative assembly"

Page 1, line 6, remove the first "and"

Page 1, line 6, after "program" insert ", and a transfer from the abandoned oil and gas well
plugging and site reclamation fund"

Page 1, line 6, replace the second "and" with "to provide exemptions; to provide legislative
intent; to provide for transfers; to provide for contingent transfers; to provide for a report
to the legislative council; to provide for reports to legislative management and
appropriations committees; to provide a contingent effective date;"

Page 1, line 7, after "date" insert "; and to declare an emergency"

Page 1, remove lines 19 through 24
Page 2, replace lines 1 through 3 with:

"Salaries and wages
Accrued leave payments
Operating expenses

Capital assets

Grants

Grants - bond payments
Total all funds

Less estimated income

Total general fund

Full-time equivalent positions

Page 2, replace lines 8 through 11 with:

"Bank of North Dakota operations
Accrued leave payments

Capital assets

Total special funds

Page 2, replace line 17 with:

"Salaries and wages

$17,873,876
347,696
4,775,576

0
19,500,000
19,809,969
$62,307,117
40,973,792
$21,333,325
98.75

$51,523,916
881,231
745,000
$53,150,147

$29,141,750

Page No. 1

$5,041,695 $22,915,571
(347,696) 0
4,187,144 8,962,720
13,666,822 13,666,822
(14,500,000) 5,000,000
(4,769,140) 15,040,829
$3,278,825 $65,585,942
(10,354,023) 30,619,769
$13,632,848 $34,966,173
23.00 121.75"
$7,018,385 $58,542,301
(881,231) 0
17,000,000 17,745,000
$23,137,154 $76,287,301"
$7,137,148 $36,278,898"
15.8122.02009
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Page 2, replace line 22 with:
"Total from mill and elevator fund $52,123,557 $12,192,341 $64,315,898"

Page 2, replace line 28 with:

"Salaries and wages $7,434,877 $310,157 $7,745,034"

Page 3, replace line 2 with:

"Total special funds $41,007,491 ($3,487,402) $37,520,089"

Page 3, replace lines 8 through 10 with:

"Grand total general fund $21,333,325 $13,632,848 $34,966,173
Grand total special funds 187,254,987 31,488,070 218,743,057
Grand total all funds $208,588,312 $45,120,918 $253,709,230"

Page 3, replace line 17 with:

"Possible litigation 1,000,000 2,500,000"

Page 3, after line 26, insert:

"Financial center project 0 17,000,000
Core library expansion project 0 13,625,322"
Page 3, remove line 30

Page 4, replace lines 1 and 2 with:

"Total all funds $68,060,800 $38,745,965
Total special fund 51,500,000 30,625,322
Total general fund $16,560,800 $8,120,643"

Page 5, after line 9, insert:

"SECTION 7. TRANSFER - BANK OF NORTH DAKOTA - HOUSING
INCENTIVE FUND. The Bank of North Dakota shall transfer the sum of $5,000,000
from the Bank's current earnings and undivided profits to the housing incentive fund for
the period beginning with the effective date of this Act, and ending June 30, 2017.

SECTION 8. CONTINGENT TRANSFER - BANK OF NORTH DAKOTA -
HOUSING INCENTIVE FUND. The Bank of North Dakota shall transfer the sum of
$5,000,000 from the Bank's current earnings and undivided profits to the housing
incentive fund for the period beginning July 1, 2015, and ending June 30, 2017, if the
Bank's net income, reported in accordance with financial accounting standards board
accounting standards, for the calendar year 2015 exceeds $130,000,000. The funding
provided in this section may be used only for housing incentive fund awards in cities
with a population of fewer than 12,500 according to the last official decennial federal
census."

Page 5, remove lines 30 and 31
Page 6, replace lines 1 through 5 with:
"SECTION 13. BANK OF NORTH DAKOTA - MEDICAL PARTNERSHIP IN
ASSISTING COMMUNITY EXPANSION PROGRAM. The Bank of North Dakota shall

Page No. 2 15.8122.02009
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develop a medical partnership in assisting community expansion program to assist in
the financing of critical access hospital medical infrastructure projects, for the period
beginning with the effective date of this Act, and ending June 30, 2017. The Bank shall
adopt policies and procedures to implement this program. Notwithstanding section
6-09.14-03, the Bank may originate loans under this program or participate with a lead
financial institution. Eligible projects that receive funding for an interest rate buydown
under this program are not subject to the community commitment requirement in
section 6-09.14-03, the maximum interest rate buydown limitation in subsection 4 of
section 6-09.14-04, or the state grantor recipient reporting requirement in section
54-60.1-05."

Page 6, after line 21, insert:

"SECTION 15. CONTINGENT APPROPRIATION - INDUSTRIAL
COMMISSION FUNDING. The amount of $556,260 from the general fund and five
full-time equivalent positions included in subdivision 1 of section 1 of this Act may be
spent only in accordance with provisions of this section if the monthly average drilling
rig count exceeds one hundred forty drilling rigs. The industrial commission shall notify
the office of management and budget and the legislative council each time one or more
full-time equivalent positions is authorized to be hired. For purposes of this section, the
"monthly average drilling rig count" means the number, rounded to the nearest whole
number, calculated by dividing the sum of the daily drilling rig counts for a calendar
month by the number of days in the month. Of the $556,260 and the five full-time
equivalent positions in this section, the industrial commission may spend funding and
hire full-time equivalent positions, as follows:

1.  $166,878, of which $126,072 is from the salaries and wages line item and
$40,806 is from the operating expenses line item, and one full-time
equivalent position if the monthly average drilling rig count exceeds one
hundred forty drilling rigs.

2. In addition to the funding and full-time equivalent positions authorized in
subsection 1, $139,065, of which $105,060 is from the salaries and wages
line item and $34,005 is from the operating expenses line item, and one
full-time equivalent position if the monthly average drilling rig count
exceeds one hundred fifty-five drilling rigs.

3. In addition to the funding and full-time equivalent positions authorized in
subsections 1 and 2, $111,252, of which $84,048 is from the salaries and
wages line item and $27,204 is from the operating expenses line item, and
one full-time equivalent position if the monthly average drilling rig count
exceeds one hundred seventy drilling rigs.

4. In addition to the funding and full-time equivalent positions authorized in
subsections 1 through 3, $83,439, of which $63,036 is from the salaries
and wages line item and $20,403 is from the operating expenses line item,
and one full-time equivalent position if the monthly average drilling rig
count exceeds one hundred eighty-five drilling rigs.

5. In addition to the funding and full-time equivalent positions authorized in
subsections 1 through 4, $55,626, of which $42,024 is from the salaries
and wages line item and $13,602 is from the operating expenses line item,
and one full-time equivalent position if the monthly average drilling rig
count exceeds two hundred drilling rigs.

Page No. 3 15.8122.02009
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SECTION 16. A new section to chapter 6-09 of the North Dakota Century Code
is created and enacted as follows:

North Dakota financial center - Lease rates - Payments in lieu of taxes.

The North Dakota financial center is a building that is owned by the Bank of
North Dakota and is adjacent to the building in which the Bank of North Dakota is
housed. The Bank of North Dakota shall lease the space in the North Dakota financial
center to other state agencies based on market rate lease prices. The Bank of North
Dakota shall make payments in lieu of property taxes in the manner and according to
the conditions and procedures that would apply if the building were privately owned."

Page 7, line 2, after the period insert "The origination fee assessed to grant recipients may not
exceed five percent of the project award."

Page 10, replace lines 8 through 13 with:

"SECTION 22. AMENDMENT. Section 9 of House Bill No. 1358, as approved
by the sixty-fourth legislative assembly, is amended and reenacted as follows:

SECTION 9. ARPROPRIAHONTRANSFER - ABANDONED OIL AND
GAS WELL PLUGGING AND SITE RECLAMATION FUND TO THE OIL
AND GAS RESEARCH FUND - INDUSTRIAL COMMISSION

The offlce of
management and budqet shall transfer the sum of $500 000, or so much of

the sum as may be necessary, to-the-industrial-commissionfrom the
abandoned oil and gas well plugging and site reclamation fund to the oil
and gas research fund, for the biennium beginning July 1, 2015, and ending
June 30, 2017. The office of management and budget shall transfer the
funds provided under this section at the request of the industrial
commission. The industrial commission shall use the funding provided
under this section for the purpose of conducting a pilot program-irvelving
the-oil-and-gasresearch-eouneil in conjunction with research facilities in this
state to determine the best techniques for remediating salt and any other
contamination from the soil surrounding waste pits reclaimed by trenching
between 1951 and 1984 in the north central portion of this stateferthe
bieanium-beginning-July-1-2015-and-ending-June-36,2044. The industrial
commission may not require a research facility to provide matching funds to
participate in the program authorized under this section.

SECTION 23. HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY - FLOOD-IMPACTED HOUSING
ASSISTANCE - EXEMPTION. The amount appropriated for flood-impacted housing
assistance in section 4 of chapter 16 of the 2013 Session Laws is not subject to section
54-44.1-11 and any unexpended funds are available during the biennium beginning
July 1, 2015, and ending June 30, 2017.

SECTION 24. INDUSTRIAL COMMISSION - POSSIBLE FEDERAL AGENCY
LITIGATION - EXEMPTION. The amount appropriated for possible federal agency
litigation in subdivision 1 of section 1 of chapter 45 of the 2013 Session Laws is not
subject to section 54-44.1-11 and any unexpended funds are available during the
biennium beginning July 1, 2015, and ending June 30, 2017.
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SECTION 25. INDUSTRIAL COMMISSION - CORE LIBRARY EXPANSION
PROJECT - EXEMPTION - LEGISLATIVE MANAGEMENT REPORT - STRATEGIC
INVESTMENT AND IMPROVEMENTS FUND. The capital assets line item in
subdivision 1 of section 1 of this Act includes $13,625,322 from the strategic
investment and improvements fund for the purpose of expanding the core library. The
funding appropriated for this purpose is not subject to section 54-44.1-11 and any
unexpended funds are available during the biennium beginning July 1, 2017, and
ending June 30, 2019. The industrial commission shall report to the legislative
management and to the appropriations committees of the sixty-fifth legislative
assembly on the use of the funding provided for the core library project, including the
amounts spent to date and the amounts anticipated to be continued into the 2017-19
biennium, and on the progress of the project.

SECTION 26. CONTINGENT FUNDING - BANK OF NORTH DAKOTA -
NORTH DAKOTA FINANCIAL CENTER - EXEMPTION - LEGISLATIVE
MANAGEMENT REPORT. The capital assets line item in subdivision 2 of section 1 of
this Act includes $17,000,000 from the assets of the Bank of North Dakota for the
purpose of constructing a North Dakota financial center on a site adjacent to the
existing building in which the Bank is located. The Bank may spend the funding only if
the Bank's net income, reported in accordance with financial accounting standards
board accounting standards, for calendar year 2015 exceeds $125,000,000. The
funding appropriated for this purpose is not subject to section 54-44.1-11 and any
unexpended funds are available during the biennium beginning July 1, 2017, and
ending June 30, 2019. The Bank of North Dakota shall report to the legislative
management and to the appropriations committees of the sixty-fifth legislative
assembly on the use of the funding provided for the North Dakota financial center,
including the amounts spent to date and the amounts anticipated to be continued into
the 2017-19 biennium, and on the progress of the project.

SECTION 27. CONTINGENT EFFECTIVE DATE. Section 16 of this Act is
effective only if the Bank of North Dakota's net income, reported in accordance with
financial accounting standards board accounting standards, for calendar year 2015
exceeds $125,000,000.

SECTION 28. EMERGENCY. The amount of $13,625,322 from the strategic
investment and improvements fund in the capital assets line item in subdivision 1 of
section 1 of this Act for the core library expansion project and sections 7 and 13 of this
Act are declared to be an emergency measure."

Renumber accordingly

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT:

House Bill No. 1014 - Summary of Conference Committee Action

Industrial Commission
Total all funds
Less estimated income
General fund

Bank of North Dakota
Total all funds
Less estimated income
General fund

Housing Finance Agency

Conference

Conference

Base House Committee Committee Senate Comparison
Budget Version Changes Version Version to Senate
$62,307,117 $48,588,205 $16,997,737 $65,585,942 $67,254,762 ($1,668,820)

40,973,792 16,999,407 13,620,362 30,619,769 16,994,447 13,625,322
$21,333,325 $31,588,798 $3,377,375 $34,966,173 $50,260,315 ($15,294,142)
$53,150,147 $59,425,831 $16,861,470 $76,287,301 $76,287,301 $0

53,150,147 59,425,831 16,861,470 76,287,301 76,287,301 0

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
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Total all funds $41,007,491 $37,553,592 $9,966,497 $47,520,089 $47,520,089 $0
Less estimated income 41,007 491 37,553,592 9,966,497 47,520,089 37,520,089 10,000,000
General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,000,000 ($10,000,000)
Mill and Elevator
Total all funds $52,123,557 $64,016,571 $299,327 $64,315,898 $64,315,898 $0
Less estimated income 52,123,557 64,016,571 299,327 64,315,898 64,315,898 0
General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Bill total
Total all funds $208,588,312 $209,584,199 $44,125,031 $253,709,230 $255,378,050 ($1,668,820)
Less estimated income 187,254,987 177,995,401 40,747,656 218,743,057 195,117,735 23,625,322
General fund $21,333,325 $31,588,798 $3,377,375 $34,966,173 $60,260,315 ($25,294,142)
House Bill No. 1014 - Industrial Commission - Conference Committee Action
Conference Conference
Base House Committee Committee Senate Comparison
Budget Version Changes Version Version to Senate
Salaries and wages $17,873,876 $22,218,954 $696,617 $22,915,571 $24,176,381 ($1,260,810)
Operating expenses 4,775,576 6,328,422 2,634,298 8,962,720 9,370,730 (408,010)
Capital assets 13,666,822 13,666,822 13,666,822
Grants 19,500,000 5,000,000 5,000,000 5,000,000
Grants - bond payments 19,809,969 15,040,829 15,040,829 15,040,829
Accrued leave payments 347,696
Total all funds $62,307,117 $48,588,205 $16,997,737 $65,585,942 $67,254,762 ($1,668,820)
Less estimated income 40,973,792 16,999,407 13,620,362 30,619,769 16,994,447 13,625,322
General fund $21,333,325 $31,588,798 $3,377,375 $34,966,173 $50,260,315 ($15,294,142)
FTE 98.75 114.75 7.00 121.75 126.75 (5.00)
Department No. 405 - Industrial Commission - Detail of Conference Committee Changes
Adjusts
Funding for Adds Funding Adds One-Time
Health for Increased Adds One-Time Funding for
Insurance Adds Funding Adds Funding Core Library Funding for Core Library
Premium for FTE for Contingent Operating Possible Expansion
Increases' Positions? FTE Positions® Expenses* Litigation® Project’
Salaries and wages ($84,323) $360,700 $420,240
Operating expenses 19,278 136,020 20,500 2,500,000
Capital assets 13,625,322
Grants
Grants - bond payments
Accrued leave payments
Total all funds ($84,323) $379,978 $556,260 $20,500 $2,500,000 $13,625,322
Less estimated income (4,960) 0 0 0 0 13,625,322
General fund ($79,363) $379,978 $556,260 $20,500 $2,500,000 $0
FTE 0.00 2,00 5.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Corrects Total
Funding for Conference
ATV's and Committee
Trailers’ Changes
Salaries and wages $696,617
Operating expenses (41,500) 2,634,298
Capital assets 41,500 13,666,822
Grants
Grants - bond payments
Accrued leave payments
Total all funds $0 $16,997,737
Less estimated income 0 13,620,362
General fund $0 $3,377,375
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' Funding for employee health insurance premiums is adjusted to reflect the revised premium estimate of
$1,130.22 per month.

2 The following funding from the general fund and FTE positions are added:

FTE Salaries and Operating Total
Positions Wages Expenses General Fund
Pipeline regulatory supervisor position 1.00 $230,700 $9,639 $240,339
Administrative assistant position 1.00 130,000 9,639 139,639
Total 2.00 $360,700 $19,278 $379,978

Reengrossed House Bill No. 1358 provides for a pipeline regulatory program. Of the funding from the
general fund and the FTE positions included in this amendment, the Industrial Commission anticipates
using the following for the implementation of a pipeline regulatory program:

FTE Total
Positions General Fund
Engineering technician position (Included in House version) 4.00 $864,683
Reclamation specialist position (Included in House version) 1.00 230,911
Pipeline engineering technician position (Included in House version) 1.00 162,018
Pipeline regulatory supervisor position (added by Senate and shown above) 1.00 240,339
Administrative assistant (added by Senate and shown above) 1.00 139,639
Total 8.00 $1,637,590

The conference committee version reflects the same changes included in the Senate version. The House
version did not include funding for the pipeline regulatory supervisor position and administrative assistant
position.

3 Funding is added for 5 petroleum engineering contingency FTE positions. One position is added for
every 15 drilling rigs when the monthly average drilling rig count exceeds 140 drilling rigs as identified in
Section 15 of the bill. Each additional position includes a decreasing amount of funding for salaries and
operating expenses since subsequent positions are anticipated to be added later in the biennium than
the previous position. The Senate version included 10 contingency FTE positions and $2,225,080 of
funding from the general fund. The House version did not include any contingency FTE positions.

4 This amendment adds funding for increased operating expenses related to the core library expansion
project, which is the same as the Senate version. The House version did not include this funding.

5 One-time funding is added for possible litigation costs related to hydraulic fracturing and other
regulatory disputes, which is the same as the Senate version. The House version removed funding for
possible litigation costs.

5 One-time funding from the strategic investment and improvements fund is added for a core library
expansion project. The Senate version included funding from the general fund, the House version did not
include funding.

7 This amendment changes the funding for ATV's and trailers from the operating expenses line item to
the capital assets line item. Both the House and the Senate versions included funding for ATV's and
trailers.

This amendment also:

* Adds a section to identify the criteria for the 5 petroleum engineering contingency FTE positions.
The Senate version also included criteria for contingency FTE positions, but the House version
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did not include any contingency FTE positions.

* Adds a section to provide technical corrections to Engrossed House Bill No. 1358 related to a
transfer from the abandoned oil and gas well plugging and site reclamation fund. The House and

Senate versions did not include this section.

* Provides an exemption for 2013-15 biennium litigation funding from the general fund, which is

the same as the Senate version. The House version did not provide an exemption.

* Provides an emergency clause for the core library expansion project funding, requires the
Industrial Commission to report to the Legislative Management on the progress of the project,
and provides carryover authority for the funding into the 2017-19 biennium. The Senate version

included these changes, but the House version did not.

House Bill No. 1014 - Bank of North Dakota - Conference Committee Action

Conference Conference
Base House Committee Committee Senate Comparison
Budget Version Changes Version Version to Senate
Capital assets $745,000 $745,000 $17,000,000 $17,745,000 $17,745,000 -
Bank of North Dakota 51,523,916 58,680,831 (138,530) 58,542,301 58,542,301
operations
Accrued leave payments 881,231
Total all funds $53,150,147 $59,425,831 $16,861,470 $76,287,301 $76,287,301 $0
Less estimated income 53,150,147 59,425,831 16,861,470 76,287,301 76,287,301 0
General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
FTE 179.50 181.50 0.00 181.50 181.50 0.00

Adjusts
Funding for Adds
Health Contingent Total
Insurance Funding For Conference
Premium Financial Committee
Increases' Center Project’ Changes
Capital assets $17,000,000 $17,000,000
Bank of North Dakota (138,530) (138,530)
operations
Accrued leave payments
Total all funds ($138,530) $17,000,000 $16,861,470
Less estimated income (138,530) 17,000,000 16,861,470
General fund $0 $0 $0
FTE 0.00 0.00 0.00

Department No. 471 - Bank of North Dakota - Detail of Conference Committee Changes

& ot 1O

" Funding for employee health insurance premiums is adjusted to reflect the revised premium estimate of
$1,130.22 per month.

2 One-time funding from the Bank of North Dakota's assets is added for a financial center construction
project contingent upon the Bank's profits exceeding $125 million in calendar year 2015. The Senate
version included $17 million for the project without a contingency. The House version did not include
funding for a financial center construction project.

This amendment also:

* Provides for a medical partnership in assisting community expansion program to provide interest
rate buydowns for medical infrastructure loans for the 2015-17 biennium and provides an
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emergency clause for the program, which is the same as the Senate version. The House version
did not include a medical partnership in assisting community expansion program.

* Requires the Bank of North Dakota to make payments in lieu of property taxes on a financial
center building constructed on the Bank's property. The Senate version included this
requirement, the House version did not include a financial center building project.

* Provides an exemption for funding for the construction of a financial center and requires the
Industrial Commission to report to the Legislative Management on the progress of the project,
which is the same as the Senate version. The House version did not include an exemption or
report.

House Bill No. 1014 - Housing Finance Agency - Conference Committee Action

Conference Conference
Base House Committee Committee Senate Comparison
Budget Version Changes Version Version to Senate

Salaries and wages $7,434,877 $7,778,537 ($33,503) $7,745,034 $7,745,034

Operating expenses 3,791,758 3,744,275 3,744,275 3,744,275

Grants 29,533,050 25,930,780 25,930,780 25,930,780

HFA contingencies 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000

Accrued leave payments 147,806

Housing incentive fund 10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000

Total all funds $41,007,491 $37,553,592 $9,966,497 $47,520,089 $47,520,089 $0
Less estimated income 41,007 491 37,553,592 9,966,497 47,520,089 37,520,089 10,000,000
General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,000,000 ($10,000,000)
FTE 46.00 46.00 0.00 46.00 46.00 0.00

Department No. 473 - Housing Finance Agency - Detail of Conference Committee Changes

Adjusts
Funding for
Health Total
Insurance Transfers to Conference
Premium Housing Committee
Increases' Incentive Fund’ Changes
Salaries and wages ($33,503) ($33,503)
Operating expenses
Grants
HFA contingencies
Accrued leave payments
Housing incentive fund 10,000,000 10,000,000
Total all funds ($33,503) $10,000,000 $9,966,497
Less estimated income (33,503) 10,000,000 9,966,497
General fund $0 $0 $0
FTE 0.00 0.00 0.00

' Funding for employee health insurance premiums is adjusted to reflect the revised premium estimate of
$1,130.22 per month.

2 Adds a section to provide for a transfer of $5 million from Bank of North Dakota profits to the housing
incentive fund and provides an emergency clause for the transfer. In addition, adds a contingent transfer
of $5 million from Bank profits to the housing incentive fund if the the Bank's profits for calender year
2015 exceed $130 million. The Senate version included a transfer of $10 million from the general fund,
but the House version did not include a transfer to the housing incentive fund.

This amendment provides an exemption for 2013-15 biennium flood-impacted housing assistance
funding from the state disaster relief fund. The Senate version also included this exemption, but the
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House version did not provide an exemption.
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House Bill No. 1014 - Mill and Elevator - Conference Committee Action

Conference Conference
Base House Committee Committee Senate Comparison
Budget Version Changes Version Version to Senate

Salaries and wages $29,141,750 $35,979,571 $299,327 $36,278,898 $36,278,898

Operating expenses 21,796,000 27,327,000 27,327,000 27,327,000

Contingencies 400,000 500,000 500,000 500,000

Agriculture promotion 210,000 210,000 210,000 210,000

Accrued leave payments 575,807

Total all funds $52,123,557 $64,016,571 $299,327 $64,315,898 $64,315,898 $0
Less estimated income 52,123,557 64,016,571 299,327 64,315,898 64,315,898 0
General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
FTE 135.00 147.00 0.00 147.00 147.00 0.00

Department No. 475 - Mill and Elevator - Detail of Conference Committee Changes

Adjusts
Funding for
Health Adds Funding Total
Insurance for Recruitment | Conference
Premium and Retention Committee
Increases' Bonuses’ Changes
Salaries and wages ($110,673) $410,000 $299,327
Operating expenses
Contingencies
Agriculture promotion
Accrued leave payments
Total all funds ($110,673) $410,000 $299,327
Less estimated income (110,673) 410,000 299,327
General fund $0 $0
FTE 0.00 0.00

' Funding for employee health insurance premiums is adjusted to reflect the revised premium estimate of

$1,130.22 per month.

2 Funding is added for recruitment and retention bonuses, which is the same as the Senate version. The

House version did not include recruitment and retention bonuses.

This amendment also provides for a transfer of 50 percent of Mill and Elevator profits to the general fund
for the 2015-17 biennium ($13,775,000), which is the same as current law. The House version provided
for a transfer of 75 percent of the Mill and Elevator's profits without any limitation for the 2015-17
biennium ($20,662,500). The Senate version provided for a transfer of 50 percent of the Mill and
Elevator's profits limited to a certain amount ($8,000,000).
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2015 HOUSE CONFERENCE COMMITTEE

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. HB1014 as (re) engrossed

ROLL CALL VOTES

House Government Operations Committee

Action Taken

[0 HOUSE accede to Senate Amendments

Date: 4/16/2015
Roll Call Vote #:

[0 HOUSE accede to Senate Amendments and further amend

[0 SENATE recede from Senate amendments
(0 SENATE recede from Senate amendments and amend as follows

[J Unable to agree, recommends that the committee be discharged and a new

Motion Made by:

committee be appointed

Seconded by:

Representatives 4-16 | 4-17 | 4-18 | Yes | No : Senators 4-16 [ 4-17 | 4-18 | Yes | No
Mike Brandenburg X X X | Ron Carlisle X | x | X
Keith Kempenich X Ray Holmberg X | x | X
Kathy Hogan X X X | Joan Heckaman X | x | X
QVigesaa X | x
al Rep. Vote | Total Senate Vote
Vote Count Yes: No: Absent:

House Carrier

LC Number

Senate Carrier

of amendment

LC Number

of engrossment

Emergency clause added or deleted

Statement of purpose of amendment




2015 HOUSE CONFERENCE COMMITTEE

ROLL CALL VOTES

Date: 4/24/2015
Roll Call Vote #:

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. HB1014 as (re) engrossed

House Government Operations Committee
[0 HOUSE accede to Senate Amendments
[J HOUSE accede to Senate Amendments and further amend
[J SENATE recede from Senate amendments
X SENATE recede from Senate amendments and amend as follows

Action Taken

[J Unable to agree, recommends that the committee be discharged and a new
committee be appointed

Motion Made by: Senator Carlisle

Seconded by:

Senator Bowman

Representatives 4-20 [ 4-23 [ 4-24 | Yes | No Senators 4-20 | 4-23 | 4-24 | Yes | No
Mike Brandenburg x | X [ X X Ron Carlisle x | X | X | X
Keith Kempenich x | X | X | X _ | Ray Holmberg X
Kathy Hogan X | X | X X _ | Joan Heckaman X | x | X | X
| Bill Bowman X X | X
Total Rep. Vote 3 Total Senate Vote 3
Vote Count Yes: 6 No: 0 Absent: 0

House Carrier

Senate Carrier

LC Number 15.8122

- 02009

of amendment

LC Number

4000

of engrossment

Emergency clause added or deleted

Statement of purpose of amendment




Com Conference Committee Report
April 28, 2015 12:50pm

Module ID: h_cfcomrep_77_005

Insert LC: 15.8122.02009

REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE
HB 1014, as engrossed: Your conference committee (Sens. Carlisle, Heckaman, Bowman
and Reps. Brandenburg, Kempenich, Hogan) recommends that the SENATE
RECEDE from the Senate amendments as printed on HJ pages 1507-1514, adopt
amendments as follows, and place HB 1014 on the Seventh order:

That the Senate recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1507-1514 of the House

Journal and pages 1294-1302 of the Senate Journal and that Engrossed House Bill

No. 1014 be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 3, after the first semicolon insert "to provide a contingent appropriation;"

Page 1, line 3, replace "to provide legislative intent;" with "to create and enact a new section
to chapter 6-09, of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to a North Dakota

financial center;"

Page 1, line 5, replace "and" with a comma

Page 1, line 5, after "Laws" insert ", and section 9 of House Bill No. 1358, as approved by
the sixty-fourth legislative assembly"

Page 1, line 6, remove the first "and"

Page 1, line 6, after "program" insert ", and a transfer from the abandoned oil and gas well
plugging and site reclamation fund"

Page 1, line 6, replace the second "and" with "to provide exemptions; to provide legislative
intent; to provide for transfers; to provide for contingent transfers; to provide for a
report to the legislative council; to provide for reports to legislative management and

appropriations committees; to provide a contingent effective date;"

Page 1, line 7, after "date" insert "; and to declare an emergency"

Page 1, remove lines 19 through 24

Page 2, replace lines 1 through 3 with:

"Salaries and wages $17,873,876 $5,041,695 $22,915,571
Accrued leave payments 347,696 (347,696) 0
Operating expenses 4,775,576 4,187,144 8,962,720
Capital assets 0 13,666,822 13,666,822
Grants 19,500,000 (14,500,000) 5,000,000
Grants - bond payments 19,809,969 (4,769,140) 15,040,829
Total all funds $62,307,117 $3,278,825 $65,585,942
Less estimated income 40,973,792 (10,354,023) 30,619,769
Total general fund $21,333,325 $13,632,848 $34,966,173
Full-time equivalent positions 98.75 23.00 121.75"
Page 2, replace lines 8 through 11 with:

"Bank of North Dakota operations $51,623,916 $7,018,385 $58,542,301
Accrued leave payments 881,231 (881,231) 0
Capital assets 745,000 17,000,000 17,745,000
Total special funds $53,150,147 $23,137,154 $76,287,301"
Page 2, replace line 17 with:

"Salaries and wages $29,141,750 $7,137,148 $36,278,898"

Page 2, replace line 22 with:

(1) DESK (2) COMMITTEE

Page 1
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Com Conference Committee Report
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Module ID: h_cfcomrep_77_005

Insert LC: 15.8122.02009

"Total from mill and elevator fund $52,123,557 $12,192,341 $64,315,898"
Page 2, replace line 28 with:

"Salaries and wages $7,434,877 $310,157 $7,745,034"
Page 3, replace line 2 with:

"Total special funds $41,007,491 ($3,487,402) $37,520,089"
Page 3, replace lines 8 through 10 with:

"Grand total general fund $21,333,325 $13,632,848 $34,966,173
Grand total special funds 187,254,987 31.488.070 218,743,057
Grand total all funds $208,588,312 $45,120,918  $253,709,230"
Page 3, replace line 17 with:

"Possible litigation 1,000,000 2,500,000"
Page 3, after line 26, insert:

"Financial center project 0 17,000,000
Core library expansion project 0 13,625,322"
Page 3, remove line 30

Page 4, replace lines 1 and 2 with:

"Total all funds $68,060,800 $38,745,965
Total special fund 51,500,000 30,625,322
Total general fund $16,560,800 $8,120,643"

Page 5, after line 9, insert:

"SECTION 7. TRANSFER - BANK OF NORTH DAKOTA - HOUSING

INCENTIVE FUND. The Bank of North Dakota shall transfer the sum of $5,000,000
from the Bank's current earnings and undivided profits to the housing incentive fund
for the period beginning with the effective date of this Act, and ending June 30, 2017.

SECTION 8. CONTINGENT TRANSFER - BANK OF NORTH DAKOTA -
HOUSING INCENTIVE FUND. The Bank of North Dakota shall transfer the sum of
$5,000,000 from the Bank's current earnings and undivided profits to the housing
incentive fund for the period beginning July 1, 2015, and ending June 30, 2017, if the
Bank's net income, reported in accordance with financial accounting standards board
accounting standards, for the calendar year 2015 exceeds $130,000,000. The
funding provided in this section may be used only for housing incentive fund awards
in cities with a population of fewer than 12,500 according to the last official decennial
federal census."

Page 5, remove lines 30 and 31

Page 6, replace lines 1 through 5 with:

(1) DESK (2) COMMITTEE

"SECTION 13. BANK OF NORTH DAKOTA - MEDICAL PARTNERSHIP IN
ASSISTING COMMUNITY EXPANSION PROGRAM. The Bank of North Dakota
shall develop a medical partnership in assisting community expansion program to
assist in the financing of critical access hospital medical infrastructure projects, for
the period beginning with the effective date of this Act, and ending June 30, 2017.
The Bank shall adopt policies and procedures to implement this program.
Notwithstanding section 6-09.14-03, the Bank may originate loans under this
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Insert LC: 15.8122.02009

program or participate with a lead financial institution. Eligible projects that receive
funding for an interest rate buydown under this program are not subject to the
community commitment requirement in section 6-09.14-03, the maximum interest
rate buydown limitation in subsection 4 of section 6-09.14-04, or the state grantor
recipient reporting requirement in section 54-60.1-05."

Page 6, after line 21, insert:

"SECTION 15. CONTINGENT APPROPRIATION - INDUSTRIAL
COMMISSION FUNDING. The amount of $556,260 from the general fund and five
full-time equivalent positions included in subdivision 1 of section 1 of this Act may be
spent only in accordance with provisions of this section if the monthly average drilling
rig count exceeds one hundred forty drilling rigs. The industrial commission shall
notify the office of management and budget and the legislative council each time one
or more full-time equivalent positions is authorized to be hired. For purposes of this
section, the "monthly average drilling rig count" means the number, rounded to the
nearest whole number, calculated by dividing the sum of the daily drilling rig counts
for a calendar month by the number of days in the month. Of the $556,260 and the
five full-time equivalent positions in this section, the industrial commission may
spend funding and hire full-time equivalent positions, as follows:

1. $166,878, of which $126,072 is from the salaries and wages line item
and $40,806 is from the operating expenses line item, and one full-time
equivalent position if the monthly average drilling rig count exceeds one
hundred forty drilling rigs.

2. In addition to the funding and full-time equivalent positions authorized in
subsection 1, $139,065, of which $105,060 is from the salaries and
wages line item and $34,005 is from the operating expenses line item,
and one full-time equivalent position if the monthly average drilling rig
count exceeds one hundred fifty-five drilling rigs.

3. In addition to the funding and full-time equivalent positions authorized in
subsections 1 and 2, $111,252, of which $84,048 is from the salaries and
wages line item and $27,204 is from the operating expenses line item,
and one full-time equivalent position if the monthly average drilling rig
count exceeds one hundred seventy drilling rigs.

4. In addition to the funding and full-time equivalent positions authorized in
subsections 1 through 3, $83,439, of which $63,036 is from the salaries
and wages line item and $20,403 is from the operating expenses line
item, and one full-time equivalent position if the monthly average drilling
rig count exceeds one hundred eighty-five drilling rigs.

5. In addition to the funding and full-time equivalent positions authorized in
subsections 1 through 4, $55,626, of which $42,024 is from the salaries
and wages line item and $13,602 is from the operating expenses line
item, and one full-time equivalent position if the monthly average drilling
rig count exceeds two hundred drilling rigs.

SECTION 16. A new section to chapter 6-09 of the North Dakota Century
Code is created and enacted as follows:

North Dakota financial center - Lease rates - Payments in lieu of taxes.

The North Dakota financial center is a building that is owned by the Bank of
North Dakota and is adjacent to the building in which the Bank of North Dakota is
housed. The Bank of North Dakota shall lease the space in the North Dakota
financial center to other state agencies based on market rate lease prices. The Bank
of North Dakota shall make payments in lieu of property taxes in the manner and
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according to the conditions and procedures that would apply if the building were
privately owned."

Page 7, line 2, after the period insert "The origination fee assessed to grant recipients may
not exceed five percent of the project award."

Page 10, replace lines 8 through 13 with:

"SECTION 22. AMENDMENT. Section 9 of House Bill No. 1358, as

approved by the sixty-fourth legislative assembly, is amended and reenacted as
follows:

SECTION 9. APPROPRIAHONTRANSFER - ABANDONED OIL
AND GAS WELL PLUGGING AND SITE RECLAMATION FUND TO

THE OIL AND GAS RESEARCH FUND - INDUSTRIAL COMMISSION

#und—m—the—sta%e—tmasew—net—e%hemseapprep%&ed—The ofﬂce of
management and budget shall transfer the sum of $500,000, or so much
of the sum as may be necessary, te—the%dus%nal—eemms&eafrom the
abandoned oil and gas well plugging and site reclamation fund to the oil
and gas research fund, for the biennium beginning July 1, 2015, and
ending June 30, 2017. The office of management and budget shall
transfer the funds provided under this section at the request of the
industrial commission. The industrial commission shall use the funding
provuded under this section for the purpose of conducting a pilot program
in conjunction with research
facilities in this state to determine the best techniques for remediating salt
and any other contamination from the soil surrounding waste pits
reclaimed by trenching between 1951 and 1984 in the north central
portion of this state;
June-30-2017. The industrial commission may not reqwre a research
facility to provide matching funds to participate in the program authorized
under this section.

SECTION 23. HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY - FLOOD-IMPACTED HOUSING
ASSISTANCE - EXEMPTION. The amount appropriated for flood-impacted housing
assistance in section 4 of chapter 16 of the 2013 Session Laws is not subject to
section 54-44.1-11 and any unexpended funds are available during the biennium
beginning July 1, 2015, and ending June 30, 2017.

SECTION 24. INDUSTRIAL COMMISSION - POSSIBLE FEDERAL
AGENCY LITIGATION - EXEMPTION. The amount appropriated for possible federal
agency litigation in subdivision 1 of section 1 of chapter 45 of the 2013 Session Laws
is not subject to section 54-44.1-11 and any unexpended funds are available during
the biennium beginning July 1, 2015, and ending June 30, 2017.

SECTION 25. INDUSTRIAL COMMISSION - CORE LIBRARY EXPANSION
PROJECT - EXEMPTION - LEGISLATIVE MANAGEMENT REPORT - STRATEGIC
INVESTMENT AND IMPROVEMENTS FUND. The capital assets line item in
subdivision 1 of section 1 of this Act includes $13,625,322 from the strategic
investment and improvements fund for the purpose of expanding the core library.
The funding appropriated for this purpose is not subject to section 54-44.1-11 and
any unexpended funds are available during the biennium beginning July 1, 2017,
and ending June 30, 2019. The industrial commission shall report to the legislative
management and to the appropriations committees of the sixty-fifth legislative
assembly on the use of the funding provided for the core library project, including the
amounts spent to date and the amounts anticipated to be continued into the 2017-19
biennium, and on the progress of the project.
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SECTION 26. CONTINGENT FUNDING - BANK OF NORTH DAKOTA -
NORTH DAKOTA FINANCIAL CENTER - EXEMPTION - LEGISLATIVE
MANAGEMENT REPORT. The capital assets line item in subdivision 2 of section 1
of this Act includes $17,000,000 from the assets of the Bank of North Dakota for the
purpose of constructing a North Dakota financial center on a site adjacent to the
existing building in which the Bank is located. The Bank may spend the funding only
if the Bank's net income, reported in accordance with financial accounting standards
board accounting standards, for calendar year 2015 exceeds $125,000,000. The
funding appropriated for this purpose is not subject to section 54-44.1-11 and any
unexpended funds are available during the biennium beginning July 1, 2017, and
ending June 30, 2019. The Bank of North Dakota shall report to the legislative
management and to the appropriations committees of the sixty-fifth legislative
assembly on the use of the funding provided for the North Dakota financial center,
including the amounts spent to date and the amounts anticipated to be continued
into the 2017-19 biennium, and on the progress of the project.

SECTION 27. CONTINGENT EFFECTIVE DATE. Section 16 of this Act is
effective only if the Bank of North Dakota's net income, reported in accordance with
financial accounting standards board accounting standards, for calendar year 2015
exceeds $125,000,000.

SECTION 28. EMERGENCY. The amount of $13,625,322 from the strategic
investment and improvements fund in the capital assets line item in subdivision 1 of
section 1 of this Act for the core library expansion project and sections 7 and 13 of
this Act are declared to be an emergency measure."

Renumber accordingly
STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT:

House Bill No. 1014 - Summary of Conference Committee Action

Conference Conference
Base House Committee Committee Senate Comparison
Budget Version Changes Version Version to Senate

Industrial Commission

Total all funds $62,307,117 $48,588,205 $16,997,737 $65,585,942 $67,254,762 ($1,668,820)

Less estimated income 40,973,792 16,999,407 13,620,362 30,619,769 16,994,447 13,625,322

General fund $21,333,325 $31,588,798 $3,377,375 $34,966,173 $50,260,315 ($15,294,142)
Bank of North Dakota

Total all funds $53,150,147 $59,425,831 $16,861,470 $76,287,301 $76,287,301 $0

Less estimated income 53,150,147 59,425,831 16,861,470 76,287,301 76,287,301 0

General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Housing Finance Agency

Total all funds $41,007,491 $37,553,592 $9,966,497 $47,520,089 $47,520,089 $0

Less estimated income 41,007,491 37,553,592 9,966,497 47,520,089 37,520,089 10,000,000

General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,000,000 ($10,000,000)
Mill and Elevator

Total all funds $52,123,557 $64,016,571 $299,327 $64,315,898 $64,315,898 $0

Less estimated income 52,123,557 64,016,571 299,327 64,315,898 64,315,898 0

General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Bill total

Total all funds $208,588,312 $209,584,199 $44,125,031 $253,709,230 $255,378,050 ($1,668,820)

Less estimated income 187,254,987 177,995,401 40,747,656 218,743,057 195,117,735 23,625,322

General fund $21,333,325 $31,588,798 $3,377,375 $34,966,173 $60,260,315 ($25,294,142)

House Bill No. 1014 - Industrial Commission - Conference Committee Action

Conference Conference
Base House Committee Committee Senate Comparison
Budget Version Changes Version Version to Senate
Salaries and wages $17,873,876 $22,218,954 $696,617 $22,915,571 $24,176,381 ($1,260,810)
Operating expenses 4,775,576 6,328,422 2,634,298 8,962,720 9,370,730 (408,010
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Capital assets

Grants

Grants - bond payments
Accrued leave payments

Total all funds
Less estimated income

General fund
FTE

Changes

Salaries and wages
Operating expenses
Capital assets

Grants

Grants - bond payments
Accrued leave payments

Total all funds
Less estimated income

General fund

FTE

Salaries and wages
Operating expenses
Capital assets

Grants

Grants - bond payments
Accrued leave payments

Total all funds
Less estimated income

General fund
FTE

Module ID: h_cfcomrep_77_005
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premium estimate of $1,130.22 per month.

Pipeline regulatory supervisor position
Administrative assistant position

13,666,822 13,666,822 13,666,822
19,500,000 5,000,000 5,000,000 5,000,000
19,809,969 15,040,829 15,040,829 15,040,829
347,696
$62,307,117 $48,588,205 $16,997,737 $65,585,942 $67,254,762 ($1,668,820)
40,973,792 16,999,407 13,620,362 30,619,769 16,994,447 13,625,322
$21,333,325 $31,588,798 $3,377,375 $34,966,173 $50,260,315 ($15,294,142)
98.75 11475 7.00 121.75 126.75 (5.00)
Department No. 405 - Industrial Commission - Detail of Conference Committee
Adjusts
Funding for Adds Funding Adds One-Time
Health for Increased Adds One-Time Funding for
Insurance Adds Funding Adds Funding Core Library Funding for Core Library
Premium for FTE for Contingent Operating Possible Expansion
Increases’ Positions® FTE Positions’ Expenses* Litigation® Project®
($84,323) $360,700 $420,240
19,278 136,020 20,500 2,500,000
13,625,322
($84,323) $379,978 $556,260 $20,500 $2,500,000 $13,625,322
(4,960) 0 0 0 0 13,625,322
($79,363) $379,978 $556,260 $20,500 $2,500,000 $0
0.00 2.00 5.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Corrects Total
Funding for Conference
ATV's and Committee
Trailers” Changes
$696,617
(41,500) 2,634,298
41,500 13,666,822
$0 $16,997,737
0 13,620,362
$0 $3,377,375
0.00 7.00
" Funding for employee health insurance premiums is adjusted to reflect the revised
2 The following funding from the general fund and FTE positions are added:
Total
FTE Positions _ Salaries and Wages  Operating Exp General Fund
1.00 $230,700 $9,639 $240,339
1.00 130,000 9,639 139,639
2.00 $360,700 $19,278 $379,978

Total

Reengrossed House Bill No. 1358 provides for a pipeline regulatory program. Of the funding
from the general fund and the FTE positions included in this amendment, the Industrial
Commission anticipates using the following for the implementation of a pipeline regulatory

program:
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FTE Total
Positions General Fund
Engineering technician position (Included in House version) 4.00 $864,683
Reclamation specialist position (Included in House version) 1.00 230,911
Pipeline engineering technician position (Included in House version) 1.00 162,018
Pipeline regulatory supervisor position (added by Senate and shown above) 1.00 240,339
Administrative assistant (added by Senate and shown above) 1.00 139,639
Total 8.00 $1,637,590

The conference committee version reflects the same changes included in the Senate
version. The House version did not include funding for the pipeline regulatory supervisor
position and administrative assistant position.

3 Funding is added for 5 petroleum engineering contingency FTE positions. One position is
added for every 15 drilling rigs when the monthly average drilling rig count exceeds 140
drilling rigs as identified in Section 15 of the bill. Each additional position includes a
decreasing amount of funding for salaries and operating expenses since subsequent
positions are anticipated to be added later in the biennium than the previous position. The
Senate version included 10 contingency FTE positions and $2,225,080 of funding from the
general fund. The House version did not include any contingency FTE positions.

4 This amendment adds funding for increased operating expenses related to the core library
expansion project, which is the same as the Senate version. The House version did not
include this funding.

® One-time funding is added for possible litigation costs related to hydraulic fracturing and
other regulatory disputes, which is the same as the Senate version. The House version
removed funding for possible litigation costs.

5 One-time funding from the strategic investment and improvements fund is added for a core
library expansion project. The Senate version included funding from the general fund, the
House version did not include funding.

7 This amendment changes the funding for ATV's and trailers from the operating expenses
line item to the capital assets line item. Both the House and the Senate versions included
funding for ATV's and trailers.

This amendment also:

* Adds a section to identify the criteria for the 5 petroleum engineering contingency
FTE positions. The Senate version also included criteria for contingency FTE
positions, but the House version did not include any contingency FTE positions.

« Adds a section to provide technical corrections to Engrossed House Bill No. 1358
related to a transfer from the abandoned oil and gas well plugging and site
reclamation fund. The House and Senate versions did not include this section.

*  Provides an exemption for 2013-15 biennium litigation funding from the general
fund, which is the same as the Senate version. The House version did not provide
an exemption.

+ Provides an emergency clause for the core library expansion project funding,
requires the Industrial Commission to report to the Legislative Management on the
progress of the project, and provides carryover authority for the funding into the
2017-19 biennium. The Senate version included these changes, but the House
version did not.
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House Bill No. 1014 - Bank of North Dakota - Conference Committee Action

Conference Conference
Base House Committee Committee Senate Comparison
Budget Version Changes Version Version to Senate

Capital assets $745,000 $745,000 $17,000,000 $17,745,000 $17,745,000

Bank of North Dakota operations 51,523,916 58,680,831 (138,530) 58,542,301 58,542,301

Accrued leave pay 881,231

Total all funds $53,150,147 $59,425,831 $16,861,470 $76,287,301 $76,287,301 $0
Less estimated income 53,150,147 59,425,831 16,861,470 76,287,301 76,287,301 0
General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
FTE 179.50 181.50 0.00 181.50 181.50 0.00

Department No. 471 - Bank of North Dakota - Detail of Conference Committee

Changes

Capital assets

Bank of North Dakota
operations

Accrued leave payments

Total all funds
Less estimated income

General fund
FTE

Adjusts
Funding for Adds
Health Contingent Total
Insurance Funding For Conference
Premium Financial Committee
Increases' Center Project’ Changes
$17,000,000 $17,000,000
(138,530) (138,530)
($138,530) $17,000,000 $16,861,470
(138,530) 17,000,000 16,861,470
$0 $0 $0
0.00 0.00 0.00

" Funding for employee health insurance premiums is adjusted to reflect the revised

premium estimate of $1,130.22 per month.

2 One-time funding from the Bank of North Dakota's assets is added for a financial center

construction project contingent upon the Bank's profits exceeding $125 million in calendar
year 2015. The Senate version included $17 million for the project without a contingency.

The House version did not include funding for a financial center construction project.

This amendment also:

* Provides for a medical partnership in assisting community expansion program to
provide interest rate buydowns for medical infrastructure loans for the 2015-17
biennium and provides an emergency clause for the program, which is the same as
the Senate version. The House version did not include a medical partnership in
assisting community expansion program.

* Requires the Bank of North Dakota to make payments in lieu of property taxes on a
financial center building constructed on the Bank's property. The Senate version
included this requirement, the House version did not include a financial center
building project.

* Provides an exemption for funding for the construction of a financial center and
requires the Industrial Commission to report to the Legislative Management on the
progress of the project, which is the same as the Senate version. The House version
did not include an exemption or report.
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House Bill No. 1014 - Housing Finance Agency - Conference Committee Action

Conference Conference

Base House Committee Committee Senate Comparison

Budget Version Changes Version Version to Senate
Salaries and wages $7,434,877 $7,778,537 ($33,503) $7,745,034 $7,745,034
Operating expenses 3,791,758 3,744,275 3,744,275 3,744,275
Grants 29,533,050 25,930,780 25,930,780 25,930,780
HFA contingencies 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000
Accrued leave payments 147,806
Housing incentive fund 10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000
Total all funds $41,007,491 $37,563,592 $9,966,497 $47,520,089 $47,520,089 $0
Less estimated income 41,007,491 37,553,592 9,966,497 47,520,089 37,520,089 10,000,000
General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,000,000 ($10,000,000)
FTE 46.00 46.00 0.00 46.00 46.00 0.00

Department No. 473 - Housing Finance Agency - Detail of Conference Committee
Changes

Adjusts
Funding for
Health Total
Insurance Transfers to Conference
Premium Housing Committee
Increases' Incentive Fund? Changes
Salaries and wages ($33,503) ($33,503)
Operating expenses
Grants
HFA contingencies
Accrued leave payments
Housing incentive fund 10,000,000 10,000,000
Total all funds ($33,503) $10,000,000 $9,966,497
Less estimated income (33,503) 10,000,000 9,966,497
General fund $0 $0 $0
FTE 0.00 0.00 0.00

" Funding for employee health insurance premiums is adjusted to reflect the revised
premium estimate of $1,130.22 per month.

2 Adds a section to provide for a transfer of $5 million from Bank of North Dakota profits to
the housing incentive fund and provides an emergency clause for the transfer. In addition,
adds a contingent transfer of $5 million from Bank profits to the housing incentive fund if the
the Bank's profits for calender year 2015 exceed $130 million. The Senate version included
a transfer of $10 million from the general fund, but the House version did not include a
transfer to the housing incentive fund.

This amendment provides an exemption for 2013-15 biennium flood-impacted housing
assistance funding from the state disaster relief fund. The Senate version also included this
exemption, but the House version did not provide an exemption.

House Bill No. 1014 - Mill and Elevator - Conference Committee Action

Conference Conference
Base House Committee Committee Senate Comparison
Budget Version Changes Version Version to Senate
Salaries and wages $29,141,750 $35,979,571 $299,327 $36,278,898 $36,278,898
Operating expenses 21,796,000 27,327,000 27,327,000 27,327,000
Contingencies 400,000 500,000 500,000 500,000
Agriculture promotion 210,000 210,000 210,000 210,000
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Accrued leave payments 575,807

Total all funds $52,123,557 $64,016,571 $299,327 $64,315,898 $64,315,898 $0
Less estimated income 52,123,557 64,016,571 299,327 64,315,898 64,315,898 0
General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
FTE 135.00 147.00 0.00 147.00 147.00 0.00

Department No. 475 - Mill and Elevator - Detail of Conference Committee Changes

Adjusts
Funding for
Health Adds Funding Total
Insurance for Recruitment | Conference
Premium and Retention Committee
Increases' Bonuses’ Changes
Salaries and wages ($110,673) $410,000 $299,327
Operating expenses
Contingencies
Agriculture promotion
Accrued leave payments
Total all funds ($110,673) $410,000 $299,327
Less estimated income (110,673) 410,000 299,327
General fund $0 $0 $0
FTE 0.00 0.00 0.00

" Funding for employee health insurance premiums is adjusted to reflect the revised
premium estimate of $1,130.22 per month.

2 Funding is added for recruitment and retention bonuses, which is the same as the Senate
version. The House version did not include recruitment and retention bonuses.

This amendment also provides for a transfer of 50 percent of Mill and Elevator profits to the
general fund for the 2015-17 biennium ($13,775,000), which is the same as current law. The
House version provided for a transfer of 75 percent of the Mill and Elevator's profits without
any limitation for the 2015-17 biennium ($20,662,500). The Senate version provided for a
transfer of 50 percent of the Mill and Elevator's profits limited to a certain amount
($8,000,000).

Engrossed HB 1014 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar.
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Department 473 - Housing Finance Agency

House Bill No. 1014

January 14, 2015

Executive Budget Comparison to Prior Biennium Appropriations

FTE Positions General Fund Other Funds Total
2015-17 Executive Budget
Senate Bill No. 2126 $20,000,000 $0 $20,000,000
House Bill No. 1014 46.00 0 37,742,527 37,742,527
Total 2015-17 Executive Budget 46.00 $20,000,000 $37,742,527 $57,742,527
2013-15 Legislative Appropriations 46.00 15,400,000 42 507,491 57,907,491
Increase (Decrease) 0.00 $4,600,000 ($4,764,964) ($164,964)

Ongoing and One-Time General Fund Appropriations

Ongoing General Fund One-Time General Total General Fund
Appropriation Fund Appropriation Appropriation
2015-17 Executive Budget
Senate Bill No. 2126 $0 $20,000,000 $20,000,000
House Bill No. 1014 0 0 0
Total 2015-17 Executive Budget $0 $20,000,000 $20,000,000
2013-15 Legislative Appropriations 0 15,400,000 15,400,000
Increase (Decrease) $0 $4,600,000 $4,600,000
Agency Funding FTE Positions
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Executive Budget Comparison to Base Level
General Fund Other Funds Total
2015-17 Executive Budget
Senate Bill No. 2126 $20,000,000 $0 $20,000,000
House Bill No. 1014 0 37,742,527 37,742,527
Total 2015-17 Executive Budget $20,000,000 $37,742,527 $57,742,527
2015-17 Base Level 0 41,007,491 41,007,491
Increase (Decrease) $20,000,000 ($3,264,964) $16,735,036
Attached as an appendix is a detailed comparison of the executive budget to the agency's base level appropriations.
Executive Budget Highlights
General Fund Other Funds Total
1. Provides funding for state employee salary and benefit increases, of $0 $658,291 $658,291

which $370,808 relates to performance increases, $56,560 is for
market equity adjustments, $192,144 is for health insurance
increases, and $38,779 is for retirement contribution increases




2. Decreases funding for housing and urban development grants $0 ($2,214,445) ($2,214,445)

3. Decreases funding for housing development programs $0 ($1,287,825) ($1,287,825)

4. Decreases funding for operations $0 ($147,483) ($147,483)

5. Adds one-time funding for the housing incentive fund in Senate $20,000,000 $0 $20,000,000
Bill No. 2126

Other Sections in Bill
Housing incentive fund - Sections 16, 17, and 19 continue the housing incentive fund into the 2015-17 biennium. Section 19
increases the funding available to the housing incentive fund from income tax credits from $20 million to $30 million.

Continuing Appropriations
Housing incentive fund - North Dakota Century Code Section 54-17-40 - Provides grants for housing projects

Significant Audit Findings

There are no significant audit findings for this agency.

Major Related Legislation
Senate Bill No. 2126 - Provides a transfer of $20 million from the general fund to the housing incentive fund (reflected above).




Housing Finance Agency - Budget No. 473

House Bill No. 1014
Base Level Funding Changes

2015-17 Biennium Base Level

2015-17 Ongoing Funding Changes
Base payroll changes
Salary increase - Performance
Salary increase - Market equity
Retirement contribution increase
Health insurance increase
Funding for housing and urban development grants
Funding for housing development programs
Funding for operations
Total ongoing funding changes

One-time funding items
No executive budget one-time funding items
Total one-time funding changes

Total Changes to Base Level Funding
2015-17 Total Funding
Other Sections in House Bill No. 1014

Housing incentive fund

Executive Budget Recommendation

FTE
Positions General Fund Other Funds Total
46.00 $0 $41,007,491 $41,007,491
($273,502) ($273,502)
370,808 370,808
56,560 56,560
38,779 38,779
192,144 192,144
(2,214,445) (2,214,445)
(1,287,825) (1,287,825)
(147,483) (147,483)
0.00 $0 ($3,264,964) ($3,264,964)
$0
0.00 $0 $0 $0
0.00 $0 ($3,264,964) ($3,264,964)
46.00 $0 $37,742,527 $37,742,527

Executive Budget Recommendation

Sections 16, 17, and 19 continue the housing incentive fund into
the 2015-17 biennium. Section 19 increases the funding available
to the housing incentive fund from income tax credits from
$20 million to $30 million.
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Department 471 - Bank of North Dakota

House Bill No. 1014

Prepared by the North Dakota Legislative Council
staff for House Appropriations

January 14, 2015

Executive Budget Comparison to Prior Biennium Appropriations

FTE Positions General Fund Other Funds Total
2015-17 Executive Budget 181.50 $0 $60,163,693 $60,163,693
2013-15 Legislative Approprie':ltions1 179.50 0 103,150,147 103,150,147
Increase (Decrease) 2.00 $0 ($42,986,454) ($42,986,454)

"The 2013-15 appropriation amounts include $50 million of one-time funding from the strategic investment and improvements
fund for the medical facility infrastructure loan program.
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Executive Budget Comparison to Base Level
General Fund Other Funds Total
2015-17 Executive Budget $0 $60,163,693 $60,163,693
2015-17 Base Level 0 53,150,147 53,150,147
Increase (Decrease) $0 $7,013,546 $7,013,546

Attached as an appendix is a detailed comparison of the executive budget to the agency's base level appropriations.

Executive Budget Highlights

General Fund

1. Provides funding for state employee salary and benefit

increases,

of which $1,536,370

relates

to performance

increases, $191,239 is for market equity adjustments, $794,479
is for health insurance increases, and $158,886 is for retirement

contribution increases

2. Adds funding for 1 FTE credit analyst position
3. Adds funding for 1 FTE information security position

4. Increase funding for operating expenses, including $2.5 million
for information technology costs and $800,000 for audit fees

Other Sections in Bill
Transfer to partnership in assisting community expansion (PACE) fund - Section 7 provides for a transfer of $28 million
from the Bank of North Dakota's current earnings and undivided profits to the PACE fund for the 2015-17 biennium.

Transfer to Ag PACE fund - Section 8 provides for a transfer of $3 million from the Bank of North Dakota's current earnings
and undivided profits to the Ag PACE fund for the 2015-17 biennium.

Transfer to biofuels PACE fund - Section 9 provides for a transfer of $2 million from the Bank of North Dakota's current
earnings and undivided profits to the biofuels PACE fund for the 2015-17 biennium.

Other Funds
$0 $2,680,974
$0 $177,836
$0 $209,809
$0 $3,968,123

Total
$2,680,974

$177,836
$209,809
$3,968,123




Transfer to beginning farmer revolving loan fund - Section 10 provides for a transfer of $7 million from the Bank of North
Dakota's current earnings and undivided profits to the PACE fund for the 2015-17 biennium.

Short line railroad revolving loan fund - Section 14 provides a transfer of $10 million from the strategic investment and
improvements fund to the short line railroad fund for the 2015-17 biennium. Section 15 creates a new section to North Dakota
Century Code Chapter 6-09 to establish a short line railroad revolving loan fund administered by the Bank of North Dakota and
to provide a continuing appropriation.

Flex PACE program - Section 20 amends Section 22 of Chapter 579 of the 2011 Session Laws to expand the Flex PACE
program from areas impacted by oil and gas development to the entire state and to extend the program until the end of the
2017-19 biennium.

Continuing Appropriations
PACE - Section 6-09.14-02 - Buydown interest rates on loans for new or expanding businesses.
Ag PACE - Section 6-09.13-04 - Buydown interest rates on agriculture-related loans.

Beginning farmer revolving loan fund - Section 6-09-15.5 - Direct loans or to buydown interest rates on loans to beginning
farmers for the first purchase of farm real estate or chattels.

College SAVE - Section 6-09-38 - Higher education savings plan.
Medical facility infrastructure loan fund - Section 6-09-47 - Loans for medical facility construction.

Significant Audit Findings
There are no significant audit findings for this agency.

Major Related Legislation
House Bill No. 1049 - Creates an addiction counseling internship revolving loan program administered by the Bank of North
Dakota and provides for a transfer of $1 million from the general fund to a revolving loan fund.

House Bill No. 1137 - Creates a capital infrastructure revolving loan program administered by the Public Finance Agency and
transfers $100 million of Bank of North Dakota profits to a capital infrastructure revolving loan fund.

Senate Bill No. 2165 - Provides an allocation of $5,000 to each eligible individual, which is managed by the Bank of North
Dakota, until the time when the individual may use the funds for higher education expenses, loan repayments, or nursing
home costs.

Senate Bill No. 2178 - Creates a school construction loan program administered by the Bank of North Dakota and provides a
transfer of $125 million for the strategic investment and improvements fund.




’ Bank of North Dakota - Budget No. 471

House Bill No. 1014
| Base Level Funding Changes

2015-17 Biennium Base Level

2015-17 Ongoing Funding Changes
Base payroll changes
Salary increase - Performance
Salary increase - Market equity
Retirement contribution increase
Health insurance increase
FTE credit analyst position
FTE information security position
Changes to operating expenses
Total ongoing funding changes

One-time funding items
No executive budget one-time funding items
Total one-time funding changes

Total Changes to Base Level Funding

| 2015-17 Total Funding

| ' Other Sections in House Bill No. 1014

Transfer to PACE

Transfer to Ag PACE

Transfer to biofuels PACE

Transfer to beginning farmer revolving loan

fund

Short line railroad revolving loan fund

Flex PACE program

Executive Budget Recommendation

FTE

Positions General Fund  Other Funds Total
179.50 $0 $53,150,147 $53,150,147
($23,196) ($23,196)
1.536.370 1,536,370
191,239 191,239
158,886 158,886
794,479 794,479
1.00 177,836 177,836
1.00 209,809 209,809
3,968,123 3,968,123
2.00 $0 $7,013,546 $7,013,546
$0
0.00 $0 $0 $0
2.00 $0 $7,013,546 $7,013,546
181.50 $0 $60,163,693 $60,163,693

Executive Budget Recommendation

Section 7 provides for a transfer of $28 million from the Bank of
North Dakota's current earnings and undivided profits to the
PACE fund for the 2015-17 biennium.

Section 8 provides for a transfer of $3 million from the Bank of
North Dakota's current earnings and undivided profits to the Ag
PACE fund for the 2015-17 biennium.

Section 9 provides for a transfer of $2 million from the Bank of
North Dakota's current earnings and undivided profits to the
biofuels PACE fund for the 2015-17 biennium.

Section 10 provides for a transfer of $7 million from the Bank of
North Dakota's current earnings and undivided profits to the
PACE fund for the 2015-17 biennium.

Section 14 provides a transfer of $10 million from the strategic
investment and improvements fund to the short line railroad fund
for the 2015-17 biennium. Section 15 creates a new section to
Chapter 6-09 to establish a short line railroad revolving loan fund
administered by the Bank of North Dakota and to provide a
continuing appropriation.

Section 20 amends Section 22 of Chapter 579 of the 2011
Session Laws to expand the Flex PACE program from areas
impacted by oil and gas development to the entire state and to
extend the program until the end of the 2017-19 biennium.




Department 475 - Mill and Elevator Association

House Bill No. 1014

Prepared by the North Dakota Legislative Council
staff for House Appropriations

January 14, 2015

Executive Budget Comparison to Prior Biennium Appropriations

FTE Positions General Fund Other Funds Total
2015-17 Executive Budget 147.00 $0 $64,825,750 $64,825,750
2013-15 Legislative Appropriations 135.00 0 52,123,557 52,123,557
Increase (Decrease) 12.00 $0 $12,702,193 $12,702,193
Agency Funding FTE Positions
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General Fund Other Funds Total
2015-17 Executive Budget $0 $64,825,750 $64,825,750
2015-17 Base Level 0 52.123.657 52.123.557
Increase (Decrease) $0 $12,702,193 $12,702,193

Attached as an appendix is a detailed comparison of the executive budget to the agency's base level appropriations.

Executive Budget Highlights

General Fund

1. Provides funding for state employee benefit increases, of which
$634,719 is for health insurance increases and $164,421 is for
retirement contribution increases
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. Adds funding for 3 FTE mill operator positions

. Adds funding for 3 FTE rail car loader positions
. Adds funding for 2 FTE flour packer positions

. Adds funding for 2 FTE utility worker positions
Adds funding for 1 FTE electrician position

. Adds funding for 1 FTE maintenance worker position
. Increases funding for operating expenses
Increases funding for contingencies

Other Sections in Bill
Transfer to general fund - Section 11 provides for a transfer of 50 percent of the Mill and Elevator's annual profits up to

$6,817,200 per biennium to the general fund.

Other Funds
$0 $799,140
$0 $426,278
$0 $390,138
$0 $251,313
$0 $249,916
$0 $176,636
$0 $149,625
$0 $5,531,000
$0 $100,000

Continuing Appropriations
There are no continuing appropriations for this agency.

Total
$799,140

$426,278
$390,138
$251,313
$249,916
$176,636
$149,625
$5,531,000
$100,000




Significant Audit Findings

There are no significant audit findings for this agency.

Major Related Legislation
At this time, no major legislation has been introduced affecting this agency.




Mill and Elevator Association - Budget No. 475

House Bill No. 1014
Base Level Funding Changes

Executive Budget Recommendation

FTE
Positions  General Fund  Other Funds Total
2015-17 Biennium Base Level 135.00 $0 $52,123,557 $52,123,557
2015-17 Ongoing Funding Changes
Base payroll changes $4,628,147 $4,628,147
Salary increase - Performance 0
Salary increase - Market equity 0
Retirement contribution increase 164,421 164,421
Health insurance increase 634,719 634,719
Mill operator positions 3.00 426,278 426,278
Rail car loader positions 3.00 390,138 390,138
Flour packer positions 2.00 251,913 251,313
Utility worker positions 2.00 249,916 249,916
Electrician position 1.00 176,636 176,636
Maintenance worker position 1.00 149,625 149,625
Funding for operating expenses 5,531,000 5,531,000
Funding for contingencies 100,000 100,000
Total ongoing funding changes 12.00 $0 $12,702,193 $12,702,193
One-time funding items
No executive budget one-time funding items $0
Total one-time funding changes 0.00 $0 $0 $0
Total Changes to Base Level Funding 12.00 $0 $12,702,193 $12,702,193
2015-17 Total Funding 147.00 $0 $64,825,750 $64,825,750

Other Sections in House Bill No. 1014

Executive Budget Recommendation

Transfer to general fund Section 11 provides for a transfer of 50 percent of the Mill and
Elevator's annual profits up to $6,817,200 per biennium to the

general fund.



Prepared by the North Dakota Legislative Council
staff for House Appropriations

Department 405 - Industrial Commission

House Bill No. 1014

January 14,

2015

Executive Budget Comparison to Prior Biennium Appropriations

2015-17 Executive Budget

2013-15 Legislative Appropriations1

Increase (Decrease)

FTE Positions General Fund Other Funds Total
121.75 $47,590,537 $17,027,322 $64,617,859
98.75 22,494 125 40,973,792 63,467,917
23.00 $25,096,412 ($23,946,470) $1,149,942

"The 2013-15 appropriation amounts do not include general fund allocations of $400,000 to the agency from the state agency
energy impact funding pool for temporary salary adjustments ($90,966) and rental assistance payments ($309,034) for
agency employees located in areas of the state affected by energy development.

Ongoing and One-Time General Fund Appropriations

Ongoing General Fund One-Time General Total General Fund
Appropriation Fund Appropriation Appropriation
2015-17 Executive Budget $27,977,452 $19,613,085 $47,590,537
2013-15 Legislative Appropriations 21,383,325 1,160,800 22,494,125
Increase (Decrease) $6,644,127 $18,452,285 $25,096,412
Agency Funding FTE Positions
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General Fund Other Funds Total
2015-17 Executive Budget $47,590,537 $17,027,322 $64,617,859
2015-17 Base Level 21,338,325 40,973,792 62,307,117
Increase (Decrease) $26,257,212 ($23,946,470) $2,310,742

Attached as an appendix is a detailed comparison of the executive budget to the agency's base level appropriations.

Executive Budget Highlights

1. Provides funding for state employee salary and benefit

increases,

of which $1,137,357

relates

to performance

increases, $22,019 is for market equity adjustments, $513,818 is
for health insurance increases, and $117,592 is for retirement

contribution increases

2. Other 2013-15 salary adjustments

3. Adds funding for 9 FTE engineering technician positions, of
which $1,376,449 is for salaries and wages and $569,088 is for

operating expenses

General Fund Other Funds Total
$1,686,615 $104,171 $1,790,786
$157,056 ($150,000) $7,056
$1,945,537 $0 $1,945,537




4. Adds funding for 1 FTE pipeline engineering technician position, $162,018 $0 $162,018
of which $152,379 is for salaries and wages and $9,639 is for
operating expenses

5. Adds funding for 1 FTE petroleum engineer position, of which $222 508 $0 $222 508
$168,105 is for salaries and wages and $54,403 is for operating
expenses

6. Adds funding for 1 FTE safety officer position, of which $178,078 $187,717 $0 $187,717
is for salaries and wages and $9,639 is for operating expenses

7. Adds funding for 1 FTE human resources specialist position, of $139,380 $0 $139,380

which $129,741 is for salaries and wages and $9,639 is for
operating expenses
8. Adds funding for 1 FTE budget specialist position, of which $174,518 $0 $174,518
$164,879 is for salaries and wages and $9,640 is for operating
expenses
9. Adds funding for 1 FTE reclamation specialist position, of which $230,911 $0 $230,911
$167,679 is for salaries and wages and $63,232 is for operating
expenses
10. Adds funding for 2 FTE surface geologist positions, of which $488,384 $0 $488,384
$360,902 is for salaries and wages and $127,482 is for operating
expenses
11. Adds funding for 2 FTE survey engineering technician positions, $323,769 $0 $323,769
of which $304,491 is for salaries and wages and $19,278 is for
operating expenses
12. Adds funding for 3 FTE engineering technician contingency $648,512 $0 $648,512
positions, of which $458,816 is for salaries and wages and
$189,696 is for operating expenses

13. Adds funding for 1 FTE industrial water sales position $0 $150,000 $150,000
14. Decreases funding for bond payments ($24,646) ($4,744,494) ($4,769,140)
15. Removes appropriation authority for lignite grants. The grants $0 ($19,500,000) ($19,500,000)

will be distributed pursuant to a continuing appropriation
authorized for the lignite research fund.

16. Changes to operating expenses primarily related to increased $257,771 $52,000 $309,771
travel costs

17. Adds one-time funding for possible litigation costs related to $3,000,000 $0 $3,000,000
hydraulic fracturing, gas capture, and flaring reduction

18. Adds one-time funding to expand the core library $16,033,942 $0 $16,033,942

19. Adds one-time funding for an aerial photography project $104,143 $0 $104,143

20. Adds one-time funding for contract costs related to core $125,000 $0 $125,000
analyses

21. Adds one-time funding for a seismic profile digital conversion $100,000 $0 $100,000
project

22. Adds one-time funding for information technology costs related $250,000 $0 $250,000

to programing changes for a risk based management system

Other Sections in Bill
Bond payments - Section 3 provides legislative intent for bond payments, and Section 5 provides appropriation authority,
subject to emergency commission approval, for bond issuances during the 2015-17 biennium.

Transfer - Section 6 allows the Industrial Commission to transfer up to $930,000 from special funds from the entities under the
control of the Industrial Commission for administrative services.

Lignite research - Section 12 designates $4.5 million from the lignite research fund for lignite marketing studies, the Lignite
Vision 21 program, or possible lignite related litigation.

Contingency funding - Department of Mineral Resources - Section 13 provides that $458,816 included in the salaries and
wages line item and $189,696 in the operating line item in Section 1 of the bill may be used by the oil and gas division to hire 3
FTE positions upon certification to the Office of Management and Budget that the total number of wells in the state capable of
production or injection exceeds 20,000.

North Dakota outdoor heritage fund - Section 18 allows the Office of Management and Budget to increase the appropriation
authority of state agencies that receive grant awards from the North Dakota outdoor heritage fund.




Continuing Appropriations
Abandoned oil and gas reclamation fund - North Dakota Century Code Section 38-08-04.5 - Abandoned oil and gas
reclamation.

Carbon dioxide storage facility administration fund - Section 38-22-14 - For defraying costs of processing applications for
regulating carbon dioxide storage facilities.

Carbon dioxide storage facility trust fund - Section 38-22-15 - For costs associated with long-term monitoring and
management of a closed carbon dioxide storage facility.

Cartographic products fund - Section 54-17.4-10 - Topographic map sales and purchases.

Cash bond fund - Section 38-08-04.11 - For defraying costs incurred in plugging and reclamation of abandoned oil and gas
wells and related activities.

Fossil excavation and restoration fund - Section 54-17.4-09.1 - Excavation and restoration of fossils.
Geological data preservation fund - Section 54-17.4-13 - Data preservation.

Geophysical, geothermal, subsurface minerals, and coal exploration fund - Section 38-21-03 - Reclamation of orphaned
facilities and exploration holes.

Global positioning system community base station - Section 54-17.4-12 - For maintenance of base station.
Lignite research fund - Section 57-61-01.5 - Research, development, and marketing for lignite industry.

North Dakota outdoor heritage fund - Section 54-17.8-02 - For grants to conserve natural areas, restore wildlife and fish
habitats, and provide access to sportsmen.

North Dakota Pipeline Authority administrative fund - Section 54-17.7-11 - For operations of the Pipeline Authority.

Oil and gas research fund - Section 57-51.1-07.3 - Oil and gas research and education.

Oil and gas reservoir data fund - Section 38-08-04.6 - Oil and gas reservoir data.

Renewable energy development fund - Section 54-63-04 - Renewable energy research, development, and education.
Significant Audit Findings

The operational audit for the Industrial Commission conducted by the State Auditor's office during the 2013-14 interim
identified no significant audit findings.

Major Related Legislation
House Bill No. 1032 - Changes the allocation of oil and gas gross production tax collections to the abandoned oil and gas well
plugging and site reclamation fund from $5 million per fiscal year to $10 million per fiscal year.

House Bill No. 1179 - Adds the Tax Commissioner and the chairman of the Public Service Commlssmn as members of the
Industrial Commission.

House Bill No. 1187 - Provides that certain rules issued by the Industrial Commission are void beginning January 1, 2016.

Senate Bill No. 2032 - Creates an oil and gas development strategic planning authority to identify infrastructure needs in
areas impacted by oil and gas development and provides a continuing appropriation.

Senate Bill No. 2034 - Provides a sales and use tax exemption for materials used in the transmission of oil through a
gathering pipeline.

Senate Bill No. 2190 - Allows funding from the abandoned oil and gas well plugging and site reclamation fund to be used to
address environmental emergencies.




Industrial Comission - Budget No. 405

House Bill No. 1014
Base Level Funding Changes

2015-17 Biennium Base Level

2015-17 Ongoing Funding Changes
Base payroll changes
Salary increase - Performance
Salary increase - Market equity
Retirement contribution increase
Health insurance increase
Other 2013-15 salary adjustments
FTE engineering technician positions
FTE pipeline engineering technician position
FTE petroleum engineer position
FTE safety officer position
FTE human resources specialist position
FTE budget specialist position
FTE reclamation specialist position
FTE surface geologist positions
FTE survey engineering technician positions

FTE engineering technician contingency positions

FTE industrial water sales position
Decreases funding for bond payments
Removes funding for lignite grants
Changes to operating expenses

Total ongoing funding changes

One-time funding items
Possible litigation
Core library
Aerial photography
Core analyses
Seismic profile digital conversion
Information technology costs
Total one-time funding changes

Total Changes to Base Level Funding
2015-17 Total Funding

Other Sections in House Bill No. 1014

Bond payments

Transfer

Executive Budget Recommendation

FTE
Positions General Fund Other Funds Total

98.75 $21,333,325 $40,973,792 $62,307,117
$44,076 $141,853 $185,929

1,073,112 64,245 1,137,357

17,758 4,261 22,019

110,950 6,642 117,592

484,795 29,023 513,818

157,056 (150,000) 7,056

9.00 1,945,537 1,945,537
1.00 162,018 162,018
1.00 222,508 222,508
1.00 187,717 187,717
1.00 139,380 139,380
1.00 174,519 174,519
1.00 230,911 230,911
2.00 488,384 488,384
2.00 323,769 323,769
3.00 648,512 648,512
1.00 150,000 150,000
(24,646) (4,744,494) (4,769,140)
(19,500,000) (19,500,000)

257,771 52,000 309,771
23.00 $6,644,127  ($23,946,470) ($17,302,343)
$3,000,000 $3,000,000

16,033,942 16,033,942

104,143 104,143

125,000 125,000

100,000 100,000

250,000 250,000

0.00 $19,613,085 $0 $19,613,085
23.00 $26,257,212  ($23,946,470) $2,310,742
124575 $47,590,537 $17,027,322 $64,617,859

Executive Budget Recommendation

Section 3 provides legislative intent for bond payments, and
Section 5 provides appropriation authority, subject to
emergency commission approval, for bond issuances during the
2015-17 biennium.

Section 6 allows the Industrial Commission to transfer up to
$930,000 from special funds from the entities under the control
of the Industrial Commission for administrative services.



Lignite research

Executive Budget Recommendation

Section 12 designates $4.5 million from the lignite research fund
for lignite marketing studies, the Lignite Vision 21 program, or
possible lignite related litigation.

Contingency funding - Department of Mineral Section 13 provides that $458,816 included in the salaries and

Resources

North Dakota outdoor heritage fund

wages line item and $189,696 in the operating line item in
Section 1 of the bill may be used by the oil and gas division to
hire three full-time equivalent positions upon certification to the
Office of Management and Budget that the total number of wells
in the state capable of production or injection exceeds 20,000.

Section 18 allows the Office of Management and Budget to
increase the appropriation authority of state agencies that
receive grant awards from the North Dakota outdoor heritage
fund.
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Sixty-fourth
Legislative Assembly
of North Dakota

HOUSE BILL NO. 1014

Introduced by
Appropriations Committee

(At the request of the Governor)

A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the state industrial
commission and the agencies under the management of the industrial commission; to provide a
continuing appropriation; to provide a contingent appropriation; to authorize transfers; to provide
legislative intent; to create and enact a new section to chapter 6-09 and a new section to
chapter 54-17.8 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to a new short line railroad loan
program and the North Dakota outdoor heritage fund; to amend and reenact sections 54-17-40,
54-17-41, and 57-38-01.32 of the North Dakota Century Code and section 22 of chapter 579 of
the 2011 Session Laws, relating to the housing incentive fund credits and the use of the

flex PACE program; and to provide an expiration date.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA:

SECTION 1. APPROPRIATION. The funds provided in this section, or so much of the funds
as may be necessary, are appropriated out of any moneys in the general fund in the state
treasury, not otherwise appropriated, and from special funds derived from federal funds and
other income, to the state industrial commission and agencies under its control for the purpose
of defraying the expenses of the state industrial commission and agencies under its control, for

the biennium beginning July 1, 2015, and ending June 30, 2017, as follows:

Subdivision 1.
INDUSTRIAL COMMISSION
Adjustments or
Base Level Enhancements Appropriation
Salaries and wages $17,873,876 $5,947,986 $23,821,862
Accrued leave payments 347,696 (347,696) 0
Operating expenses 4,775,576 4,966,150 9,741,726
Capital assets 0 16,013,442 16,013,442

Page No. 1 15.8122.01000



o © 00 N O O A W N -

Sixty-fourth

Legislative Assembly

Grants 19,500,000
Grants - bond payments 19,809,969
Total all funds $62,307,117
Less estimated income 40,973,792
Total general fund $21,333,325
Full-time equivalent positions 99.75

Subdivision 2.

(19,500,000)
(4.769,140)
$2,310,742

(23,946,470)

$26,257,212

22.00

BANK OF NORTH DAKOTA - OPERATIONS

Base Level
Bank of North Dakota operations $51,523,916
Accrued leave payments 881,231
Capital assets 745,000
Total special funds $53,150,147
Full-time equivalent positions 179.50

Subdivision 3.

Adjustments or
Enhancements
$7,894,777
(881,231)

0

$7,013,546
2.00

MILL AND ELEVATOR ASSOCIATION

Base Level
Salaries and wages $29,141,750
Accrued leave payments 575,807
Operating expenses 21,796,000
Contingencies 400,000
Agriculture promotion 210,000
Total from mill and elevator fund $52,123,557
Full-time equivalent positions 135.00

Subdivision 4.

Adjustments or
Enhancements
$7,647,000
(575,807)
5,531,000
100,000

0

$12,702,193
12.00

HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY

Base Level

Salaries and wages $7,434,877

Page No. 2

Adjustments or
Enhancements

$532,595

0 .

15,040,829
$64,617,859
17,027,322
$47,590,537
121.75

Appropriation
$59,418,693

0

745,000
$60,163,693
181.50

Appropriation
$36,788,750
0

27,327,000
500,000
210,000
$64,825,750
147.00

Appropriation
$7,967,472

15.8122.01000
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31

Sixty-fourth
Legislative Assembly

Accrued leave payments

Operating expenses

Grants

Housing finance agency contingencies
Total special funds

Full-time equivalent positions

Subdivision 5.

Grand total general fund
Grand total special funds

Grand total all funds

147,806
3,791,758
29,533,050
100,000
$41,007,491
46.00

BILL TOTAL

Base Level
$21,333,325
187,254,987

$208,588,312

(147,806)
(47,483)
(3,602,270)
0

($3,264,964)
0.00

Adjustments or

Enhancements

$26,257,212

(7.495,695)
$18,761,517

0

3,744,275
25,930,780
100.000
$37,742,527
46.00

Appropriation
$47,590,537

179,759,292
$227,349,829

SECTION 2. ONE-TIME FUNDING - EFFECT ON BASE BUDGET - REPORT TO
SIXTY-FIFTH LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY. The following amounts reflect the one-time funding

items approved by the sixty-third legislative assembly for the 2013-15 biennium and the 2015-

17 one-time funding items included in the grand total appropriation in section 1 of this Act:

One-Time Funding Description

Oil-bearing rock study
Possible litigation

Core library - architect services
Temperature profiles study
Wide-bed plotter

Core library - expansion
Aerial photography
Contract analysis

Digital conversion
Migration to RBDMS.net
Medical loan program
Housing incentive fund

Flood housing grants

Page No. 3

2013-15 2015-17

$80,000 $0

1,000,000 3,000,000

25,000 0

50,000 0

5,800 0

0 16,033,942

0 104,143

0 125,000

0 100,000

0 250,000

50,000,000 0

15,400,000 0

1,500,000 0
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1 Total all funds $68,060,800 $19,613,085 ‘

2  Total special fund 51,500,000 0

3 Total general fund $16,560,800 $19,613,085

4  The 2015-17 one-time funding amounts are not a part of the entity's base budget for the

5 2017-19 biennium. The industrial commission shall report to the appropriations committees of

6 the sixty-fifth legislative assembly on the use of this one-time funding for the biennium

7  beginning July 1, 2015, and ending June 30, 2017.

8 SECTION 3. LEGISLATIVE INTENT - BOND PAYMENTS. The amount of $15,040,829

9 included in subdivision 1 of section 1 of this Act in the grants - bond payments line item must be
10  paid from the following funding sources during the biennium beginning July 1, 2015, and ending
11 June 30, 2017:
12  North Dakota university system $8,368,836
13  North Dakota university system - energy conservation projects 491,161
14  Department of corrections and rehabilitation 1,279,524
15 Department of corrections and rehabilitation - energy conservation projects 16,206
16  State department of health 637,940
17  Job service North Dakota 427,131
18  Office of management and budget 664,952
19  Office of attorney general 765,483
20 State historical society 1,391,668
21 Parks and recreation department 73,592
22 Research and extension service 571,126
23 Veterans' home 353,210
24  Total $15,040,829
25 SECTION 4. APPROPRIATION. In addition to the amount appropriated to the housing
26 finance agency in subdivision 4 of section 1 of this Act, there is appropriated any additional
27  income or unanticipated income from federal or other funds which may become available to the
28  agency for the biennium beginning July 1, 2015, and ending June 30, 2017.
29 SECTION 5. APPROPRIATION - EMERGENCY COMMISSION APPROVAL. In addition to
30 the amount appropriated to the state industrial commission in subdivision 1 of section 1 of this
31 Act, there is appropriated, with the approval of the emergency commission, funds that may .
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become available to the commission from bonds authorized by law to be issued by the state
industrial commission for the biennium beginning July 1, 2015, and ending June 30, 2017.

SECTION 6. TRANSFER. The sum of $930,000, or so much of the sum as may be
necessary, included in the special funds appropriation line item in subdivision 1 of section 1 of
this Act, may be transferred from the entities within the control of the state industrial commission
or entities directed to make payments to the industrial commission fund for administrative
services rendered by the commission. Transfers shall be made during the biennium beginning
July 1, 2015, and ending June 30, 2017, upon order of the commission. Transfers from the
student loan trust must be made to the extent permitted by sections 54-17-24 and 54-17-25.

SECTION 7. TRANSFER - BANK OF NORTH DAKOTA - PARTNERSHIP IN ASSISTING
COMMUNITY EXPANSION. The Bank of North Dakota shall transfer the sum of $28,000,000,
or so much of the sum as may be necessary, from the Bank's current earnings and undivided
profits to the partnership in assisting community expansion fund during the biennium beginning
July 1, 2015, and ending June 30, 2017.

SECTION 8. TRANSFER - BANK OF NORTH DAKOTA - AGRICULTURE PARTNERSHIP
IN ASSISTING COMMUNITY EXPANSION. The Bank of North Dakota shall transfer the sum of
$3,000,000, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, from the Bank's current earnings and
undivided profits to the agriculture partnership in assisting community expansion fund during the
biennium beginning July 1, 2015, and ending June 30, 2017.

SECTION 9. TRANSFER - BANK OF NORTH DAKOTA - BIOFUELS PARTNERSHIP IN
ASSISTING COMMUNITY EXPANSION. The Bank of North Dakota shall transfer the sum of
$2,000,000, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, from the Bank's current earnings and
undivided profits to the biofuels partnership in assisting community expansion fund during the
biennium beginning July 1, 2015, and ending June 30, 2017.

SECTION 10. TRANSFER - BANK OF NORTH DAKOTA - BEGINNING FARMER
REVOLVING LOAN FUND. The Bank of North Dakota shall transfer the sum of $7,000,000, or
so much of the sum as may be necessary, from the Bank's current earnings and undivided
profits to the beginning farmer revolving loan fund during the biennium beginning July 1, 2015,
and ending June 30, 2017.

SECTION 11. MILL AND ELEVATOR PROFITS - TRANSFER TO THE GENERAL FUND.

Notwithstanding any other provision of law, the industrial commission shall transfer to the state
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general fund 50 percent of the annual earnings and undivided profits of the North Dakota mill
and elevator association after any transfers to other state agricultural-related programs or the
sum of $6,817,200, whichever is less, during the biennium beginning July 1, 2015, and ending
June 30, 2017. The moneys must be transferred on an annual basis in the amounts and at the
times requested by the director of the office of management and budget.

SECTION 12. LIGNITE RESEARCH, DEVELOPMENT, AND MARKETING PROGRAM -
LIGNITE MARKETING FEASIBILITY STUDY. The amount of $4,500,000 from the lignite
research fund, or so much of the amount as may be necessary, may be used for the purpose of
contracting for an independent, nonmatching lignite marketing feasibility study or studies that
determine those focused priority areas where near-term, market-driven projects, activities, or
processes will generate matching private industry investment and have the most potential of
preserving existing lignite production and industry jobs or that will lead to increased
development of lignite and its products and create new lignite industry jobs and economic
growth for the general welfare of this state. Moneys appropriated under this section also may be
used for the purpose of contracting for nonmatching studies and activities in support of the
lignite vision 21 program; for litigation that may be necessary to protect and promote the
continued development of lignite resources; for nonmatching externality studies and activities in
externality proceedings; or other marketing, environmental, or transmission activities that assist
with marketing of lignite-based electricity and lignite-based byproducts. Moneys not needed for
the purposes stated in this section are available to the commission for funding projects,
processes, or activities under the lignite research, development, and marketing program.

SECTION 13. CONTINGENT APPROPRIATION - DEPARTMENT OF MINERAL
RESOURCES FUNDING. Of the funds appropriated in subdivision 1 of section 1 of this Act,
$458,816 in the salaries and wages line item and $189,696 in the operating line item is from the
general fund. If funds are required due to the total number of wells capable of production or
injection in the state exceeding 20,000, the oil and gas division may spend up to $648,512 and
hire three full-time equivalent positions, upon notification to the office of management and
budget.

SECTION 14. APPROPRIATION - TRANSFER. There is appropriated out of any moneys in
the strategic investment and improvements fund in the state treasury, not otherwise

appropriated, the sum of $10,000,000, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, to the short
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line railroad revolving loan fund for use by the Bank of North Dakota to provide short line

railroad loans under section 15 of the Act.

SECTION 15. A new section to chapter 6-09 of the North Dakota Century Code is created

and enacted as follows:

Short line railroad revolving loan fund - Continuing appropriation - Requirements.

1

[

[0

>

5.

The fund must be maintained by the Bank of North Dakota for the purpose of making
loans to short line rail companies or North Dakota agricultural product shippers to
cover the costs associated with expansions, spurs, switches, or other infrastructure
enhancements to rail lines in this state. The short line railroad revolving loan fund is a

special fund in the state treasury. All moneys in the fund, including interest upon

moneys in the fund and payments of principal and interest on loans from the fund, are

appropriated to the Bank on a continuing basis for the purpose of providing loans

under this section.

The Bank of North Dakota shall administer and supervise the revolving loan fund and
loans made from the fund. The Bank may deduct from interest payments received on
loans a service fee for administering the fund. An application for a loan from the fund

must be made to the Bank and. upon approval, a loan must be made from the fund in

accordance with this section.

Aloan from the fund must have the interest rate fixed at one percent per year for

twenty-five vears.

The fund must be audited in accordance with section 6-09-29. The cost of the audit

and any other actual costs incurred by the Bank on behalf of the fund must be paid

from the fund.

The Bank shall adopt policies to implement this section.

SECTION 16. AMENDMENT. Section 54-17-40 of the North Dakota Century Code is

amended and reenacted as follows:

54-17-40. (Effective through June 30, 20452017) Housing incentive fund - Continuing

appropriation - Report to budget section.

1.

The housing incentive fund is created as a special revolving fund at the Bank of North
Dakota. The housing finance agency may direct disbursements from the fund and a

continuing appropriation from the fund is provided for that purpose.

Page No. 7 15.8122.01000
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2.

After a public hearing, the housing finance agency shall create an annual allocation
plan for the distribution of the fund. At least twenty-five percent of the fund must be
used to assist developing communities to address an unmet housing need or alleviate
a housing shortage. The agency may collect a reasonable administrative fee from the
fund, project developers, applicants, or grant recipients.

The annual allocation plan must give first priority through its scoring and ranking
process to housing for essential service workers. For purposes of this subsection,
"essential service workers" means individuals employed by a city, county, school
district, medical or long-term care facility, the state of North Dakota, or others as
determined by the housing finance agency who fulfill an essential public service.

The second priority in the annual allocation plan must be to provide housing for
individuals and families of low or moderate income. For purposes of this second
priority, eligible income limits are determined as a percentage of median family income
as published in the most recent federal register notice. Under this second priority, the
annual allocation plan must give preference to projects that benefit households with
the lowest income and to projects that have rent restrictions at or below department of
housing and urban development published federal fair market rents or department of
housing and urban development section 8 payment standards.

The housing finance agency shall maintain a register reflecting the number of
housing units owned or master leased by cities, counties, school districts, or other
employers of essential service workers. This register must also reflect those entities
that are providing rent subsidies for their essential workers. The housing finance
agency shall report quarterly to the budget section of the legislative management on
the progress being made to reduce the overall number of units owned, master leased,
or subsidized by these entities. This report must include a listing of projects approved
and number of units within those projects that provide housing for essential service
workers.

The housing finance agency shall adopt guidelines for the fund so as to address
unmet housing needs in this state. Assistance from the fund may be used solely for:
a. New construction, rehabilitation, or acquisition of a multifamily housing project;

b. Gap assistance, matching funds, and accessibility improvements;
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c. Assistance that does not exceed the amount necessary to qualify for a loan using
underwriting standards acceptable for secondary market financing or to make the
project feasible; and

d. Rental assistance, emergency assistance, or targeted supportive services
designated to prevent homelessness.

4. Eligible recipients include units of local, state, and tribal government; local and tribal
housing authorities; community action agencies; regional planning councils; and
nonprofit organizations and for-profit developers of multifamily housing. Individuals
may not receive direct assistance from the fund.

5. Except for subdivision d of subsection 3, assistance is subject to repayment or
recapture under the guidelines adopted by the housing finance agency. Any
assistance that is repaid or recaptured must be deposited in the fund and is
appropriated on a continuing basis for the purposes of this section.

SECTION 17. AMENDMENT. Section 54-17-41 of the North Dakota Century Code is

amended and reenacted as follows:

54-17-41. (Effective through June 30, 20452017) Report.

Upon request, the housing finance agency shall report to the industrial commission on the

activities of the housing incentive fund.

SECTION 18. A new section to chapter 54-17.8 of the North Dakota Century Code is

created and enacted as follows:

North Dakota outdoor heritage fund disbursement.

The industrial commission shall notify the office of management and budget when moneys

are disbursed to a state agency from the North Dakota outdoor heritage fund. The director of

the office of management and budget may adjust the appropriation of a state agency in an

amount equal to that of the disbursement.
SECTION 19. AMENDMENT. Section 57-38-01.32 of the North Dakota Century Code is

amended and reenacted as follows:

57-38-01.32. (Effective for the first two taxable years beginning after December 31,
20122014) Housing incentive fund tax credit.

1. Ataxpayer is entitled to a credit as determined under this section against state income

tax liability under section 57-38-30 or 57-38-30.3 for contributing to the housing

Page No. 9 15.8122.01000



O © 00 N O 0o B WON =

Sixty-fourth
Legislative Assembly

incentive fund under section 54-17-40. The amount of the credit is equal to the amount ‘
contributed to the fund during the taxable year.

North Dakota taxable income must be increased by the amount of the contribution
upon which the credit under this section is computed but only to the extent the
contribution reduced federal taxable income.

The contribution amount used to calculate the credit under this section may not be
used to calculate any other state income tax deduction or credit allowed by law.

If the amount of the credit exceeds the taxpayer's tax liability for the taxable year, the
excess may be carried forward to each of the ten succeeding taxable years.

The aggregate amount of tax credits allowed to all eligible contributors is limited to
twentythirty million dollars.

Within thirty days after the date on which a taxpayer makes a contribution to the
housing incentive fund, the housing finance agency shall file with each contributing
taxpayer, and a copy with the tax commissioner, completed forms that show as to

each contribution to the fund by that taxpayer the following: ‘

a. The name, address, and social security number or federal employer identification
number of the taxpayer that made the contribution.

b.  The dollar amount paid for the contribution by the taxpayer.

c. The date the payment was received by the fund.

To receive the tax credit provided under this section, a taxpayer shall claim the credit

on the taxpayer's state income tax return in the manner prescribed by the tax

commissioner and file with the return a copy of the form issued by the housing finance

agency under subsection 6.

Notwithstanding the time limitations contained in section 57-38-38, this section does

not prohibit the tax commissioner from conducting an examination of the credit

claimed and assessing additional tax due under section 57-38-38.

A passthrough entity making a contribution to the housing incentive fund under this

section is considered to be the taxpayer for purposes of this section, and the amount

of the credit allowed must be determined at the passthrough entity level. The amount

of the total credit determined at the entity level must be passed through to the
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partners, shareholders, or members in proportion to their respective interests in the

passthrough entity.
SECTION 20. AMENDMENT. Section 22 of chapter 579 of the 2011 Session Laws is

amended and reenacted as follows:
SECTION 22. FLEX PACE PROGRAM USE. The Bank of North Dakota shall

utilize the flex partnership in assisting community expansion program to assist in

financing of affordable multifamily housing units for individuals in areas-ef North

Dakota affected-by-oil-and-gas-development; for the period beginning with the effective
date of this Act and ending June 30, 26432019.
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Karlene Fine, Executive Director and Secretary
of the Industrial Commission
January 15, 2015

Mr. Chairman and members of the House Appropriations Committee, my name is Karlene Fine and |
am Executive Director and Secretary for the Industrial Commission of North Dakota. House Bill 1014
includes the appropriations for the Industrial Commission administrative office and those agencies and
programs that report to the Industrial Commission.

The Industrial Commission is made up of the Governor, as Chairman, the Attorney General and the
Agriculture Commissioner. The Industrial Commission is responsible for overseeing the State’s
industries—the Bank of North Dakota and State Mill. In the area of finance the Commission also
oversees the Public Finance Authority, the Student Loan Trust, the North Dakota Building Authority and
the Housing Finance Agency. In the area of natural resources and regulation the Commission oversees
the Department of Mineral Resources which includes the oil and gas, geophysical exploration,
subsurface mineral regulation and CO, Geological Storage in addition to other programs through its Oil
and Gas Division and the Geological Survey. The Commission is also involved in research through the
Lignite Research, Development and Marketing Program (Lignite Research Program), the Oil and Gas
Research Program and the Renewable Energy Program. In addition the Industrial Commission is the
North Dakota Transmission Authority and the North Dakota Pipeline Authority. Last legislative session
the Industrial Commission was given two new responsibilities -- oversight of the Outdoor Heritage
Fund and Western Area Water Supply Authority industrial sales.

Subdivision 1 of Section 1, includes the appropriations for the administrative office of the Industrial
Commission as well as the Department of Mineral Resources (Oil and Gas Division and Geological
Survey), Public Finance Authority, and the lease (bond) payments for projects financed by the Building
Authority. In previous sessions we had included a line item for the Lignite Research Program. Because
that Program is funded through a continuing appropriation we removed that line item and we will be
providing information on the Lignite Research Program this afternoon.

Administration. The Administration budget is part of Subdivision 1 of Section 1 and is also referenced
in Sections 3, 5, and 6 of House Bill 1014 or Budget No. 405. Subdivision 1

The proposed funding for the administrative office of the Industrial Commission provides for 4 full-time
employees. Two positions are currently vacant--one position is vacant because the Western Area

Water Supply Authority funding was not appropriated last session. The other position was held vacant
until the most recent election and | anticipate filling that position in the next few months. The

Karlene K. Fine, Executive Director and Secretary
State Capitol, 14th Floor - 600 E Boulevard Ave Dept 405 - Bismarck, ND 58505-0840
E-Mail: kfine@nd.gov
Phone: (701) 328-3722 FAX: (701) 328-2820
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administrative budget also includes the funding for the state’s participation in the Interstate Oil and
Gas Compact Commission. This Commission is a multi-state organization which speaks on behalf of the
oil and gas producing states before Congress and other national groups regarding legislation and
regulation of the oil and gas industry. The dues for this organization went up by nearly $40,000 in the
proposed budget as dues are based on the level of oil production in each member’s state.

The administrative office budget does not include any General Fund dollars. The administrative office
budget request is $949,135 for the office and then a total of $15,989,964 when you include the lease
(bond) payments. With full funding for the staff, the administrative office request reflects an increase
of $295,806 from the prior biennium. The administrative budget is funded by the agencies that report
to the Industrial Commission and the funding directed by the Legislature to be paid by the Western
Area Water Supply Authority (WASWS) industrial sales. You will see this funding source noted in
Section 6 where authority is granted for these agencies and WAWS to transfer funds to the Industrial

Commission.

Section 5 includes language that would allow the Industrial Commission to utilize funds that may
become available from bonds issued by the Commission upon the approval of the Emergency
Commission. This authority would allow reimbursement from the bond issues for extra costs incurred
in preparation of the financing.

Subdivision 1 of Section 1 includes the lease payments (bond payments) for the North Dakota Building
Authority in the amount of $15,040,829 — see line 2 on page 2. This is a decrease from the prior
biennium of $4,769,140. Since 1985, the Industrial Commission has issued several series of bonds as
directed by the Legislature. Projects financed have been located across the state.

Attached for your information is the Debt Service Schedules for all the outstanding bond issues. The
proposed Executive Budget does not include any bonding by the North Dakota Building Authority. If
there was bonding proposed this attachment shows that there is available debt service under the 10%
of 1¢ statutory limitation in the amount of $76.5 million.

Section 3 provides the breakdown on the source of funding for the $15+ million of lease (bond)

payments for the upcoming biennium. The following non-General Fund sources or energy
conservation savings* will be utilized to pay a portion of these payments:
*University System — UND (05A) S 491,161
*Missouri River Correctional Center (03B) S 16,206
Job Service North Dakota (02A/108B) S 427,131
Historical Society (05A) S 33,333
Veterans Home (10A/B) S 353,210
Dept. of Health (02A) (federal funds) S 181,605
$1,502,646

This afternoon we will be going over in more detail the following programs overseen by the Industrial
Commission and the programs that have continuing appropriations. They are:
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Lignite Research Program. As | noted earlier in prior sessions we had a line item for the Lignite
Research Program. Because this Program has a continuing appropriation we did not include that line
item this session. There is one provision in House Bill 1014 regarding the Lignite Research Program
which deals with funds being made available under the Lignite Research Program on a non-matching
basis. The majority of the funds under the Lignite Research Program must have match funding. For
many years there has been a certain portion of their funding that has not required a match. Section 12
continues that authority for a non-matching component of the Lignite Research Program funding.
Information about the Lignite Research Program is behind the tab LRP.

Transmission Authority. In 2005 the Legislature established the North Dakota Transmission Authority.
Andrea Stomberg currently serves as the Director of the Transmission Authority. The funding for the
Transmission Authority comes from the Lignite Research Fund. More information about the
Transmission Authority is available under the tab titled Transmission Authority.

Oil and Gas Research Program. Within this bill there is no appropriation for the Oil and Gas Research
Program. This Program is funded from oil and gas gross production and oil extraction tax revenues up
to $10 million a biennium. Additional information about the Qil and Gas Research Fund/Program is
behind the tab titled OGRP.

. Pipeline Authority. A portion of the Oil and Gas Research Fund is utilized to fund the North Dakota
Pipeline Authority. Justin Kringstad, a consultant, is the Director of the Pipeline Authority. The
Commission transferred $200,400 from the Oil and Gas Research Fund for the Pipeline Authority
during the 2013-2015 biennium. These funds are utilized to compensate the Director of the Pipeline
Authority and for studies conducted by the Pipeline Authority. More information about the Pipeline
Authority is available under the tab titled Pipeline Authority.

Renewable Energy Program. Last session the Legislature authorized a continuing appropriation from
the Resources Trust Fund for the Renewable Energy Program at the level of $3 million per biennium.
Additional information about the Renewable Energy Program is behind the tab titled Renewable

Energy Program.

Outdoor Heritage Fund. In 2013 the Outdoor Heritage Fund was established as a continuing
appropriation at the level of $30 million per biennium. The Executive Budget proposes that the
funding level be increased to $50 million per biennium. The authorization for that increase can be
found in House Bill 1013. In House Bill 1014 in Section 18 you will find language that authorizes the
Office of Management and Budget to adjust the appropriation of any state agency that may receive a
funding award from the Outdoor Heritage Fund.

Thank you for the opportunity to present testimony on the Industrial Commission Administrative Office
budget.
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Department of Mineral Resources

EXPLANATION OF PROGRAM COSTS
The DMR budget is 99% general funds and <1% federal funds. Budget costs are primarily salary and benefits (69%). The federal funds are expected to decrease slightly
over the current biennium.

The operating budget consists primarily of Lease/Rent/Facilities costs (13-14%) for the Bismarck office, warehouse, and three field offices. Other items of significant costs
include travel (32%), primarily for fieldwork, and IT costs (8%) including Data Processing, Telephone, and Contractual Services.

SALARIES AND BENEFITS

During the 2013-2015 biennium we experienced a significant increase in workload due to a record setting rig count and oil production. This increased workload

resulted in a drilling permit back log of approximately 650 permits and an order back log of approximately 1000 administrative orders. Current staffing levels are adequate
to keep up with about 17,000 wells. We anticipate exceeding the well number by the end of the current biennium. Even with the additional staffing being requested in this
budget, some seasonal temporary staffing will be crucial to meeting our mission both in the field and in the central office and flexibility is needed so that the personnel can
be assigned to meet the most critical need. Increased interest in surface geology as it relates to infrastructure needs and geologic hazard potential impacts on infrastructure
and other minerals found in North Dakota is also resulting in an increased workload with the Geological Survey staff. The Department also continues to face difficulties in
hiring experienced oil and gas and geological staff, therefore housing allowances and market salaries may be needed to find qualified personnel.

The executive budget recommendation funds 100% of the requested increase.

OPERATING

Travel

DOT motor pool rates have decreased from the 2013-2015 biennium although total mileage driven has significantly risen, resulting in an increase in travel expenses of
$120,449 for the Oil and Gas Division. Additional inflationary increases are hitting In-State Lodging. To offset the necessary reductions, the number of field inspections will
have to be reduced at a time when industry has a large number of inexperienced personnel who need guidance and supervision. This may result in inadequate protection of
potable waters and correlative rights.

Lease/Rent Bldg/Land

Geological Survey rent is increasing $11,400 in our Bismarck office building, and Oil and Gas Division rent is increasing $396,277 in our Bismarck ($25,027 DMR E. +
$190,776 DMR W. = $215,803), Dickinson ($59,920), Minot ($19,018), and Williston ($100,976) office buildings. The field offices currently provide a location for efficient
synchronization of inspector data to our main database, contact between the general public and local Oil and Gas Division employees, and for inspectors to complete
written correspondence.

The executive budget recommendation funds 100% of the requested increase.
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2011 - 2013 Financial Audit Findings

Recommendation: We recommend the Industrial Commission perform an
annual physical inventory of fixed assets in accordance with NDCC section 44-04-07.

Industrial Commission Response:

The Industrial Commission agrees with the finding and recommendation.

At the time, the Industrial Commission did not have enough personnel assigned to
the physical inventory to complete the inventory according to State requirements.
The inventory process was initiated, but our ability to affect a timely inventory process
was hindered by personnel turnover coupled with the growth of the Department and
the rapidly expanding oil and gas industry in the state. For example, during this time
period, we relocated our Dickinson District field office and also expanded the DMR
Bismarck offices. With these required office expansions and personnel resource
turnover, the inventory took longer than normal to complete. The 2013 inventory was
completed, although well after the deadline for completion. A full reconciliation of
fixed assets was achieved once the inventory was completed. In order to meet this
requirement in the future the Industrial Commission will be requesting an Accounting
/Budget Specialist (25% time allocation) to assist with the physical inventory and
reconciliation process.
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NORTH DAKOTA

Department of Mineral Resources

Oil and Gas Exploration and Production (NDCC 38-08-01)

It is hereby declared to be in the public interest to foster, to encourage, and to promote the development, production, and
utilization of natural resources of oil and gas in the state in such a manner as will prevent waste; to authorize and to provide for
the operation and development of oil and gas properties in such a manner that a greater ultimate recovery of oil and gas be had
and that the correlative rights of all owners be fully protected; and to encourage and to authorize cycling, recycling, pressure
maintenance, and secondary recovery operations in order that the greatest possible economic recovery of oil and gas be
obtained within the state to the end that the landowners, the royalty owners, the producers, and the general public realize and
enjoy the greatest possible good from these vital natural resources.

Geophysical Exploration (NDCC 38-08.1-02)

Notwithstanding any other provision of this chapter, the commission is the primary enforcement agency governing geophysical
exploration in this state. Any person in this state engaged in geophysical exploration or engaged as a subcontractor of a person
engaged in geophysical exploration shall comply with this chapter; provided, however, that compliance with this chapter by a
crew or its employer constitutes compliance herewith by that person who has engaged the service of the crew, or its employer, as
an independent contractor.

Carbon Dioxide Geological Storage (NDCC 38-22-01)

It is in the public interest to promote the geologic storage of carbon dioxide. Doing so will benefit the state and the global
environment by reducing greenhouse gas emissions. Doing so will help ensure the viability of the state's coal and power
industries, to the economic benefit of North Dakota and its citizens. Further, geologic storage of carbon dioxide, a potentially
valuable commodity, may allow for its ready availability if needed for commercial, industrial, or other uses, including enhanced
recovery of oil, gas, and other minerals. Geologic storage, however, to be practical and effective requires cooperative use of
surface and subsurface property interests and the collaboration of property owners. Obtaining consent from all owners may not
be feasible, requiring procedures that promote, in a manner fair to all interests, cooperative management, thereby ensuring the
maximum use of natural resources.
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NORTH DAKOTA

Department of Mineral Resources

The North Dakota Geological Survey was created by an act of the North Dakota Legislature in 1895. After more than 115 years,
the Survey still serves as the primary source of geological information in the state. Its mission over the years has grown and is
now three-fold: to investigate the geology of North Dakota; to administer regulatory programs and act in an advisory capacity to
other state agencies; and to provide public service to the people of North Dakota.

The Geological Survey publishes maps and reports on the mineralogical, paleontological, and geochemical resources of North
Dakota, including oil and gas, coal, uranium, clay, sand and gravel, volcanic ash, potash and other salts, etc. In addition to the
mapping of subsurface resources, the Survey is actively mapping the surface geology throughout the state with an emphasis on
urban areas and the identification of geohazards such as landslides. Survey publications support the regulatory programs of the
Industrial Commission, as well as other state and federal agencies, and assist mineral companies, geotechnical consulting firms,
city and county governments, landowners, and citizens of the state. The North Dakota Geological Survey regulates coal
exploration, subsurface mineral exploration and development (this includes all elements, minerals, and compounds other than oil
and gas, sand and gravel, and coal), geothermal facilities (both commercial and residential), the Class Ill Underground Injection
Control Program, and paleontological resources on state-owned lands.

The Geological Survey and the Oil and Gas Division are in the Department of Mineral Resources and under the North Dakota
Industrial Commission. The main office of the Department of Mineral Resources is located at 1016 East Calgary Avenue in
Bismarck. The paleontology program of the Geological Survey is housed in the Clarence Johnsrud Paleontology Laboratory in
the North Dakota Heritage Center (state museum) on the State Capitol grounds in Bismarck. The North Dakota State Fossil
Collection, as well as the State Rock and Mineral Collection, are also housed in the Heritage Center. The North Dakota
Geological Survey's Wilson M. Laird Core and Sample Library is located on the University of North Dakota campus in Grand
Forks. The facility currently houses 400,000 feet of core and 35,000 boxes of drill cuttings obtained from oil and gas wells.
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North Dakota Geological Survey North Dakota Geological Survey
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2015 - 2017 FTE Request
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2013 - 2015

Department of Mineral Resources
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NORTH DAKOTA

2013-2015 Appropriations Update J L0
8

Department of Mineral Resources

New 1-FTE engineering technician for OGD Bismarck office — for well log and directional survey inventory - Implemented

New 1-FTE engineering technician for OGD Bismarck office — for prepping O&G permits - Implemented

New 1-FTE engineering technician for OGD Bismarck office — for prepping UIC permits - Implemented

New 1-FTE engineering technician for OGD Bismarck office — for GIS/Database/IT - Implemented

New 3-FTE petroleum engineers for OGD field inspection-focusing on drilling rigs - Implemented

New 3-FTE engineering technicians OGD field inspection-in Dickinson, Minot, and Williston — Implemented

New 1-FTE petroleum engineer for OGD Bismarck office-supervise oil and gas production audit and
measurement department - Implemented

New 1-FTE engineering technician for OGD Bismarck office-for oil and gas measurement — Implemented

New 1-FTE petroleum geology analyst for OGD Bismarck office-regulation of top of cement review plus
core and sample submission - Implemented

New 1-FTE administrative assistant DMR-assist Accounting Budget Specialist with payroll - Implemented

New 1-Office assistant for OGD Bismarck-Production auditing and legal - Implemented

New 1-Office assistant for OGD Bismarck-general office filing and reception - Implemented

New 1-FTE surface geologist for Geological Survey Division Bismarck office - Implemented

New 1-FTE core library technician and geothermal facility inspector-GSD Grand Forks — Implemented

New 3-FTE engineering technicians contingency triggered when well count exceeded 15,000-OGD field inspection
— Interviewing
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NORTH DAKOTA

2013-2015 Appropriations Update D A&
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Department of Mineral Resources

Inflationary Increases - Implemented
Additional leased space for additional staff — Implemented

ONE TIME
Litigation (State vs. Federal Agencies) - $1,000,000

Market salary funds (included in agency salaries and benefits) - $450,000 - Implemented
Housing Allowance - $400,000 - Implemented via four 6-mo. OMB funding pool requests
Architectural - $25,000 — Implemented (Page 15)

Analysis of oil bearing rocks - $80,000 — Implemented (Page 16)

Geothermal Temperature Profiles — $50,000 — Implemented (Page 17)

Wide Bed Plotter - $5,800 — In Progress
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EXPANSION PLANS FOR THE
WILSON M. LAIRD CORE AND SAMPLE LIBRARY (2013 -2015)

Oil companies are required by law to archive cores and samples (small pieces of rock ground up by the drill bit) in the Wilson M.
Laird Core and Sample Library located on the University of North Dakota Campus in Grand Forks. The core library was constructed in
1980 and is quickly filling to capacity due to record-setting drilling activity in North Dakota. Current estimates are that the core library will
be completely filled in 2017. The core library warehouse (13,200 square feet) will need to be tripled in size in order to accommodate future
cores and samples.

EAPC was chosen as the architectural firm to draw plans and estimate costs for a core library expansion. The expansion costs were
included in the Governor’s Executive Budget for the 2015-2017 biennium.

The Wilson M. Laird Core and Sample Library on the campus of
the University of North Dakota. The core library houses over 75 miles
of core (132,000 boxes of core) and 30,000 boxes of samples.

One of eight aisles in the Wilson M. Laird Core and Sample Library.
Roughly 90% of the core in the core library have been reboxed in recent

years resulting in a 30% space savings.
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DEPARTMENT OF MINERAL RESOURCES - GEOLOGICAL SURVEY
OIL-BEARING ROCK ANALYSIS PROJECT (2013-2015)

In the 2013-2015 biennium, the Geological Survey shifted emphasis from rocks above the Bakken to rocks below the Bakken and Three
Forks Formations. This biennium, the Geological Survey has obtained 1,088 rock samples from core in the Icebox, Red River, Stonewall,
Winnipegosis, Duperow, Birdbear, and Madison Formations for total organic carbon and RockEval analysis. So far, the results indicate
several more potential source beds within these rocks than previously known. In some of these formations the oil-generating potential of the
source beds is very localized and in other formations they appear to have consistent oil-generating potential over larger areas. We are
continuing to sample these rocks to enable us to identify regional patterns.
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Thirty-six feet of Red River core (10,149 — 10,187 feet) from the Urlacher State Unit #1 in Hettinger County. The base of the Red River “C" is much
more organic rich than the underlying limestone.
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DEPARTMENT OF MINERAL RESOURCES — GEOLOGICAL SURVEY
WILLISTON BASIN TEMPERATURE PROFILE PROJECT (2013-2015)

The burial history and temperature profile of the Williston Basin are important components when calculating areas within the
basin where rocks are hot enough or were hot enough at one time in geologic history to generate oil. Temperature profiles can be
obtained by temperature logging oil wells that have sat idle for several months thus allowing the fluid in the well to come to the
same temperature as the surrounding rock.

This biennium we purchased a temperature probe and contracted with a wireline company to run the probe in 11 temporarily
abandoned oil wells in western North Dakota. So far, we have logged eight of those wells. We plan on purchasing a wire line unit
so that we can log a hundred or so wells in the next several years. These temperature profiles, scattered across the basin, will
enable more accurate estimates of where rocks in the Williston Basin were hot enough to generate oil (mature areas).
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Photograph above: Temperature logging a 10,000 foot well in Mountrail County.
Graph on the right: Temperature profile of the Sivertson 29-23R1 in McKenzie County.
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NORTH DAKOTA
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2015-2017 Budget Requests B J :

9 FTE Engineering Techs Field Inspection - focusing on wells and facilities.

1 FTE Engineering Tech GIS Pipelines — Increased gas capture GIS requirements.

1 FTE Petroleum Engineer Field Inspector — Increasing field activity in the Spearfish
play in Bottineau Co.

3 FTE Safety Officer, Acct\Budget Specialist, Human Resources Tech. — Increased
Department office support functions (safety, fiscal fraud risk assessment, recruiting
and retention increases).

1 FTE Petroleum Engineer Reclamation Specialist — Increased spill response and
reclamation requirements.

2 FTE Surface Geologists — Increased mapping needs in northwestern and eastern
North Dakota.

2 FTE Engineering Technicians — well log and directional survey compliance and QC.

3 FTE Engineering Technicians if well count exceeds 20,000 OGD field inspection-
focusing on wells and facilities.



NORTH DAKOTA
bay

2015-2017 Budget Requests

Inflationary Increases

ONE TIME
Potential Litigation EPA\BLM\TAT HF - $3,000,000

W.M.L. Core & Sample Library Expansion - $16,033,492 (Page 20)
Federal Funding Reduction Contingency - $30,000

Historical Aerial Photography - $104,143 (Page 21)

Contract Drilling and Coring - $125,000 (Page 22)

2D Seismic Profiles Digital Conversion - $100,000 (Page 23)
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EXPANSION OF THE
WILSON M. LAIRD CORE AND SAMPLE LIBRARY (2015-2017)

EAPC determined it would cost $16,013, 441.96 to triple the size of the existing core library warehouse, increase from one
laboratory to five (the original core library had two labs, but one had to be used for office space), increase office space, and add a conference
room. We believe that will give us 50 years of storage space and provide much needed research space. University of North Dakota personnel
were shown these plans as they developed and were asked for input. In addition, the Department of Mineral Resources and the University of
North Dakota signed an MOA in 2014 regarding expansion of the core library on the UND campus and acknowledging the mutual benefit of
locating it on the campus. The core library is located across the street from Leonard Hall (dept. of geology and geological engineering),

Upson Hall (School of Engineering and Mines), and the proposed Collaborative Energy Center (CEC).

In order for construction to begin this summer, an emergency
clause will need to be attached to this portion of the HB1014. Doing so, will
enable demolition to be completed before classes begin for the fall semester.

3 ﬂ& le. :
A A, T
EAPC’s drawing of the proposed expansion of the Wilson M. Laird Core and Sample
Library. The skywalk leads from the core library to Leonard Hall.
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AERIAL PHOTOGRAPHY
GEOLOGICAL SURVEY (2015-2017)

Aerial photographs are an important source of geologic information, the patterns observable in photographs often provide
insight into the sediments or rocks that can be found at or near the surface. The Geological Survey has 50,000 aerial photographs flown
between 1957 and 1962. This includes flight lines for all but two counties. In addition, almost every set in the remaining counties are
missing photos. If we can purchase the 8,000 missing photographs, we will have a complete set of older photos to work from. We prefer
older photographs because there are fewer buildings and infrastructure to obscure the surface geology. All of our aerial photographs are in
stereo pairs which enable us to look at them through stereoscopes and see things in three dimensions.

Areas of Landslides
Croff Quadrangle, North Dakota
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Photograph above: Geologic contacts are identified through the stereoscopes, traced on L F {_l AL 3 R 4 “
the photos with grease pencil, the lines are transferred to the quadrangles, and the - -
contacts are checked for accuracy in the field. On the right: Landslide map of the Croff & e
Quadrangle. The landslides are mapped in pink.
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SHALLOW DRILLING AND SAMPLING PROGRAM
GEOLOGICAL SURVEY (2015-2017)

Shallow drilling is an important tool when surface mapping. It provides insight into the elevation of contacts and the
changing lithologies in the top 50 or 100 feet of sediment and rock beneath the surface. Drilling enables a three-dimensional assessment
of the resources (such as sand and gravel) or the potential hazards (such as swelling clays) beneath an area. Shallow coring costs are
variable and can range from $15.00 to $75.00 per foot. We anticipate coring 1,500 or more feet and analyzing 500 sediment samples in
the Red River Valley and eastern North Dakota. In addition to characterizing the lithology of the rocks and sediments, we are also going
to determine the rare earth content of approximately 50 lignite samples from western North Dakota.

Left: This rotosonic truck-mounted rig is capable of coring depths in excess of 500 feet. Right: A shallow geologic cross section beneath Minot. Green is
till, yellow bodies are sand, and pink is the Fort Union Group (alternating beds of mudstone, claystone, siltstone, sandstone, and lignite).
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DIGITAL CONVERSION OF 2D SEISMIC LINE
GEOLOGICAL SURVEY (2015-2017)

Seismic profiles provide important insight into the rocks in the Williston Basin. Companies are not required to provide
copies of seismic lines to the State of North Dakota. As a result, we seldom see seismic information. However, a number of years
ago Chevron Oil donated fifty seismic lines that had been run in western and northwestern North Dakota. We digitally converted
the data and hired a geophysicist to interpret the data. The remaining lines are to be converted to a digital format and interpreted
by an independent contractor (geophysicist). This data will provide valuable insight into the character of the rock in these areas.

Left: One of the 2D seismic lines donated to the Geologic Survey. Right: A geophysicist’s interpretation of one of the gifted seismic lines
(KGH - Greenhorn Formation, DAK — Dakota Group, JPL — Piper Formation, BLS — Base of last salt, DTF — Three<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>